
 

 

                 September 08, 2021 

         

 

 

To, 

BSE Limited, 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 

Dalal Street, 

Mumbai- 400001 

Scrip Code: 543335 

To, 

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., 

Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, 

Bandra Kurla Complex, 

Bandra (E) 

Mumbai – 400 051 

Scrip Symbol: APTUS 

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

Sub: Submission of Annual Report for FY 2020-21 and Notice of the 12
th

 AGM 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), we are submitting herewith the Annual 

Report of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 along with the Notice convening the 12
th
 Annual 

General Meeting of shareholders of the Company, which is being circulated to the shareholders through 

electronic mode. 

The Annual Report and the Notice of AGM is also uploaded on the Company’s website at at the link 

given below: 

AGM Notice: 

https://www.aptusindia.com/pdf/Notice%20of%20the%2012th%20AGM%20of%20Aptus%20Value%20

Housing%20Finance%20India%20Limited.pdf 

 

Annual Report: https://www.aptusindia.com/pdf/Annual%20Report_Aptus_2020-21.pdf  

 

Kindly take the same on record. 

 

Yours Sincerely, 

For Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited 

 

 

 

Sanin Panicker 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Membership No: A32834 

 

 

https://www.aptusindia.com/pdf/Notice%20of%20the%2012th%20AGM%20of%20Aptus%20Value%20Housing%20Finance%20India%20Limited.pdf
https://www.aptusindia.com/pdf/Notice%20of%20the%2012th%20AGM%20of%20Aptus%20Value%20Housing%20Finance%20India%20Limited.pdf
https://www.aptusindia.com/pdf/Annual%20Report_Aptus_2020-21.pdf
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Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited 
Registered Office: 8B, Doshi Towers, 8

th
 Floor, No. 205, Poonamallee High Road, Kilpauk, Chennai – 600 010. 

CIN: U65922TN2009PLC073881 • Tel: 044 – 45650000 • Fax: 044 – 45554170 

E-mail: cs@aptusindia.com Website: www.aptusindia.com 

 

 

Notice to Members 
 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 12
th
 Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be 

held on Thursday, 30
th
 September 2021, at 11:00 AM through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual 

Means (VC/OAVM) to transact the following businesses: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS:  

 

1. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

 

(a) “RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2021 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as 

circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 

 

(b) “RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2021 and the report of Auditors thereon, as circulated to the 

Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 

 

2. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

 

RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Suman Bollina (holding DIN: 07136443),               

Non-Executive Director, who retires at this meeting, be and is hereby re-appointed as a               

Non - Executive Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation. 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

 

RESOLVED THAT based on the r e c om m e n da t i on  of the Nomination & Remuneration  

Committee and the a p p r o v a l  o f  t h e  Board of Directors and pursuant   to the provisions 

of Section 197, 198 and other  applicable provisions, if  any, read with Schedule V to 

the Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-

enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, and 

pursuant to the Articles of Association of the company, consent of  the Members be and is 

hereby accorded to the revision in the terms of remuneration payable to Mr. M Anandan, 

Chairman and Managing Director (DIN: 00033633), as set out in the Explanatory Statement 

annexed to the Notice convening this meeting. 

 

mailto:cs@aptusindia.com
http://www.aptusindia.com/
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee),  be  and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, 

deeds and things as may be deemed necessary, proper, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 

resolution including alteration and variation in the terms of remuneration so as to comply with the 

requirements as specified in Schedule V of the Act as may be deemed to be in the best interest 

of the Company. 

 

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 

SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

 

RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the resolution passed by the shareholders at the Annual 

General Meeting held on August 11, 2020 and pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and all other applicable provisions of the Act and any rules 

made there under, or any other law for the time being in force (including any statutory 

modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and 

in terms of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the Company hereby 

accords its consent to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term 

shall be deemed to include the Resourcing and Business Committee or any such Committee which 

the Board may constitute / authorize for this purpose) of the Company to borrow such sum or sums 

of money and for availing all kinds and types of loans, advances, debt facilities and credit facilities 

including issuance of debentures and other debt instruments, (apart from temporary loans from the 

Company’s Bankers), from time to time, upto a sum of Rs. 4000 crores (Rupees Four Thousand 

Crores) outstanding at any point of time on account of principal, for and on behalf of the Company, 

from its Bankers, other Banks, Non-Banking Financial Companies, National Housing Bank, 

Financial Institutions, Companies, Firms, Bodies Corporate, Co-Operative Banks, Investment 

Institutions and their Subsidiaries, Mutual Funds, Trusts, other Body Corporate or from any other 

person as may be permitted under applicable laws, whether unsecured or secured notwithstanding 

that moneys to be borrowed together with the moneys already borrowed by the Company (apart 

from temporary loans (including working capital facilities) obtained from the Company’s bankers 

in the ordinary course of business) shall exceed the aggregate of the paid-up capital of the Company 

and its free reserves. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company may issue from time to time, Debenture/Bonds and 

other debt instruments, aggregating up to Rs. 1500 Crores (Rupees One Thousand and Five 

Hundred Crores) within the overall borrowing limits of Rs. 4000 crores (Rupees Four Thousand 

Crores). 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including the 

Resourcing & Business Committee or any such Committee which the Board may constitute/ 

authorize for this purpose) be and is hereby authorized to take all such steps as may be necessary to 

give effect to this resolution. 

 

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 

SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

 

RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the resolution passed by the shareholders at the Annual 

General Meeting held on August 11, 2020 and pursuant to the provisions of section 180(1)(a) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and all other applicable provisions of the Act and any rules made 

thereunder or any other law for the time being in force (including any statutory modification or 
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amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and in terms of the 

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, consent be and is hereby accorded to 

the Board of Directors of the Company (which term shall be deemed to include the Resourcing & 

Business Committee and any such committee which the Board may constitute / authorize for this 

purpose) for mortgaging / charging / hypothecating all or any of the immovable and movable 

properties and assets of the Company, both present and future and the whole or substantially the 

whole of the undertaking or the undertakings of the Company, on such terms and conditions, as 

may be agreed to between the Board and Lender(s), Debenture holders and providers of credit and 

debt facilities to secure the loans / borrowings / credit / debt facilities obtained or as may be 

obtained, or Debentures/Bonds and other instruments issued or to be issued by the Company to or 

in favour of the Financial Institutions, Non-Banking Financial Companies, National Housing Bank, 

Co-operative Banks, Investment Institutions and their Subsidiaries, from its Bankers and other 

Banks, Mutual Funds, Trusts and other Bodies Corporate or Trustees for the holders of 

debentures/bonds and/ or other instruments, or any other person, which may exceed the paid-up 

capital and free reserves provided that the total amount of monies borrowed / credit facilities 

obtained or as may be obtained, or Debentures/Bonds and other instruments issued or to be issued 

by the Company (apart from temporary loans from the Company’s Bankers) shall not at any time 

exceed a sum of Rs. 4000 crores (Rupees Four Thousand Crores) outstanding at any point of time 

on account of principal. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including the 

Resourcing & Business Committee or any such Committee which the Board may constitute/ 

authorize for this purpose) be and is hereby authorized to take all such steps as may be necessary to 

give effect to this resolution. 

 

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a 

SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

 

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42, 71, 179 and all other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Prospectus and 

Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 

2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in 

force), Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company 

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 and other regulations, rules and guidelines issued by Reserve 

Bank of India, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-

Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (as amended from time to time) 

and in accordance with the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the 

Company, consent of the members be and is hereby given to issue, offer or invite subscriptions 

for all kinds and types of NCDs including NCDs which are Listed/Unlisted, Secured, Rated, 

Redeemable, in one or more series / tranches, aggregating up to Rs. 1500 Crores (Rupees One 

Thousand and Five Hundred Crores) to any Institution, Body Corporate, Mutual Fund, entity, 

any other person or persons, domestic or foreign, as permitted under applicable laws, on 

private placement basis on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors (which term 

shall be deemed to include Resourcing and Business Committee of the Board or any other 

committee which may be constituted/authorized for this purpose) may, from time to time, 

determine and consider proper and most beneficial to the Company including as to when the 

said NCDs be offered, the consideration for the offer, utilization of the proceeds and all 

matters connected with or incidental thereto. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby instructed to act 

upon the resolution within a period of 12 months. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to any issue or allotment of 

Debentures of the Company, the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized on behalf of 

the Company to take all such actions and do all such deeds, matters, and things as it may, in its 

absolute discretion, deem necessary, desirable or expedient and to settle any question, 

difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard including but not limited to the offering, 

issue and allotment of debentures of the Company as it may in its absolute discretion deem fit 

and proper. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to 

delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred by this resolution to the Resourcing and 

Business Committee or any Director or Directors or to any member the Resourcing and 

Business Committee or to any Committee of Directors or to any officer or officers of the 

Company to give effect to this resolution. 

 

                      By Order of the Board of Directors 

                       

     sd/- 

Chennai  Sanin Panicker 

September 06, 2021 Company Secretary 

      Membership No.: A32834 
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NOTES  

 

1. In view of the difficulties of resurgence  of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a 

norm to be followed and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, 

Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated 

January 13, 2021, Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 

2021 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and all other relevant 

circulars issued from time to time, physical attendance of the Members at the Annual 

General Meeting (“AGM”) venue is not required and general meeting be held through 

video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can 

attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM. 

 

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members 

is not available for this AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint 

authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there 

at and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 

3. Pursuant to the provisions of section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the listing 

regulations, the register of members and share transfer books of the company will remain 

closed from September 23, 2021 to September 30, 2021 (both days inclusive). All 

correspondence relating to change of address, e-mail ID, transfer / transmission of shares, 

issue of duplicate share certificates, bank mandates and all other matters relating to the 

shareholding in the company may be made to KFin Technologies Private Limited (KFin), the 

registrar and share transfer agent (RTA). The members holding shares in dematerialised form 

may send such communication to their respective depository participant/s (DPs).  

 

4. Since the 12
th
 AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map of the venue of the 

Meeting is not annexed hereto. 

 

5. Corporate members / Institutional members intending to appoint their authorized 

representatives to attend the AGM are requested to send to the Company a copy of the Board 

resolution/ authorization letter authorizing their representative to attend and vote through VC 

or OAVM or to vote through remote e-voting and are requested to send a certified copy of the 

Board Resolution to the Scrutinizer by e-mail at evoting.aptus@sandeep-cs.in with a copy 

marked to cs@aptusindia.com. 

   

6. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for 

the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

 

7. A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) and Regulation 

36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 

Regulations”) relating to the Special Businesses to be transacted at the AGM is annexed 

hereto. 

 

8. Information as required under the Listing Regulations in respect of re-appointment of  

Mr. Suman Bollina, Non-Executive Director is furnished and forms a part of the notice as 

Annexure A. 

 

9. In terms of the requirements of Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standards- 2 on “General Meetings” issued 

by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India and approved & notified by the Central 

Government, brief resume and statement as required by paragraph no. 1.2.5 of SS2 – Secretarial 

Standards on General Meetings is enclosed as Annexure A. 

 

mailto:evoting.aptus@sandeep-cs.in
mailto:cs@aptusindia.com
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10. In line with the MCA Circular dated May 5, 2020 and January 13, 2021 and SEBI Circular 

dated May 12, 2020 and January 15, 2021 the Notice of the AGM along with the Annual 

Report 2020–21 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email 

addresses are registered with the Company / Depositories and the same will also be available 

on the Company’s website www.aptusindia.com, website of RTA https://evoting.kfintech.com   

and on the websites of stock exchanges www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com. The 

Notice convening the 12
th
 AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 

www.aptusindia.com. For any communication, the members may send requests to the 

Company’s email ID cs@aptusindia.com. 

 

11. SEBI has mandated the submission of the permanent account number (PAN) by every 

participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form, are therefore, 

requested to submit their PAN to their respective DPs. Members holding shares in physical 

form shall submit their details to RTA. 
 

12. Pursuant to SEBI circular no.SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on 

“e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies”, e-Voting process has been enabled to all the 

individual demat account holders, by way of single login credential, through their demat accounts / 

websites of Depositories / DPs in order to increase the efficiency of the voting process. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and e-mail ID with their DPs to access 

e-Voting facility. 

 

13. Since shares of the company are traded on the stock exchanges compulsorily in demat mode, 

members holding shares in physical mode are advised to get their shares dematerialised.  Effective 

1 April, 2019, SEBI has disallowed listed companies from accepting request for transfer of 

securities which are held in physical form. The shareholders who continue to hold shares in 

physical form after this date will not be able to lodge the shares with company / its RTA for further 

transfer. Shareholders shall mandatorily convert them to demat form if they wish to effect any 

transfer. Only the requests for transmission and transposition of securities in physical form, will be 

accepted by the company / RTA. 

 

14. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained 

under section 170 of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the 

directors are interested, maintained under section 189 of the Act and the Certificate for the 

ESOP Schemes of the Company as required under the SEBI Regulations will be available 

electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM. All documents referred to in 

the notice will also be available for electronic inspection by the members up to the date of 

AGM, i.e. September 30, 2021. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an 

email to cs@aptusindia.com.  

 

15. Voting through electronic means 

 

i. Remote e-voting and e-voting during the AGM:  

 

a. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, 

as amended, and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, company is providing to its Members facility to exercise their right to vote on 

resolutions proposed to be passed at the AGM by electronic means (“e-voting”). Members may 

cast their votes remotely, using an electronic voting system on the dates mentioned herein below 

(“remote e-voting’’). The company has engaged the services of KFin as the agency to provide e-

voting facility. The manner of voting remotely by members holding shares in dematerialized 

mode, physical mode and for members who have not registered their email addresses is provided 

in the instructions given below. 

  

http://www.aptusindia.com/
https://evoting.kfintech.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
http://www.aptusindia.com/
mailto:cs@aptusindia.com
mailto:cs@aptusindia.com
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b. The remote e-voting facility will be available during the following voting period:  

Commencement of remote e-voting: Monday, September 27, 2021 at 09:00 a.m. (IST) and End 

of remote e-voting: Wednesday, September 29, 2021 at 05:00 p.m. (IST). The remote e-voting 

will not be allowed beyond the aforesaid date and time and the remote e-voting module shall be 

forthwith disabled by KFin upon expiry of the aforesaid period. 

c. The Board has appointed Mr. S Sandeep (FCS 5853/COP 5987), Managing Partner of           

M/s. S Sandeep and Associates, Company Secretaries, as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote     

e-voting and e-voting process during the AGM in a fair and transparent manner in terms of the 

requirements of the Act and the rules made there under, and he has communicated his eligibility 

and willingness to be appointed as Scrutinizer and given his consent for the same and will be 

available for the said purpose. 

 

d. The Result of remote e-voting and e-voting shall be declared within 48 (Forty-Eight) hours from 

conclusion of the AGM and subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions 

proposed in the Notice shall be deemed to be passed on the date of this AGM, that is, Thursday, 

September 30, 2021. 

 

e. The Results of voting declared along with Scrutinizer’s Report will be published on the website 

at https://www.aptusindia.com and on Service Provider’s website at https://evoting.kfintech.com  

within 48 (Forty Eight) hours from the conclusion of the AGM and the same shall also be 

simultaneously communicated to the BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited. 

 

ii. Information and instructions relating to remote e-voting and e-voting are as under: 

 

a. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 30 minutes before and after the 

scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned 

herein. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 

1,000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Members (Members 

holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM 

without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 

b. The members who have cast their vote(s) by remote e-voting may also attend the Meeting but 

shall not be entitled to cast their vote(s) again at the Meeting. Once the vote on a resolution is 

casted by a Member, whether partially or otherwise, the Member shall not be allowed to change 

it subsequently or cast the vote again. 

 

c. A member can opt for only single mode of voting per EVENT, i.e., through remote e-voting or 

e-voting during the Meeting. If a member casts vote(s) by both modes, then voting done through 

remote e-voting shall prevail and vote(s) casted at the Meeting shall be treated as “INVALID”.  

 

d. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial 

owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date i.e., Wednesday, September 22, 

2021 only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting or for e-voting during the 

AGM. A person, who is not a member as on the cut-off date, should treat the Notice for 

information purpose only. 

https://www.aptusindia.com/
https://evoting.kfintech.com/
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e. Members who have acquired shares after the dispatch of the Annual Report may approach    

KFin for issuance of the User ID and Password for exercising their right to vote by electronic 

means. 

 

f. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions may register themselves by 

logging on to https://emeetings.kfintech.com  and clicking on the ‘Speaker Registration’ option 

available on the screen after log in. The Speaker Registration will be open during Saturday, 

September 25, 2021 at 09:00 a.m. (IST) till Monday, September 27, 2021 at 05:00 p.m. (IST). 

Only those members who are registered will be allowed to express their views or ask questions. 

Please note that, questions will be answered only if the member continues to hold the shares as 

of cut-off date. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number 

of speakers, depending upon availability of time as appropriate for smooth conduct of the AGM. 

 

g. Members will be allowed to attend the AGM through VC on first come, first served basis.  

 

h. Facility to join the meeting shall be opened thirty minutes before the scheduled time of the AGM 

and shall be kept open throughout the proceedings of the AGM. 

 

i. While all efforts would be made to make the VC/ OAVM meeting smooth, participants 

connecting through mobile devices, tablets, laptops etc. may at times experience audio/video 

loss due to fluctuation in their respective networks. Use of a stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection 

can mitigate some of the technical glitches. 

 

j. A video guide assisting the members attending AGM either as a speaker or participant is 

available for quick reference at URL https://emeetings.kfintech.com.  

 

k. Members who need technical assistance before or during the AGM can contact KFin at 

emeetings@kfintech.com or Toll free number: 1800-309-4001. 

 

iii. Procedure for registering the email address and obtaining the Annual Report, AGM notice and    

e-voting instructions by the shareholders whose email addresses are not registered with the 

Depositories (in case of shareholders holding shares in Demat form) or with RTA (in case of 

shareholders holding shares in physical form): 

 

Those Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are requested to get their email 

addresses registered by following the procedure given below: 

 

a. Members holding shares in Demat form can get their email ID registered by contacting their 

respective DP. 

 

b. Members holding shares in physical form may register their email address and mobile number 

with KFin by accessing the URL given below: 

https://ris.kfintech.com/clientservices/mobilereg/mobileemailreg.aspx. 

 Select the Company Name i.e. Aptus Value Housing Finance Limited 

 

 Select the Holding type from the drop down i.e. - NSDL / CDSL / Physical. 

 

https://emeetings.kfintech.com/
https://emeetings.kfintech.com/
mailto:emeetings@kfintech.com
https://ris.kfintech.com/clientservices/mobilereg/mobileemailreg.aspx


 

 
 

Page 9 of 18 
 

 Enter DPID – Client ID (in case shares are held in electronic form) / Physical Folio No.         

(In case shares are held in physical form) and PAN. 

 

 If PAN details are not available in the system, the system will prompt to upload a self-attested 

copy of the PAN Card for updating records. 

 

 In case shares are held in physical form and PAN is not available in the records, please enter 

any one of the Share Certificate No. in respect of the shares held by you. 

 

 Enter the email address and mobile number. 

 

 System will validate DP ID – Client ID/ Physical Folio No. and PAN / Share certificate No., 

as the case may be, and send the OTP at the registered Mobile number as well as email 

address for validation. 

 

 Enter the OTPs received by SMS and email to complete the validation process. 

OTPs validity will be for 5 minutes only. 

 

 The Notice and e-voting instructions along with the User ID and Password will be sent on the 

email address updated by the member. 

 

 Please note that in case the shares are held in Electronic Form, the above facility is only for 

temporary registration of email address for receipt of the Notice and the e-voting instructions 

along with the User ID and Password. Such members will have to register their email address 

with their DPs permanently, so that all communications are received by them in electronic 

form. 

 

 In case of queries, members are requested to write to einward.ris@kfintech.com or call at the 

toll free number 1-800- 309-4001 

 

iv. Procedures for remote E-Voting for Members other than Individual shareholders holding equity 

shares in demat mode and members Holding Equity Shares in Physical Form: 

 

Members whose email IDs are registered with the company/ depository participant(s), will receive 

an email from KFin which will include details of E-Voting Event Number (6314), USER ID and 

password. Members will have to follow the following process: 

 

a. Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://evoting.kfintech.com. 

 

b. Enter the login credentials provided in the email and click on Login. 

 

c. Password change menu appears when you login for the first time with default password. You 

will be required to mandatorily change the default password. 

 

d. The new password should comprise of minimum 8 characters with at least one upper case 

(A- Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric value (0-9) and a special character (@, #, $, etc.,). 

 

e. Update your contact details like mobile number, email address, etc. if prompted. You may 

also enter a secret question and answer of your choice to retrieve your password in case you 

mailto:einward.ris@kfintech.com
https://evoting.kfintech.com/
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forget it. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 

take utmost care to keep it confidential. 

 

f. Login again with the new credentials. 

 

g. On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the “EVENT” 

 

h. On the voting page, enter the number of shares (which represents the number of votes) as on 

the Cut-off date under “FOR / AGAINST” or alternatively, you may partially enter any 

number in “FOR” and partially “AGAINST” but the total number in “FOR / AGAINST” 

taken together shall not exceed your total shareholding as mentioned above. If the member 

does not indicate either “FOR” or “AGAINST” it will be treated as “ABSTAIN” and the 

shares held will not be counted under either head. 

 

i. Members holding multiple folios may choose to vote differently for each folio / demat 

account. 

 

j. You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on “Submit. A 

confirmation box will be displayed. Click “Ok” to confirm or “Cancel” to modify. Once you 

confirm the voting on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote thereafter. 

During the voting period, members can login multiple times and vote until they confirm the 

voting on the resolution by clicking “Submit”. 

 

k. In case of any queries/grievances, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 

Members at https://evoting.kfintech.com/public/Faq.aspx or call KFin on 1-800-309-4001 

(toll free). 

  

v. Procedure for Login for E-Voting and Attending AGM through VC/OVAM for Individual 

Shareholders holding securities in Demat mode 

 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode are allowed to vote through 

their Demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 

advised to update their mobile number and email ID in their Demat accounts in order to access  

e-Voting facility. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://ind01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fevoting.kfintech.com%2Fpublic%2FFaq.aspx&data=04%7C01%7Cmohsin.mohd%40kfintech.com%7C7a62af4545a543089bd508d91c70fdb4%7C1f05907ac524467eb2e103a361253cb5%7C0%7C0%7C637572093917987717%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Rz%2FetffFBSfdLxd79MnvSDuhk9MkCbfZ2YD6LZw733E%3D&reserved=0
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  Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 

 

Individual shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with 

National Securities Depository 

Limited (“NSDL”) 

A. User already registered for IDeAS facility: 

 

1. Open https://eservices.nsdl.com 

   

2. Click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under ‘IDeAS’ section. 

 

3. On the new page, enter User ID and Password. Post successful 

authentication, click on “Access to e-Voting” 

 

4. Click on Company Name or e-Voting service provider and you will 

be re-directed to e-voting service provider website for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting 

& voting during the Meeting. 

 

B. User is not registered for IDeAS e-Services:  

 

1. To register, open https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile.  

 

2. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click on     

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp. 

 

3. Proceed with completing the required fields 

 

C. By visiting the e-Voting website of NSDL: 

 

1. Open https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile.  

 

2. Click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section 

 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. 

your sixteen digit Demat account number hold with NSDL), 

Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.  

 

4. Post successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. 

 

5. Click on Company name or e-Voting service provider name and 

you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period  

 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with 

Central Depository Services 

(India) Limited (“CDSL”) 

A. Existing user who have opted for Easi/Easiest 

 

1. Click at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 

www.cdslindia.com  

 

2. Click on New System Myeasi. 

 

3. Login with user ID and Password 

 

4. After successful login of Easi / Easiest, Option will be made 

available to reach e-voting page 

 

5. Click on e-voting service provider name to cast your vote 

 

B. User not registered for Easi/Easiest 

 

1. Option to register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi./Registration/ EasiRegistration.  

 

2. Proceed with completing the required fields. 

 

C. By visiting the e-Voting website of CDSL: 

 

1. Visit at www.cdslindia.com    

 

2. Provide Demat Account Number and PAN No. 

 

3. System will authenticate user by sending OTP on registered Mobile 

& Email as recorded in the Demat Account. 

 

4. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the 

respective user will be provided links for the respective ESP where 

the e-voting is in progress. 

 

Individual Shareholders (holding 

securities in Demat mode) login 

through their depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your Demat account 

through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 

e-Voting facility.   

 

Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on 

e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository 

site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting 

feature. Click on Company Name or e-Voting service provider name 

and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID 

and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 

login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi./Registration/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in Demat 

mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 

sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 

990  and  1800 22 44 30 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in Demat 

mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 

sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 

23058738 or 022-23058542-43. 

 

 

vi. Instructions for the members for attending the AGM of the company through VC: 

 

 Members can attend the AGM through the link https://emeetings.kfintech.com/ by using 

their remote e-voting credentials. 

 

 Members can participate in the AGM through their desktops / smart phones / laptops etc. 

However, for better experience and smooth participation, it is advisable to join the meeting 

through desktops / laptops with high-speed internet connectivity. It is recommended to use 

a stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection. 

 

 The attendance of the members (members logins) attending the AGM will be counted for 

the purpose of reckoning the quorum under section 103 of the Act. 

 

Step 1 Access the URL https://emeetings.kfintech.com/  

Step 2 Enter the login credentials (i.e., User ID and password provided for remote e-voting) 

Step 3 Please select the name of the meeting 

Step 4 Click on ‘Video Conference’ option 

Step 5 Click on the red square box with a video icon to join the VC 

 

vii. Instructions for members for e-voting during the AGM session: 

 

Members who have not cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be eligible to cast their 

vote through e-voting system available during the AGM. E-voting during the AGM is 

integrated with the VC platform of KFin. Members may click on the voting icon displayed on 

the screen to cast their votes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://emeetings.kfintech.com/
https://emeetings.kfintech.com/
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES 

ACT, 2 0 1 3 ( “ t h e A c t ” ) 

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Businesses   mentioned in 

the accompanying Notice: 

Item No. 3: Revision in remuneration of Mr. M Anandan, Chairman and Managing Director 

Mr. M Anandan has been appointed as Chairman and Managing Director of the Company for a 

period of five years commencing from 24
th

 December 2019. In terms of the appointment of 

Mr. M Anandan as Chairman and Managing Director, the remuneration applicable to him is decided 

by the Board based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) and 

approved by the Members at the Annual General Meeting. Due to the disruptions caused by the 

outbreak of COVID 19 pandemic especially on the economic front, as per the request made by 

Mr. M Anandan to continue with his existing level of remuneration, Board at its meeting held on 

30
th

 May 2020 and shareholders at their Annual General Meeting held on 11
th

 August 2020 had 

decided to retain the same level of remuneration upto 30
th

 September 2020. 

Subsequently, the proposals to revise the remuneration for the period, October 01, 2020 to March 31, 

2021 and for the period, April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022 were considered by the NRC. The NRC, 

considering the strong growth and excellent financial performance of the Company under the 

leadership of Mr. M. Anandan recommended a revision in the remuneration. The NRC has taken 

cognizance of the following while making its recommendation to the Board:- 

 Mr. Anandan’s vast multi-functional experience in the financial services sector spanning

over four decades.

 Robust growth in the Asset under Management of the Company.

 Quality of Portfolio and Return on Assets.

 Net profit and Return on Equity.

 Remuneration of CEOs/MDs of companies in the financial services sector.

The Board of Directors at their meetings held on November 12, 2020 and June 24, 2021, based on 

the recommendation of NRC had approved revision in remuneration as given below: 

Particulars October 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021 April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022 

A. Salary Rs 25 lakhs per month Rs 33.33 lakhs per month 

B. Allowances Rs. 12.5 lakhs per month Rs. 16.66 lakhs per month 

C. Commission Rs. 200 lakhs for FY 2020-21 upto Rs 300 lakhs for FY 2021-22 

D. Retirement Benefits/ Perquisites:

There are no changes in retirement benefits- provident fund, medical reimbursement, personal accident

insurance and perquisites as approved by the shareholders at the previous Annual General Meeting held

on August 11, 2020.

E. General:

i. In the event of inadequacy of profits in any financial year, the remuneration by way of salary,

allowances, commission, perquisites and retirement benefits to Mr. M Anandan be paid in

accordance with section II of part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
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ii.  Mr. M Anandan will not be entitled to any sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or of any 

committee thereof. 

 

Further revisions to the above to be decided by the Board of Directors based on the recommendations of the 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee. 

 

In compliance with the provisions under sections 196, 197 read with Schedule V to the Act, the 

revision in remuneration of Mr. M Anandan, Chairman & Managing Director (CMD) proposed under 

Item No. 3 of the Notice is placed before the Members for approval. 

 

Accordingly, the Board recommends the ordinary resolution in Item No. 3 for the approval of the 

Members.  

 

Mr. M Anandan is directly interested in this resolution. Mr. Suman Bollina being an immediate 

relative of Mr. M Anandan is also interested in this resolution and to the extent of his shareholding in 

the Company. None of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are 

concerned or interested financially or otherwise, in this resolution. 

 

Further details of Mr. M. Anandan, as required by paragraph no. 1.2.5 of SS2 – Secretarial Standards 

on General Meetings are provided in Annexure A. 

 

Item No. 4: Fixing of Borrowing Limits 

 

In terms of provisions of Section 180(1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the 

Company cannot, except with the consent of the Company in a general meeting by way of a special 

resolution, borrow moneys (apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company’s bankers in the 

ordinary course of business), in excess of the aggregate of the paid-up capital and its free reserves. 

 

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on August 11, 2020, the shareholders had passed a 

special resolution under Section 180(1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 empowering the Board of Directors 

of the Company to borrow upto Rs.3500 crores which was in excess of the paid up capital and free reserves 

of the Company as at March 31, 2020 

 

The outstanding borrowing of the Company as at March 31, 2021 amounted to approximately Rs.2168 

crores. In order to further expand its business and to meet the loan disbursements, the Board may have to 

resort to various borrowing options which at times is likely to exceed the present borrowing limit of 

Rs.3500 crores. Taking into account this and the enabling provisions under Section 180(1)(c) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, in order to enable the Board of Directors to raise adequate funds in a timely manner, 

the resolution under item no.4 of the notice is proposed.  

 

Since the borrowing limit of Rs.4000 crores as proposed in the special resolution appearing in item no. 4 of 

this notice is in excess of paid up capital and its free reserves, the proposal requires the approval of 

shareholders by means of a special resolution. 

 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is, in anyway, 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item no. 4 of the Notice. 

 

Your Directors recommend the above Special Resolution in item no. 4 for your approval. 

 

Item No. 5:  Creation of Charge / Mortgage on Assets 

 

Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, provides that the Board of Directors of a Company shall 

not, without the consent of members in general meeting, sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the whole or 

substantially the whole of the undertaking of the Company.  
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For creation of security through mortgage or pledge/ or hypothecation or otherwise of the movable and 

immovable properties and assets of the company or through a combination of the above for securing the 

limits/ credit/ debt facilities as may be sanctioned by the lenders, and / or for securing the issuance of 

debentures/ bonds/ and other instruments, the Company would be required to secure all or any of the 

movable and immovable assets and properties of the Company, present and future.  

 

Considering the requirement under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 in order to enable the 

Board to mortgage/ charge/ hypothecate or otherwise create security against the properties and/or the whole 

or substantially the whole of the undertaking of the Company create charge/encumbrance on the assets of 

the Company, approval of the Members is sought by way of a special resolution.  

 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in anyway, 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item no. 5 of the Notice. 

 

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at item no. 5 of the Notice for approval by the 

shareholders. 

 

Item No. 6: Offer / invitation to subscribe to Non-Convertible Debentures on private placement basis 

 

Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of 

Securities) Rules, 2014 prescribed thereunder, Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – 

Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 and Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 deals with private 

placement of securities by a company. Third proviso of Sub-rule (1) of the Rule 14 of the Companies 

(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 provides that in case of an offer or invitation to 

subscribe for non-convertible debentures on private placement basis, it is sufficient if the company 

obtains previous approval of its shareholders by means of a special resolution only once in a year for 

all the offers or invitations for such debentures during the year. 

 

As part of its fund raising plans for the next 12 months of the Company, your Company proposes to 

issue Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) on a private placement basis to institutions, mutual funds, 

bodies corporate, and other persons, both domestic and non-domestic. The Company may offer or 

invite subscription for all kinds of NCDs, in one or more series / tranches on private placement basis. 

The proceeds of the issue would be utilised for working capital to finance the growth of the lending 

portfolio of the company. 

 

In this context, approval of the shareholders is being sought for issuance / offers of NCDs aggregating 

upto Rs. 1500 Crores by way of a Special Resolution as set out at item no. 6 of the Notice. The said 

limit of Rs. 1500 crores for issuance of NCDs shall be within the overall borrowing limits of Rs. 4000 

crores as proposed in the special resolution appearing in item no. 4 of the notice. 

 

This resolution enables the Company to offer or invite subscription for non-convertible debentures, as 

may be required by the Company, from time to time for a year from the conclusion of this Annual 

General Meeting.  

 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in anyway, 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item no. 6 of the Notice. 

 

 By Order of the Board of Directors 

                       

   sd/- 

Chennai                               Sanin Panicker 

September 06, 2021               Company Secretary 

 Membership No.: A32834 
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ANNEXURE A 

 

Disclosure pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards 2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India. 

 
Name of Director Mr. M Anandan 

DIN 00033633 

Date of Birth (Age) 26/01/1950 (71 years) 

Qualifications 

Mr. M Anandan holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from 

the University of Madras. He is also a member of the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Experience / Expertise in specific 

functional areas 

Mr. M Anandan is the Chairman and Managing Director of 

our Company. He has over 40 years of experience in the 

financial services sector and has previously served as the 

Managing Director of Cholamandalam Investment and 

Finance Company Limited, part of the Murugappa Group and 

was also the Managing Director of Cholamandalam MS 

General Insurance Company. 

Terms and conditions of appointment / 

reappointment 
Chairman and Managing Director 

Remuneration sought to be paid 
As set out in the ordinary resolution under item no. 3 of this 

Notice 

Remuneration last drawn (for financial 

year 2020-21) 

Same as set out in the ordinary resolution under item no. 3 of 

this Notice 

Date of first appointment on the Board 11
th

 December 2009 

Shareholding in the Company 25.14% (including shareholding of immediate relatives) 

Relationship with other Directors, 

Manager and KMP of the Company 

Mr. Suman Bollina, Non-Executive Director:  

Immediate relative 

Number of Board Meetings attended 

during the Financial Year 2020-21 
4 (Four) out of 4 (Four) meetings held 

Other Directorships, Membership / 

Chairmanship of Committees of other 

Boards 

 

Nil 

 

 

  

http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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ANNEXURE A 

Disclosure pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards 2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India. 

Name of Director Mr. Suman Bollina 

DIN 07136443 

Date of Birth (Age) 31/03/1985 (36 years) 

Qualifications 

Mr. Suman Bollina has received an MBA from SP Jain 

Centre of Management, Dubai/Singapore and he is an 

engineering graduate, BE (Hons) from Birla Institute of 

Technology & Science, Pilani. 

Experience / Expertise in specific functional 

areas 

Suman Bollina is a Non – Executive Director on the Board 

of our Company. He is the executive managing partner of 

Sri Santhi Corporation. He has over 10 years of experience 

in the development of residential layouts and design, 

construction and sale of apartments.  

Terms and conditions of appointment / 

reappointment 
Non-Executive Director liable to retire by rotation 

Remuneration sought to be paid Sitting fees, profit related commission 

Remuneration last drawn (for financial year 

2020-21) 

Sitting fees of Rs. 0.60 lakhs 

Commission of Rs. 7.5 lakhs 

Date of first appointment on the Board 27
th

 March 2015 

Shareholding in the Company 0.08% 

Relationship with other Directors, Manager 

and KMP of the Company 

Mr. M Anandan, Chairman and Managing Director: 

Immediate relative 

Number of Board Meetings attended during 

the Financial Year 2020-21 
4 (Four) out of 4 (Four) meetings held 

Other Directorships, Membership / 

Chairmanship of Committees of other Boards 

a) Member of the Board of Directors of Aptus Finance India

Private Limited, wholly owned subsidiary company.

b) Chairman of the Corporate Social Responsibility

Committee of Aptus Finance India Private Limited, wholly

owned subsidiary company.

c) Member of Nomination & Remuneration Committee of

Aptus Finance India Private Limited, wholly owned

subsidiary company.
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our journey

2010
2012

2015-17

2018

2020

2021

Founded by
Mr. M  Anandan

Opened 20th branch
1,200+ home loans disbursed

Raised INR 3.7Bn from
WestBridge over 2 rounds

Opened 100th branch 
Loan book INR 14Bn+

Raised INR 8Bn from WestBridge,
Sequoia, Steadview and  Malabar

AUM INR 40Bn+
GNPA < 1%

2010 Incorporation of our Company and receipt of certificate of registration from NHB.

2011 Opened our first branch.

2012 Opened our 20th branch and crossed 1,200 home loan disbursements.

2013 Loan book crossed ₹900 million.

2014 Loan book crossed ₹2,500 million.

2015 Expanded our geographical presence to four states and loan book crossed ₹7,000 million.

2018 Opened our 100th branch and loan book crossed ₹14,000 million.

2019 Expanded our geographical presence to 143 locations and loan book crossed ₹20,000 million.

2020 Expanded our geographical presence to 175 locations, our customer base reached 50,200 and loan book 
 crossed ₹30,000 million.

2021 Expanded our geographical presence to 190 locations, our customer base reached 65,683 and loan book 
 crossed ₹40,000 million.
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Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited

4  Board of Directors with Diversified Experience.

4 Stable Management Team.

4 Fully in house sourcing model and centralised operations.

4 Best in class Underwriting Quality.

4 Prudent borrowing practices resulting in positive ALM and strong liquidity.

4 Strong Technology framework and data analytics.

4 Strong Investor Support.
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FACTS
At Aptus, we understand that housing finance needs of every customer is unique and that is why we 

have customized solutions for helping low and middle income, self-employed grow stronger. We 

help people in our target segment get access to housing finance and lead the transition to home 

owners. 
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Branches
190

Employees
+1,910

Cumulative Disbursement 
`5,600 Crores

ASSET UNDER MANAGEMENT
`4,068 Crores

No. of customers 
over 60,000



Aptus Housing Finance has scaled a new peak and achieved phenomenal results in the 

financial year 2020-21 through relentless performance and customer-focused business 

practices. The company has maintained winning strides even this year by recording 

highest Return on Assets (RoA) and Assets under Management (AuM) figures, proof 

enough of the robust management of the company. We are one of the largest housing 

finance companies in south India in terms of Assets Under Management, as of March 31, 

2021. Our AUM have increased from ₹22,472.33 million, as of March 31, 2019 to ₹40,677.62 

million, as of March 31, 2021, at a CAGR of 34.54%. Our Company had highest ROA of 7.4% 

one of the best in the industry.

The housing demand continues to surge in India and according to the industry report, 

the housing shortage is estimated to increase to 100 million units by 2022, out of which 

95% shortage will be from the lower income group and economically weaker sections. As 

we already have a stronghold in this customer segment, we are all set to chart a new 

growth story and set new benchmarks for others to follow. 

We, at Aptus are ideally poised to seize enormous opportunities in the housing finance 

segment. Presence in large, underpenetrated markets with strong growth potential,  

Robust risk management architecture from origination to collections leading to superior 

asset quality, In-house operations leading to desired business outcomes, Domain 

expertise resulting in a business model difficult to replicate by others in our 

geographies, Experienced and stable management team with marquee shareholders , 

Established track record of financial performance with industry leading profitability and 

Focus on the social impact of our business are some of the factors that gives us the much 

needed competitive advantage and helps us to maintain the leadership surge in the 

segment we operate in. 

With over a decade of established presence in the market, we understand the need to 

widen our reach and cater to a growing bunch of first time home buyer to assert our 

prowess as a comprehensive housing finance provider. 

We, at Aptus has shown outstanding growth results even when there was widespread 

slow down due to the pandemic. This phenomenal growth wouldn’t be possible without 

the honesty of our customers who paid their dues despite lower earnings during covid 

and steadfast commitment of our employees. 

Being at the helm of affordable housing finance market and our time-honored expertise 

in this domain, we are all set to chart a remarkable growth story in the years to come. 

Charting a 
new growth story

Maintaining
Gold Standards
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4 Continue to focus on low and middle income, self-

employed customers in rural and semi-urban markets

We seek to improve the standard of living of our 

customers and include them into the financial 

mainstream. The housing shortage in India is estimated 

to increase to 100 million units by 2022, of which 95% of 

the household shortage  will be from the lower income 

group and economic weaker section, while the 

remaining 5% will be from the middle income group or 

above. We believe that this customer segment offers us 

significant growth opportunities since they are 

primarily new to credit customers, without formal 

income proofs and are unserved or underserved by 

formal financial institutions. 

4 Increase penetration in our existing markets and 

expand our branch network in large housing markets

Our operations are currently focused in the states of 

Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh, Karnataka and 

Telangana and we have a network of 190 branches in 

these states, as of March 31, 2021. We intend to continue 

to expand our presence in order to achieve more deeper 

penetration in these regions. We also intend expand 

our branch network in a contiguous manner in the 

states of Maharashtra, Odisha and Chattisgarh.

4 Continue to be an asset quality focused financier

We intend to grow our business while focussing on 

maintaining our asset quality. We have maintained 

our asset quality across economic cycles including 

events such as demonetization, the liquidity crisis that 

was triggered by defaults by large financial services 

companies and the COVID-19 pandemic. We believe 

that we were able to consistently perform well through 

such macro-economic challenges due to several 

factors including our risk management architecture, 

the strength of our management team and proactive 

measures undertaken during such periods. 

4 Continue to be Cost Efficient

While we enjoy one of the lowest opex as compared 

with peers, our strategy shall be to continue with the 

low opex model with focus on productivity and also to 

reduce cost of funds by having diversified source of 

borrowings and improved credit ratings.
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CHAIRMAN’S
OVERVIEW

Dear Shareholders,

The year 2020-21 has been challenging.

We began the year under a lockdown induced by Covid – 

first wave and ended the year with most of the states 

enforcing lockdowns due to Covid - second wave.  This has 

taken a toll on economic activities, but more importantly 

it has had a longer term impact on the lives and 

livelihoods of a significant number of our fellow citizens. 

In these times, your company has navigated its way well, 

and it is reflected in the performance and  trust that your 

company enjoys amongst various stakeholders.

India has a lowest percentage of home ownership than 

other countries and to go with it as a testimony for market 

potential we have one of the lowest mortgage to GDP ratio 

(at approximately 10%). This, together with Government's 

initiatives for Affordable Housing, increasing urbanization, 

rising incomes,  have all led to an increasing demand for 

housing. Owning a home is a basic instinct of humans, as 

it provides families with a sense of financial and 

emotional stability. This is more so in the low and middle 

income segment  where we operate. The Company, with its 

focus on Affordable Housing Finance is well positioned to 

benefit from this growing demand. 

Our core values of transparency, speed, innovation and 

superior customer service helped us in responding with 

apt funding solutions to the changing needs of our 
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customers during this period. During these testing times, 

we had counselled our customers which helped them to 

get back on to their regular repayment cycle very quickly. 

Being transparent in our communication and staying 

accountable for our actions, has helped to build Aptus as 

a trusted brand.

Customer engagement and maintaining a strong balance 

sheet remained the core of the Company's efforts through 

the year. As of March 2021, AUM increased by 28% to close 

the year at ̀ 4,068 Crores with NPAs at 0.68% . In a difficult 

year, the Company was also able to broaden and deepen 

its relationships with lenders including NHB. This has 

helped the company maintain a healthy liquidity position. 

The Company's focus on funding customers belonging to 

the low and middle income (LMI)segment ,superior 

collection efficiency, tight control on costs and focus on 

impeccable asset quality helped attaining Profit After Tax 

of ̀ 267 crores for the year. 

With Covid first wave improving by second quarter of FY 21, 

the fight against Covid is far from over. The virulent nature 

of the second wave is presenting us with a fresh set of 

challenges. The adverse impact of second covid wave is 

expected to be much more than what we experienced in 

first covid wave though it is tough to put an empirical 

quote to it. Nonetheless our Company's robust credit 

underwriting process, efficient collection machinery, 

appropriate investments in Information Technology, good 

liability management and productivity focused approach, 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and the 

regulator has since approved our IPO.

I thank all stakeholders, the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), 

the National Housing Bank (NHB), SEBI, Lenders, Rating 

Agencies and our Customers for their unrelenting 

patronage. This journey would not have been possible 

without the guidance and support of my colleagues on the 

Board. Last, but not least, I must acknowledge the 

unwavering efforts of our employees. They have been a 

source of inspiration during these uncertain times and 

deserve huge appreciation.  

M Anandan

Chairman

fortify the ability to withstand and to a large extent 

mitigate such stress. We will put our best efforts to 

embark on trajectory of calibrated and sustainable 

growth going forward with utmost focus on asset quality. 

We shall continue to focus on providing housing finance 

for the customers belonging to LMI segment in tier 2/3 

cities. We are confident of building a valuable franchise, 

supported by a calibrated expansion strategy, focused 

approach towards maintaining good quality of the book 

and a diversified financing base. 

To strengthen our capital further and to support future 

growth, we are planning to raise fresh capital from public 

markets by way of Initial Public Offering (IPO).  We have 

filed our Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) with 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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M Anandan is the Chairman and 

Managing Director of our Company. He 

ho lds  a  bache lor ' s  degree  in 

commerce from the University of 

Madras. He is also a member of 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. He has over 40 years of 

experience in the financial services 

sector and has previously served as 

t h e  M a n a g i n g  D i r e c t o r  o f 

Cholamandalam Investment and 

Finance Company Limited, part of the 

Murugappa Group and was also 

Managing Director of Cholamandalam 

MS General Insurance Company 

Limited.

Mr. M. Anandan
Chairman & Managing Director

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Kandheri Munuswamy Mohandass is a 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

of our Company. He holds a bachelor's 

degree in science from the University 

of Madras. He is an associate and 

fellow of the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. He is a partner in 

KM Mohandass & Co., Chartered 

Accountants. He has over three 

decades of experience in the financial 

services sector. He is also on the board 

of our Subsidiary, Aptus Finance India 

Private Limited.

Mr. Kandheri Munuswamy 
Mohandass

Non-Executive Independent Director

Sankaran Krishnamurthy is a Non-

Executive Independent Director of our 

Company. He holds a bachelor 's 

degree in science from the University 

of Madras. He is a certified associate of 

the Indian Institute of Bankers. He was 

the former deputy Managing Director 

of State Bank of India, where he served 

for more than 38 years. He was also the 

Managing Director and Chief Executive 

Officer of SBI Life Insurance Company 

Limited. He is also on the board of our 

Subsidiary, Aptus Finance India Private 

Limited.

Mr. Sankaran Krishnamurthy
Non-Executive Independent Director

Krishnamurthy Vijayan is a Non-

Executive Independent Director of our 

Company. He holds a bachelor's degree 

in commerce from C.M. Dubey Post-

Graduate College, Bilaspur and he has 

cleared the master of arts examination 

conducted by the Guru Ghasidas 

University, Bilaspur. He has previously 

served as the Managing Director and 

Chief Executive Officer of IDBI Asset 

Management Limited, Managing 

D i r e c t o r  o f  J P  M o r g a n  A s s e t 

Management India Private Limited and 

chief executive officer of JM Financial 

Asset Management Private Limited and 

has various years of experience in the 

financial services industry. He is 

currently the Chief Executive Officer of 

Tamil Nadu Infrastructure Fund 

Management Corporation Limited.

Mr. Krishnamurthy Vijayan
Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. V G Kannan completed his Bachelor's 

degree in Business Administration from 

Madurai Kamaraj University and has a 

M a s t e r ' s  d e g r e e  i n  B u s i n e s s 

Administration from University of 

Madras. He is a career banker with over 

38 years of experience in the Banking & 

Financial Services Space and has held 

several leadership positions in the 

Sector. Mr. Kannan has significant 

experience in Banking & Financial Sector, 

especially in Credit & Risk Management, 

Insurance, Capital Markets and Treasury 

& Fund Management. Mr. Kannan is 

acknowledged as an authority in Credit, 

Treasury,  R isk  and Investment 

Management in the Banking sector. He 

handled several leadership positions 

with State Bank of India (SBI), its 

subsidiaries & group companies as 

Managing Director of SBI. He is also on 

the boards of AU Small Finance Bank 

Limited, Ageas Federal Life Insurance 

Company Limited and OCM India 

Opportunities Arc Management Private 

Limited.

Mr. VG Kannan
Non-Executive Independent Director

Mona Kachhwaha is a Non – Executive 

Independent Director on the Board of 

our Company. She holds a post 

graduate d iploma in  business 

management from XLRI, Jamshedpur. 

She has completed the certification 

program in IT and cyber security for 

board members of Ujjivan Small 

Finance Bank Limited offered by the 

Institute for Development and Research 

in Banking Technology and also 

completed the FICCI CCG Women on 

Corporate Boards Mentorship Program 

offered by FICCI Centre for Corporate 

Governance. She has previously worked 

with Citibank N.A. and Caspian Advisors 

Private Limited. She has various years of 

experience in the financial services 

sector.

Ms. Mona Kachhwaha
Non-Executive Independent Director
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Mr. Suman Bollina 
Non-Executive Director

Suman Bollina is a Non – Executive 

Director on the Board of our Company. He 

holds a bachelor's degree in engineering 

from the Birla Institute of Technology and 

Science and a global MBA degree from 

S.P. Jain Center of Management. He is the 

executive managing partner of Sri Santhi 

Corporation. He has over 10 years of 

experience in development of residential 

lay outs and design, construction and 

sale of apartments. He is also on the 

board of our Subsidiary, Aptus Finance 

India Private Limited.

Shailesh Jayantilal Mehta is a Non – 

Executive Director on the Board of our 

Company. He holds a bachelor's degree 

in technology (mechanical engineering) 

from Indian Institute of Technology, 

Bombay, master of science degree in 

operations research from Case Western 

Reserve University and a doctorate in 

philosophy from Case Western Reserve 

University. He is also trustee emeritus at 

the California State University and has 

also been conferred with an honorary 

degree of Doctor of Humane Letters by 

the California State University. He 

currently serves as a partner at Granite 

Hill Capital Partners and is currently an 

operating advisor at WestBridge Capital 

US Advisors, LLC. He has several years of 

experience in the financial services 

industry. He currently serves on the 

boards of inter alia, Safari Industries 

(India) Limited, Manappuram Finance 

Limited,  India Shelter  F inance 

Corporation Limited and Vistaar 

Financial  Services  Private  Limited.

Mr. Shailesh Jayantilal Mehta
Non-Executive Director
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Mr. Sumir Chadha
Non-Executive Nominee Director

Sumir Chadha is a Non – Executive 

Nominee Director on the Board of our 

Company. He holds a bachelor's degree 

in computer science from Princeton 

University and a master's degree in 

business administration from Harvard 

Business School. He is the co-founder 

of WestBridge Capital. He has several 

years of experience in the investment 

industry. He was previously also a 

director of Sequoia Capital India Advisors 

Private Limited. He currently serves on 

the Board of Star Health and Allied 

Insurance, Mountain Managers Private 

Limited, Kuhoo Technology Services 

Private Limited, Vistaar Financial 

Services Private Limited, India Shelter 

Financial Corporate Limited.

Kanarath Payattiyath Balaraj is a 

Non–Executive Nominee Director on 

the Board of our Company. He holds a 

bachelor 's  degree in business 

management from Brigham Young 

University, Hawaii where he was a 

valedictorian and a master's degree in 

business administration from Harvard 

Business School. Previously, he was co-

founder and Managing Director at 

WestBridge Capital India Advisors 

Private Limited and has several years 

of experience in the investment 

industry. He is currently a partner at 

Waimea Bay Advisors LLP.

Mr. Kanarath Payattiyath 
Balaraj

Non–Executive Nominee Director
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the Twelfth 

Annual Report together with the audited financial statements 

of the company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

1. Financial Results

2.3 Branch Expansion

During the year under review, your Company expanded its 

distribution network in the states of Tamil Nadu, Andhra 

Pradesh and Telangana. The distribution network stood 

at 190 branches as at the end of March 31, 2021 as 

compared to 175 branches in the previous year.
2. Operations

2.1 Sanctions and Disbursements

During the year under review, your Company sanctioned 

loans worth ̀ 1404 crores as compared with the sanctions 

of `1492 crores during the previous year. Your Company 

disbursed loans worth ̀ 1298 crores during the year under 

review which was about the same as compared to the 

disbursements made during the previous year in spite of 

Covid-19 outbreak. The growth during the year was 

subdued due to the impact of Covid 19 pandemic. Aptus 

continued its focus on Low and Middle Income families in 

Tier II and III cities and the disbursement of `1298 crores 

benefitted more than 20000 families. 

2.4 Income, Profits and Net Worth 

During the year under review, your Company's Gross 

Income grew by 25% to ̀ 655 crores as at March 31, 2021 as 

against ̀ 523 crores as at March 31, 2020. The Profit Before 

Tax for the year ended March 31, 2021 stood at ̀ 345 crores 

with an increase of 40% over `247 crores in the 

corresponding period of the previous year. The Profit 

After Tax (PAT) stood at `267 crores for the year ended 

March 31, 2021 which was 40% higher over the PAT of  ̀ 190 

crores (without considering the one time benefit of reversal 

of Deferred Tax Liability on special reserve in FY20) in the 

previous financial year.

Particulars

Consolidated Financial Results

For the financial 
year ended 

March 31, 2021

For the financial 
year ended 

March 31, 2020

` in crores 

LOAN ASSETS (` in Crores)

 *  –  Without considering the one time benefit of `20.79 crores of reversal of 

Deferred Tax Liability on reserve. 
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2.2 Loan Assets

The total Assets Under Management of Aptus stood at 

`4068 crores as at March 31, 2021 as against `3179 crores 

as at March 31, 2020, thereby registering a growth of 28%.

0

190

143

115

80

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

FY 17 FY 18 FY 19 FY 20 FY 21

NO. OF BRANCHES

160

180

200

175

0

4068

3179

2244

1413

846
1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

FY 17 FY 18 FY 19 FY 20 FY 21

 Operating Income  636.61  499.73 

 Other Income  18.63  23.39 

 Less: Expenditure  310.15  275.84 

 including depreciation  

 Profit Before Tax  345.09  247.29 

 Profit After Tax  266.94       190.22* 

 Assets Under  4,068 3,179

 Management  



 Further during the year 2020-21, high cost funding from 

various banks/mutual funds was prepaid in order to 

reduce the cost of borrowings. This combined with fresh 

borrowings (other than from NHB) that were raised at 

lower interest rate during the year, helped us reduce the 

cost of borrowings to 8.43% as compared with 9.80% as on 

March 31, 2020.

PROFIT AFTER TAX (` in Crores)

BORROWING PROFILE
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2.7 Capital Adequacy Ratio

Capital Adequacy Ratio of Aptus stood at 73.63% as on 

March 31, 2021, as against the minimum requirement of 

14% stipulated by regulators. 

3.  Credit Rating

During the year 2020 - 21, the credit rating of your company 

by both ICRA and CARE was maintained at A+ (Stable).  

4. Transfer to Special Reserves 

As per Section 29C (i) of National Housing Bank Act, 1987, 

your Company is required to transfer atleast 20% of its net 

profit every year to a reserve before any dividend is 

declared. Accordingly, your Company has transferred 

`43.55 crores to special reserve in accordance with 

Section 29C(i) of National Housing Bank Act, 1987 read 

along with Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

5. Dividend

In order to conserve resources for growth, your Directors do 

not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2020-21.

6. Corona virus disease (COVID 19) pandemic

To contain the spread of Covid-19 virus, Government 

enforced lock down of all economic activities in the 

months of April to June 2020. The primary focus of your 

Company was to ensure safety and well being of all its 

employees. The business continuity planning program of 

the Company was used effectively to manage its 

operations through this crisis. Your Company provided 
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2.5 Asset Quality

Your Company closed the financial year 2020 - 21 with a 

Gross NPA of 0.68%. This GNPA level was on the same 

levels as that of the previous year level despite impact of 

COVID 19 pandemic. These levels, one of the best in the 

industry, have been maintained by Aptus since inception. 

This would not have been possible but for the excellent 

systems and processes in originating loan proposals from 

customers and strong adherence to laid down policies in 

terms of credit, legal, technical and collections. The above 

organization strengths coupled with good quality of 

portfolio gives us confidence to aspire for consistent 

profitable  growth in the years to come.

2.6 Resource Mobilisation

Aptus understands that it is in the business of long term 

funding which are in the range of 10-15 years. With this in 

the back ground, Aptus's borrowing strategy has always 

been prudent to secure long term funding ranging 

between 5-7 years. There were no short tenor borrowings 

including commercial papers.

The positive attributes of Aptus in terms of quality loan 

book, networth, consistent profitability etc., enabled 

Aptus to raise funds from various banks and financial 

institutions. During the year 2020 - 21, resources were 

mobilized in the form of Loans to the extent of ̀ 952 crores 

which was raised from various banks and NHB. All these 

loans were long term loans with tenor of 6 to 7 years. 

During the year, the funding from NHB was increased by 

`332 crores making the borrowings from NHB 23% of total 

borrowings as on March 31, 2021 as compared with 13% as 

on March 31, 2020.

Currently funding mix of Aptus comprises of Loans from 

Banks, NHB, Multilateral funding agencies like IFC and 

Mutual Funds. As on March 31, 2020, 54% of borrowings 

were from banks and 23% were from NHB and the balance 

23% were from debt capital market, majority from DFIs 

like IFC and mutual funds.



 work from home facility to its employees, wherever 

possible, across locations and took all reasonable steps 

to ensure continued service delivery to its customers. 

During these times, the Company's offices worked with 

minimal staff with necessary safety measures.

 During the financial year 2020-21 the business and 

operations were impacted by the Covid - first wave 

pandemic. The initial months of the financial year were 

almost dedicated towards collections. As per RBI Directions, 

the Company had also given option to its customers to 

extend the moratorium for payment of installments falling 

due between March 1, 2020 and August 31, 2020 as a part of 

the COVID-19 Regulatory package announced by the 

Reserve Bank of India vide its circular dated May 23, 2020.

 The Company informed and counselled the borrowers on 

the pros and cons of moratorium and urged them to make 

payments if their cash flows allowed them the ability to do 

so. Each branch staff focused on calling their respective 

customers and providing them necessary inputs for the 

ease of making decision on moratorium.

 The second half of the financial year was comparatively 

better in terms of business and operations. As stated above, 

your Company disbursed an amount of ̀ 1,298 crores during 

the financial year and a major portion of that amount was 

disbursed during the second half of the year.

 While it was thought that the country had seen the back of 

the pandemic, the second wave has emerged and seems 

to be more impactful than the first wave. This is likely to 

cause an impact on the next financial year i.e. FY 2021-22. 

Your Company believes that it has considered all the 

possible impact of the known events arising out of COVID-

19 pandemic in the preparation of financial results. 

However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a 

continuing process given its nature and duration. Your 

Company will continue to monitor any material changes 

to the economic conditions and take necessary actions as 

appropriate.

7. Statutory and Regulatory Compliances

The Reserve Bank of India issued new master directions 

on February 17, 2021 in supersession of the erstwhile HFC 

directions, namely, Non-Banking Financial Company – 

Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 

2021.

RBI issued a circular dated October 22, 2020 on Review of 

regulatory framework for Housing Finance Companies 

(HFCs). As per this circular, HFCs are required to have 

minimum 60% of their total assets towards housing 

finance by March 31, 2024 and minimum percentage of 

total assets towards housing finance for individuals 

should be 50% as on this date. As directed in the 

aforementioned circular, your company has submitted to 

RBI a Board approved plan including a roadmap to fulfil 

the above mentioned criteria and timeline for transition.

 Your Company has complied with the master directions, 

guidelines and circulars issued by the Reserve Bank of 

India, National Housing Bank, SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to the 

extent applicable to the Company, Foreign Exchange 

Management Act, 1999 and the rules / regulations 

thereunder including those relating to foreign direct / 

downstream investments.

Your Company has also complied with the provisions of 

the Secretarial Standard 1 (SS-1) and Secretarial Standard 

2 (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India relating to 'Meetings of Board of Directors' and 

'General Meetings' respectively.

8. Employee Stock Options Scheme

During the financial year 2020-21, the Board has approved 

a new ESOP Scheme titled Aptus Employees Stock Option 

Scheme 2021 (ESOP 2021), and the same has been 

approved by the shareholders at the Extra-ordinary 

General Meeting held on May 6, 2021. The details of ESOP 

Scheme are given in the Annexure A to this report.

9. Sub-division of equity shares

With a view to broad base the investor base by 

encouraging the participation of the retail investors and 

to make it affordable to the small investors and also with 

a view to increase the liquidity of the Company's Shares, 

the Board of directors at its meeting held on May 5, 2021 

and the shareholders at the Extra-ordinary General 

Meeting held on May 6, 2021 have approved the sub-

division of the nominal value and paid-up value of its 

authorized share capital of the company from 1 (One) 

equity share of ̀ 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each into 5 (Five) 

equity shares of ̀  2/- (Rupees Two only) each.

10. Initial Public Offering (IPO)

Subject to market conditions, receipt of regulatory 

approvals, your Company is considering an Initial public 

offering of its equity shares of face value of `2 each 

(“Equity Shares”) for cash at a price to be decided by book 

building process, comprising of a fresh issue of up to 

`5000 million and an offer for sale of up to 6,45,90,695 

Equity Shares by the selling shareholders. The Equity 

Shares so offered are proposed to be listed on BSE and 

NSE. Proceeds of fresh issue are proposed to be utilized 

for the purpose of augmenting the Tier I capital 

requirements of the Company. Your Company has 

accordingly filed its draft Red Herring Prospectus with 

Securities Exchanges Board of India on May 14, 2021 and 

since received approval for the IPO.

11. Annual Return

As per Section 134 (3) (a) and Section 92 (3) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the annual 

return of the Company for the financial year ended   

March 31, 2021 is available at the web address: 

www.aptusindia.com
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12. Internal Financial Controls

Your Company has an internal control system, 

commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 

operations. The Internal Auditors review internal control 

and risk- management measures, accounting procedures, 

highlight areas requiring attention, and report their main 

findings and recommendations to the Audit Committee. 

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the audit findings 

and action taken thereon, as well as the adequacy and 

effectiveness of the internal financial systems and 

controls. Statutory Auditors, S. R Batliboi & Associates LLP 

have also reviewed the internal controls systems as 

existing in the Company and have given an unmodified 

opinion on the same.

13.  Auditor's Report

The Report of the Statutory Auditors to the members is 

annexed to and forms part of the financial statements 

and the same does not contain any qualification, 

reservation or adverse remark on the financial 

statements prepared as per Section 133 of Companies Act, 

2013 and notes on accounts annexed thereto. There were 

no frauds detected or reported by the Auditors under 

sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

during the year.

14. Maintenance of cost records and cost audit

Maintenance of cost records and requirements of cost 

audit as prescribed under the provisions of section 148(1) 

of the Act is not applicable for the business activities 

carried out by the company.

15. Risk Management Policy

Your Company has constituted a Risk Management 

Committee which is responsible for putting in place a risk 

management system, risk management policy and 

strategy to be followed by the Company.

The Key principles of Risk Management are as follows:

 a) The risk management shall provide reasonable 

  assurance in protection of business value from 

  uncertainties and consequent losses.

 b) All concerned process owners of the company shall be 

  responsible for identifying & mitigating key risks in 

  their respective domain.

 c) The occurrence of risk, progress of mitigation plan and 

  its status will be monitored on periodic basis.

The Risk Management Committee along with the Asset 

Liability Management Committee reviews and monitors 

these risks at regular intervals.

Risk management process includes four activities: risk 

identification, risk assessment, risk mitigation, 

monitoring and reporting. Once risks are identified, it is 

necessary to prioritize them based on the impact, 

dependability on other functions, effectiveness of 

existing controls etc.
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Internal audit shall review the risk register once a year 

and add any new material risk identified to the existing 

list. These will be taken up with respective functional 

head for its mitigation. Existing process of risk assessment 

of identified risks and its mitigation plan will be appraised 

to Board.

16. Human Resources

In Aptus, Human Resource Development is considered 

vital for effective implementation of business plans. 

Lots of importance is placed on recruiting quality staff 

and they are groomed to take on higher responsibilities. 

Further on the job training and induction is imparted to 

staff to have better understanding of the company, its 

culture and business. These initiatives coupled with 

adequate compensation levels including appropriate 

incentive schemes matched with the market and good 

employee welfare schemes like health and life insurance 

covers have helped us retain the manpower at these 

levels. The Company has introduced a new ESOP Scheme 

namely, Aptus Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2021, to 

attract, retain talent and to enable participation of the 

employees in the growth of the company, considering the 

IPO and the competitive environment in which the 

company operates.

Aptus staff strength as at March 31, 2021 was 1910.

17. Directors

The following changes took place in the composition of 

Board of Directors during the financial year 2020-21:

(a) Ms. Mona Kachhwaha (DIN: 01856801) was appointed 

 as an Additional Director with effect from May 30, 2020 

 and her appointment was regularized at the eleventh 

 Annual General Meeting held on August 11, 2020.

(b) Mr. K P Balaraj, Non-Executive Director (DIN: 00163632) 

 retired by rotation at the eleventh Annual General 

 Meeting held on August 11, 2020 and was re-appointed.

(c) Mr. K M Mohandass (DIN: 00707839), Mr. S Krishnamurthy 

 (DIN: 00066044) and Mr. Krishnamurthy Vijayan (DIN: 

 00589406), were re-appointed as Independent 

 Directors by the shareholders at the eleventh Annual 

 General Meeting held on August 11, 2020.

(d) Mr. V G Kannan (DIN: 03443982) was appointed as an 

 Additional Director (Independent Director) by the 

 Board of Directors with effect from March 9, 2021.

The following changes took place in the composition of 

the Board of Directors between the financial year end and 

the date of this report:



 (a) Ms. Mona Kachhwaha (DIN: 01856801) was appointed 

as an Independent Director by the Board for a term of 

five years effective May 5, 2021, and her appointment 

was approved by the shareholders at the Extra-

ordinary General Meeting held on May 6, 2021.

 (b) The appointment of Mr. V G Kannan (DIN: 03443982) as 

Independent Director was approved by the 

shareholders for a term of five years effective March 9, 

2021, at the extra-ordinary general meeting held on 

May 6, 2021.

18. Key Managerial Personnel

 The following changes were made in the office of Key 

Managerial Personnel (KMP) during the financial year 

2020-21.

 (a)  Ms. Jyoti Munot (Membership No: A 56971) resigned as 

the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the 

Company with effect from August 11, 2020.

 (b) Mr. Sanin Panicker (Membership No: A 32834) was 

appointed as the Company Secretary and Compliance 

Officer of the Company with effect from August 11, 2020.

19. Board Meetings held during the year

 During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, four (4) 

Board Meetings were held on May 30, 2020, August 11, 

2020, November 12, 2020 and February 11, 2021 

respectively. The gap between two meetings was not 

more than 120 days.

20. Auditors

 Statutory Auditors

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and 141 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, M/s S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 

were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company 

at the 10th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the 

shareholders held on August 8, 2019, for a period of five 

financial years, i.e. from FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24, to hold 

office from the conclusion of the 10th AGM up to the 

conclusion of the 15th AGM.

 Secretarial Auditor

 M/s. S. Sandeep & Associates, Company Secretaries were 

appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of the 

Company for the financial year 2020 - 21, as required 

under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 

made thereunder.

 The secretarial audit report for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2021 forms part of Annual report as Annexure G 

to Board's Report and does not contain any 

qualifications, reservations or adverse remark.

21. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with 

Related parties

During the financial year, the Company has entered into 

contracts or arrangements with Related Parties. The 

Company has framed a Related Party Transaction (RPT) 

policy for the Company as per the Companies Act 2013 and 

the Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – 

Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 

2021.

The RPT policy along with the details of the related party 

transactions in Form AOC-2 for the financial year 2020 - 21 

is enclosed as Annexure B to this report.

22. Material Changes and Commitments

There are no material changes and commitments 

between March 31, 2021 and the date of this report having 

an adverse bearing on the financial position of the 

Company.

23. Conservation of Energy, Technological Absorption

The Company does not have any activity relating to 

conservation of energy and technical absorption and 

does not own any manufacturing facility. Hence the 

requirement of disclosure of particulars relating to 

conservation of energy and technology absorption in 

terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

rules framed thereunder is not applicable.

24. Foreign Exchange Earnings / Outgo

Your Company does not have any foreign currency 

earnings or expenditure during the financial year ended 

March 31, 2021.

25. Particulars of Employees

In accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with rules 5(1), 5(2) and 5(3) of 

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the name and other 

particulars of employees are to be set out in the annexure 

forming part of the Annual Report. However, as per 

provisions of Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

read with relevant proviso of the Companies Act, 2013 the 

Annual Report is being sent to members excluding the 

aforesaid information. The said information is available 

for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company. 

Any member interested in obtaining such particulars may 

write to the Company and the same will be furnished 

without any fee and free of cost.
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26. Dematerialisation of Shares & Non-Convertible 

 Debentures

The equity shares of the Company are held in 

dematerialized form with National Securities Depository 

Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) 

Limited (CDSL) vide ISIN No. INE852O01025.

The Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company are held 

in dematerialized form with NSDL vide ISIN Nos. 

INE852O07014 ,  INE852O07022 ,  INE852O07030 , 

INE852O07071, INE852O07097 and INE852O07105.

During the financial year, the Company has made pre-

payments towards full redemption of its Non-Convertible 

Debentures with ISIN Nos. INE852O07048, INE852O07055, 

INE852O07063 and INE852O07089.

During the financial year, there were no such instances of 

any Non-Convertible Debentures which have not been 

claimed by the investors or not paid by your Company 

after the date on which the Non-Convertible Debentures 

became due for redemption.

The Non-Convertible Debentures of your Company are 

listed on BSE Ltd and your Company has paid the requisite 

listing fee to ensure continuous listing of its debt 

instruments. 

27. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments to 

 Wholly Owned Subsidiary

Aptus Finance India Private Limited is a wholly owned 

subsidiary of the Company incorporated on September 

18, 2015. In accordance with the provisions of section 

129(3) of the Companies Act 2013, the Consolidated 

Financial Statements drawn up in accordance with the 

applicable accounting standards form part of the Annual 

Report.

The Company had granted loans and provided guarantees 

under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 to Aptus 

Finance India Private Limited, Wholly Owned Subsidiary, 

details of which are given below:

Statement containing salient features of the financial 

statements of the subsidiary, pursuant to first proviso to 

sub – section (3) of Section 129 read with rule 5 of 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in Form AOC – 1 forms 

part of the financial statements:

Sr.
No.

Nature & Purpose
Amount as at 

March 31, 2021 (` crores)

* For details refer to Note no.32.2 in relation to related party 
transactions disclosed as per notes to the Standalone Financial 
Statements.
** Board resolution passed on May 30, 2020 for inter corporate loan 
and inter corporate guarantee.

28. Disclosure of Significant & Material Orders passed 

 by the Regulators or court or tribunal

During the financial year, there were no significant and 

material orders passed by the regulators or Courts or 

Tribunals which would impact the going concern status of 

the Company and its future operations.

29. Deposits

Your Company is registered as a non-deposit taking 

Housing Finance Company with National Housing Bank 

and hence does not accept any deposits. The Company 

has not accepted any deposits from the public during the 

financial year ended March 31, 2021.

30. Declaration from Independent Directors

The Company has received declarations from all the 

Independent Directors to the effect that they meet the 

criteria of independence as provided in sub-section (6) of 

Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In the opinion of your Board of Directors, the Independent 

Directors appointed during the financial year ended  

March 31, 2021, satisfy the attributes as to their performance, 

appropriate mix of qualifications, experience, value 

additions, integrity, high levels of skill and expertise.

31. Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR)

The Company has duly constituted a Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committtee as per the provisions of 

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The company 

devised a policy for the implementation of CSR framework 

defining the areas of spending for the CSR activities. The 

CSR spend will be atleast 2% of the net profits for the 

activities mentioned under Schedule VII to the 

Companies Act, 2013.

The CSR Committee monitors the Policy of the Company 

from time to time and endeavors to ensure that the 

requisite amount is spent on CSR activities as per the 

framework. A report on CSR is attached as Annexure C to 

this Report.

The CSR policy of the Company has been placed in the 

website of the Company at www.aptusindia.com.

 1 Inter – Corporate Loan - Onward 18.00

  lending purpose

 2 Inter Corporate Guarantee - For 216.75  

  the borrowings availed by the 

  wholly owned subsidiary
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32. Formal Annual Evaluation

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation 

of its own performance, the directors individually as well 

as the evaluation of the working of its Committees. A 

structured exercise was carried out based on the criteria 

for evaluation forming part of the Policy on appointment, 

remuneration and evaluation of the Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and Senior Management and the 

inputs received from the Directors, covering various 

aspects of the Board's functioning such as adequacy of 

the composition of the Board and its committee, 

attendance at meetings, Board culture, duties of directors 

and governance. The aforesaid policy is enclosed as 

Annexure D to this report.

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the 

performance of individual Directors including the 

Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated on   

parameters such as level of engagement and contribution, 

independence of judgement, safeguarding the interest of 

the Company and its stakeholders etc. The performance 

evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out 

by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the 

Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried 

out by the Independent Directors. The Directors have 

expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

33. Vigil Mechanism, Whistle Blower Policy

Your Company as part of the “Vigil Mechanism” has in 

place a “Whistle Blower Policy” to deal with instances of 

fraud and misappropriations, if any. This policy has been 

p l a c e d  i n  t h e  w e b s i t e  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y  a t 

www.aptusindia.com. During the year under review no 

whistle blower complaint was received.

34. Management Discussion and Analysis

Report on Management Discussion and Analysis is 

enclosed and is forming part of this report as Annexure E.

35. Corporate Governance Report

The Reserve Bank of India has mandated all Housing 

Finance Companies to follow the guidelines on Corporate 

Governance as per the Master Direction  –  Non-Banking 

Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve 

Bank) Directions, 2021. The Company has accordingly 

framed the internal guidelines on Corporate Governance 

and the same is forming part of this report as Annexure F.

Your Company is committed to achieving the highest 

standards of Corporate Governance and it aspires to 

benchmark itself with the best practices in this regard.

36. Committees 

Details on composition of various Committees of the 

Board and number of meetings of the Board and 

Committees are given in the Corporate Governance 

Report in Annexure F.

37. Policy on Sexual Harassment of Women at 

 Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) 

 Act, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment 

Policy named “Policy Against Sexual Harassment” in line 

with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of 

Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & 

Redressal) Act, 2013. The said policy is uploaded in the 

website of the Company. An Internal Complaints 

Committee has been constituted as per the Act to redress 

complaints received regarding sexual harassment. During 

the financial year under review, no complaint of sexual 

harassment was received and there were no unresolved 

complaints as at March 31, 2021. 

38. Directors' Responsibility Statement

The Board of Directors have instituted/put in place a 

framework of internal financial controls and compliance 

systems, which is reviewed by the management and the 

relevant board committees, including the audit 

committee and independently reviewed by the internal, 

statutory and secretarial auditors.

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

Board of Directors confirms that:

 (i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the 

applicable accounting standards have been 

followed and that there were no material departures 

therefrom;

 (ii) they have, in the selection of the accounting policies, 

consulted the statutory auditors and have applied 

their recommendations consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of 

affairs of the company as at March 31, 2021 and the 

profit of the company for the year ended on that 

date;

 (iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the company 

and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 

irregularities;

 (iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going 

concern basis;
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 (v) they have laid down internal financial controls to be 

followed by the company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and were operating 

effectively during the year ended March 31,2021; and

 (vi) they have devised proper systems to ensure 

compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and that such systems were adequate and operating 

effectively during the year ended March 31, 2021.
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APTUS EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

During the financial year 2020-21, the Board has approved a new ESOP Scheme titled Aptus Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2021 

(ESOP 2021), and the same was taken by the Board of Directors at the meeting held on November 12, 2020, and was approved by the 

shareholders of the Company at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on May 6, 2021.

Pursuant to Rule 12(9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the details of the Aptus Employees Stock Option 

Scheme, 2021 (ESOP 2021) during the financial year ended March 31, 2021 are :-

ANNEXURE A 

 a. Options approved to be issued as ESOPs

 b. Options Granted as at March 31, 2021

 c. Options vested as at March 31, 2021

 d. Options outstanding as on April 1, 2020

 e. Options Exercised during FY 2020-21

 f. The total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option

 g. Options Lapsed /Surrendered

 h. The exercise price

 i. Options outstanding as on March 31, 2021

 j. Variation of Terms of Option

 k. Total number of options in force

 l. Money realised by exercise of options during the year 2020-21

 m. Details of options granted to

  i. Key Managerial Personnel

  ii. any other employee who received a grant of options in any one year of option 

   amounting to 5 per cent or more of options granted during that year

  iii. Identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal to or 

   exceeding one percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants 

   and conversions) of the Company at the time of grant

 20,00,000

 -

 -

 -

 -

 -

 -

 -

 -

 -

 -

 -

 Nil

 Nil

 

 Nil

Nature of Disclosures         ESOP 2021
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION POLICY

A.  PREAMBLE 

Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited (“Company”) is 

dedicated to the highest standard of ethics and integrity 

and has successfully applied these standards to the 

business.

Accordingly, the Company is committed to upholding the 

highest ethical and legal conduct in fulfilling its 

responsibilities and recognizes that related party 

transactions can present a risk of actual or apparent 

conflicts of interest of the Directors, Senior Management, 

other related parties etc. with the interest of the Company.

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company, adopts 

the following policy and procedures with regard to Related 

Party Transactions (“RPT”) as defined below, in 

compliance with the requirements of Section 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and any 

subsequent amendments thereto (“Companies Act”), read 

along with Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board 

of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) in order to ensure 

the transparency and procedural fairness of such 

transactions.

B. OBJECTIVE

Section 188 of the Companies Act read along with the 

Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 

provides the detailed mechanism for dealing with the 

RPTs of a company by the Audit Committee of the Board 

(“Audit Committee”) including all the approvals required 

to be passed by the Board and the shareholders' in 

different circumstances. The objective of this Policy is to 

ensure proper approvals and reporting of transactions 

between the Company and its related parties in 

compliance of provisions of the Companies Act, the Listing 

Regulations and all other applicable statutory provisions 

for the time being in force, in this regard.

This policy is designed to govern the transparency of the 

approval process and disclosure requirements to ensure 

fairness in the conduct of related party transactions. The 

Board may amend this policy from time to time as may be 

required.

Any exceptions to the policy on RPTs must be consistent 

with the Companies Act, including the rules there under 

and must be approved in the manner as may be decided 

by the Board.

C. TRANSACTIONS COVERED UNDER THIS POLICY

Transactions covered under this policy  include  any  

contract  or  arrangement with a related party.

ANNEXURE B

D. DEFINITIONS

1. “Arm's Length transaction” means a transaction 

between two related parties that is conducted as if they 

are unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest, as 

defined in explanation (b) to Section 188 (1) of the 

Companies Act.

2. “Associate Company”, in  relation  to  another  company,  

means  a  company in which that other company has a 

significant influence, but which is not a subsidiary 

company of the company  having such influence and 

includes  a joint venture company.

3. “Audit Committee” means Audit Committee constituted 

by the Board of Directors of the Company under the 

provisions of Listing Regulations and Companies Act, 

from time to time.

4. “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

5. “Control” includes the right to appoint  majority  of the  

directors  or  to  control the management or policy 

decisions exercisable by a person or persons acting 

individually or in concert, directly or indirectly, 

including by virtue of their shareholding or 

management rights or shareholders agreements or 

voting agreements or in any other manner:

 Provided that a director or officer of the company shall 

not be considered to be in control over such company, 

merely by virtue of holding such position.

6. “Key Managerial Personnel” or “KMP” includes:

 i.   the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director 

 or the Manager;

 ii. the Company Secretary;

 iii. the Whole time Director;

 iv. the Chief Financial Officer;

 v. such other officer, not more than one level below the 

directors who is in whole-time employment, designated 

as key managerial personnel by the Board; and

 vi. such other officer as may be prescribed.

7. “Material related party transactions”  means  those  

transactions  entered  into with the Company by a  

related  party,  which  when  individually  or  together 

with previous transactions during a financial year, 

exceeds ten percent of the annual consolidated 

turnover of the Company as per the last audited 

financial statements of the Company.

 Notwithstanding the above,  a  transaction  involving  

payments  made  to  a related party with respect to 

brand  usage  or  royalty  shall  be  considered 

material if the transaction(s) to be entered into 

individually or taken together with previous 

transactions during a financial year, exceed five 

percent of the annual consolidated turnover of the 

Company as per the last audited financial statements.
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 8. “Ordinary course of business” in order to determine 

whether a transaction is within the ordinary course of 

business or not, some of the principles that may be 

adopted to assess are as follows:

 (i)     whether the transaction is in line with the usual 

transactions, customs and practices undertaken 

by the Company to conduct its business 

operations and activities;

 (ii) whether it is permitted by the Memorandum and 

Articles of Association of the Company; and

 (iii) whether the transaction is such that it is required 

to be undertaken in order to conduct the routine 

or usual transactions of a company.

 9. “Related Party” means a person or an entity shall be 

considered as related to the Company if:

 (i)     such person or entity is a related party as defined 

under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act;

 (ii) such person or entity is a related party under the 

applicable accounting standard(s); or

 (iii) belonging to the promoter or promoter group of 

the Company and holding 20% or more of the 

shareholding in the Company.

 Related Parties under Section 2(76) of the Companies 

Act:

 (i)  A director or his relative; 

 (ii) A key managerial personnel or his relative;

 (iii) A firm, in which a director, manager or his relative 

is a partner;

 (iv) A private Company in which a director or manager 

or his relative is a member or director;

 (v) A public Company in which a director or manager 

is a director and holds along with his relatives, 

more than two per cent of its paid up share capital 

of the Company;

 (vi) Any body corporate whose board of directors, 

managing director or manager is accustomed to 

act in accordance with the advice, directions or 

instructions of a director or manager;

 (vii) Any person on whose advice, directions, or 

instructions a director or manager is accustomed 

to act; and

  Provided that nothing in sub-clauses (vi) and (vii) 

shall apply to the advice, directions or 

instructions given in a professional capacity.

 (viii) Any body corporate which is:

  a.  a holding, subsidiary or an associate company 

 of the Company;

  b. a subsidiary of a holding  Company to which it 

 is also a subsidiary; or

  c. an investing company or the venture of the 

 Company.

  Explanation – For the purpose of this clause, “the 

investing company or the venture of a company” 

means a body corporate whose investment in the 

company would result in the company becoming 

an associate company of the body corporate.

  The Accounting Standard 18 defines related party 

as “parties are considered to be related if at any 

time during the reporting period one party has 

the ability to control the other party or exercise 

significant influence over the other party in 

making financial and / or operating decisions.

10. “Related Party Transactions” means transactions/ 

contracts/ arrangement between the Company  and  

its  related  parties  which  fall  under  one  or  more of 

the following headings:

 Related Party Transaction under Section 188 of the 

Companies Act:

(a) Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;

(b) Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, 

property of any kind;

(c) Leasing of property of any kind;

(d) Availing or rendering of any services;

(e) Appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of 

goods, materials, services or property;

(f) Such related party's appointment to any office or 

place of profit in the Company, its subsidiary 

Company or associate Company; and

(g) Underwriting the subscription of any securities or 

derivatives thereof, of the Company.

Further, as per Listing Regulations, “Related Party 

Transaction” means a transfer of resources, services, 

or obligations between the Company and a related 

party, regardless of whether a price is charged. 

Further, a “transaction” with a related party shall be 

construed to include single transaction or a group of 

transactions in a contract.

 11. “Relatives”, means a person or an entity shall be 

considered as related to the Company if:

 (i)     They are members of a Hindu Undivided Family;

 (ii) They are husband and wife; or

 (iii) One person is related to the other in the following 

manner, namely:

  (a)  Father including step father;

  (b) Mother including step mother;

  (c) Son including step son;

  (d) Son's Wife;

  (e) Daughter;

  (f) Daughter's Husband;

  (g) Brother including step brother; and;

  (h) Sister including step sister;
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 12. “Office or place of profit” means any office or place:

 (i)     where such office or place  is  held  by  a  director,  

if  the  director holding it receives from the 

Company anything by way of remuneration over 

and above the remuneration to which he is 

entitled as director, by way of salary, fee, 

commission, perquisites, any rent‐free  

accommodation, or otherwise; and;

 (ii) where such office or place is held by an individual 

other than a director or by any firm, private 

Company or other body corporate, if the 

individual, firm, private Company or body 

corporate holding it receives from the Company 

anything by way of remuneration, salary, fee, 

commission, perquisites, any rent free 

accommodation, or otherwise.

 13. “Total Share Capital” means the aggregate of the 

paid‐up equity share capital and convertible 

preference share capital of the Company.

E. DETAILS REQUIRED FOR ASCERTAINING RELATED PARTY

 The following details shall be required:

 1. Declaration/Disclosure of interest by all the Directors 

and KMPs in Form MBP 1;

 2. Declaration of relatives by all Directors and KMPs;

 3. Declaration about a firm in which a Director/ Manager 

or his relative is a partner;

 4. Declaration about a private Company in which a 

Director or Manager is a member or director;

 5. Declaration regarding a public company in which a 

Director or manager is a Director and holds along with 

the relatives more than 2% of the paid up share capital;

 6. Notices from Directors of any change in particulars of 

Directorship or in other positions during the year;

 7. Details  of  any body corporate, whose Board of 

Directors, managing  director or manager is 

accustomed to act in accordance with the advice, 

directions or instructions of a director or manager of 

the Company;

 8. Details of any person on whose advice, directions or 

instructions a director or manager is accustomed to 

act; apart from advice given in professional capacity; 

and:

 9. Details of any company which is:

 i.     a holding, subsidiary or an associate company of 

the Company; or

 ii. a subsidiary of a holding company to which the 

Company is also a subsidiary.

F. PROCEDURE

 The Company shall enter into any contract(s) or 

 arrangement(s) or transaction(s) with a Related Party only 

 after seeking prior approvals from the following:

 1. Audit Committee:

 All Related Party Transactions, whether entered on 

arm's length basis or not, shall require prior approval of 

the Audit committee either by circulation or at a 

meeting. The Audit Committee may also grant omnibus 

approval for Related Party Transactions proposed to be 

entered into by the Company subject to the following 

conditions:

 (i)     The Audit Committee shall, after obtaining 

approval of the Board of Directors, lay down the 

criteria while granting omnibus approval and 

such approval shall be applicable in respect of 

transactions which are repetitive in nature;

 (ii) The Audit Committee shall satisfy itself the need 

for such omnibus approval for transactions of 

repetitive nature and that such approval is in the 

interest of the Company;

 (iii) The Audit Committee shall consider the following 

factors while specifying the criteria for making 

omnibus approval, viz.:-

  (a)  Repetitiveness of the transactions (in past or 

 in future)

  (b) Justification for the need of omnibus 

 approval.

  Such omnibus approval shall specify:-

  (a) the name(s) of the Related Parties, nature of 

 transaction, period of transaction, maximum 

 amount of transactions that can be entered 

 into in a year and maximum value per 

 transaction which is allowed;

  (b) the indicative base price/current contracted 

 price and the formula for variation in the price 

 if any; and

  (c) such other conditions as the Audit Committee 

 may deem fit.

 However, where the need for Related Party Transaction 

cannot be foreseen and aforesaid details are not 

available, the Audit Committee may grant omnibus 

approval for such transactions subject to their value 

not exceeding ̀ 1 crore per transaction.

 Audit Committee shall review, at least on a quarterly 

basis, the details of Related Party Transactions 

entered into by the Company pursuant to each of the 

omnibus approval given.

 Such omnibus approvals shall be valid for a period not 

exceeding one financial year and shall require fresh 

approval after the expiry of such financial year.

 Omnibus approval shall not be made for transactions 

in respect of selling or disposing of the undertaking of 

the Company.

 2. Board of Directors:

 All Related Party Transactions, which are proposed to 

be entered by the Company-
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  (a)  other than in Ordinary Course of Business; 

  and/or

  (b) other than transactions on Arm's Length 

 Basis, shall require prior approval of the 

 Board of Directors of the Company, by means 

 of passing of resolution at a meeting of the 

 Board; and.

  (c) where any Director is interested in any 

 Related Party Transaction, such Director will 

 abstain from discussion and voting on 

 the resolution relating to such transaction.

  Details to be provided to the Audit Committee –

  With respect to Related Party Transactions requiring 

approval of the Audit Committee, the following 

information, to the extent relevant, shall be presented 

to the Audit Committee:

 a)  A general description of the transaction(s), 

including the material terms and conditions, 

nature, duration and particulars of the contract.

 b) The name of the Related Party and the basis on 

which such person or entity is a Related Party.

 c)  Name of director or KMP who is related.

 d) Any advance paid or received for the contract or 

arrangements.

 e) Maximum amount of transaction that can be 

entered into and the manner of determining the 

pricing and other commercial terms.

 f)  The Related Party's interest in the transaction(s), 

including the Related Party's position or 

relationship with, or ownership of, any entity that 

is a party to or has an interest in the 

transaction(s).

 g) The indicative base price / current contracted price 

and the formula for variation in the price, if any.

 h) Any other material information regarding the 

transaction(s) or the Related Party's interest in 

the transaction(s).

 Arm's Length transactions - Each Director/KMP who is a 

Related Party with respect to a particular Related Party 

Transaction shall disclose all material information to 

the Audit Committee/Board of Directors concerning 

such Related Party Transaction and his or her interest 

in such transaction.

 The Audit Committee shall also review and approve 

any modification, renewal, or extension of any Related 

Party Transaction.

 The Audit Committee shall periodically review this 

Policy and may recommend amendments to this Policy 

to the Board from time to time as it deems appropriate.

 This Policy is intended to augment and work in 

conjunction with other Company policies having any 

code of conduct, code of ethics and/or conflict of 

interest provisions.

G.  IDENTIFICATION OF POTENTIAL RELATED PARTY 

 TRANSACTION 

The Company Secretary shall at all times maintain a 

database of Company's Related Parties containing the 

names of individuals and companies, identified on the 

basis of the definition set forth above, along with their 

personal/ company details including any revisions 

therein.

The Finance & Accounts Team shall be provided with a 

complete list of related parties in respect of the Company 

and its subsidiaries. Any proposed transaction with 

Related Party shall be communicated to the Company 

Secretary for consideration and approval by the Audit 

Committee and/or the Board of the Company. If the 

transactions are regular in nature, the Finance & Accounts 

Team shall seek an enabling approval from the Board with 

financial limit for such transaction each year.

The Related Party list shall be updated whenever 

necessary, by the Company Secretary and shall be 

reviewed on a quarterly basis.

In determining whether to approve or not a Related Party 

Transaction, the Board will take into account, among other 

factors, recommendations of the Audit Committee, 

whether the said Related Party Transaction is in the 

interest of the Company and its stakeholders and whether 

there is any actual or potential conflict of interest between 

the related parties or between the related parties and the 

Company.

H. APPROVAL OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with Section 188 of the Companies Act and 

the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors and 

shareholders of the Company shall accord prior approval 

for Related Party Transactions, subject to the following:

Board of Directors and Shareholders' approval in terms 

of Companies Act:

All Related Party Transactions which are either not on 

Arm's Length Basis or not in the Ordinary Course of 

Business shall be recommended by the Audit Committee 

for the approval of the Board of Directors. The Board of 

Directors shall further recommend the same for the 

approval of the Shareholders by way of resolution of the 

Company, in case the said transactions exceed the value of 

transactions as provided under Section 188 of the 

Companies Act.

Board of Directors and Shareholders' approval in terms 

of Listing Regulations:

In terms of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, all 

material Related Party Transaction shall be recommended 

by the Board of Directors to the shareholders for their 

approval by way of a resolution.

All entities falling under the definition of Related Parties 

shall abstain from voting irrespective of whether the entity 

is a party to the particular transaction or not.
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 After the shares of the Company are listed in any stock 

exchange, the Company would also follow the guidelines 

under the listing agreement in so far as the process for 

approval of Related Party Transactions by the Board and 

the shareholders.

Where an omnibus approval is obtained, the Company 

Secretary shall obtain details of the Related Party 

Transactions undertaken by the Company on a quarterly 

basis, review the value of such transactions and present 

the same before the Audit Committee for any additional 

approvals, where the limits laid down under the omnibus 

approval are likely to be breached.

Individual transactions with Related Parties, which are not 

in Ordinary Course of Business and not on an Arm's Length 

Basis, shall be accompanied with management's 

justification for the same. Before approving such 

transactions, the Audit Committee will look into the 

interest of the Company and its shareholders in carrying 

out the Related Party Transactions and alternative options, 

if any, available. The Audit Committee may accordingly 

approve or modify such transactions, in accordance with 

this policy and/ or recommend the same to the Board for 

approval.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee/Board shall pay 

sufficient attention and ensure that adequate 

deliberations  are  held  before approving  Related Party

Transactions which are not in Ordinary Course of Business 

and not on Arm's Length Basis and assure themselves that 

the same are in the interest of the Company and its 

shareholders.

Related Party Transactions that require prior approval of 

Shareholders:

 1. Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or material, 

directly or through appointment of agent, amounting 

to ten percent or more of the turnover of the Company 

or ̀ 100 crores, whichever is low;

 2. Selling or otherwise disposing of or buying property of 

any kind, directly or through appointment of agent, 

amounting to 10% or more of net worth of the Company 

or ̀ 100 crores, whichever is lower;

 3. Leasing of property any kind amounting to 10% or more 

of the net worth of Company or 10% or more of turnover 

of the Company or ̀ 100 crores, whichever is lower;

 4. Availing or rendering of any services, directly or 

through appointment of agent, amounting 10% or more 

of the turnover of the Company or ̀ 50 crores, whichever 

is lower; and

 5. Transaction is for appointment to any office or place of 

profit in the Company, its subsidiary company or 

associate company at a monthly remuneration 

exceeding ̀ 2,50,000 (Rupees Two Lakh Fifty Thousand).

AUDIT COMMITTEE/BOARD/SHAREHOLDER APPROVAL MECHANISM FOR 
ENTERING INTO RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Who will approve the 
Related Party Transaction

RPT is at arm's length and in 
ordinary course of business

RPT not at arm's length or not 
in ordinary course of business

Approval of 
Audit Committee

Board 
Approval

Shareholders' 
Approval
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I.  RATIFICATION OF THE RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Where any contract or arrangement, which is considered 

as a Related Party Transaction exclusively as per 

Companies Act, is entered into by a director or any other 

employee, without obtaining the consent of Audit 

Committee or the Board or the shareholders of the 

Company, such transaction shall be ratified by the Board 

or, as the case may be, by the shareholders at a meeting 

within three months from the date on which such contract 

or arrangement was entered into.

J. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS NOT APPROVED UNDER 

 THIS POLICY

Where any contract or arrangement is entered into by a 

Director or any other employee of the Company with a 

Related Party, without obtaining the consent of the Board 

or approval by a resolution in the general meeting, where 

required and if it is not ratified by the Board or, as the case 

may be, by the Shareholders, at a meeting within three 

months from the date on which such contract or 

arrangement was entered into, the matter shall be 

reviewed by the Audit Committee, which may consider all 

of the relevant facts and circumstances regarding the 

Related Party Transactions and evaluate all the options 

available with the Company. Such contract or arrangement 

shall be voidable at the option of the Board and if the 

contract or arrangement is with a Related Party to any 

Director, or is authorized by any other Director, the 

Directors concerned shall indemnify the company against 

any loss incurred by it.

The Company may proceed against a Director or any other 

employee who had entered into such contract or arrangement 

in contravention of this Policy for recovery of any loss 

sustained by it as a result of such contract or arrangement 

and shall take any such action, it deems appropriate.

Audit Committee may also examine the facts and 

circumstances pertaining to the failure of reporting such 

Related Party Transaction to the Audit Committee under 

this Policy and take any such action it deems appropriate.

K. RECORDS

The Company shall maintain adequate records, either 

physically or electronically, as required under applicable 

laws, giving separately the particulars of all contracts or 

arrangements to which this policy applies.:

L. DISCLOSURES

Every Contract or arrangement entered with Related 

Parties to which sub section (1) of Section 188 of the 

Companies Act is applicable shall be referred to in the 

Board's Report to the shareholders along with the 

justification for entering into such contract or 

arrangements. The disclosures should also be made in 

Form AOC-2 as prescribed under the Companies Act.

Details of all material transactions with Related Parties 

are to be disclosed quarterly along with the compliance 

report on corporate governance.

The Company shall disclose the contract or arrangements 

entered into with the Related Party in the Board Report to 

the shareholders along with the justification for entering 

into such contract or arrangement.

The Company shall disclose this policy relating to Related 

Party Transactions on its website and a weblink thereto shall 

be provided in the Annual Report in terms of the listing 

agreement with stock exchanges after the shares are listed.

The Company shall disclose such details of Related Party 

Transaction as may be prescribed by the stock exchanges.

Post listing, the Company shall submit within 30 days from the 

date of publication of its standalone and consolidated 

financial results for the half year, disclosures of Related Party 

Transactions on a consolidated basis, in the format specified 

in the relevant accounting standards for annual results to 

the stock exchanges and publish the same on its website.

M. EXEMPTION FROM APPLICABILITY OF THE POLICY

Notwithstanding the foregoing, but subject to the 

provisions of the applicable laws from time to time, this 

policy shall not apply to the following Related Party 

Transactions, which shall not require approval of Audit 

Committee or shareholders:

 (i) Transactions entered into between the Company and 

its wholly owned subsidiary whose accounts are 

consolidated with the Company and placed before the 

shareholders at the general meeting for approval.

 (ii) Any transaction that involves the providing of 

compensation to a director or Key Managerial 

Personnel in connection with his or her duties to the 

Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates, 

including the reimbursement of reasonable business 

and travel expenses incurred in the ordinary course of 

business, other than transactions which are not on an 

Arm's Length basis.

 (iii) Any transaction in which the Related Party's interest 

arises solely from the ownership of securities issued 

by the Company and the Related Party receives the 

same benefits pro rata as all other holders of the same 

class of securities, other than transactions which are 

not on an Arm's Length basis.

N. POLICY REVIEW

The Board of Directors of the Company, subject to 

applicable laws is entitled to amend, suspend, or rescind 

this Policy at any time. However, the Board of Directors 

shall review the policy mandatorily every three years and 

update accordingly. Any difficulties or ambiguities in the 

Policy will be resolved by the Board of Directors in line with 

the broad intent of the Policy. The Board may also 

establish further rules and procedures, from time to time, 

to give effect to the intent of this Policy.

In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this 

policy and of the provisions of the Companies Act and/or 

the Listing Regulations and any other applicable law 

dealing with related party transactions, such applicable 

law in force from time to time shall prevail over this policy.
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August 11, 2020 May 30, 2020

- -

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Form No. AOC - 2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-

section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto.

 1. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm's length basis: Nil

 2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: 

Mr. M Anandan, Promoter, 

Chairman and Managing 

Director

Aptus Finance India Private Limited, Wholly Owned Subsidiary 

Company

Rent payable towards 

usage of premises owned 

by Mr. M Anandan

Shared support charges

3 years Ongoing

1. Lease rent per month: 

` 63,670/-

2. Security Deposit: Nil

3. Revision in lease rent: 

Escalation of 5% every 

year

The holding company would be providing / sharing its 

infrastructure and resources to / with the wholly owned 

subsidiary company, it becomes necessary for the holding 

company to transfer/ allocate costs / expenses appropriately 

and proportionately to the wholly owned subsidiary company to 

ensure that such transactions are done on an arm's length basis.

Date of approval by 

the Board

Amount paid as 

advance, if any

Date on which the 

special resolution 

was passed in 

general meeting as 

required under the 

first proviso to 

section 188

Name of the related 

party and nature of 

relationship

Nature of contracts / 

arrangements / 

transactions

Duration of the 

contracts/ 

arrangements/ 

transactions

Salient terms of the 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions including 

the value, if any

Justification for 

entering into such 

contracts/ 

arrangements/ 

transactions

The Company is utilizing 

the said premises for 

storage of records and 

the same is in ordinary 

course of business.

All the costs / expenses that are incurred by the wholly owned 

subsidiary company directly would be booked in the books of 

the subsidiary. However, the costs / expenses incurred by the 

holding where a portion of the benefits / services are utilized / 

accrue by / to the wholly owned subsidiary company, such     

costs/expenses would need to be shared between the 2 entities. 

The same is  in the ordinary course of business.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

Aptus is a growing company and is committed towards 

social welfare of the common people as it caters the 

housing needs of self-employed, informal segment of 

customers, belonging to middle income, primarily from 

semi urban and rural markets. Your Company has 

adopted a policy for Corporate Social Responsibility 

which has been placed in the website of the Company 

https://www.aptusindia.com/policies.php

As per the CSR policy, your Company shall seek to 

positively impact the lives of the disadvantaged by 

supporting and engaging in activities that aim to improve 

their wellbeing.

ANNEXURE C

The Company will undertake its CSR activities either 

directly or through a Registered Trust or through a 

Registered Society or establish another company under 

Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 or even to 

collaborate with other entities. The implementation 

Schedule for CSR activities will be dependent on the 

availability of eligible projects.

Your company would be undertaking the CSR activities as 

listed in Schedule VII and Section 135 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. The CSR 

Committee will oversee the implementation and 

monitoring of all CSR projects/ programmes / Activities 

and periodic reports shall be provided for review to the 

Board as and when necessary.

 1 Mr Krishnamurthy Vijayan Independent Director - 1  1

   Chairman  

 2 Mr KM Mohandass Independent Director 1 1

 3 Mr M Anandan Chairman & 1 1

   Managing Director  

S.
No.

Name of Director
Designation / Nature of 

Directorship

No. of meetings of CSR
Committee held 
during the year

No. of meetings of CSR 
Committee attended 

during the year

2.   Composition of the CSR Committee

6.

 (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 3.02 Crores`

 (b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous  Nil

  financial years 

 (c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any Nil

 (d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a + 7b - 7c) 3.02 Crores`

7.  a. Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: `1.12 crores
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3. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate 

Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014: Not Applicable

4. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: Not Applicable

5. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): ̀  151.02 Crores

 1. Upgradation of Promoting  No Tamilnadu Thiruvallur 1,15,000 Yes NA NA  

  facilities and Education and 

  infrastructure at sanitation    

  TELC Kabis HSS

S.
No.

Name of 
the Project

Item from the 
list of activities 
in schedule VII 

to the Act.

Local 
area 

(Yes/ No)

Amount 
spent for 

the project 
(in `)

Mode of 
implementation  -
Direct  (Yes/No)

Mode of 
implementation – 

Through 
implementing 

agency

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Location of 
the project

State District Name
CSR

registration
number
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Amount Unspent (in `)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5)

Amount
(` in crores) Date of transfer

Name of 
the Fund

Amount
(` in crores) Date of transfer

 d.   Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

 e.   Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

8. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable

 (b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): Not Applicable  

9. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR 

spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): Not Applicable

10. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5):

Not Applicable

 2. Development of  Promoting Yes Tamilnadu Chennai 16,52,047 Yes NA NA 

  a library at  Education

  Homes for 

  Destitute 

  Children

 3. Donation of an  Promoting  No Tamilnadu  Kanchipuram 23,96,622 Yes NA NA

  ambulance to  Health care

  Kanchi Kamakoti 

  Child Trust Hospital

 4. Contribution to   Prime Minister's  No NA NA 70,00,000 Yes NA NA

  PM CARES FUND  Citizen Assistance 

  towards Covid-19  and Relief in 

  relief Emergency 

   Situations Fund 

  TOTAL     1,11,63,669

 c. Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not Applicable

 Nil  - PM CARES 1.90 June 21, 2021

    Fund

 b. CSR amount unspent for the financial year:

S.
No.

Name of 
the Project

Item from the 
list of activities 
in schedule VII 

to the Act.

Local 
area 

(Yes/ No)

Amount 
spent for 

the project 
(in `)

Mode of 
implementation  -
Direct  (Yes/No)

Mode of 
implementation – 

Through 
implementing 

agency

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Location of 
the project

State District Name
CSR

registration
number



POLICY ON APPOINTMENT, REMUNERATION AND 

EVALUATION OF THE DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL 

PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (THE“POLICY”)

1. Preamble

Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited (“Aptus” or the 

“Company”) has adopted this Policy on appointment, 

remuneration and evaluation of the Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management 

Personnel (the “Policy”) as required by the provisions of 

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013  (the “Act”).

The purpose of this Policy is to establish and govern the 

procedure applicable:

a) To appoint Directors, KMP and Senior Management 

Personnel and to determine their remuneration.

b) To evaluate the performance of the members of the 

Board. 

This policy has been framed taking into the account the 

following factors: 

a) To ensure remuneration to Directors, KMP and Senior 

 Management involves a balance between fixed and 

 incentive pay reflecting short and long-term 

 performance objectives appropriate to the working of 

 the Company and its goals.

b) The level and composition of remuneration is 

reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 

motivate directors of the quality required to run the 

company successfully; 

 c) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear 

and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.  

2.  Definitions 

Independent Director means a director referred to in 

Section 149(6) of the Act, as amended from time to time. 

Key Managerial Personnel (the “KMP”) shall mean “Key 

Managerial Personnel” as defined in Section 2(51) of the 

Act. 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, by whatever 

name called, shall mean a Committee of Board of 

Directors of the Company, constituted in accordance with 

the provisions of Section 178 of the Act.

Remuneration means any money or its equivalent given or 

passed to any person for services rendered by him and includes 

perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Senior Management Personnel means officers / personnel 

of the Company who are members of its core management 

team, excluding the Board of Directors and this shall 

include all members of management one level below the 

Managing Director, including all functional heads.

Words and expressions used and not defined in this 

Policy but defined in the Act or any rules framed under 

the Act or the Accounting Standards shall have the 

meanings assigned to them in these regulations. 

3. Composition of the Nomination & Remuneration 

 Committee

The composition of the Committee and its terms of 

reference are required to be in compliance with the Act, 

Rules made thereunder, as amended from time to time.

4.  Appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior 

 Management

 4.1 Appointment criteria and qualification: The 

Committee shall identify  a person for appointment as 

a Director or KMP based on  integrity, qualification, 

expertise and experience of the person and 

recommend to the Board for its approval.

  For the appointment of KMP (other than Managing 

Director) and Senior Management Personnel, a 

person should possess adequate qualification, 

expertise and experience for the position he / she is 

considered for the appointment.

  Further, for administrative convenience, the Managing 

Director is authorized to identify and appoint suitable 

persons as Senior Management Personnel. The 

Managing Director may also consult the Committee / 

Board for further directions /guidance.

 4.2 Term: The term of the Directors including Managing 

Director shall be governed as per the provisions of the 

Act and Rules made thereunder, as amended from time 

to time. The term of the KMP (other than the Managing 

Director) and Senior Management Personnel shall be 

governed by the prevailing HR policies of the Company.

5. Remuneration for Managing Director

 The remuneration for the Chairman and Managing 

Director (“CMD”) is as per the terms approved by the 

Board and shareholders based on the recommendations 

of the NRC.

 In addition to the salary, allowances, benefits, 

perquisites, the Company may pay such remuneration by 

way of bonus / performance linked incentive and/ or 

commission with reference to the net profits of the 

Company in a particular financial year, as may be 

determined by the Board based on recommendation of 

the NRC, subject to the overall ceilings stipulated in 

Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

6. Remuneration for Independent Directors and Non-

Independent Non-Executive Directors

 Independent Directors ("ID") and Non-Independent Non-

Executive Directors ("NED") may be paid sitting fees (for 

attending the meetings of the Board and of committees of 

ANNEXURE D
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 which they may be members) and annual commission 

within regulatory limits. Quantum of sitting fees may be 

subject to review as and when required. 

 The payment of sitting fees / commission will be 

recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board.

 In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the 

Company may pay to any Director such fair and 

reasonable expenditure, as may have been incurred by 

the Director while performing his/her role as a director of 

the Company.

7. Remuneration for KMP and Senior Management 

 Personnel

The Managing Director is authorized to determine the 

remuneration of KMP and Senior Management Personnel. 

The Managing Director may also consult the Committee / 

Board for further directions /guidance.

The extent of overall remuneration should be sufficient to 

attract and retain talented and qualified individuals 

suitable for every role.

Hence remuneration should be:

(a) Market competitive;

(b) Based on the role played by the individual in 

 managing the Company including responding to the 

 challenges faced by the Company;

(c) Reflective of size of the Company, complexity 

 of the sector / industry / company's operations and 

 the Company's capacity to pay;

(d) Consistent with recognised best practices;

(e) Aligned to any regulatory requirements; and

(f) In terms of remuneration mix:

 i. Basic/fixed salary is to be provided to all 

  employees to ensure that there is a steady 

  income in line with their skills and experience.

 ii. In addition to the basic/fixed salary, the Company 

  may provide employees with certain perquisites, 

  allowances and benefits.

 iii. The Company may also provide for a performance 

  linked bonus and/or performance linked incentive.

8.  Annual Performance Evaluation

 The NRC shall specify the manner for effective evaluation 

of performance of Board, its committees and individual 

directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an 

independent external agency and review its 

implementation and compliance. The evaluation criteria 

shall be laid down by the NRC.

9.  Policy Review

 Subject to the recommendations of the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee, the Board reserves the right to 

review and amend this policy, if required, to ascertain its 

appropriateness as per the needs of the Company.
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ANNEXURE E

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

REPORT

1. Industry Overview

India's gross domestic product (GDP) grew at 1.6 per cent 

in the January-March quarter of fiscal year 2020-21 amid 

the corona virus pandemic but witnessed a contraction of 

7.3 per cent for the entire fiscal year. The sectoral 

performance in Q4 FY21 reveals that there was definitely a 

recovery in manufacturing, construction and finance, real 

estate etc numbers, which would have boded well for 

FY22. However, with the second wave leading to a 

closedown of services sector in particular, progress might 

remain muted. The economy snapped out of technical 

recession in the October-December quarter of the 

financial year 2020-21 and expanded by a revised 0.5 per 

cent, after reporting two consecutive quarters of de-

growth in the same fiscal. The nationwide lockdown 

impacted urban housing segment the most as stricter 

restrictions on movement and business activity were 

imposed in Q1 FY 2020-21. However, the system liquidity 

has improved considerably and the sector has started 

witnessing disbursement growth. Stress due to the 

pandemic was moderated due to government schemes 

which have led to moderate addition to Gross Non-

Performing Assets (GNPAs). Per capita home ownership is 

still one of the lowest in India as compared to developed 

and developing economies, which will continue to 

provide opportunities for growth in the Housing Market in 

India.

The Indian housing finance market clocked a healthy 

CAGR of approximately 13% (growth in loan outstanding) 

over Fiscals 2018 to 2020 on account of a rise in 

disposable income, healthy demand emanating from 

smaller cities markets, attractive interest rates and 

government impetus on housing. In the long-term also, 

the housing finance market has shown secular growth 

with outstanding loans increasing from `9.90 lakh crores 

in FY 2015 to ̀ 20.40 lakh crores in FY 2020 translating into 

a CAGR of 15.56%.

The latent demand for housing in India remains strong, 

given the vast housing shortage in India and the 

psychological comfort provided by owning a house post 

the uncertainty created by the COVID-19 pandemic. In 

second quarter of Fiscal 2021, all major HFCs witnessed a 

pick-up in demand for home loans for major HFCs. Across 

the banking system, housing loans outstanding 

registered an year-on-year growth of approximately 7.7% 

as of January 2021. This increase in demand has continued 

in the third quarter and fourth quarter of this fiscal as 

well, as indicated by disclosures by few listed players and 

housing registration data in large cities.  Research reports 

estimates home loans outstanding (banks and non-

banks) to grow at 5-6% year-on-year in Fiscal 2021. It 

expects the home loan market to bounce back more 

strongly in the long term and grow at 9-10% CAGR in 

between Fiscals 2020 and 2025.

Higher transparency in the sector, increasing affordability 

and urbanisation, and government incentives will push 

up the housing finance market over the next five years. 

The above factors have led to increase of mortgage 

penetration in the country from 6% in 2008 to 10.3% in 

2020. Researchers expect that India will continue on this 

trajectory to reach mortgage penetration of close to 15% 

by fiscal 2024.

2. Key trends in Affordable housing finance sector

2.1 Overview of housing finance market focusing on low 

 income housing segment

India's mortgage market can broadly be divided into two 

segments by ticket size of the housing loan at the time of 

disbursement- loans with ticket size of more than `15 

lakhs, and loans with ticket size of `15 lakhs and below. 

The former can be called normal mortgage market, which is 

prominent in the metro/urban areas, and the latter which 

generally includes houses in the outskirts of these areas 

and semi- urban and rural areas can be defined as housing 

finance market focusing on low income or affordable 

housing segment.

2.2 Encouraging trends in housing finance market 

 focused on affordable housing segment

The overall size of the housing finance market focusing on 

low income housing segment (ticket size less than `15 

lakhs) in India was around `2.4 lakh crores as of March 

2020 which accounts for around 12% of the overall 

housing finance market. Out of the `2.4 lakh crores 

mentioned above, PSBs accounted for 50% of the market 

with an absolute value of `1.18 lakh crores, private banks 

accounted for 6% with an absolute value of `0.14 lakh 

crores, while HFCs accounted for 38% with loans 

outstanding of ̀ 0.90 lakh crores as of March 2020.

Growth in the market, in terms of loans outstanding, has 

come down over the last four years due to the slowdown 

in economic growth, challenges faced by some HFCs in 

availing funding subsequent to the IL&FS meltdown, and 

in the more recent past, the onset of the COVID-19 

pandemic when the housing finance market focused on 

low income housing segment logged a growth of around 

4.9% CAGR between Fiscal 2016 and 2020 after growing at a 

higher cliff in the years before that.  
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2.3 Business model of housing financiers focused on 

 affordable housing segment

Housing financiers focused on low income housing 

segment typically serve the underserved category of low-

income or mid income customers who may be salaried, 

working in the informal sector or self-employed running a 

small business. Many a times, these customers do not 

have adequate documentation that can serve as proof of 

their income. The high cost of serving this category of 

customers has prompted financiers to adopt innovative 

models to source business. An HFC targeting this segment 

of customers usually has a hub and spoke model where 

retail branches of the HFC operate as 'hubs' in urban 

areas, while small branches are set up in smaller towns 

where construction activity is taking place to source 

customers. Financiers also spread awareness about their 

products in rural areas by setting up kiosks at 'gram 

sabhas' and arranging 'loan melas' for potential 

customers. However, HFCs also rely on customers doing in 

self-construction of their houses in tier-2 and 3 cities in 

need of credit. These players have sourcing strategies 

focused on attracting customers with touch points in 

nearby locations.

First time credit customers in housing finance focused on 

low income housing segment are higher than as 

compared to normal housing (ticket size more than `15 

lakhs). The declining share of first time credit customers 

also indicates better availability of loan repayment 

records of customer while assessing them for credit 

underwriting.

2.4 New HFCs focused on low income housing segment have 

 higher growth rate vis- à-vis other lenders focused on 

 low income segments

New HFCs (HFCs incorporated on or after Fiscal 2010) 

focused on low income housing segment grew at CAGR of 

~19.4% from March 2018 to March 2020. The defining 

characteristic of HFCs focused on low income housing 

segment is their strong focus on their target segment (i.e. 

housing loans lower than `15 lakh ticket size to low-

income customers), deep understanding of the micro- 

markets they operate in, and relatively lower focus on 

builder/developer loans. Their credit assessment 

processes are fine-tuned to serve their target segment.

2.5 Asset quality of HFC's focused on affordable housing 

 segment to improve with increase in information 

 availability and higher technology usage for credit 

 assessment

As demand for home loans largely comes from first-time 

buyers, who stay in the property purchased by them, asset 

quality in this segment has remained healthy historically. 

However, due to the seasoning of portfolios of rapidly 

growing HFCs, many of which are focused on relatively  

riskier customers compared with the salaried segment, 

delinquency rates have moved up. Moreover, due to their 

presence in a few geographies, HFCs focused on 

affordable housing segment are more susceptible to local 

events and developments that impact the repayment 

behaviour compared with their larger counterparts. 

Researchers expects delinquencies to further inch up 

over the course of the current fiscal and next as a result of 

the slowdown in economic growth induced by COVID-19; 

subsequently, researchers expects to witness an 

improvement in the asset quality. Ability to manage credit 

costs by appropriately leveraging information availability 

as also technology and data analytics will be a key 

differentiator among players in the HFCs focused on 

affordable housing segment.

2.6 Profitability of HFCs focused on affordable housing 

 segment to improve over a long term

In Fiscal 2019, HFCs focused on affordable housing 

segment saw a decline in RoA year-on-year, because of an 

increase in cost of funding following the default by IL&FS. 

However, they have witnessed improvement in RoA during 

the fiscal 2020. In Fiscal 2021, research reports estimates 

the profitability of HFCs to deteriorate, mainly due to 

increase in credit costs as they cater to riskier segments 

(self- employed and informal segment) which are more 

vulnerable to economic slowdown. In current scenario, as 

market rates are declining, yield on advances is also 

expected to decline for these HFCs. As a result, these HFCs 

will have to effectively manage their cost of funds to 

maintain their NIMs. Over the long term, researchers 

expect the industry's profitability to gradually improve. 

Cost of funds, which has shot up since the second half of 

Fiscal 2019, is expected to gradually normalise, once risk 

aversion wanes and capital availability for better 

performing HFCs improves. Additionally, for players in the 

affordable housing category, operating expenses, too, 

would moderate, as business volumes increase and the 

level of standardisation and digitalisation in credit 

assessment increases.

3. Growth Drivers for Housing Finance

3.1 Government Initiatives 

4 Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojna (Urban): The scheme aims 

to fill the supply- demand gap in the housing sector. 

On supply side, the scheme provides incentives for 

beneficiary-led housing, public private partnership 

(PPP) in building homes for EWS and low income group 

by offering incentives such as allowing higher floor 

space index and announcing grants and subsidies for 

slum redevelopment. On the demand side, the PMAY 

provides credit-linked subsidies to stimulate demand.

4 Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (Gramin): The scheme is 

for rural population who don't have their own houses. It 

provides financial assistance and interest rate subsidy.

PERFORMANCE REPORT |  |STATUTORY REPORTS  FINANCIAL STATEMENTSANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

APTUS VALUE HOUSING FINANCE INDIA LIMITED 41



4 Special financing window: The scheme is for rural 

population who don't have their own houses. It 

provides financial assistance and interest rate 

subsidy.

4 Relaxation of ECB guidelines: The relaxed ECB 

guidelines will enable easier access to overseas funds 

and stimulate the sector. 

4 Tax incentives: Provides various tax benefits to home 

loan borrowers and HFCs.

4 RERA: The law was introduced in order to make the 

sector transparent.

4 GST: The reduction in the GST rate for affordable 

housing projects.

4 EPF corpus withdrawal: Permission to withdraw 90% 

of EPFO corpus enables prospective home buyers to 

make the down payment and pay their home loan EMIs. 

 3.2 Regulatory Framework 

4 Regulatory authority of HFCs to shift from NHB to RBI: 

Budget 2020 proposed a change in regulatory 

oversight and supervision of HFCs from the National 

Housing Bank (NHB) to the Reserve Bank of India. This 

shift will lead to more streamlined regulations and 

better risk management framework for HFCs.

4 Reduced risk weights and SAP on home loans: Due to 

reduction in the risk weights for various category of 

home loans, financial institutions have been able to 

lend more money towards home loans with the 

existing capital.

4 SARFAESI: Allowing HFCs to access SARFAESI has 

helped them to accelerate the recoveries.

4 Tax holiday for affordable housing developers.

4 Infrastructure status to ease financing for affordable 

housing developers.

4 NHB refinance: The NHB refinancing schemes help 

HFCs lower their borrowing costs.

4 PSL eligibility for home Loans: The RBI has increased 

the PSL eligibility norms in order to promote PMAY.

 3.3 Other factors 

4 Rising urbanisation and nuclearisation: Decreasing 

average household size and rising level of urban 

population create more housing demand.

4 Rising Income levels: Rising income levels help 

improve the affordability of houses.

4 Rising independent housing demand: Increase in 

share of independent houses helps housing finance 

market to grow in the long term.

 3.4 Government initiatives to counter the pandemic's

       onslaught on growth

The Monetary Policy Committee (“MPC”) of the RBI 

slashed the repo rate by 115 basis points (bps) to 

address financial market stress in the wake of the 

pandemic and the subsequent lockdown. In an 

unusual move, the MPC also asymmetrically slashed 

the reverse repo initially by 90 bps and by another 25 

bps and 40 bps subsequently. The repo and reverse 

repo rates now stand at 4.00% and 3.35%, respectively. 

To tide over any unwarranted volatility, the MPC also 

increased borrowing limits under the marginal 

standing facility (“MSF”) of the liquidity adjustment 

facility window from 2% to 3%. The MSF rate now 

stands at 4.25% (down from 5.40%).

The RBI also announced a host of other measures to 

address financial market stress due to the pandemic / 

lockdown:

Reducing debt servicing burden through moratorium 

period: The RBI initially permitted lending institutions 

to allow a moratorium of three months on repayment 

of instalments for term loans outstanding as on March 

1, 2020 and defer interest payments due on working 

capital facilities outstanding. The moratorium was 

further extended by another three months till August 

31, 2020.

Loan restructuring: In a first, the restructuring option 

was extended to retail borrowers as well, facing stress 

in loan repayments due to salary cuts and job losses. 

However, only those borrower accounts would be 

eligible for resolution which were classified as 

standard, but not in default for more than 30 days with 

any lending institution as on March 1, 2020.

Enhancing liquidity: Apart from reducing repo and 

reverse repo rate, the RBI reduced the cash reserve 

ratio (“CRR”) requirements of all banks by 100 bps to 

3% of net demand and time liabilities (“NDTL”). 

Further, the minimum daily CRR balance maintenance 

was reduced to 80% from 90% till June 26, 2020. In view 

of the exceptionally high volatility in domestic financial 

markets, the RBI also increased MSF borrowing limit 

from 2% to 3% of bank's NDTL up to June 30, 2020.

Supporting financial market liquidity: The RBI 

initially announced targeted long- term repo 

operations (TLTROs) of up to three years' tenure for a 

total of up to Rupees One lakh crores. Liquidity availed 

under the scheme by banks had to be deployed in 

investment grade corporate bonds, commercial paper, 

and non-convertible debentures. Subsequently, 

TLTROs worth `50,000 crores were announced 

specifically for NBFCs and mutual fund institutions 

(“MFIs”), with 50% targeted towards small and mid-

sized firms. Investments made by banks under this 

facility would be classified as held to maturity, and 

also be excluded under the large exposure framework.
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Pushing credit growth: In order to improve credit 

growth, the central bank announced `50,000 crores 

refinancing facility for NABARD (`25,000 crores), SIDBI 

(`15,000 crores) and NHB (`10,000 crores) to increase 

credit availability to microfinance, micro, small and 

medium enterprises (“MSMEs”) and the housing sector.

4. APTUS: Business Overview

4.1 Customer Base  

We primarily serve low and middle income self-

employed customers in the rural and semi-urban 

markets of India who have limited access to formal 

banking channels. We offer loans to self-employed 

customers, whose main source of income is their 

profession or their business and salaried customers, 

whose main source of income is salary from their 

employment. Many of our customers who are 

individuals do not have formal income proofs, pay 

slips, or file income tax returns, and as such may be 

excluded from being served by banks or large 

financial institutions.

We offer customers home loans for the purchase and 

self-construction of residential property, home 

improvement and extension loans; loans against 

property; and business loans. We target first time 

home buyers where the collateral is a self- occupied 

residential property. Loans to self-employed 

customers accounted for 72% of our AUM, while loans 

to salaried customer accounted for 28%, as of March 

31, 2021. As of March 31, 2021, 73% of our AUM was from 

customers who belonged to the lower and middle 

income groups, between `35,000 to `60,000 per 

month and 41% of our AUM were from customers who 

were new to credit. Further, as of March 31, 2021, 62% of 

our AUM was from customers located in rural regions. 

We do not provide any loans with a ticket size above 

`25 lakhs and the average ticket size of our home 

loans, loans against property and business loans on 

the basis of sanctioned amounts was `7.2 lakhs, `7.1 

lakhs and ̀ 6.2 lakhs, as of March 31, 2021, respectively.

Aptus has diversified its geographical presence by 

adopting a strategy of contiguous expansion across 

regions and are focused on achieving deeper 

penetration in our existing markets. As of March 31, 

2021, Aptus had a network of 190 branches across four 

states.

4.2 Loan-to-Value (LTV) Ratio, EMI and Tenure of Housing 

       Loans

We set an LTV ratio range for each of our loan products 

that is within the relevant range prescribed by the 

regulatory authorities. Our home loans, loans against 

property and business loans had an average loan-to-

value on AUM of 38.89%, 38.27% and 39.21%, as of 

March 31, 2021, respectively. The amount and LTV of  

the loan is subject to our credit assessment of the

customer and factors including value of the collateral 

and regulatory limits. Loans are required to be repaid 

in equated monthly installments (“EMIs”) over an 

agreed period. The size of the EMI depends on the size 

of loan, interest rate and tenure of loan. As of March 31, 

2021, the average tenure of our home loans, loans 

against property and business loans was for a period 

up to 12.5, 11.5 and 8.5 years, respectively.

4.3  Interest Rates, Fees and Collateral for Home Loans

We offer our home loan customers the option to 

choose between a fixed or variable interest rate in 

order to allow them to hedge against unexpected 

interest rate movements. The pricing of a fixed 

interest rate loan and the variable interest rate loans 

is generally determined on the basis of market 

conditions. We determine our reference rate from 

time to time based on market conditions and price our 

loans at either a discount or a premium to our 

reference rate. For variable rate loans, the interest rate 

is linked to our reference rate.

We require our customers to pay certain processing 

fees on sanction of the loan. The underlying collateral 

for a loan is the house towards which the loan is 

provided, either for construction, purchase or 

improvement. The security for home loans is created 

through registered mortgage of immovable property. 

We also obtain guarantees from a guarantor for all 

loans. We offer credit shield insurance to customers 

wherein the entire loan outstanding is repaid by the 

insurance company in the event of death of a 

customer.

4.4  Credit Assessment, Approval and Disbursement

We operate our business in a centralized manner 

where underwriting, including the approval process, 

and disbursement of loans are undertaken at our 

central office. Our credit officers determine the initial 

loan eligibility of the customers. The credit officers in 

our branches are responsible for assessing the 

customer's business and their income and expenses 

by direct field visits, verification of documents 

providing the customers' income and other revenue 

streams, conducting reference checks and responding 

to queries from our central office. We review financial 

and other documents such as bank statements, salary 

slips and educational and technical qualifications. 

The assessed income is verified with surrogates such 

as recently created assets, including vehicles, 

residential lifestyle and education of family members. 

Our credit officers also use established credit 

evaluation methodologies such as credit bureau 

checks to determine the credit history of the 

customers. Thus by use of technology and through an 

established manual verification process, our central 

office then underwrites our customer's loans.
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Our in-house technical and legal team also 

undertakes field visits to identify the location of the 

proposed collateral and to trace the flow of the title 

documents of the proposed collateral and their 

authenticity.  We endeavor to mitigate risk through 

defined loan documentation, and execution of 

equitable mortgage prior to the disbursement of the 

loan. In addition, key terms and conditions are usually 

communicated to the prospective customers in 

English and the relevant local language.

4.5  Loan Collection and Monitoring

We have set up a robust and tiered, collections 

management system with prescribed collection action 

at each stage of severity of default. All our borrowers 

register for an automated debit facility, which reduces 

our cash management risk and we have implemented 

digitized collection models, which has led to an 

increase in our collection efficiencies. We employ a 

structured collection process wherein we remind our 

customers of their payment schedules through text 

messages and automated calls to maintain adequate 

balance in their account on the due date.

4.6  Funding

Our financing requirements historically have been met 

from several sources, including refinancing from the 

NHB, financing from IFC, term loans, working capital 

loans and issuance of non-convertible debentures 

(“NCDs”) to meet our capital requirements. We also 

monetize loans through securitization to banks and 

financial institutions, which enables us to optimize our 

cost of borrowings, liquidity and capital. As of March 31, 

2021 and March 31, 2020, our Total Borrowings were 

`2,515.07 crores and `2,021.65 crores and our average 

cost of borrowings was 9.11% and 10.17%, respectively. 

Our average cost of incremental borrowings for the 

financial year 2021 was 7.70%, as compared to 9.45% for 

the financial year 2020. As of March 31, 2021, we had 

borrowing relationships with the NHB, as well as with 17 

banks and other financial institutions. As of March 31, 

2021, the weighted average tenure of our outstanding 

borrowings was 83 months and our credit ratings were 

ICRA A+ (Stable) and CARE A+ (Stable). As of the same 

date, we had a positive asset-liability position across all 

maturity buckets.

5. Information Technology

 Information Technology acts as an enabler in our 

business and helps us in achieving growth, scale of 

operations, ease of use, customer focus and secure 

operations.

We have hyper converged infrastructure which can scale 

operations for a foreseeable future combined with 

operational simplicity. We have virtualized branches 

through citrix for data security, ease of expansion with 

centralized control and monitoring system. In addition, 

we have robust disaster recovery and business continuity 

with expandable cloud solution. Aptus have adopted a 

cyber security policy with risk mitigation, incidence 

prevention and vulnerability assessment periodically 

provides availability and reliability of data at all times.

 Our lending software is an end to end software solution 

which provides us with functions such as access control, 

loan origination, loan management and financial report 

generation. It has controls and risk management to 

ensure integrity of the customer data and financial 

reports. We have implemented Robotic Process Automation 

(RPA) to eliminate manual processes, increase efficiency 

and reduce errors. We have implemented browser plug-in 

to print cheques at our branches which ensures quick 

disbursement of loans to customers.

 Our referral application 'Aptus bandhu' helps us to create 

a strong sourcing network among the construction eco-

system and generate unadulterated leads.

 We have a sales application which assist us in on boarding 

customers and do KYC digitally. The sales application with 

also help us in monitoring our sales team and will be 

integrated with our lending software for quick turnaround 

time. We have implemented several mobility initiatives 

such as our referral mobile application, which helps us 

create a strong sourcing network and generate leads.

 We have also implemented a Credit Application which 

does business verification and residence verification to 

capture our customer's details for quicker credit 

processing and elimination of errors in credit evaluation. 

Implementation of Machine learning and Artificial 

intelligence to our credit score card to help us faster 

credit decisioning, understanding customer behaviours 

and also for the business to understand the behavior of 

profiles based on income type and geography.

 We have a technical application which has multiple 

features like geo tagging of the property from the field, 

generation of technical and valuation report, automated 

technical approval and integration with lending 

application.

 Our collections application helps our collections team 

manage collections effectively and efficiently. This also 

provides transparency to customers with immediate 

receipt generation and SMS. It also helps us in efficiently 

managing our collection team by allocation of overdue 

customers, tracking of collection progress and also helps 

our collection team reach customers quickly through 

route optimization. We have enabled Bharath Bill pay for 

the convenience of our customers and also encourage 

digital payments.
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We are developing a customer service application to 

ensure our customers reach us with their service requests 

and also for them to monitor their loan status and details 

in the customer service application dashboard.

 Our CRM system is automated which helps our team to 

connect with customers at ease with features such as call 

transfer, inbound and out-bound call scheduling, issue 

resolution and tracking of customer service requests.

 We use Power business intelligence as an analytics 

platform to understand customer related data. This helps 

us in understanding and managing customer risks. We 

also use Microsoft Business Intelligence tool for data 

visualization of key management dashboards and 

metrics, Big query of Google as a data for modeling 

platform for protective analysis for key business areas.

 We have also implemented a human resources 

management system application to enable and facilitate 

employee attendance, leave requests, and dissemination 

of policies and communication to them. It also helps in 

employee's adherence to guidelines and compliances. 

Facial recognition and geo tagging is also done to ensure 

integrity.

 A continuous process improvement and evaluation of 

business processes helps us in keeping all the software 

adapt to the business goals and establish the required 

controls for integrity.

6. Employees

 As of March 31, 2021, we had 1,910 employees. We recruit 

after conducting reference checks and our new 

employees undergo training. As part of our human 

resource initiatives, we have implemented several 

programs to engage with our employees. We conduct 

training programs on a periodic basis for our employees 

on lending operations, underwriting and due diligence, 

KYC and anti-money laundering norms, risk management, 

information technology, and grievance redressal. We also 

encourage staff to attend training programs conducted by

 NHB and other reputed training institutes. We also offer 

ESOPs to select employees and have good incentive 

systems for the field staffs.

7. APTUS: Key Performance Highlights

4 Revenue increased by 25% in FY 2020-21

4 Low cost to income ratio

4 Lowest GNPA of 0.68% as of March 31, 2021

4 PAT increased by 40% in FY 2020-21

4 Highest ROA of 7.4% one of the best in the industry

4 ROE of 14.50%

8. APTUS: Strength & Strategies

 Our competitive strengths:

4 Presence in large, underpenetrated markets with 

strong growth potential.

4 Robust risk management architecture from 

origination to collections leading to superior asset 

quality.

4 In-house operations leading to desired business 

outcomes.

4 Domain expertise resulting in a business model 

difficult to replicate by others in our geographies.

4 Experienced and stable management team with 

marquee shareholders and strong corporate 

governance.

4 Established track record of financial performance with 

industry leading profitability.

4 Focus on the social impact of our business.

 Our strategies for growth;

4 Continue to focus on low and middle income self-

employed customers in rural and semi-urban markets

4 Increase penetration in our existing markets and 

expand our branch network in large housing markets

4 Continue to be an asset quality focused financier

4 Reduce cost of borrowings by diversifying sources of 

borrowing and improving credit rating.
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2. Board of Directors

Your Board of Directors currently consists of Ten (10) 

members including the Chairman cum Managing Director. 

Of these, five (5) are Independent Directors and four (4) 

are Non-Executive Directors.

Mr. M Anandan is the Executive Chairman and Managing 

Director of the Company.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, four (4) 

Board Meetings were held on May 30, 2020, August 11, 2020, 

November 12, 2020 and February 11, 2021 respectively. The 

gap between two meetings was not more than 120 days.

Particulars of the Directors' attendance to the 

Board/Committee Meetings and particulars of their other 

company directorships are given below:

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The fundamental objective of “Good Corporate Governance 

and Ethics” is to ensure the commitment of an organization in 

managing the company in an ethical, legal and transparent 

manner in order to maximize the long-term value of the 

company for its stakeholders including shareholders, 

customers, employees and other partners. Your company is 

committed to good corporate governance in all its activities.

1. Company Philosophy

Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited (Aptus) 

philosophy on corporate governance envisages 

adherence to the highest levels of commitment, integrity, 

transparency, accountability and fairness, in all areas of 

its business and in all interactions with its stakeholders.

ANNEXURE F

M Anandan

(DIN: 00033633)

     Name
Nature of 

Directorship

Attendance Other
Directorships

Board Committees

Chairman & Managing 

Director
4 14 -

K M Mohandass

(DIN: 00707839)

Independent 

Director
4 18 1

S Krishnamurthy

(DIN: 00066044)

Independent 

Director
4 16 1

V G Kannan#

(DIN: 03443982)

Independent 

Director
- NA 3

Krishnamurthy Vijayan

(DIN: 00589406)

Independent 

Director
3 4 1

Shailesh J Mehta

(DIN: 01633893)

Non Executive 

Director
4 4 4

Sumir Chadha 

(DIN: 00040789)

Nominee Director, 

Non Executive
4 4 5

Nominee Director, 

Non Executive
4 8 -

* Ms. Mona Kachhwaha has been appointed as an Additional Director with effect from 30/05/2020 and as an Independent 

 Director with effect from 05/05/2021

# Mr. V G Kannan was appointed as an Independent Director with effect from 09/03/2021.

K P Balaraj

(DIN: 00163632)

Mona Kachhwaha* 

(DIN: 01856801)

Independent 

Director
3 3 2

Suman Bollina

(DIN: 07136443)

Non Executive 

Director
4 NA 1



2.1 Changes in Board of Directors

The following changes took place in the composition of 

Board of Directors during the year:

4 Ms. Mona Kachhwaha (DIN: 01856801) was appointed as 

an Independent Director by the Board for a term of 

five years effective May 5, 2021, and her appointment 

was approved by the shareholders at the Extra-

ordinary General Meeting held on May 6, 2021.

4 Mr. V G Kannan (DIN: 03443982) was appointed as an 

Additional Independent Director by the Board of 

Directors with effect from March 9, 2021, his 

appointment was approved by the shareholders for a 

term of five years effective March 9, 2021, at the Extra-

ordinary General Meeting held on May 6, 2021.

2.2 Independent Directors

Your Company appointed Independent Directors who are 

renowned people having expertise/experience in their 

respective field/profession. None of the Independent 

Directors are Promoters or are related to Promoters. They 

do not have pecuniary relationship with the Company and 

further do not hold two percent or more of the total voting 

power of the Company.

Every Independent Director, at the first meeting of the 

Board in which he/she participates as a Director and 

thereafter at the first meeting of the Board in every 

financial year, gives a declaration that he/she meets the 

criteria of independence as required under Section 149(7) 

of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. K M Mohandass (DIN: 

00707839), Mr. S Krishnamurthy (DIN: 00066044) and Mr. 

Krishnamurthy Vijayan (DIN: 00589406), were re-

appointed as Independent Directors for a second term of 

five years by the shareholders at the eleventh Annual 

General Meeting held on August 11, 2020.

Ms. Mona Kachhwaha (DIN: 01856801) was appointed as 

an Independent Director by the Board for a term of five 

years effective May 5, 2021, and her appointment was 

approved by the shareholders' at the Extra-ordinary 

General Meeting held on May 6, 2021.

Mr. V G Kannan (DIN: 03443982) was appointed as an 

Additional Independent Director by the Board of 

Directors with effect from March 9, 2021, his appointment 

was approved by the shareholders for a term of five years 

effective March 9, 2021, at the Extra-ordinary General 

Meeting held on May 6, 2021.

The Company had issued a formal letter of appointment 

to all the Independent Directors and the terms and 

conditions of their re-appointment have been disclosed 

in the website of the Company.

2.3 Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management

Your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for 

Independent Directors as per Schedule IV to the 

Companies Act, 2013. The Code aims at ensuring 

transparency and independence and at the same time to 

bring value to the company by providing input on 

strategy, business, and other matters including 

performance of monitoring functions.

Your Company has also adopted a Company's General 

Code of Conduct for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

and Employees. The Code aims at ensuring consistent 

standards of conduct and ethical business practices 

across the Company.

Your Company continues to ensure effective 

implementation and enforcement of these codes to 

achieve the objectives enshrined in these Codes.

3. Committees 

A.  Committees of the Board

3.1 Audit Committee

 Composition and Meetings

The Audit Committee currently consists of the following 

members:

1.  Mr. K M Mohandass, Independent Director - Chairman

2.  Mr. S Krishnamurthy, Independent Director

3.  Mr. Krishnamurthy Vijayan, Independent Director

4.  Ms. Mona Kachhwaha, Independent Director

Mr. M Anandan, Chairman and Managing Director is an 

invitee to the meetings of the Committee.

The Audit Committee of the Board met four (4) times 

during the year on May 30, 2020, August 11, 2020, 

November 12, 2020 and February 11, 2021 respectively.

 Terms of reference

a) Oversight of the Company's financial reporting 

process and the disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement is 

correct, sufficient and credible;

b) Recommendation to the board of directors of the 

Company (the “Board”) for appointment, replacement, 

reappointment, remuneration and terms of 

appointment of secretarial, statutory and internal 

auditors of the Company;

c) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any 

other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

d) Reviewing, with the management, the annual 

financial statements and auditor's report thereon 

before submission to the Board for approval, with 

particular reference to:

PERFORMANCE REPORT |  |STATUTORY REPORTS  FINANCIAL STATEMENTSANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

APTUS VALUE HOUSING FINANCE INDIA LIMITED 47



 i. Matters required to be included in the director's 

responsibility statement to be included in the 

Board's report, in terms of the Companies Act, 

2013, as amended;

 ii. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and 

practices and reasons for the same;

 iii. Major accounting entries involving estimates 

based on the exercise of judgment by 

management;

 iv. Significant adjustments made in the financial 

statements arising out of audit findings;

 v. Compliance with listing and other legal 

requirements relating to financial statements;

 vi. Disclosure of any related party transactions; and

 vii. Qualifications and modified opinion(s) in the 

draft audit report. 

e) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly 

financial statements before submission to the Board 

for approval;

f) Examination of the financial statement and auditor's 

report thereon;

g) Monitoring the end use of funds raised through 

public offers and related matters;

h) Reviewing, with the management, the statement of 

uses/application of funds raised through an issue 

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), 

the statement of funds utilized for purposes other 

than those stated in the issue document / prospectus / 

notice and making appropriate recommendations to 

the Board to take up steps in this matter;

i) Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence 

and performance, and effectiveness of audit 

process;

j) Approval or any subsequent modification of 

transactions of the Company with related parties;

k) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

l) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, 

wherever it is necessary;

m) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk 

management systems;

n) Reviewing, with the management, performance of 

statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 

internal control systems;

o) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if 

any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official 

heading the department, reporting structure 

coverage and frequency of internal audit;

 p) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant 

findings and follow up thereon;

q) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations 

by the internal auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal 

control systems of a material nature and reporting 

the matter to the Board;

r) Discussion with statutory auditors, internal auditors, 

secretarial auditors and cost auditors before the 

audit commences, about the nature and scope of 

audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain 

any area of concern;

s) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in 

the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared 

dividends) and creditors;

t) To review the functioning of the whistle blower 

mechanism;

u) Approval of appointment of chief financial officer 

after assessing the qualifications, experience and 

background, etc. of the candidate;

v) Carrying out any other function as may be required / 

mandated by the Board from time to time and/ or 

mandated as per the provisions of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 

amended, the Companies Act, 2013, as amended 

(including Section 177), the listing agreements to be 

entered into between the Company and the 

respective stock exchanges on which the equity 

shares of the Company are proposed to be listed 

and/or any other applicable laws;

w) Reviewing the utilization of loan and/or advances 

from investment by the holding company in the 

subsidiary exceeding `100 crore or 10% of the asset 

size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including 

existing loans / advances / investments.

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the 

following information:

(1) management discussion and analysis of financial 

condition and results of operations;

(2) statement of significant related party transactions 

(as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by 

management;

(3) management letters / letters of internal control 

weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

(4) internal audit reports relating to internal control 

weaknesses;

(5) the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration 

of the internal auditor shall be subject to review by 

the Audit Committee; and
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(6) statement of deviations as and when becomes 

applicable:

4 quarterly statement of deviation(s) submitted to 

stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) of 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, as amended.

4 Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes 

other than those stated in the offer document / 

prospectus / notice in terms of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 

amended.

3.2 Nomination & Remuneration Committee

 Composition and Meetings

 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee currently 

consists of the following members:

1.  Mr. S Krishnamurthy, Independent Director - Chairman

2. Mr. K M Mohandass, Independent Director

3. Mr. Krishnamurthy Vijayan, Independent Director

4. Mr. Shailesh J Mehta, Non-Executive Director

5. Mr. Sumir Chadha, Nominee Director

6. Mr. M Anandan, Chairman and Managing Director

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board 

met four (4) times during the year on May 30, 2020, August 

11, 2020, November 12, 2020 and February 11, 2021 

respectively.

 Terms of reference

a) Formulating the criteria for determining 

qualifications, positive attributes and independence 

of a director and recommend to the Board a policy 

relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key 

managerial personnel and other employees;

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, while 

formulating the above policy, should ensure that:

 (i) the level and composition of remuneration be 

reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 

motivate directors of the quality required to run 

the Company successfully;

 (ii) relationship of remuneration to performance is 

clear and meets appropriate performance 

benchmarks; and

 (iii) remuneration to directors, key managerial 

personnel and senior management involves a 

balance between fixed and incentive pay 

reflecting short and long term performance 

objectives appropriate to the working of the 

Company and its goals;

b) Formulating criteria for evaluation of performance 

of independent directors and the board of directors 

of the Company (the “Board”);

c) Devising a policy on diversity of Board;

d) Identifying persons who are qualified to become 

directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid 

down, and recommend to the Board their 

appointment and removal;

e) Extending or continuing the term of appointment of 

the independent director, on the basis of the report 

of performance evaluation of independent directors;

f) Recommending to the Board, all remuneration, in 

whatever form, payable to senior management.

g) Administering, monitoring and formulating detailed 

terms and conditions of the Aptus Employee Stock 

Option Scheme, 2021;

h) Carrying out any other function as may be required/ 

mandated by the Board from time to time and/ or 

mandated as per the provisions of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 

Companies Act, 2013, each as amended, the listing 

agreements to be entered into between the 

Company and the respective stock exchanges on 

which the equity shares of the Company are 

proposed to be listed and/or any other applicable 

laws; and

i) Performing such other functions as may be 

necessary or appropriate for the performance of its 

duties.

3.3 Resourcing & Business Committee 

 Composition and Meetings

 The Resourcing & Business Committee currently consists 

of the following members:

1. Mr. S Krishnamurthy, Independent Director - Chairman

2. Mr. K M Mohandass, Independent Director

3. Mr. M Anandan, Chairman and Managing Director

The Resourcing & Business Committee of the Board met 

nine (9) times during the year on June 16, 2020, July 20, 

2020, September 25, 2020, September 29, 2020, October 6, 

2020, December 4, 2020, December 21, 2020, March 1, 2021 

and March 30, 2021 respectively.

Terms of reference

a) Borrowing such sum or sums of moneys, availing all 

kinds and types of loans and credit facilities 

including debentures and other debt instruments, 

commercial paper, temporary loans from the 

company's bankers,  from time to time, upto such
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  sum / limit as may be fixed by the Board of Directors 

/ Shareholders, for and on behalf of the Company, 

from its directors, shareholders, banks, NBFCs, 

financial institutions, companies, firms, bodies 

corporate, Co-operative Banks, investment 

institutions and their subsidiaries, or from any other 

person as may be permitted under applicable laws, 

whether unsecured or secured by mortgage, charge, 

hypothecation or lien or pledge of the Company's 

assets and/or properties, whether movable 

including stocks, fixed assets, book debts and to 

create security over the assets and / or properties of 

the Company in relation to such borrowings and 

loan/ credit facilities, modification or satisfaction of 

the charge/ security created on the assets and/or 

properties of the Company from time to time.

b) To mortgage / charge/ hypothecate all or any of the 

movable properties and assets of the Company both 

present and future and the whole or substantially 

the whole of the undertaking or the undertakings of 

the Company on such terms and conditions, as may 

be agreed to with the Lender(s), Debenture holders 

and providers of credit and debt facilities to secure 

the loans / borrowings / credit / debt facilities 

obtained or as may be obtained, or Debentures / 

Bonds and other instruments issued or to be issued 

by the Company to or in favour of the financial 

institutions, Non-Banking Financial Companies, Co-

operative Banks, investment institutions and their 

subsidiaries, banks, mutual funds, trusts and other 

bodies corporate or trustees for the holders of 

debentures/bonds and/or other instruments.

c) To establish current and other banking accounts 

with various banks upon such terms and conditions 

as may be agreed upon with the said bank and 

various other entities; to specify and change the 

authorized signatories and their transaction limits to 

the said banking accounts; to close current and 

other banking accounts.

d) Any unsecured loans to be given by the Company 

other than staff loan advances to be approved by the 

Resourcing & Business Committee.

e) Any secured loan to be given by the Company 

including Housing loans, loans against property, SME 

loans and other loans exceeding `1 crore to be 

approved by Resourcing & Business Committee.

f) To consider and approve securitization arrangements 

and to authorize carrying out of all actions connected 

therewith.

g) Issuance of Share/Debenture and other security 

certificates

4 Issuance of fresh Share/Debenture and other 

security certificates

4 Issuance of duplicate Share/Debenture and 

other security certificates

4 Issuance of certificates upon request of the 

Company on split/consolidation/replacement of 

old and duplicate certificates, transfer or 

transmission requests.

h) To review, modify and approve investment policy of 

the Company from time to time.

i) To give any guarantee or provide security or 

authorize the issuance of any form of comfort letter 

in connection with all kinds and types of loans, credit 

facilities, debt facilities and financing facilities 

availed and / or to be availed by Aptus Finance India 

Private Limited (“Wholly-Owned Subsidiary”) in 

accordance with the limit laid down by the Board of 

Directors.

j) To authorize affixing the common seal of the 

Company in accordance with the manner laid down 

in the Articles of Association and to authorize taking 

the Common Seal out of the registered office of the 

Company.

k) To exercise such other powers as may be vested by 

the Board from time to time.

3.4 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

 Composition and Meetings

 The Committee currently consists of following members:

1. Mr. Krishnamurthy Vijayan, Independent Director - 

 Chairman

2. Mr. K M Mohandass, Independent Director

3. Mr. M Anandan, Chairman and Managing Director

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the 

Board met once during the year on May 30, 2020.

Terms of reference

a) Formulation of a corporate social responsibility 

policy to the Board, indicating the activities to be 

undertaken by the Company in areas or subjects 

specified in the Companies Act, 2013. The activities 

should be within the list of permitted activities 

specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules 

thereunder;

b) Recommending the amount of expenditure to be 

incurred, amount to be at least 2% of the average net 

profit of the Company in the three immediately 

preceding financial years or where the Company has 

not completed the period of three financial years 

since its incorporation, during such immediately 

preceding financial years;

c) Instituting a transparent monitoring mechanism for 

implementation of the corporate social 

responsibility projects or programs or activities 

undertaken by the Company;
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d) Monitoring the corporate social responsibility policy 

from time to time and issuing necessary directions 

as required for proper implementation and timely 

completion of corporate social responsibility 

programmes;

e) Identifying corporate social responsibility policy 

partners and corporate social responsibility policy 

programmes;

f) Identifying and appointing the corporate social 

responsibility team of the Company including 

corporate social responsibility manager, wherever 

required; and

g) Performing such other duties and functions as the 

Board may require the corporate social 

responsibility committee to undertake to promote the 

corporate social responsibility activities of the 

Company or as may be required under applicable 

laws.

Your Company has adopted a Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy and forms part of the Director's 

Report as Annexure C.

3.5 IT Strategy Committee 

 Composition and Meetings

 The Committee currently consists of following members:

1. Mr. Krishnamurthy Vijayan, Independent Director - 

 Chairman

2. Ms. Mona Kachhwaha, Independent Director

3. Mr. V G Kannan, Independent Director

4. Mr. K P Balaraj, Nominee Director

5. Mr. M Anandan, Chairman and Managing Director

 Terms of reference

a) Advising senior management on IT policy, 

procedures, IT infrastructure

b) Review IT strategies, cyber security and any matter 

related to IT Governance.

c) Any matter as may be specified by the Board or as 

required by NHB guidelines / regulations from time 

to time.

3.6 Stakeholder Relationship Committee

 Composition and Meetings

 The Committee currently consists of following members:

1. Mr. Shailesh J Mehta, Non-Executive Director - Chairman

2. Mr. V G Kannan, Independent Director

3. Mr. K P Balaraj, Nominee Director

 Terms of reference

a) To resolve the grievances of the security holders of 

the  Company  including  complaints  related  to 

  transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of 

annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, 

issue of new/duplicate certificates, general 

meetings etc. and assisting with quarterly reporting 

of such complaints;

b) To review measures taken for effective exercise of 

voting rights by shareholders;

c) To review adherence to the service standards 

adopted by the Company in respect of various 

services being rendered by the registrar and share 

transfer agent;

d) To review the various measures and initiatives taken 

by the Company for reducing the quantum of 

unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of 

dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices 

by the shareholders of the Company: and

e) Carrying out such other functions as may be specified 

by the Board from time to time or specified/provided 

under the Companies Act, 2013 or the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, each as 

amended or by any other regulatory authority.

B. Internal Committees:

3.7 Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) 

 Composition and Meetings

 The Asset Liability Committee currently consists of the 

following members:

1. Mr. M Anandan, Chairman and Managing Director

2. Mr. P Balaji, ED & CFO

3. Mr. G Subramanian – ED- Chief of Business & Risk

4. Mr. C T Manoharan – EVP- Business Development

5. Mr. V Krishnaswami – VP – Information Technology

The Asset Liability Committee meets regularly to review 

the areas falling within its terms of reference as given 

below.

 Terms of reference

a) Liquidity Risk Management

b) Management of Market (Interest Rate) Risk

c) Funding and Capital Planning

d) To determine Aptus Value Housing Finance Base 

Rate (AVHFBR)

e) Credit and Portfolio Risk Management

f) Setting credit norms for various lending products of 

the company

g) Operational and Process Risk Management

h) Laying down guidelines on KYC norms

i) To approve and revise the actual interest rates to be 

charged from customers for different products from 

time to time applying the interest rate model.
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3.8 Risk Management Committee

 Composition and Meetings

 The Risk Management Committee currently consists of 

the following members:

1. Mr. V G Kannan, Independent Director - Chairman

2. Ms. Mona Kachhwaha, Independent Director

3. Mr. M Anandan, Chairman and Managing Director

4. Mr. P Balaji, ED & CFO

5. Mr. G Subramanian – ED- Chief of Business & Risk

 Terms of reference

a) To formulate a detailed risk management policy 

which shall include:

 i. A framework for identification of internal and 

external risks specifically faced by the listed 

entity, in particular including financial, 

operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, 

ESG related risks), information, cyber security 

risks or any other risk as may be determined by 

the Committee.

 ii. Measures for risk mitigation including systems 

and processes for internal control of identified 

risks.

  iii. Business continuity plan.

b) To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes 

and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate 

risks associated with the business of the Company;

c) To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk 

management policy, including evaluating the 

adequacy of risk management systems;

d) To periodically review the risk management policy, 

at least once in two years, including by considering 

the changing industry dynamics and evolving 

complexity;

e) To keep the board of directors informed about the 

nature and content of  i ts  discussions,  

recommendations and actions to be taken;

f) The appointment, removal and terms of 

remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall 

be subject to review by the Risk Management 

Committee.

3.9 Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) 

 Composition and Meetings

 The Internal Complaints Committee currently consists of 

the following members:

1. Mr. N Srikanth

2. Ms. Shenbagavadivu 

 The Internal Complaints Committee meets regularly to 

review the areas falling within its terms of reference as 

given below.

 Terms of reference

a) Investigating every formal written complaint of 

sexual harassment

b) Taking appropriate remedial measures to respond to 

any substantiated allegations of sexual harassment.

c) Discouraging and preventing employment-related 

sexual harassment.

4. Remuneration of Directors

The details of sitting fees and commission paid and 

shares held by them in the Company as at March 31, 2021 

are as follows: 

PERFORMANCE REPORT |  |STATUTORY REPORTS  FINANCIAL STATEMENTSANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

APTUS VALUE HOUSING FINANCE INDIA LIMITED 52

     Name

Sitting Fees (` in lakhs) No. of 
equity 
shares 
held in 

the 
Company

Board Committees

Commi-
ssion 
paid 
(` in 

lakhs)

* As on March 31, 2021, out of 1,92,32,833 equity shares held by 
Mr. M Anandan 15,00,000 are partly paid up equity shares, which were 
made fully paid up on May 5, 2021.

**100 Equity shares are held by Mr. K M Mohandass in his own name 
and 1,25,000 equity shares are held by Mr. K M Mohandass as a 
registered holder on behalf of K M Mohandass HUF (beneficial 
owner). Mr. KM Mohandass is the karta of the HUF.

All directors except the CMD and Nominee Directors are 

paid a sitting fee of 20,000 for attending every meeting of `

the Board and 10,000 for attending every meeting of the `

Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee, IT Strategy Committee and Resourcing and 

Business Committee thereof.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent 

Directors) of the Company are paid remuneration by way 

of profit related Commission based on the criteria laid 

down by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

and the Board. The same has been approved by the Board 

and the shareholders and is within the limits prescribed 

under the Companies Act, 2013.

Based on the requests received from the nominee directors 

of WestBridge Crossover Fund LLC the commission 

and sitting fees payable to them have been waived.

Mr. M Anandan* NA NA NA  1,92,32,833 

Mr. K M Mohandass** 0.80 1.90 7.50  1,25,100 

Mr. S Krishnamurthy 0.80 1.90 7.50  Nil 

Mr. Krishnamurthy  0.60 0.40 7.50  Nil 

Vijayan

Ms. Mona Kachhwaha 0.40 0.10 7.50  Nil 

Mr. V G Kannan - - 7.50  Nil 

Mr. Shailesh J Mehta 0.80 0.40 7.50  Nil 

Mr. Sumir Chadha NA NA -  Nil 

Mr. K P Balaraj NA NA -  Nil 

Mr. Suman Bollina 0.60 NA 7.50  83,333



Salary 400.20

Commission 200.00

Other allowances and Perquisites 0.92

Total 601.12

Particulars
Amount 

(` in lakhs)

5.  CMD/CFO Certification

CMD and CFO have given a certificate to the Board as per 

the format given in regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 2015 which is 

given as Annexure H to this report.

6.  General Body Meetings

During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, except for 

the Annual General Meeting held on August 11, 2020 no 

other general body meetings were held.

All the proposed resolutions, including special resolutions, 

were passed by the shareholders as set out in the Notices.

Financial year April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021

General Shareholder Information

12th  Annual General Meeting 

Day, Date and Time  Thursday, September 30, 2021 at 11 a.m.

Mode The annual general meeting (AGM) will be held through video 

 conference in compliance with general circular numbers 20/2020 read 

 with 02/2021 and all other applicable guidelines and circulars issued 

 by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and Securities and Exchange 

 Board of India (SEBI).

 Registrar and Transfer Agents KFin Technologies Private Limited  

 
 Address: Selenium, Tower-B, 
 Plot No- 31 and 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, 
 Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddi, 
 Telangana -  500 032
 E-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com

   Telephone No. 040-67406120 / 67406121

 Debenture Trustee Details Axis Trustee Services Limited

 Address: AXIS House, Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound, 

 Pandhurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, 

 Mumbai - 400025. India

Demat ISIN Number in NSDL/ CDSL  INE852O01025

( Fully/ Partly paid Equity Shares)
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4.1 Remuneration to Managing Director

The details of remuneration paid to Mr. M Anandan, CMD 

for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:



Names of shareholders
No. of shares 

(face value of `10 each)
% of shareholding

M. Anandan & immediate relatives 25,419,498 26.40

WestBridge Crossover Fund LLC 3,43,45,951 35.67

JIH II LLC 83,70,924 8.69

Aravali Investment Holdings 39,52,499 4.11

Madison India Opportunities IV 35,18,109 3.65

GHIOF Mauritius 19,99,571 2.08

Malabar India Fund Limited 39,11,260 4.06

Malabar Select Fund 36,88,760 3.83

Malabar Value Fund 6,48,560 0.67

Steadview Capital Mauritius Limited 32,22,856 3.35

SCI Investment VI 31,93,669 3.32

ABG capital 5,68,739 0.59

Others 34,42,862 3.58

Total 9,62,83,258 100

7. Shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2021
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(v) The following regulations and guidelines prescribed 

under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 ('SEBI Act'), to the extent applicable:

 a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015;

 b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 

and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

 c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of 

Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2009/2018;

 d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and 

dealing with client.

(vi) The Company has complied with the following laws to 

the extent applicable specifically to Housing Finance 

Companies (HFCs):

 a) Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – 

Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 

2021;

 b) The Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002

We have also examined compliance with the applicable 

regulations and clauses of the following: 

i. Listing agreements entered into by the Company with 

the BSE Limited as per the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for listing of its Non-

Convertible Debentures.

ii. Secretarial Standards (SS-1) for Board Meeting and 

Secretarial Standards (SS-2) for General Meetings 

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

We further report that, during the period under review, the 

Company has, in our opinion complied with the provisions of 

the applicable Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 

Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

We further report that

- the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted 

as on the date of this report, with proper balance of 

Executive, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 

Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 

Directors that took place during the period under review 

were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 

Act.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

APTUS VALUE HOUSING FINANCE INDIA LIMITED

No 8B, Doshi Towers, 8th Floor, 

No.205, Poonamallee High Road,

Kilpauk, Chennai -600 010 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of 

applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate practices of M/s. APTUS VALUE HOUSING FINANCE 

INDIA LIMITED (CIN: U65922TN2009PLC073881) (hereinafter 

called “the Company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted 

in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 

and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, 

minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the company and also the information 

provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the 

explanations and clarifications given to us and the 

representations made by the Management and considering 

the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

and Securities and Exchange Board of India on account of the 

outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic we hereby report that in our 

opinion, the Company has, during the audit, period covering 

the financial year ended on March, 31 2021, generally 

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder, and 

also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 

and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms 

and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 

according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made 

thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') 

and the rules made thereunder as applicable to the 

Company;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-

laws framed thereunder as applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the 

rules and regulations made thereunder as applicable 

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment. The 

Company does not have any External Commercial 

Borrowings or Overseas Direct Investment.

ANNEXURE G
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- Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule 

the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 

agenda were sent in advance as per the applicable 

provisions of the Act, and a proper system exists for 

seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 

and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

- Majority decision is carried through and there were no 

dissenting views of the members.

- The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under 

the various provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 to the 

extent applicable; and

- There was no prosecution initiated and no fines or 

penalties were imposed during the year under review 

under the Companies Act, 2013, Securities Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992, The Securities Contracts 

(Regulation) Act, 1956, Depositories Act, 1996, Foreign 

Exchange Management Act, 1999 and Rules, Regulations 

and Guidelines framed under these Acts against / on the 

Company, its Directors and Officers.

- The Directors have complied with the disclosure 

requirements in respect of their eligibility for 

appointment, their independence, wherever applicable 

and compliance with the Code of Business Conduct & 

Ethics for Directors and Management Personnel;

We further report that based on the information received, 

records maintained and representation received, there are 

adequate systems and processes in the Company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the Company

to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 

rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that, during the audit period, the Company 

has:

a. passed a special resolution under Section 180(1)(c) of 

the Act at the Annual General Meeting held on August 

11, 2020 fixing the borrowing limits as ̀ 3500 crores.

b. passed a special resolution under Section 180(1)(a) of 

the Act at the Annual General Meeting held on August 

11, 2020 permitting the Company for creating charge on 

its assets upto ̀ 3500 crores

c. passed a special resolution for private placement of 

debentures under Sections 42 and 71 of the Act at the 

Annual General Meeting held on August 11, 2020 up to a 

sum of ̀ 1500 crores.

d. made a pre-payment of `100 crores and `125 crores 

towards redemption of Non-Convertible Debentures on 

December 4, 2020 and February 16, 2021 respectively.

For S Sandeep & Associates

S Sandeep

Managing Partner

FCS No.5853

COP No. 5987

UDIN No. F005853C000501249
Place: Chennai                                                                            
Date : June 24, 2021
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June 24, 2021

CMD/CFO Certificate 

The Board of Directors

Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited 

This is to certify that:

 1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2021 and that to the best of 

our knowledge and belief: 

  a. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 

might be misleading;

  b. these statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance with existing 

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are 

fraudulent or illegal.

 3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting.

ANNEXURE H

Mr. M Anandan        

CMD          

Mr. P Balaji

CFO

Place: Chennai 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of

APTUS VALUE HOUSING FINANCE INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial 

Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 

statements of Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited 

(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 

March 31 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the 

statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow 

Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the 

year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial 

statements, including a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

standalone financial statements give the information 

required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) 

in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 

in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 

2021, its profit including other comprehensive loss, its cash 

flows, and the changes in equity for the year ended on that 

date. 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial 

statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 

(SAs),as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described 

in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Standalone FinancialStatements'section of our report. We 

are independent of the Company in accordance with the 

'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 

that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under 

the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we 

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 

with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to note no. 2B to the accompanying 

financial results, which describes the continuing economic 

and social disruption the Company is facing as a result of 

COVID-19 pandemic, and its possible consequential 

implications, if any, on the Company's operations and 

financial metrics, including the company's estimates of 

impairment of loans and that such estimates may be affected 

by the severity and duration of the pandemic. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2021. These matters were addressed in the context 

of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a 

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter 

below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter 

is provided in that context. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the 

key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have 

fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's 

responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial 

statements section of our report, including in relation to 

these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the 

performance of procedures designed to respond to our 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

standalone financial statements. The results of our audit 

procedures, including the procedures performed to address 

the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on 

the accompanying standalone financial statements.

Financial instruments, which include advances to 

customers, represents a significant portion of the total 

assets of the Company. The Company has advances 

aggregating ̀ 3,44,428.15 lakhs as at March 31, 2021.

As per the expected credit loss model of the Company 

developed in accordance with the principles set out in Ind-

AS 109 on Financial Instruments, the Company is required to 

estimate the probability of loss / expected loss based on 

past experience and future considerations.  This involves a 

Our audit procedures included the following:

§ We read and assessed the Company's impairment 

provisioning policy with reference to Ind-AS 109 and the 

provisioning framework approved by the Board of 

Directors as well as relevant regulatory guidelines and 

pronouncements.

§ For expected credit loss provision against outstanding 

exposures classified across various stages, we obtained 

an understanding of the Company's provisioning 

methodology (including factors that affect the probability

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

a)  Impairment for Financial Instruments based on expected credit loss model (Refer to note 2.1.5 to the standalone financial 

 statements)
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significant degree of estimation and judgements, including 

determination of staging of financial instruments; 

estimation of probability of defaults, loss given defaults, 

exposure at defaults; and forward-looking factors, micro- 

and macro-economic factors, in estimating the expected 

credit losses. 

Additionally, considering the evolving nature of the COVID-19 

pandemic, which has continued to impact the Company's 

business operations, resulting in higher loan losses, the 

Company has considered additional provision as 

management overlay as part of its ECL, to reflect among 

other things the increased risk of deterioration in macro-

economic factors. Given the unique nature of the pandemic 

and the extent of its economic impact which depends on 

future developments including governmental and regulatory 

measures and the Company's responses thereto, the actual 

credit loss can be different than that being estimated.

Due to the significance of the amounts involved, judgments 

involved in classification of loans, relative complexity of 

various assumptions and estimates used, uncertainties 

related to COVID-19 and determination of related provisions, 

this audit area is considered a key audit matter.

of default, loss given defaults and exposure at default; 

various forward looking, micro- and macro-economic 

factors), the underlying assumptions and the sufficiency 

of the data used by management, and tested the same on 

a sample basis. 

§ We performed tests of controls and details on a sample 

basis in respect of the staging of outstanding exposures, 

implementation of Company policy in response to 

COVID-19 and other relevant data used in impairment 

computations prepared by management as compared to 

the Company's policy.

§ Assessed the considerations applied by the management 

for staging of loans as Significant Increase in Credit Risk 

or default categories in view of COVID-19 pandemic.

§ We enquired with the management regarding significant 

judgments and estimates involved in the impairment 

computation and additional management overlay 

provision arising from the effects of the COVID-19 

pandemic, and evaluated the reasonableness thereof.

§ We tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of ECL 

provision performed by the Company in spreadsheets.

§ Assessed disclosures included in the standalone 

financial statements in respect of expected credit losses 

including the specific disclosures made with regard to 

the impact of COVID-19 on ECL estimation.

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

b)  IT Systems and controls

During the current year, as the IT systems and processes 

continue to mature in view of the evolving business and 

regulatory landscape, changes in the technology 

environment have been carried out by the Company. 

The Company made changes to its IT systems to give effect to 

the policy approved by its Board of Directors, in response to 

and as required by the COVID-19 Regulatory Package 

provided by RBI, including moratorium on instalments due 

on Loans  Implementation of the moratorium involves 

significant level of judgement, changes to IT systems, etc.

The IT infrastructure is critical for effective and efficient 

functioning of the Company's business operations as well as 

for timely and accurate financial reporting. Accordingly, the 

Company has continued to invest in its IT infrastructure in 

the current year as well. 

Due to the pervasive nature and complexity of the IT 

environment and considering that significant changes in key 

processes have been implemented in recent past, it is 

considered a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following, among others: 

§ We included specialized IT auditors as part of our audit 

team for testing IT general controls, application controls 

and IT dependent manual controls implemented by the 

Company, and testing the information produced by the 

Company's IT systems. 

§ We tested the design and operating effectiveness of the 

Company's IT access controls over the key information 

systems that are related to financial reporting. 

§ We tested IT general controls in the nature of controls 

over logical access, change management, and other 

aspects of IT operational controls. These included testing 

that requests for access to systems were reviewed and 

authorized. 

§ We considered the control environment relating to 

various interfaces, configuration and other application 

controls identified as key to our audit. 

§ In addition, we tested the key application controls with 

respect to financial reporting to evaluate their operating 

effectiveness. 

§ If deficiencies were identified, we tested compensating 

controls or performed alternate procedures.
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We have determined that there are no other key audit matters 

to communicate in our report.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other 

information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Annual Report, but does not 

include the standalone financial statements and our 

auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not 

cover the other information and we do not express any form 

of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial 

statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether such other 

information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 

work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information, we are required to 

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone 

Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the 

matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 

preparation of these standalone financial statements that 

give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 

performance including other comprehensive loss, cash flows 

and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 

the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under 

section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 

Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance 

of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the standalone financial statements that give 

a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, 

management is responsible for assessing the Company's 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 

has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing 

the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 

could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also:

§ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 

the standalone financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control. 

§ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 

the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) 

of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 

opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 

financial controls with reference to financial statements 

in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

§ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management. 

§ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of 

the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a 

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 

future events or conditions may cause the Company to 

cease to continue as a going concern. 

§ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 

of the standalone financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the standalone financial 

statements represent the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance 

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 

during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 

statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 

with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 

governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the standalone financial 

statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and are 

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 

our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public 

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse 

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 

2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of 

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, 

we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters 

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information 

and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the 

purposes of our audit;

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required 

by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books;

 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 

including the Statement of Other Comprehensive 

Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of 

Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the books of account;

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 

statements comply with the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 

2015, as amended;

 (e) On the basis of the written representations received 

from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the 

directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 

(2) of the Act;

 (f ) With respect to the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company with reference to these standalone 

financial statements and the operating effectiveness 

of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

“Annexure 2” to this report;

 (g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the 

year ended March 31, 2021 has been paid / provided 

by the Company to its directors in accordance with 

the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to 

the Act;

 (h) With respect to the other matters to be included in 

the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 

amended in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given 

to us:

i. The Standalone Financial Statements disclose 

the impact of pending litigations on its financial 

position of the Company (Refer Note 27 to the 

standalone financial statements);

 ii. The Company has made provision, as required 

under the applicable law or accounting 

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, 

on long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts – Refer Note 6 and Note 17 to the 

standalone financial statements; 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to 

be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Aniruddh Sankaran
Partner 

Membership No.: 211107

UDIN: 21211107AAAACC8433
Place: Chennai                                                                            
Date : June 24, 2021
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing 

full particulars, including quantitative details and 

situation of fixed assets.    

 (b) All property, plant and equipment have not been 

physically verified by the management during the year 

but there is a regular programme of verification which, 

in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size 

of the Company and the nature of its assets. No 

material discrepancies were noticed on such 

verification.

 (c) According to the information and explanations given 

by the management, the title deeds of immovable 

properties included in property, plant and equipment 

are held in the name of the company.

2.  The Company's business does not involve inventories 

and, accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(ii) 

of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

3. (a) The Company has granted loans its subsidiary, which is 

a company covered in the register maintained under 

section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion 

and according to the information and explanations 

given to us, the terms and conditions of the grant of 

such loans are not prejudicial to the company's interest.

 (b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment 

of interest has been stipulated for the loans granted 

and the repayment/receipts are regular.

 (c) There are no amounts of loans granted to companies, 

firms or other parties listed in the register maintained 

under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which 

are overdue for more than ninety days.

4.  In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, provisions of section 185 and 

186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to 

directors including entities in which they are interested 

and in respect of loans and advances given, investments 

made and, guarantees, and securities given have been 

complied with by the company.

5.  In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 

any deposits from the public during the year. 

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order 

are not applicable.

6. To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the 

Central Government has not specified the maintenance 

of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies 

Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

7. (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate 

authorities undisputed statutory dues including 

provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-

tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of 

excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess 

and other statutory dues applicable to it.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to 

us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 

provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-

tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, 

value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other 

statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a 

period of more than six months from the date they 

became payable.

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to 

us, there are no dues of income tax, sales-tax, service 

tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess 

which have not been deposited on account of any 

dispute.

8.  In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given by the management, the Company 

has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to 

a financial institution, bank or dues to debenture 

holders. The Company does not have any loan or 

borrowing from government. 

9. According to the information and explanations given by 

the management, the Company has not raised any 

money by way of initial public offer / further public 

offer / debt instruments. Term loans raised by the 

Company were applied for the purpose for which they 

were raised.

10.  Based upon the audit procedures performed for the 

purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the 

financial statements and according to the information 

and explanations given by the management, we report 

that no fraud by the company or no fraud / material fraud 

on the company by the officers and employees of the 

Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

11.  According to the information and explanations given by 

the management, the managerial remuneration has 

been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite 

approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 

read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

12.  In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. 

Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are 

not applicable to the Company and hence not 

commented upon.

Refer to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report of even date
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15.  According to the information and explanations given by 

the management, the Company has not entered into 

any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 

connected with him as referred to in section 192 of 

Companies Act, 2013.

16.  According to the information and explanations given to 

us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 1934, are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Aniruddh Sankaran

Partner 

Membership No.: 211107

UDIN: 21211107AAAACC8433

13.  According to the information and explanations given by 

the management, transactions with the related parties 

are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of 

Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details 

have been disclosed in the notes to the financial 

statements, as required by the applicable accounting 

standards.

14.  According to the information and explanations given to 

us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet, 

the company has not made any preferential allotment 

or private placement of shares or fully or partly 

convertible debentures during the year under review 

and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) 

are not applicable to the company and, not commented 

upon.

Place: Chennai                                                                            
Date : June 24, 2021
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF APTUS VALUE HOUSING FINANCE 
INDIA LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference 

to the standalone financial statements of Aptus Value Housing 

Finance India Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in 

conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial 

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial 

Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing 

and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the 

Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required 

under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 

internal financial controls with reference to these standalone 

financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 

audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified 

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

adequate internal financial controls with reference to these 

standalone financial statements was established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls with reference to these standalone financial 

statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 

internal financial controls included obtaining an understanding 

of internal financial controls with reference to these 

standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a 

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to 

these standalone financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference 

to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to these 

standalone financial statements is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 

financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 

internal financial control with reference to these standalone 

financial statements includes those policies and procedures 

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 

reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 

statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 

the company are being made only in accordance with 

authorisations of management and directors of the company; 

and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 

or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the company's assets that could have a 

material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With 

Reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 

controls with reference to these standalone financial 

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 

management override of controls, material misstatements 

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 

controls with reference to these standalone financial 

statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
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control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Aniruddh Sankaran

Partner 

Membership No.: 211107

UDIN: 21211107AAAACC8433

internal financial control with reference to these standalone 

financial statements may become inadequate because of 

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 

the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 

adequate internal financial controls with reference to these 

standalone financial statements and such internal financial 

controls with reference to these standalone financial 

statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, 

based on the internal control criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of internal 

Place: Chennai                                                                            
Date : June 24, 2021
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BALANCE SHEET As at March 31, 2021

Sr. Particulars
Note 
  No.

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

  ASSETS   

  1. Financial Assets   

   (a) Cash and cash equivalents 4  40,757.50   48,177.90 

   (b) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 5  969.45   11,660.44 

   (c)  Loans 6  3,43,135.00   2,74,067.38 

   (d)  Investments 7  20,466.06   15,138.29 

   (e)  Other Financial assets 8  990.74   264.06 

      Total Financial Assets 4,06,318.75   3,49,308.07   

     2. Non-Financial Assets

   (a) Deferred tax assets (Net) 9  1,490.01   1,089.55   

   (b) Property, plant and equipment 10A  248.17   326.71 

   (c)  Intangible assets 10B  26.78   35.35 

   (d)  Right-of-use assets 10C  680.69   647.65   

   (e)  Other non-financial assets 11  160.14   128.60 

      Total Non-Financial Assets  2,605.79   2,227.86  

  TOTAL ASSETS  4,08,924.54   3,51,535.93   

  LIABILITIES AND EQUITY   

   LIABILITIES   

  1. Financial Liabilities   

   (a)    Payables

         Trade Payables 28  

    (i)   total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and    -     -   

     small enterprises 

    (ii)   total outstanding dues of creditors other than   140.91   43.75

     micro enterprises and small enterprises    

    (b) Debt Securities 12  38,144.13   60,451.28 

   (c) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 13  1,78,592.76   1,21,865.32 

   (d) Lease liabilities 43  709.05   666.36   

   (e) Other financial liabilities 14  1,298.89   587.05 

    Total Financial Liabilities   2,18,885.74   1,83,613.76 

  2. Non-Financial Liabilities   

   (a) Current tax liabilities (Net) 15   343.30   526.68     

   (b) Provisions 16  330.18   252.43 

   (c) Other non-financial liabilities 17  255.71   168.55 

   Total Non-Financial Liabilities   929.19   947.66

  TOTAL LIABILITIES   2,19,814.93   1,84,561.42    

   3. EQUITY   

   (a) Equity Share capital 18  9,493.33   9,451.33 

   (b) Other Equity 19  1,79,616.28   1,57,523.18 

   Total Equity   1,89,109.61   1,66,974.51

  TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    4,08,924.54   3,51,535.93 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For For and on behalf of of S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP  Board of Directors  
Chartered Accountants   Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited
ICAI Firm Regn No.101049W/E300004  
    M Anandan    K M Mohandass
  Chairman & Managing Director   Director
    (DIN: 00033633)  (DIN: 00707839)
per Aniruddh Sankaran 
Partner P Balaji   Sanin Panicker     
Membership No: 211107   Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary
       Membership No: A32834    

Place : Chennai   Place : Chennai  
Date : June 24, 2021   Date : June 24, 2021
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS For the year ended on March 31, 2021

Sr. Particulars Note 
  No.

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 1. Revenue from operations   

  (a) Interest Income 20   52,408.40   42,157.63 

  (b) Net gain on fair value changes     75.22   290.28

  (c) Fees and commission income    982.54   1,051.23

  Total Revenue from operations    53,466.16   43,499.14 

 2. Other Income 21    1,688.07   2,005.22

 3. Total Income (1+2)    55,154.23   45,504.36 

 4. Expenses    

  (a) Finance costs 22  18,208.21   16,936.07 

  (b) Employee benefits expense 23  6,540.66   5,674.66 

  (c) Depreciation and amortisation expense 10D  567.08   579.30 

  (d) Impairment on financial instruments 24  493.62   266.31

  (e) Other expenses 25  1,460.25   1,302.13 

  Total Expenses   27,269.82   24,758.47

         

 .   5 Profit Before Tax (3-4)  27,884.41   20,745.89 

 6. Tax expense  26

  - Current tax    6,524.32   4,924.24 

  - Tax relating to previous years   (28.74)  58.86 

  - Deferred tax   (396.65)  (2,379.06)

  Income tax expense   6,098.93   2,604.04 

 7. Profit for the year (5-6)   21,785.48   18,141.85

 8. Other Comprehensive Income  

  (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  30.2  (15.04)  (15.35)  

   Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan 

  (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified    3.79   3.86

   to profit or loss   

  Other Comprehensive Income   (11.25)  (11.49)

 9. Total Comprehensive Income for the year (7+8)   21,774.23   18,130.36

 10. Earnings per share (Equity shares, par value `2 each - also Refer Note 44(i)):

  (a) Basic (in `) 35   4.54   4.10 

  (b) Diluted (in `) 35  4.53   4.08 

` in lakhs

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For For and on behalf of of S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP  Board of Directors  
Chartered Accountants   Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited
ICAI Firm Regn No.101049W/E300004  
    M Anandan    K M Mohandass
  Chairman & Managing Director   Director
    (DIN: 00033633)  (DIN: 00707839)
per Aniruddh Sankaran 
Partner P Balaji   Sanin Panicker     
Membership No: 211107   Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary
       Membership No: A32834    

Place : Chennai   Place : Chennai  
Date : June 24, 2021   Date : June 24, 2021
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT For the year ended on March 31, 2021

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

 Cash flows from operating activities    

 Profit before tax    27,884.41    20,745.89 

 Adjustments for:    

   Finance costs  18,208.21    16,936.07  

   Interest on fixed deposits with Banks  (1,439.21)   (1,646.52) 

   Net gain on changes in fair value  (75.22)   (290.28) 

   Depreciation and amortisation expense  567.08    579.30  

   Impairment on Financial Instruments  493.62    266.31  

   Financial guarantee commission  (38.25)   (26.89) 

   Share based payments to employees  4.62    19.21  

    17,720.85    15,837.20

 Operating profit before working capital changes   45,605.26    36,583.09  

 Movements in working capital:    

   (Increase) / Decrease in Loans  (69,565.75)   (69,034.64) 

   (Increase) / Decrease in Other financial assets  (726.68)   44.54  

   (Increase) / Decrease in Other non-financial assets  (18.89)   (36.44) 

   Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables  97.16    (190.19) 

   Increase / (Decrease) in Other financial liabilities  697.53    184.07  

   Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions  67.21    47.02  

   Increase / (Decrease) in Other non-financial liabilities  87.16   (69,362.26)  28.65   (68,956.99)

 Cash flow from / (used in) operations    (23,757.00)   (32,373.90)

 Finance cost paid   (18,361.22)   (16,512.88)

 Direct Taxes paid   (6,678.96)   (4,373.18)

 Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)   (48,797.18)   (53,259.96)

 Cash flows from investing activities    

 Capital expenditure on PP&E and intangible assets  (140.24)   (249.17) 

 Deposits placed with / (withdrawn from) banks, net  10,614.53    (11,032.16) 

 Investments in subsidiary  -      (6,048.00) 

 Interest received on bank deposits  1,515.67    1,425.19  

 Purchases of Investments  (22,252.28)   (104,797.00) 

 Redemption of Investments  17,000.41    104,924.91  

 Income received from investments  51.88    162.37 

 Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B)   6,789.97    (15,613.86)

 Cash flows from financing activities    

 Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including securities premium)  356.25    80,314.29  

 Share issue expenses  -      (381.50) 

 Repayment of debt securities  (22,500.00)   (10,000.00) 

 Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securities)  97,213.00    72,000.00  

 Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities)  (40,067.71)   (35,207.65) 

 Payment of lease liabilities  (342.72)   (235.09) 

 Interest paid on lease liabilities  (72.01)   (90.15) 

 Net cash flow from financing activities (C)   34,586.81    1,06,399.90 

 Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)   (7,420.40)   37,526.08 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   48,177.90    10,651.82 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 4)   40,757.50    48,177.90 

` in lakhs

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For For and on behalf of of S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP  Board of Directors  
Chartered Accountants   Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited
ICAI Firm Regn No.101049W/E300004  
    M Anandan    K M Mohandass
  Chairman & Managing Director   Director
    (DIN: 00033633)  (DIN: 00707839)
per Aniruddh Sankaran 
Partner P Balaji   Sanin Panicker     
Membership No: 211107   Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary
       Membership No: A32834    

Place : Chennai   Place : Chennai  
Date : June 24, 2021   Date : June 24, 2021
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited (“the Company”) 

was incorporated on December 11, 2009 with the primary 

objective of carrying on the business of providing long term 

housing finance to meet the housing needs of the low and 

middle-income segment in the country. The Company with 

CIN:U65922TN2009PLC073881, is a Public Limited Company 

domiciled in India. The Registered Office of the Company is 

located at No. 8B, Doshi Towers, 8th Floor, No:205, 

Poonamallee HighRoad, Kilpauk, Chennai 600010, Tamil 

Nadu. The Company is also engaged in providing loans for 

non-housing finance activities in the form of Loan Against 

Properties (“LAP”).

The Company received the certificate of registration from the 

National Housing Bank (“NHB”) on May 31, 2010 to commence 

the business of Housing Finance without accepting public 

deposits. The certificate of commencement of business was 

received from the Registrar of Companies on June 25, 2010.

The Company has a wholly owned subsidiary, Aptus 

Finance India Private Limited, which is a Non- Banking 

Finance Company registered with Reserve Bank of India 

(“RBI”) and engaged in the business providing finance in 

the form of loan against immovable properties. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 A.   Basis of preparation and presentation

 The standalone financial statements have been 

prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as per Section 133 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant amendment rules 

issued thereafter (“Ind AS”) on the historical cost basis 

except for certain financial assets and liabilities 

measured at fair value at the end of each reporting 

period, as explained in the accounting policies below, 

the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 

“Act”) and the guidelines issued by the RBI/NHB, to the 

extent applicable. These standalone financial statements 

have been prepared on a going concern basis.

 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 

and the Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared 

and presented in the format prescribed in the Division 

III of Schedule III to the Act. The Statement of Cash 

Flows has been prepared and presented as per the 

requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”.

 Amounts in the standalone financial statements are 

presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs rounded off to 

two decimal places as permitted by Schedule III to the 

Act, except when otherwise indicated.

 The standalone financial statements were approved 

for issue in accordance with a resolution of the 

directors on June 24, 2021.

 B. The Covid-19 pandemic continues to affect several 

countries across the world, including India. 

Consequent lockdowns and varying restrictions 

imposed by the government across several 

jurisdictions in which the Company operates, has led 

to significant disruptions and dislocations for 

individuals and businesses, impacting the Company's 

business operations, including lending and collection 

activities during the year ended March 31, 2021. In 

accordance with the Reserve bank of India (RBI) 

guidelines related to “Covid-19 regulatory package” 

dated March 27, 2020 and subsequent guidelines on 

EMI moratorium dated April 17, 2020 and May 23, 2020 

the Company had offered moratorium to its 

customers based the eligibility for EMIs falling due 

between March 1, 2020 to August 31, 2020. The impact 

of COVID-19 pandemic including the ongoing “second 

wave”, on Company's operations and financial metrics, 

including the company's estimates of impairment of 

loans will depend on the future developments, which 

are highly uncertain. Management continues to 

monitor the evolving situation on an ongoing basis 

and management has considered events up to the 

date of these financial statements, to determine the 

financial implications including in respect of Expected 

Credit Loss (“ECL”) provisioning. 

  As at March 31, 2021, the Company carries ECL provision 

on loans of `1,293.15 lakhs (`795.02 lakhs as at March 

31, 2020) including provisions towards management 

overlay, in accordance with Ind AS 109 requirements. 

Given the dynamic and evolving nature of pandemic, 

these estimates are subject to uncertainty caused by 

the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic and related events. 

C. Presentation of standalone financial statements

 The Company presents its balance sheet in order of 

liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement 

within 12 months after the reporting date (current) 

and more than 12 months after the reporting date 

(non–current) is presented in Note 38.

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally 

reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only 

offset and reported net when, in addition to having an 

unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the 

recognised amounts without being contingent on a 

future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net 

basis in the normal course of business, event of 

default or insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company 

and/or its counterparties.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

2.1  Financial Instruments 

2.1.1  Financial instruments – initial recognition

2.1.1.1 Date of recognition

 Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of 

loans, debt securities, and borrowings are initially 

recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the 

Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 

of the instrument. Loans are recognised when fund 

transfers are initiated to the customers' account or 

cheques for disbursement have been prepared by the 

Company (as per the terms of the agreement with the 

borrowers). The Company recognises debt securities 

and borrowings when funds reach the Company.

2.1.1.2 Initial measurement of financial instruments

  The classification of financial instruments at initial 

recognition depends on their contractual terms and 

the business model for managing the instruments. 

Financial instruments are initially measured at their 

fair value, except in the case of financial assets and 

financial liabilities recorded at Fair value through 

profit and loss (“FVTPL”), transaction costs are added 

to, or subtracted from, this amount. 

2.1.1.3 Measurement categories of financial assets and 

liabilities

  The Company classifies all of its financial assets based 

on the business model for managing the assets and 

the asset's contractual terms, measured at either 

amortised cost or FVTPL or Fair Value through Other 

Comprehensive Income (“FVOCI”). 

2.1.2  Financial assets and liabilities

2.1.2.1 Bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables and 

financial investments at amortised cost

  The Company measures bank balances, loans, and 

other financial investments at amortised cost if the 

financial asset is held within a business model with 

the objective to hold financial assets in order to 

collect contractual cash flows and the contractual 

terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 

dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of 

Principal and Interest (“SPPI”) on the principal 

amount outstanding.

  The details of these conditions are outlined below.

2.1.2.1.1 Business model assessment

  The Company determines its business model at the 

level that best reflects how it manages groups of 

financial assets to achieve its business objective. 

  The Company's business model is not assessed on an 

instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level 

of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable 

factors such as:

§ How the performance of the business model and 

the financial assets held within that business 

model are evaluated and reported to the entity's 

key management personnel

§ The risks that affect the performance of the 

business model (and the financial assets held 

within that business model) and, in particular, the 

way those risks are managed 

§ How managers of the business are compensated 

(for example, whether the compensation is based 

on the fair value of the assets managed or on the 

contractual cash flows collected)

§ The expected frequency, value and timing of sales 

are also important aspects of the Company's 

assessment

   The business model assessment is based on 

reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst 

case' or 'stress case' scenarios into account. If cash 

flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that 

is different from the Company's original expectations, 

the Company does not change the classification of the 

remaining financial assets held in that business 

model, but incorporates such information when 

assessing newly originated or newly purchased 

financial assets going forward.

2.1.2.1.2 The SPPI test

  As a second step of its classification process the 

Company assesses the contractual terms of financial 

to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

    'Principal' for the purpose of this test is defined as the 

fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition 

and may change over the life of the financial asset (for 

example, if there are repayments of principal or 

amortisation of the premium/discount). 

    The most significant elements of interest within a 

lending arrangement are typically the consideration 

for the time value of money and credit risk. To make 

the SPPI assessment, the Company applies judgement 

and considers relevant factors such as the currency in 

which the financial asset is denominated, and the 

period for which the interest rate is set. In contrast, 

contractual terms that introduce a more than de 

minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the 

contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic 

lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

   cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the 

financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.

2.1.2.1.3 Financial liabilities at amortised cost

  After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and 

borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 

recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are 

derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation 

process. 

  Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 

any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or 

costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 

amortisation is included as finance costs in the 

statement of profit and loss.

2.1.2.2 Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading

  The Company classifies financial assets as held for 

trading when they have been purchased or issued 

primarily for short-term profit making through trading 

activities or form part of a portfolio of financial 

instruments that are managed together, for which 

there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term 

profit making. Held-for-trading assets and liabilities 

are recorded and measured in the balance sheet at 

fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in net 

gain on fair value changes. Interest and dividend 

income or expense is recorded in net gain on fair 

value changes according to the terms of the contract, 

or when the right to payment has been established.

2.1.2.3 Equity instruments at FVOCI

  The Company subsequently measures all equity 

investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless 

the Company's management has elected to classify 

irrevocably some of its equity investments as equity 

instruments at FVOCI, when such instruments meet 

the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 Financial 

Instruments: Presentation and are not held for 

trading. Such classification is determined on an 

instrument-by-instrument basis.

  Gains and losses on these equity instruments are 

never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are 

recognised in profit or loss as dividend income when 

the right of the payment has been established, except 

when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a 

recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which 

case, such gains are recorded in Other Comprehensive 

Income(“OCI”). Equity instruments at FVOCI are not 

subject to an impairment assessment.

2.1.2.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss 

  Financial assets and financial liabilities in this 

category are those that are not held for trading and 

have been either designated by management upon 

initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be 

measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Financial 

assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in 

the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value 

are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of 

movements in fair value of liabilities designated at 

FVTPL due to changes in the Company's own credit 

risk. Such changes in fair value are recorded in the 

Own credit reserve through OCI and do not get 

recycled to the profit or loss. Interest earned or 

incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is 

accrued in interest income or finance cost, 

respectively, using the EIR, taking into account any 

discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs 

being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned 

on assets mandatorily required to be measured at 

FVTPL is recorded using contractual interest rate.

2.1.3 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

  The Company does not reclassify its financial assets 

subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the 

exceptional circumstances in which the Company 

acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. 

Financial liabilities are never reclassified. 

2.1.4 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

2.1.4.1 Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial 

modification of terms and conditions 

  The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a 

loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions 

have been renegotiated to the extent that, 

substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the 

difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, 

to the extent that an impairment loss has not already 

been recorded. The newly recognised loans are 

classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes 

unless they are deemed to pass through OCI. When 

assessing whether or not to derecognise a loan to a 

customer, amongst others, the Company considers 

the following factors: Change in counterparty. If the 

modification is such that the instrument would no 

longer meet the SPPI criterion. If the modification 

does not result in cash flows that are substantially 

different, the modification does not result in 

derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows 

discounted at the original EIR, the Company records a 

modification gain or loss, to the extent that an 

impairment loss has not already been recorded.
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2.1.4.2 Derecognition of financial assets other than due to 

substantial modification

  A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to 

receive cash flows from the financial asset have 

expired. The Company also derecognises the financial 

asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and 

the transfer qualifies for derecognition. 

  A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either, the 

Company has transferred substantially all the risks 

and rewards of the asset or has neither transferred 

nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

Control is considered to be transferred if and only if, 

the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset 

in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to 

exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing 

additional restrictions on the transfer. 

  When the Company has neither transferred nor 

retained substantially all the risks and rewards and 

has retained control of the asset, the asset continues 

to be recognised only to the extent of the Company's 

continuing involvement, in which case, the Company 

also recognises an associated liability. The transferred 

asset and the associated liability are measured on a 

basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the 

Company has retained. 

  Continuing involvement that takes the form of a 

guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at 

the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset 

and the maximum amount of consideration the 

Company could be required to pay. 

  In case when transfer of a part of financial asset 

qualifies for derecognition, any difference between 

the proceeds received on such sale and the carrying 

value of the transferred asset is derecognised as a 

gain or loss on decrease of such financial asset.

2.1.4.3 Financial liabilities

  A financial liability is derecognised when the 

obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled 

or expires. Where an existing financial liability is 

replaced by another from the same lender on 

substantially different terms, or the terms of an 

existing liability are substantially modified, such an 

exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition 

of the original liability and the recognition of a new 

liability. The difference between the carrying value of 

the original financial liability and the consideration 

paid is recognised in profit or loss.

  Offsetting of financial instruments

  Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and 

the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if 

there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 

recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle 

on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the 

liabilities simultaneously.

2.1.5 Impairment of financial assets

2.1.5.1 Overview of the ECL principles

  The Company records allowance for expected credit 

losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not 

held at FVTPL, together with loan commitments, in this 

section all referred to as 'financial instruments'. Equity 

instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind 

AS 109.

  The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses 

expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime 

expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been 

no significant increase in credit risk since origination, 

in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 

months' expected credit loss (12mECL).

  The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the 

ECLs that result from default events on a financial 

instrument that are possible within the 12 months 

after the reporting date.

  Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on either an 

individual basis or a collective basis, depending on 

the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial 

instruments.

  The Company has established a policy to perform an 

assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of 

whether a financial instrument's credit risk has 

increased significantly since initial recognition, by 

considering the change in the risk of default occurring 

over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

  Based on the above process, the Company categorises 

its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described 

below:

  Stage 1:

  When loans are first recognised, the Company 

recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs. Stage 1 

loans also include facilities where the credit risk has 

improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

  Stage 2:

  When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit 

risk since origination, the Company records an 

allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include 

facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the 

loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.
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  Stage 3:

  Loans considered credit-impaired. The Company 

records an allowance for the LTECLs.

  Staging rules set have been applied to the product 

categories to bucket them into either Stage 1, Stage 2 

or Stage 3.

Stages

 Stage 1 Upto 30 days 12 month ECL

 Stage 2 31 upto 90 days Lifetime ECL

 Stage 3 90 days and above Lifetime ECL

Days past dues ECL

  In addition to days past due, the Company also 

considers other qualitative factors in determining 

significant increase in credit risks since origination. 

2.1.5.2 The calculation of ECLs

  The Company calculates ECLs to measure the expected 

cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the 

EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash 

flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the 

contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to 

receive. 

  The key elements of the ECL are summarised below:

  PD:

  The Probability of Default is an estimate of the 

likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A 

default may only happen at a certain time over the 

assessed period, if the facility has not been previously 

derecognised and is still in the portfolio. 

  EAD:

  The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure 

at a future default date (in case of Stage 1 and Stage 2), 

taking into account expected changes in the exposure 

after the reporting date, including repayments of 

principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract 

or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed 

facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments. 

In case of Stage 3 loans EAD represents exposure 

when the default occurred.

  LGD:

  The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising 

in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is 

based on the difference between the contractual cash 

flows due and those that the lender would expect to 

receive, including from the realisation of any 

collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of 

the EAD.

  Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and 

disclosed separately from modification losses or 

gains that are accounted for as an adjustment of the 

financial asset's gross carrying value

  The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised 

below:

  Stage 1:

  The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that 

represent the ECLs that result from default events on a 

financial instrument that are possible within the 12 

months after the reporting date. The Company 

calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the 

expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months 

following the reporting date. These expected 12-

month default probabilities are applied to a forecast 

EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD and 

discounted by an approximation to the original EIR. 

  Stage 2:

  When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit 

risk since origination, the Company records an 

allowance for the LTECLs PDs and LGDs are estimated 

over the lifetime of the instrument. The expected cash 

shortfalls are discounted by an approximation to the 

original EIR.

  Significant increase in credit risk

  The Company monitors all financial assets that are 

subject to the impairment requirements to assess 

whether there has been a significant increase in credit 

risk since initial recognition. If there has been a 

significant increase in credit risk the Company will 

measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather 

than 12mECLs. 

  In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial 

instrument has increased significantly since initial 

recognition, the Company compares the risk of a 

default occurring on the financial instrument at the 

reporting date based on the remaining maturity of the 

instrument with the risk of a default occurring that 

was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the 

current reporting date when the financial instrument 

was first recognised. In making this assessment, the 

Company considers both quantitative and qualitative 

information that is reasonable and supportable, 

including historical experience and forward-looking 

information that is available without undue cost or 

effort, based on the Company's historical experience 

and expert credit assessment including forward-

looking information.
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  Stage 3:

  For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company 

recognises the lifetime expected credit losses for 

these loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 

assets, with the PD set at 100%.

  Credit-impaired financial assets

  A financial asset is 'credit-impaired' when one or more 

events that have a detrimental impact on the 

estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have 

occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are 

referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit-

impairment includes observable data about the 

following events:

4 significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

4 a breach of contract such as a default or past due 

 event;

4 the lender of the borrower, for economic or 

contractual reasons relating to the borrower's 

financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower 

a concession that the lender would not otherwise 

consider;

4 the disappearance of an active market for a 

security because of financial difficulties; or

4 the purchase of a financial asset at a deep 

discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

  It may not be possible to identify a single discrete 

event-instead, the combined effect of several events 

may have caused financial assets to become credit-

impaired. The Company assesses whether debt 

instruments that are financial assets measured at 

amortised cost are credit-impaired at each reporting 

date. 

  A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession 

is granted to the borrower due to a deterioration in the 

borrower's financial condition, unless there is evidence 

that as a result of granting the concession the risk of not 

receiving the contractual cash flows has reduced 

significantly and there are no other indicators of 

impairment. For financial assets where concessions are 

contemplated but not granted the asset is deemed 

credit impaired when there is observable evidence of 

credit-impairment including meeting the definition of 

default. The definition of default includes unlikeliness 

to pay indicators and a back- stop if amounts are 

overdue for 90 days or more.

  Loan commitment:

  When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, 

the Company estimates the expected portion of the 

loan commitment that will be drawn down over its

  expected life. The ECL is then based on the present value 

of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is 

drawn down. The expected cash shortfalls are 

discounted at an approximation to the expected EIR on 

the loan. For an undrawn loan commitment, ECLs are 

calculated and presented under provisions.

  Forward looking information

  In its ECL models, the Company relies on a broad range 

of forward-looking information as economic inputs. 

The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may 

not always capture all characteristics of the market at 

the date of the financial statements. To reflect this, 

qualitative adjustments or overlays are made as 

temporary adjustments.

  Estimates and associated assumptions applied in 

preparing the financial statements, especially for the 

expected credit loss on advances, are based on 

historical experience and other emerging/forward 

looking factors including those arising on account of 

the COVID-19 pandemic. The Company has used early 

indicators of moratorium and delayed payment 

metrics observed along with an estimation of 

potential stress on probability of defaults and 

exposure at default due to COVID-19 situation in 

developing the estimates and assumptions to assess 

the expected credit loss on loans.

2.1.5.3 Write-off

  Loans and debt securities are written off when the 

Company has no reasonable expectations of 

recovering the financial asset (either in its entirety or 

a portion of it). This is the case when the Company 

determines that the borrower does not have assets or 

sources of income that could generate sufficient cash 

flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A 

write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The 

Company may apply enforcement activities to 

financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting from 

the Company's enforcement activities will result in 

impairment gains.Any subsequent recoveries are 

credited to impairment on financial instruments in 

the statement of profit and loss.

2.1.6 Financial Guarantee contracts

  A financial guarantee contract is a contract that 

requires the issuer to make specified payments to 

reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a 

specified debtor fails to make payments when due in 

accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

  Financial guarantee contracts issued by an entity are 

initially measured at their fair values and, are 

subsequently measured at the higher of:
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4 the amount of loss allowance determined in 

accordance with impairment requirements of Ind 

AS 109;

4 the amount initially recognised less, when 

appropriate, the cumulative amount of income 

recognised.

2.2 Recognition of Interest Income

2.2.1 The effective interest rate method

  Interest income is recorded using the effective interest 

rate (“EIR”) method for all financial instruments 

measured at amortised cost, debtinstrument measured 

at FVOCI and debt instruments designated at FVTPL. The 

effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly 

discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial 

instrument through the expected life of the financial 

instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to 

the net carrying amount of the financial asset or 

financial liability.

2.2.2 Interest Income

  The Company calculates interest income by applying 

the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial 

assets other than credit-impaired assets 

  When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and 

is, therefore, regarded as 'Stage 3', the Company 

calculates interest income by applying the effective 

interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial 

asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer 

credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating 

interest income on a gross basis.

2.2.3 Fees and commission Income

  Fees and commission Income include fees other than 

those that are an integral part of EIR. The fees 

included in this part of the Company's statement of 

profit or loss include among other things fees charged 

for servicing a loan including cheque bounce charges, 

field visit charges, pre-closure charges etc. when there 

is no uncertainty on ultimate collection.

2.2.4 Dividend Income 

  Dividend income (including from FVOCI investments) 

is recognised when the Company's right to receive the 

payment is established, it is probable that the 

economic benefits associated with the dividend will 

flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can 

be measured reliably. This is generally when the 

shareholders approve the dividend.

2.3 Leases

  The Company's Right-of-Use (“ROU”) assets consist of 

leases for buildings. The Company assesses whether a 

contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. 

  A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract 

conveys the right to control the use of an identified 

asset for a period of time in exchange for 

consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys 

the right to control the use of an identified asset, the 

Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves 

the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has 

substantially all of the economic benefits from the use 

of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the 

Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

  At the date of commencement of the lease, the 

Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a 

corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements 

in which it is a lessee, except for short-term leases and 

low value leases. The Company applies the short-term 

lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of 

buildings (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 

months or less from the commencement date and do 

not contain a purchase option).Lease payments on 

short-term leases and leases of low value assets are 

recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the 

lease term.

  i)  Right-of-use assets

  The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the 

commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 

underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use 

assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated 

depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for 

any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-

of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities 

recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease 

payments made at or before the commencement date 

less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets 

are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter 

of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the 

assets.

  ii)  Lease liabilities

  At the commencement date of the lease, the Company 

recognises lease liabilities measured at the present 

value of lease payments to be made over the lease 

term. The lease payments include fixed payments 

(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease 

incentives receivable, variable lease payments that 

depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected 

to be paid under residual value guarantees.

  In calculating the present value of lease payments, the 

Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the 

lease commencement date because the interest rate 

implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After 

the commencement date, the amount of lease 

liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of 

interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
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  In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is 

remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the 

lease term, a change in the lease payments or a 

change in the assessment of an option to purchase 

the underlying asset.

2.4 Employee benefits

  Post-employment benefits and termination benefits

  Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit 

plans are recognised as an expense when employees 

have rendered service entitling them to the 

contributions.

  For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost 

of providing benefits is determined using the 

projected unit credit method, with actuarial 

valuations being carried out at the end of each annual 

reporting period. Remeasurement of actuarial gains 

and losses is reflected immediately in the balance 

sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other 

comprehensive income in the period in which they 

occur.  Remeasurement recognised in other 

comprehensive income is reflected immediately in 

retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or 

loss. Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss 

on the earlier of:

  (i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, 

 and

  (ii) The date that the Company recognises related 

 restructuring costs

  Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate 

to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined 

benefit costs are categorised as follows:

4  service cost (including current service cost, past 

 service cost, as well as gains and losses on 

 curtailments and settlements);

4  interest expense; and

4  remeasurement

  The Company presents the first two components of 

defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 

'Employee benefits expense'. Curtailment gains and 

losses are accounted for as past service costs.

  Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and 

losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding 

amounts included in net interest on the net defined 

benefit liability and the return on plan assets 

(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 

defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately 

in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or 

  credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period 

in which they occur. Remeasurements are not 

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

  A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the 

earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the 

offer of the termination benefit and when the entity 

recognises any related restructuring costs.

  Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

  A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to 

employees in respect of wages and salaries in the 

period the related service is rendered at the 

undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be 

paid in exchange for that service.

  Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term 

employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted 

amount of the benefits expected to be paid in 

exchange for the related service.

  Liabilities recognised in respect of leave encashment 

and other long-term employee benefits are measured 

at the present value of the estimated future cash 

outflows expected to be made by the company in 

respect of services provided by employees up to the 

reporting date. The Company records the leave 

encashment liability based on actuarial valuation 

computed using projected unit credit method.

  Share-based payments

  Stock options are granted to the employees under the 

stock option scheme. The costs of stock options 

granted to the employees (equity-settled awards) of 

the Company are measured at the fair value of the 

equity instruments granted. For each stock option, the 

measurement of fair value is performed on the grant 

date. The grant date is the date on which the Company 

and the employees agree to the stock option scheme. 

The fair value so determined is revised only if the 

stock option scheme is modified in a manner that is 

beneficial to the employees. 

  This cost is recognised, together with a corresponding 

increase in Employee Stock Options Reserve in equity, 

over the period in which the performance and/or 

service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits 

expense. The cumulative expense recognised for 

equity-settled transactions at each reporting date 

until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the 

vesting period has expired and the Company's best 

estimate of the number of equity instruments that will 

ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss 

expense or credit for a period represents the 

movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the 
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  beginning and end of that period and is recognised in 

employee benefits expense. 

  The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected 

as additional share dilution in the computation of 

diluted earnings per share. 

  If the options vests in instalments (i.e. the options vest 

pro rata over the service period), then each instalment 

is treated as a separate share option grant because 

each instalment has a different vesting period.

2.5  Taxes

  Income tax expense represents the sum of the current 

tax and deferred tax.

  Current tax

  Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and 

prior years are measured at the amount expected to 

be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities. 

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the 

amount are those that are enacted, or substantively 

enacted, by the reporting date in the countries where 

the Company operates and generates taxable income.

  Current income tax relating to items recognised outside 

profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either 

in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current 

tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 

transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in 

the tax returns with respect to situations in which 

applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation 

and establishes provisions where appropriate.

  Deferred tax

  Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at 

the reporting date between the tax bases of assets 

and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 

reporting purposes. 

  Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable 

temporary differences, except:

4 In respect of taxable temporary differences associated 

with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of 

the reversal of the temporary differences can be 

controlled and it is probable that the temporary 

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 

temporary differences, the carry forward of unused 

tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax 

assets are recognised to the extent that it is 

probable that taxable profit will be available against 

which the deductible temporary differences, and 

the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused 

tax losses can be utilised, except:

4 When the deferred tax asset relating to the 

deductible temporary difference arises from the 

initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 

transaction that is not a business combination 

and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither 

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

4 In respect of deductible temporary differences 

associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred 

tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is 

probable that the temporary differences will reverse 

in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be 

available against which the temporary differences can 

be utilised.

   The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is 

reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to 

the extent that it is no longer probable that 

sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow 

all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. 

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed 

at each reporting date and are recognised to the 

extent that it has become probable that future 

taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to 

be recovered.

   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at 

the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year 

when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, 

based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 

date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised 

outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit 

or loss (either in other comprehensive income or 

in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in 

correlation to the underlying transaction either in 

OCI or directly in equity.

   Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are 

offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 

current tax assets against current tax liabilities 

and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable 

entity and the same taxation authority.

   When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial 

recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a 

transaction that is not a business combination, at 

the time of the transaction, affects neither the 

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (“PP&E”) and 

intangible assets

  PP&E is stated at cost excluding the costs of 

day–to–day servicing, less accumulated depreciation 

and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the 

expected useful life are accounted for by changing the
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  amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, 

and treated as changes in accounting estimates. 

Depreciation on the following categories of PP&E(other 

than Freehold Land) has been provided on the straight-

line method, the useful lives of which have been 

assessed as under, based on technical assessment, 

taking into account the nature of the asset, the 

estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions 

of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated 

technological changes, manufacturers warranties and 

maintenance support, etc. 

Particulars

 Office Equipment 3 years 5 years

 Servers (under office  3 years 6 years

 equipment)

 Furniture and Fixtures 3 years 10 years

 Vehicles 3 years 8 years
 Leasehold  Primary lease  Not 
 improvements period or  applicable
  3 years, 
  whichever 
  is lower

Estimated 
Life

Life as per 
Schedule II

  Freehold Land is not depreciated, but is subjected to 

impairment assessment. The residual values, useful 

lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant 

and equipment are reviewed at each financial year 

end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

  An item of PP&E is derecognised upon disposal or 

when no future economic benefits are expected to 

arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or 

loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of 

property, plant and equipment is determined as the 

difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying 

amount of the asset and is recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss.

  Intangible Assets

  The Company's intangible assets represent computer 

software.

  An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can 

be measured reliably and it is probable that the 

expected future economic benefits that are attributable 

to it will flow to the Company.

  Intangible assets acquired separately are measured 

on initial recognition at cost. Subsequently, they are 

carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and 

impairment losses if any, and are amortised over their 

estimated useful life on the straight-line basis over a 

3-year period or the license period whichever is lower.

  The carrying amount of the assets is reviewed at each 

Balance sheet date to ascertain impairment based on 

internal or external factors.

  The amortisation period and the amortisation method 

for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are 

reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

  An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal 

(i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when 

no future economic benefits are expected from its use 

or disposal .  Any gain or loss arising upon 

derecognition of the asset (calculated as the 

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 

carrying amount of the asset) is included in the 

statement of profit and loss when the asset is 

derecognised.

2.7  Impairment of non-financial assets

  The Company assesses, at each reporting date, 

whether there is an indication that an asset may be 

impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 

impairment testing for an asset is required, the 

Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. 

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an 

asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less 

costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable 

amount is determined for an individual asset, unless 

the asset does not generate cash inflows that are 

largely independent of those from other assets or 

groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an 

asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the 

asset is considered impaired and is written down to its 

recoverable amount.

  In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 

flows are discounted to their present value using a 

pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 

assessments of the time value of money and the risks 

specific to the asset. In determining fair value less 

costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 

taken into account. If no such transactions can be 

identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. 

These calculations are corroborated by valuation 

multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded 

companies or other available fair value indicators.

  The Company bases its impairment calculation on 

detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are 

prepared separately for each of the Company's CGUs 

to which the individual assets are allocated. These 

budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a 

period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term 

growth rate is calculated and applied to project future 

cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow 
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  projections beyond periods covered by the most 

recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates 

cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or 

declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an 

increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this 

growth rate does not exceed the long-term average 

growth rate for the products, industries, or country or 

countries in which the entity operates, or for the 

market in which the asset is used.

  Impairment losses of continuing operations, are 

recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

  For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made 

at each reporting date to determine whether there is 

an indication that previously recognised impairment 

losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such 

indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's 

or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised 

impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a 

change in the assumptions used to determine the 

asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment 

loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the 

carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its 

recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount 

that would have been determined, net of depreciation, 

had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset 

in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the 

statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried 

at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is 

treated as a revaluation increase.

2.8 Provisions

  Provisions are recognised when the Company has a 

present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 

a past event, it is probable that the Company will be 

required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

  The amount recognised as a provision is the best 

estimate of the consideration required to settle the 

present obligation at the end of the reporting period, 

taking into account the risks and uncertainties 

surrounding the obligation. When a provision is 

measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the 

present obligation, its carrying amount is the present 

value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time 

value of money is material, provisions are discounted 

using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 

appropriate, the risks specific to the liability). When 

discounting is used, the increase in the provision due 

to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

  When some or all of the economic benefits required to 

settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

  third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is 

virtually certain that reimbursement will be received, 

and the amount of the receivable can be measured 

reliably. The expense relating to a provision is 

presented in the statement of profit and loss net of 

any reimbursement.

2.9 Cash flow statement 

  Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, 

whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the 

effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any 

deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or 

payments. 

2.9.1 Cash and cash equivalents 

  Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits 

with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances 

(with an original maturity of three months or less from 

the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that 

are readily convertible into known amounts of cash 

and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes 

in value. 

2.10  Earnings per share (“EPS”)

  Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the 

profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average 

number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing  

the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, 

interest and other charges to expense or income (net 

of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive 

potential equity shares, by the weighted average 

number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 

earnings per share and the weighted average number 

of equity shares which could have been issued on the 

conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only 

if their conversion to equity shares would decrease 

the net profit per share from continuing ordinary 

operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are 

deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the 

period, unless they have been issued at a later date. 

The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the 

proceeds receivable had the shares been actually 

issued at fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are 

determined independently for each period presented. 

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive 

equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse 

share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate(Refer 

Note 34). Partly paid equity shares are treated as a 

fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are 

entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully 

paid equity share during the reporting period.
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2.11 Segment Reporting

  Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that public 

business enterprises report information about 

operating segments and related disclosures about 

products and services, geographic areas, and major 

customers. Based on the 'management approach' as 

defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision 

Maker (“CODM”) evaluates the Company's performance 

based on an analysis of various performance indicators 

by business segments and geographic segments.

  As per the requirements of Ind AS 108 'Operating 

Segments', based on evaluation of financial information 

for allocation of resources and assessing performance, 

the Company has identified a single segment, viz. 

"providing long term housing finance, loans against 

property and refinance loans". Accordingly, there are no 

separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108.

2.12 Determination of Fair value

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 

asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the 

measurement date. The fair value measurement is 

based on the presumption that the transaction to sell 

the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

4 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

4 In the absence of a principal market, in the most 

advantageous market for the asset or liability

  The principal or the most advantageous market must 

be accessible by the Company.

  The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using 

the assumptions that market participants would use 

when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 

participants act in their economic best interest.

  A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes 

into account a market participant's ability to generate 

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 

best use or by selling it to another market participant 

that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

  The Company uses valuation techniques that are 

appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 

maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

  In order to show how fair values have been derived, 

financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy 

of valuation techniques, as summarised below: 

4 Level 1 financial instruments − Those where the 

inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted 

quoted prices from active markets for identical 

assets or liabilities that the Company has access to 

at the measurement date. The Company considers 

markets as active only if there are sufficient 

trading activities with regards to the volume and 

liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and 

when there are binding and exercisable price 

quotes available on the balance sheet date.

4 Level 2 financial instruments − Those where the 

inputs that are used for valuation and are 

significant, are derived from directly or indirectly 

observable market data available over the entire 

period of the instrument's life. Such inputs include 

quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in 

active markets, quoted prices for identical 

instruments in inactive markets and observable 

inputs other than quoted prices such as interest 

rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and 

credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may be 

required for the condition or location of the asset 

or the extent to which it relates to items that are 

comparable to the valued instrument. However, if 

such adjustments are based on unobservable 

inputs which are significant to the entire 

measurement, the Company will classify the 

instruments as Level 3.

4 Level 3 financial instruments −Those that include 

one or more unobservable input that is significant 

to the measurement as whole.

  For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the 

financial statements on a recurring basis, the 

Company determines whether transfers have 

occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level 

input that is significant to the fair value measurement 

as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

  The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting 

period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and 

reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the 

facts at the end of the reporting period.

3.  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and 

assumptions

  The preparation of the Company's financial statements 

requires management to make judgements, estimates 

and assumptions that affect the reported amount of 

revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the 

accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of 

contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these 

assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes 

that require a material adjustment to the carrying 

amount of assets or liabilities affected in future period.
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  In the process of applying the Company's accounting 

policies, management has made the following 

judgements / estimates, which have a significant risk 

of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 

financial year.

3.1   De-recognition of Financial instruments

  The Company enters into securitisation transactions 

where financial assets are transferred to a structured 

entity for a consideration. The financial assets 

transferred qualify for derecognition only when 

substantial risk and rewards are transferred. 

  This assessment includes judgements reflecting all 

relevant evidence including the past performance of 

the assets transferred and credit risk that the 

Company has been exposed to. Based on this 

assessment, the Company believes that the credit 

enhancement provided pursuant to the transfer of 

financial assets under securitisation are higher than 

the loss incurred on the similar portfolios of the 

Company hence it has been concluded that 

securitisation transactions entered by the Company 

does not qualify for de-recognition since substantial 

risk and rewards of the ownership has not been 

transferred. The transactions are treated as financing 

arrangements and the sale consideration received is 

treated as borrowings.

3.2  Fair value of financial instruments

  The fair value of financial instruments is the price that 

would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 

liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or 

most advantageous) market at the measurement date 

under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) 

regardless of whether that price is directly observable 

or estimated using another valuation technique. 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial 

liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be 

derived from active markets, they are determined 

using a variety of valuation techniques that include 

the use of valuation models. The inputs to these 

models are taken from observable markets where 

possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is 

required in establishing fair values. Judgements and 

estimates include considerations of liquidity and 

model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both 

own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, 

correlation and volatility. For further details about 

determination of fair value please see Fair value note 

in Accounting policy.

3.3  Impairment of financial asset

  The measurement of impairment losses across all 

categories of financial assets requires judgement, in 

particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of 

future cash flows and collateral values when 

determining impairment losses and the assessment 

of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates 

are driven by a number of factors, changes in which 

can result in different levels of allowances.

  The Company's ECL calculations are outputs of complex 

models with a number of underlying assumptions 

regarding the choice of variable inputs and their 

interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that 

are considered accounting estimates include:

4 The Company's criteria for assessing if there has 

been a significant increase in credit risk and so 

allowances for financial assets should be 

measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative 

assessment

4 The segmentation of financial assets when their 

ECL is assessed on a collective basis

4 Development of ECL models, including the various 

formulas and the choice of inputs

4 Determination of temporary adjustments as 

qualitative adjustment or overlays based on broad 

range of forward looking information as economic 

inputs

  It has been the Company's policy to regularly review its 

models in the context of actual loss experience and 

adjust when necessary.

3.4  Provisions and other contingent liabilities

  When the Company can reliably measure the outflow 

of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and 

considers such outflows to be probable, the Company 

records a provision against the case. Contingent 

liabilities are disclosed in respect of matters that are 

either possible obligations whose existence will be 

confirmed only by future uncertain events outside the 

control of the Company, or are present obligations 

where the outflow of economic resources may not be 

probable or cannot be measured reliably.

  Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining 

the probability and amount of losses, the Company 

takes into account a number of factors including legal 

advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence 

from similar incidents. Significant judgement is 

required to conclude on these estimates.
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As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Cash on hand   156.28   88.55 

 Balances with banks - In current accounts  29,498.36   36,086.64 

 Balances with banks - In deposit accounts - Original maturity less than 3 months  11,102.86   12,002.71

 Total     40,757.50   48,177.90

Note: 4 Cash & Cash Equivalents

` in lakhs

Particulars

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 In deposit accounts - Original maturity more than 3 months  670.79   11,326.31 

 Balances held as margin money against securitisation  298.66   334.13

 Total      969.45   11,660.44

Note: 5 Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents

` in lakhs

Particulars

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Secured Term loans carried at amortised cost  3,44,428.15   2,74,862.40 

 Total Term loans (gross) 3,44,428.15   2,74,862.40

  Impairment loss allowance   (1,293.15)  (795.02)Less:

 Total Term loans (net)    3,43,135.00   2,74,067.38

Note: 6 Loans

` in lakhs

Particulars

Notes:   

 (i)  All term loans are originated in India  

 (ii) Term Loans include an amount of ̀ 1,800.00 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - ̀ 5,100.00 lakhs) given to Subsidiary. The loan is secured by 

book debts of Subsidiary.  

 (iii) Term Loans (other than (ii) above) are secured by deposit of original title deeds of immovable properties with the Company 

and/or registered mortgage of title deeds.  

 (iv) The Company has securitised certain term loans and managed servicing of such loan accounts. The balance outstanding in 

the pool, as at the reporting date is ̀ 55.54 lakhs (March 31, 2020: ̀ 302.52 lakhs). The carrying value of these assets have been 

de-recognised in the books of the Company.  

 (v)  There are no outstanding loan to Public Institution.  

 (vi) Term loans do not include any loans given to employees of the Company.  

 (vii) Debt securities and borrowings (other than debt securities) of the Company are secured by hypothecation of specified term 

loans (refer note 12 and 13).
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

Note: 7 Investments

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 At fair value through profit and loss    

 Quoted: Investment in Mutual Funds  5,275.22   -   

 At amortised cost 

 Investment in Subsidiary  15,190.84   15,138.29 

 10,08,00,000 Equity shares (March 31, 2020 - 10,08,00,000 Equity shares) of 

 Face Value `10 each fully paid up    

 Total     20,466.06   15,138.29

` in lakhs

Particulars

The investment includes fair value of the corporate guarantee given to Aptus Finance India Private Limited amounting to `142.84 
lakhs (March 31, 2020 - ̀ 90.29 lakhs).

Note 7.2 - Movement in investments (Investments measured at Amortised cost)

Note: 7.1 - Internal rating grade (Investments measured at Amortised cost)

 Low Risk   15,190.84   -     -     15,190.84 

 Medium Risk   -     -     -     -   

 High Risk   -     -     -     -   

  Total  15,190.84   -     -     15,190.84

 15,138.29   -     -     15,138.29 

  -     -     -     -   

  -     -     -     -   

  15,138.29   -     -     15,138.29 

Grade
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

` in lakhs

  Opening balance as at April 01, 2019  15,048.00   -     -     15,048.00 

 New assets purchased  90.29   -     -     90.29 

 Assets redeemed  -     -     -     -   

 Assets derecognized or written off  -     -     -     -   

 Transfer to stages  -     -     -     -   

 Closing balance as at March 31, 2020  15,138.29   -     -     15,138.29 

 New assets purchased  52.55   -     -     52.55 

 Assets redeemed  -     -     -     -   

 Assets derecognized or written off  -     -     -     -   

 Transfer to stages  -     -     -     -   

 Closing balance as at March 31, 2021  15,190.84   -     -     15,190.84

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

` in lakhs

Note: 8 Other Financial assets

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

Particulars

   Considered Good, Unsecured - At Amortised Cost

 Security deposits  264.08   237.05 

 Loans and advances to employees   0.28   0.28 

 Accrued Income  118.60   16.11 

 Receivable on securitised assets  5.08   10.62 

 Ex-gratia receivable 602.70   - 

 Total 990.74   264.06
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

Note: 9 Deferred tax assets (Net)

` in lakhs

Components of deferred tax asset / (liability)

 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets:    

 Provision for leave encashment, gratuity and  60.66   16.91   3.79   81.36 

 other employee benefits  

 Impairment Loss Allowance  232.26   160.09   -     392.35 

 Difference between written down value of PPE and   114.44   12.74   -     127.18 

 intangible assets as per books and as per Section 32 of 

 Income-tax Act, 1961

 Deferred processing fee relating to loans  1,022.03   350.31   -     1,372.34 

 Others     10.98   2.44   -     13.42 

 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets  1,440.37   542.49   3.79   1,986.65

    

 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liabilities):    

 On Provision for doubtful advances allowed under   (120.25)  (100.84)  -     (221.09)

 section 36(1)(viia) of Income-tax Act, 1961

 Deferred processing fee relating to debt securities and  (230.57)  (44.98)  -     (275.55)

 borrowings other than debt securities  

 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liabilities)  (350.82)  (145.82)  -     (496.64)

 Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities)  1,089.55   396.65   3.79   1,490.01

As at 
April 01, 2020

(Charged) / 
Credited to

Profit and Loss

(Charged) / 
Credited 

to OCI

As at 
March 31, 2021

Components of deferred tax asset / (liability)

 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets:    

 Provision for leave encashment, gratuity and   52.02   4.78   3.86   60.66 

 other employee benefits 

 Impairment Loss Allowance  157.29   74.97   -     232.26 

 Difference between written down value of PPE and   98.32   16.12   -     114.44 

 intangible assets as per books and as per Section 32 of 

 Income-tax Act, 1961 

 Deferred processing fee relating to loans  763.15   258.88   -     1,022.03 

 Others     -     10.98   -     10.98 

 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets  1,070.78   365.73   3.86   1,440.37 

    

 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liabilities):    

 On Special Reserve created under section 36(1)(viii) of the  (2,078.46)  2,078.46   -     -   

 Income-tax Act, 1961 (Refer Note 26.3)  

 On Provision for doubtful advances allowed under  (51.35)  (68.90)  -     (120.25)

 section 36(1)(viia) of Income-tax Act, 1961  

 Deferred processing fee relating to debt securities  (234.35)  3.78   -     (230.57)

 and borrowings other than debt securities  

 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liabilities)  (2,364.16)  2,013.34   -     (350.82)

 Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities)  (1,293.38)  2,379.06   3.86   1,089.55

As at 
April 01, 2019

(Charged) / 
Credited to

Profit and Loss

(Charged) / 
Credited 

to OCI

As at 
March 31, 2020

` in lakhs
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

Note: 10 

10A. Property, Plant and Equipment

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

        Carrying amounts of:

 a) Freehold Land    64.57   64.57  

 b) Leasehold improvements  49.73   72.29 

 c) Furniture and fixtures  13.40   21.13

 d) Vehicles    -     0.18 

 e) Office Equipments  120.47   168.55 

       248.17   326.72Total

` in lakhs

Particulars

Notes:   

 (i) Freehold Land with a carrying value of `64.57 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - `64.57 lakhs) has been hypothecated to secure Non-

convertible debentures issued by the Company.

Freehold 
Land

 Gross Carrying Value       

 Balance at April 1, 2019 64.57   199.33   63.15   60.45   291.50   679.00 

 Additions during the year -     37.75   33.03   -     149.05   219.83 

 Balance at March 31, 2020 64.57   237.08   96.18   60.45   440.55   898.83 

 Additions during the year -     21.65   10.32   -     61.05   93.02 

 Balance at March 31, 2021 64.57   258.73   106.50   60.45   501.60   991.85 

       

 Accumulated depreciation        

 Balance at April 1, 2019 -     108.95   44.41   41.24   164.64   359.24 

 Depreciation expense for the year -     55.84   30.64   19.03   107.36   212.87 

 Balance at March 31, 2020 -     164.79   75.05   60.27   272.00   572.11 

 Depreciation expense for the year -     44.21   18.05   0.18   109.13   171.57

 Balance at March 31, 2021 -     209.00   93.10   60.45   381.13   743.68 

       

 Net book value       

 Balance at March 31, 2021 64.57   49.73   13.40   -     120.47   248.17 

 Balance at March 31, 2020 64.57   72.29   21.13   0.18   168.55   326.72 

Particulars
Leasehold 

Improvements
Furniture and

 Fixtures
Vehicles

Office 
Equipments Total

10B. Other Intangibe Assets

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

        Carrying amounts of:

 a)    26.78   35.35Computer software  

 Total       26.78   35.35

` in lakhs

Particulars

` in lakhs



PERFORMANCE REPORT | STATUTORY REPORTS | FINANCIAL STATEMENTSANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

APTUS VALUE HOUSING FINANCE INDIA LIMITED 88

10B. Other Intangibe Assets (Contd..)

Computer Software Total

 Gross Carrying Value    

 Balance at April 1, 2019  248.23   248.23 

 Additions during the year  44.10   44.10 

 Balance at March 31, 2020  292.33   292.33 

 Additions during the year  34.57   34.57 

 Balance at March 31, 2021  326.90   326.90 

    

 Accumulated amortisation    

 Balance at April 1, 2019  169.32   169.32 

 Amortisation expense for the year  87.66   87.66 

 Balance at March 31, 2020  256.98   256.98 

 Amortisation expense for the year  43.14   43.14 

 Balance at March 31, 2021  300.12   300.12 

    

 Net book value  

 Balance at March 31, 2021  26.78   26.78 

 Balance at March 31, 2020  35.35   35.35

` in lakhs

Particulars

Leased buildings Total

 Gross Carrying Value     

 Balance at April 1, 2019  -     -   

 Additions during the year  926.42   926.42 

 Balance at March 31, 2020  926.42   926.42 

 Additions during the year  385.41   385.41 

 Balance at March 31, 2021  1,311.83   1,311.83 

      

 Accumulated depreciation    

 Balance at April 1, 2019 -     -   

 Depreciation expense for the year  278.77   278.77 

 Balance at March 31, 2020  278.77   278.77 

 Depreciation expense for the year  352.37   352.37 

 Balance at March 31, 2021  631.14   631.14 

 Net book value      

 Balance at March 31, 2021  680.69   680.69 

 Balance at March 31, 2020  647.65   647.65

` in lakhs

Particulars

10C. Right-of-use assets

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

        Carrying amounts of:

 a) Leased buildings (Refer Note 43)  680.69   647.65 

 Total       680.69   647.65

` in lakhs

Particulars

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

10D. Depreciation and Amortisation expense

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

 Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment  10A  171.57   212.87 

 Amortisation on intangible assets  10B  43.14   87.66 

 Depreciation on right-of-use assets 10C 352.37   278.77   

 Total       567.08 579.30

` in lakhs

Particulars Note

Note: 11 Other non-financial assets

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Considered Good, Unsecured  

 Capital Advances  20.85   8.20 

 Prepaid Expenses  45.09   49.12 

 Other Advances (Refer note(i) at given below)  94.20   71.28 

 Total       160.14   128.60 

` in lakhs

Particulars

Notes:   

 (i) Other advances include `81.09 lakhs incurred towards various expenses in connection with proposed initial public offer of 

equity shares of the Company. 

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures - At Amortised cost 38,144.13   60,451.28 

 (Within India)     

 Total       38,144.13   60,451.28 

Note: 12 Debt Securities

` in lakhs

Particulars

(a)  Details of Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures ("NCDs") - Redeemable at par:

Notes:   

 (i) Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures are secured by hypothecation of specified term loans amounting to `44,814.28 

lakhs as at March 31, 2021 (As at March 31, 2020 - ̀ 70,156.75 lakhs) and specified immovable property amounting to ̀ 64.57 lakhs 

as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 - ̀ 64.57 lakhs).

   (ii) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of borrowings and interest during any of the years presented.

 (iii) NCDs are repayable as bullet payments on the due date of redemption.

 * During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has made an early redemption of debentures.

 33,20,000 10.00% May 15, 2023 100  3,424.85   3,418.39 

 33,20,000 9.35% May 15, 2023 100  3,415.34   3,408.03 

 33,30,000 9.80% May 15, 2023 100  3,430.29   3,422.63 

 5,500 10.00% December 26, 2024* 1,00,000  -     5,463.15 

 2,500 10.00% January 24, 2025* 1,00,000  -     2,474.34 

 2,000 10.00% February 26, 2025* 1,00,000  -     1,983.09 

 5,000 10.00% June 20, 2025 1,00,000  4,981.44   4,977.04 

 12,500 10.00% July 20, 2025* 1,00,000  -     12,440.76 

 12,500 10.00% August 20, 2025 1,00,000  12,451.75   12,441.69 

 1,01,00,000 10.36% November 3, 2025 100  10,440.46   10,422.16 

 Total     38,144.13   60,451.28

Face ValueNo. of Debentures
Due date of 
redemption

Rate of 
Interest

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

` `  in lakhs ` in lakhs

Balance Outstanding
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

      Secured - At Amortised cost (Within India)

 Term loans     

 - Scheduled banks  1,14,695.40   88,065.47 

 - Other Financial Institutions  57,720.37   28,237.19 

 Securitisation Loans  2,676.99   4,584.41 

 Working Capital Loans  3,500.00   978.25 

      1,78,592.76   1,21,865.32Total 

Note: 13 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

` in lakhs

Particulars

(a) Terms of repayment and tenure of term loans are as follows:

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 5.05% 1 year 3,209.80   -   

 7.00% - 8.00%  1,778.87   -   

 8.00% - 9.00%   44,850.02   4,959.42 

 9.00% - 10.00% 5- 7 years  16,461.65   22,802.77 

 10.00% - 11.00%   207.89   12,263.27 

 11.00% - 12.00%   -     8,421.37 

 5.85% - 6.00%  41,980.43   -   

 6.00% - 7.00%   2,826.00   -   

 7.00% - 8.00%   330.63   13,543.30 

 8.00% - 9.00% 7-10 years  41,685.93   3,626.69 

 9.00% - 10.00%   11,782.72   36,678.82 

 10.00% - 11.00%   -     3,913.84 

 6.90% - 7.00%  7,152.24   -   

 8.00% - 9.00%   149.60   8,076.87 

 9.00%-10.00% > 10 years  -     183.52 

 11.00%-11.15%   -     1,832.79

 Total   1,72,415.77   1,16,302.66 

` in lakhs

Rate of Interest

Balance Outstanding
Tenure

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 10.00%-11.00%   5- 7 years  2,676.99   4,584.41

 Total       2,676.99   4,584.41

` in lakhs

Rate of Interest

Balance Outstanding
Tenure

(b) Terms of repayment and tenure of securitisation loans are as follows:

Notes:   

 (i)  Term loans from scheduled banks and other financial institutions are secured by hypothecation of specified term loans 

 amounting to ̀ 2,09,368.66 lakhs as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 - ̀ 1,45,429.10 lakhs).

 (ii)  The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of borrowings and interest during any of the years presented.

 (iii)  Term Loans from other financial institution (National Housing Bank) aggregating to `9,295.50 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - 

 ` 11,274.82 lakhs) has been guaranteed by the promoter Mr. M Anandan.

 (iv)  Working Capital loans have been availed at Interest rate of 8.00-8.15% p.a and are secured by hypothecation of specified 

 term loans amounting to ̀ 4,029.25 lakhs as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 - ̀ 1,170.22 lakhs). 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

Note: 14 Other financial liabilities

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 At Amortised Cost  

 Advances from customers  38.02   24.43 

 Remittances Payable - Securitised Assets  22.31   41.68 

 Accrued employee benefits  568.25   399.23 

 Financial guarantee liability  77.70   63.39 

 Other payables   592.61   58.32 

 Total      1,298.89   587.05 

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: 15 Current tax liabilities (Net)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Provision for Income Tax (net) (Refer note (i) below)  343.30   526.68 

  Total      343.30  526.68

 

 (i) Net of advance tax of 18,401.42   12,184.91

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: 16 Provisions

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 30)   

 - Provision for gratuity  164.24   126.64 

 - Provision for leave encashment  159.02   114.37 

 Provisions for Undrawn commitments  6.92   11.42 

 Total       330.18   252.43 

` in lakhs

Particulars
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

Note: 17 Other non-financial liabilities

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Statutory dues   218.07   168.55 

 Deferred Income   37.64   -   

 Total      255.71   168.55

` in lakhs

Particulars

   (a) Reconciliation of number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars

 Equity shares     

       Year ended March 31, 2021

 - Number of shares 9,58,63,258   -     4,20,000   9,62,83,258 

 - Amount (  in lakhs) 9,451.33   -     42.00   9,493.33 `

       Year ended March 31, 2020

 - Number of shares  7,87,82,637   1,67,08,121   3,72,500   9,58,63,258

 - Amount (  in lakhs)   7,878.26   1,535.82   37.25   9,451.33`

Opening Balance Fresh issue ESOP Closing Balance

Notes:

 (b) During the year ended March 31, 2021, pursuant to Aptus Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) 2015, the Board of Directors 

allotted 3,45,000 fully paid up equity shares of 10 each at a premium of 65 each and 75,000 fully paid up equity shares of ` `

` `10 each at a premium of 120 each to the employees of the Company vide circular resolution dated December 02, 2020.

 (c) During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has allotted 1,52,08,121 fully paid-up equity shares of 10 each at a `

premium of 516.03 per share and 15,00,000 partly paid-up equity shares of 10 each (Paid-up to the extent of 1 per share) ` ` `

on preferential basis. The said allotment has been approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on August 8, 2019 

and by the shareholders in the Extraordinary General Meeting held on August 19, 2019 respectively (Refer Note 44(ii)).

 (d) During the year ended March 31, 2020, pursuant to Aptus Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) 2015, the Board of Directors 

allotted 3,35,000 fully paid up equity shares of 10 each at a premium of 65 each and 37,500 fully paid up equity shares of ` `

` `10 each at a premium of 120 each to the employees of the Company vide circular resolution dated October 14, 2019.

 (e)  Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares:  
  The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 10 each. Each holder is entitled to one vote per equity `

share. Dividends proposed by the Board of Directors, if any is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual 

General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. 

  In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 

company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares 

held by the shareholders.

Note: 18 Equity Share Capital (Refer Note 44)

Particulars

 (i)  Authorised share capital     

  Equity shares of `10 each  10,60,00,000   10,600.00   10,60,00,000   10,600.00 

 (ii)  Issued and Subscribed share capital     

  Equity shares of `10 each - Fully paid-up 9,47,83,258   9,478.33   9,43,63,258   9,436.33

  Equity shares of 10 each - Partly paid-up ( 1 each)  15,00,000   15.00   15,00,000   15.00` `

 Total      9,62,83,258   9,493.33   9,58,63,258   9,451.33

As at March 31, 2021

Number of Shares Amount

As at March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

Number of Shares Amount

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on May 05, 2021 and shareholders in the Extraordinary General Meeting 

held on May 06, 2021 approved the sub-division of shares from ̀ 10 per share to ̀ 2 per share (Also refer Note 44(i)).
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For the year ended March 31, 2021 

   Note: There are no shares held by Holding / Ultimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries / associates.

Notes: (Contd..)

   (f ) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Class of shares / Name of shareholder 

 M Anandan    1,92,32,833  19.98%  1,92,32,833  20.06%

 Padma Anandan   50,00,000  5.19%  50,00,000  5.22%

 Westbridge Cross Over Fund LLC 3,43,45,951  35.67%  3,43,45,951  35.83%

 JIH II LLC     83,70,924  8.69%  82,72,010  8.63%

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Number of 
shares held

Number of 
shares held

% holding in that 
class of shares 

% holding in that 
class of shares 

 (g)  Shares reserved for issue under options:  
  Refer Note 40 for details of shares reserved for issue under options.

Note: 19 Other Equity

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Securities premium  1,16,276.43   1,15,856.61 

 Employee Stock Options Reserve 72.86   173.81 

 Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of National Housing Bank (NHB) Act, 1987  1,885.20   1,058.38

 Special Reserve under 36(1)(viii) of Income-tax Act, 1961 13,233.29   9,705.26 

 Impairment Reserve 610.36   -   

 Retained earnings 47,568.61   30,748.34 

 Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan (30.47)  (19.22)

 Total        1,79,616.28   1,57,523.18

` in lakhs

Particulars

19.1      Movement in Other Equity

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 (a)  Securities premium (Refer Note 19.2.1)   

  Balance at the beginning of the year  1,15,856.61   37,449.71 

  Add : Premium on shares issued during the year 314.25   78,741.22 

  Add : Transfer from Employee Stock Options Reserve on ESOP exercised   105.57   47.18 

   during the year

  Less : Share issue expenses -     (381.50)

  Balance at the end of the year   1,16,276.43   1,15,856.61 

 (b) Employee Stock Options Reserve (Refer Note 19.2.2 & Note 40)  

  Balance at the beginning of the year  173.81   201.78 

  Add: Share based payments to employees during the year 4.62   19.21 

  Less: Transfer to Securities Premium on options exercised during the year (105.57)  (47.18)

  Balance at the end of the year  72.86   173.81 

 (c)  Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of National Housing Bank (NHB)  

  Act, 1987 (Refer Note 19.2.3)   

  Balance at the beginning of the year   

   a)  Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987 1,058.38   72.35 

   b)  Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income-tax Act, 1961   9,705.26   7,065.22

         taken into account for the purpose of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C  

    of the NHB Act, 1987

` in lakhs

Particulars
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

19.1      Movement in Other Equity (Contd..)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

     Addition/Appropriation/withdrawal during the year

  Add:  a)  Amount transferred u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987 826.82   986.03         

    b)  Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961  3,528.03   2,640.04

        taken into account for the purposes of Statutory reserve 

       u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987   

  Less: a)  Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C  -     -

         of the NHB Act, 1987   

    b)  Amount withdrawn from special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of  - - 

    Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of 

    provision u/s 29 C of NHB Act 1987      

     Balance at the end of the year

          a)  Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987 1,885.20   1,058.38  

   b)  Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961  13,233.29   9,705.26

    taken into account for the purpose of Statutory reserve 

    u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987   

       15,118.49   10,763.64 

 (d) Impairment Reserve (Refer Note 19.2.4 & Note 41)   

  Balance at the beginning of the year -      -   

  Add: Transfer from retained earnings during the year 610.36   -   

  Balance at the end of the year 610.36   -   

 (e)  Retained Earnings (Refer Note 19.2.5)   

  Balance at the beginning of the year  30,748.34   16,232.56

  Add: Profit for the year 21,785.48   18,141.85 

  Less: Transfer to Special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income-tax Act, 1961   (3,528.03)  (2,640.04)

   (Refer Note 19.2.3)

  Less: Transfer to Special reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 (Refer Note 19.2.3) (826.82)  (986.03)

  Less: Transfer to Impairment reserve  (Refer Note 19.2.4) (610.36)  -   

  Balance at the end of the year 47,568.61   30,748.34 

 

 (f )  Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan   

  Balance at the beginning of the year  (19.22)  (7.73)

  Other Comprehensive Income for the year (11.25)  (11.49)

  Balance at the end of the year (30.47)  (19.22)

  Total    1,79,616.28   1,57,523.18

` in lakhs

Particulars

19.2     Nature and purpose of reserves:

19.2.1  Securities premium   

   Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes 

 in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. During the year ended March 31, 2020, Securities premium was 

 utilised to the extent of 381.50 lakhs on account of expenses incurred for the issue of Equity shares, in line with Section `

 52 of the Companies Act 2013.

19.2.2  Employee Stock Options Reserve   

   The amount represents reserve created to the extent of granted options based on the Employees Stock Option Schemes. 

 Under Ind AS 102, fair value of the options granted is to be expensed out over the life of the vesting period as employee 

 compensation costs reflecting period of receipt of service. Also refer note 40.
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For the year ended March 31, 2021 

19.2.3  Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of National Housing Bank (NHB) Act, 1987   

   As per Section 29C(1) of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company is required to transfer at least 20% of its net profit 

after tax every year to a reserve before any dividend is declared. For this purpose, any Special Reserve created by the 

Company under Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, is considered to be an eligible transfer. During the year ended 

March 31, 2021, the company has transferred 3,528.03 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - 2,640.04 lakhs) in terms of section 36(1)(viii) to ` `

the Special Reserve.

   The Company has transferred an amount of 826.82 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 - 986.03 ` `

lakhs) to Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987. Total amount clearly earmarked for the purposes 

of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C is 12,906.87 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - 8,551.97 lakhs) out of which 1,885.20 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - ` ` `

` ` `1,058.38 lakhs) is distinctly identifiable above and the balance of 11,021.67 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - 7,493.59 lakhs) is 

included in the Special Reserve created u/s 36(1)(viii) of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

   The Company has resolved not to make withdrawals from the Special reserve created under Section 36(1)(viii) of the 

Income-tax Act, 1961.

19.2.4  Impairment Reserve   

   In terms of the requirement as per RBI notification no. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated 17 

February 2021, Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) are required to create an impairment reserve for any shortfall in 

impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 and Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms 

(including provision on standard assets). Accordingly, the Company has transferred such shortfall amount to Impairment 

Reserve. No withdrawal from the reserve is permitted without prior permission from the Department of Supervision, RBI.

19.2.5  Retained earnings  

   Retained earnings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has earned/incurred till date, less any transfers to general 

reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Company 

and eligible for distribution to shareholders, in case where it is having positive balance representing net earnings till date. 

The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its Equity Shareholders is determined based on the 

financial statements of the Company and also considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts 

reported are not distributable in entirety and includes non-distributable items including unrealised gains, notional gains 

and any change in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value, etc.

Note: 20 Revenue from operations

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 (a) Interest Income  

 On financials assets measured at amortised cost  

   Interest on term loans  50,969.19   40,511.11 

   Interest on fixed deposits with Banks  1,439.21   1,646.52 

       52,408.40   42,157.63 

 (b) Net gain on fair value changes   

 Investment in mutual funds measured at FVTPL - trading portfolio  

   Realised    51.88   290.28 

   Unrealised    23.34   -   

       75.22   290.28 

 (c) Fees and commission Income (Refer Note 21A)  982.54   1,051.23 

 Total     53,466.16   43,499.14

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: 21 Other income

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 Charges for Marketing / Display  1,641.60   1,959.55 

 Other Non Operating Income  46.47   45.67 

 Total     1,688.07   2,005.22

` in lakhs

Particulars
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` in lakhs
 21.1  Revenue from contracts with customers

 Fees and commission Income*  982.54   1,051.23 

 Charges for Marketing / Display  1,641.60   1,959.55

 Total Revenue from contracts with customers 2,624.14   3,010.78

 * Comprises charges collected from the customers in the nature of 

  Preclosure charges, Cheque dishonour charges and other charges as applicable.

 

 Timing of Revenue recognition  

 Over a period of time  1,641.60   1,959.55 

 At a point in Time  982.54   1,051.23 

  

 Geographical markets  

 In India     2,624.14   3,010.78 

 Outside India   -     -   

  

 Contract Balances  

 Opening balance of contract liabilities  -     -   

 Closing balance of contract liabilities  -     -   

  

 Opening balance of contract assets  15.62   64.79 

 Closing balance of Contract assets  118.60   15.62

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

Note: 22 Finance costs

` in lakhs

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 Interest expense on Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost  

 - Debt Securities   5,726.56   7,113.87 

 - Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)  12,402.02   9,714.03 

 - Others     79.63   108.17 

  Total     18,208.21   16,936.07

Particulars

Note: 23 Employee benefits expense

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 Salaries, Bonus and Commission  6,696.84   5,667.30 

 Share based payments to employees (Refer Note 40)  4.62   19.21 

 Contributions to provident and other funds (Refer Note 30.1)  491.30   432.10 

 Gratuity expense (Refer Note 30.2)  30.46   23.90 

 Staff welfare expenses  170.29   292.48 

       7,393.51   6,434.99 

 Less: Expenses recovered from subsidiary (Refer Note 29)  (852.85)  (760.33)

 Total     6,540.66   5,674.66 

` in lakhs

Particulars
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Note: 24 Impairment on Financial Instruments

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 Expected Credit Loss Expense  

  - On terms loans measured at amortised cost  498.12   256.56 

  - On undrawn commitment at amortised cost  (4.50)  9.75 

  Total     493.62   266.31 

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: 25 Other expenses

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 Rent expense   -     58.44 

 Repairs and maintenance  

   - Computers   22.77   18.15 

   - Others     4.17   2.96 

 Insurance    7.09   5.80 

 Information Technology expenses  49.04   42.64 

 Rates and taxes   192.58   162.48 

 Communication costs  112.17   95.99 

 Travelling and conveyance  213.22   244.97 

 Office expenses    99.22   216.78 

 Printing and stationery  49.24   54.04 

 Commission to Directors  45.50   30.00 

 Sitting fees to non-whole time directors  8.70   7.70 

 Charges paid to rating agencies  75.46   69.10 

 Electricity Charges  26.74   27.25 

 Bank charges   33.13   17.84 

 Advertisement and publicity  7.59   12.15 

 Legal and professional charges  147.28   138.09 

 Auditor's fees and expenses (Refer Note 25.2)  41.85   32.72 

 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure (Refer Note 37)  302.56   64.70 

 Miscellaneous expenses  21.94   0.36

 Total      1,460.25   1,302.13 

` in lakhs

Particulars

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

25.1      The above expenses are net of expenses recovered from Subsidiary amounting to `172.15 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - `247.67 lakhs).

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 Audit fee (including regulatory certificates)  22.00   22.00 

 Tax audit fee    1.00   1.00 

 Limited Review   6.00   6.00 

 Others     12.60   3.50 

 Reimbursement of expenses  0.25   0.22 

      41.85   32.72Total 

` in lakhs

Particulars

25.2      Details of Auditor's fees and expenses

Note: Excludes remuneration to auditors for services in connection with proposed initial public offer of equity shares of the 
Company, which is included in other advances (Refer Note 11).
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

Note: 26 Tax expenses

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit/ (loss) as follows:

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 Current tax expense  6,524.32   4,924.24 

 Tax relating to previous years  (28.74)  58.86 

 Deferred tax charge / (credit)  (396.65)  (2,379.06)

 Total     6,098.93   2,604.04

` in lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 (A) Profit before tax   27,884.41   20,745.89 

 (B) Enacted tax rates in India (including surcharge and cess) 25.17% 25.17%

 (C) Income tax on profit before tax based on the enacted rate  7,017.95   5,221.33 

 (D) Other than temporary differences 

  - Effect of change in tax rate  -     (175.53)

  - Effect of income that is exempt from taxation  -     (35.20)

  - Effect of inadmissible expenses  116.10   40.15 

  - Effect of admissible deductions  (1,010.16)  (706.65)

  - Effect of reversal of opening balance of deferred tax liability on  -     (1,796.38)

     Special Reserve created u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income-tax Act, 1961 

  - Others    3.78   (2.54)

 (E) Income tax expense recognised in Profit and Loss  6,127.67   2,545.18

` in lakhs

Particulars

  The income tax rate used for the above reconciliations are the corporate tax rate payable by the Company in India on 

taxable profits under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

26.2 The Company has elected to exercise the option of a lower tax rate provided under Section 115BAA of the Income tax Act, 

1961, as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 dated September 20, 2019. Accordingly, the 

Company has recognised provision for income tax for the year ended March 31, 2020 basis the rate provided in the said 

section and re-measured its opening balance of deferred tax liabilities ("DTL") (net) as at April 1, 2019 and has reversed DTL 

of ̀ 175.53 lakhs to the statement of profit and loss.

26.3 During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has reversed deferred tax liabilities of ̀ 1,796.38 lakhs created in earlier 

years, on Special Reserve created under section 36(1)(viii) of the Income-tax Act, 1956 on the basis of a resolution of the 

Board of Directors of the Company that there is no intention to make withdrawals from such Special Reserve.

26.1      Reconciliation of Effective tax rate

27.1 Contingent liabilities as per Ind AS 37 and commitments 

  i)    Matters wherein management has concluded the Company’s liability to be probable have accordingly been provided 

for in the books. Also refer note 16.

  ii)   Matters wherein management has concluded the Company’s liability to be possible have accordingly been disclosed 

under Note 27.2 Contingent liabilities below.

  iii)  Matters wherein management is confident of succeeding in these litigations and have concluded the Company’s 

liability to be remote. This is based on the relevant facts of judicial precedents and as advised by legal counsel which 

involves various legal proceedings and claims, in different stages of process.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

27.2     Contingent Liabilities  

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

        55.54   302.52 

` in lakhs

Particulars

 Corporate undertakings for securitisation of receivables for which the outflow would 

 arise in the event of a shortfall, if any, in the cash flows of the pool of the securitised 

 receivables. (Refer note (i) below)

Note:   

 (i)   In respect of these undertakings, management does not believe, based on currently available information, that the 

 maximum outflow that could arise, will have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition.

   The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

27.3     Commitments 

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Loans sanctioned to Borrowers pending disbursement  14,255.26   14,150.95

 Total     14,255.26   14,150.95

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note:  28  Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

   Based on the extent of information available with the Management, there are no transactions with Micro and Small 

Enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) during the year 

ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020. This has been relied upon by the Auditors.

Note:  29  Sharing of Costs

   The Company and its subsidiary share certain costs / service charges. These costs have been recovered by the Company 

from its subsidiary on a basis mutually agreed to between them, which has been relied upon by the Auditors.

Note: 30  Employee benefit plans

30.1  Defined contribution plans

  The Company makes Provident Fund contributions for qualifying employees to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. 

Under the Scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. 

The Company recognized ̀ 369.19 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - ̀ 305.00 lakhs) for provident fund contributions in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to the scheme by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

30.2  Defined benefit plans

   The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the "gratuity plan") covering eligible employees in accordance 

with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The gratuity plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or 

termination of employment based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and years of employment with the 

Company. The Company does not have a funded gratuity scheme for its employees. 

   The Company is exposed to various risks in providing the above gratuity benefit such as: interest rate risk, longetivity risk 

and salary risk.

   Interest risk: A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.

Disclosure under Accounting Standards



  Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the 

mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan 

participants will increase the plan's liability.

   Salary escalation risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries 

of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability. 

   Gratuity provision has been made based on the actuarial valuation done as at the year end using the Projected Unit Credit 

method. The details of actuarial valuation as provided by the Independent Actuary is as follows:
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

30.2      Defined benefit plans (Contd..)

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

 Change in defined benefit obligations during the year      

 Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year  126.64   94.96 

 Current service cost  23.99   17.82 

 Interest cost    6.47   6.08 

 Benefits paid   (7.90)  (7.57)

 Actuarial (gains) / losses  15.04   15.35 

 Present value of obligation at end of the year  164.24   126.64 

      

 Change in Fair value of assets during the year      

 Plan Assets at the beginning of the year  -     -   

 Expected Return on Plan Assets  -     -   

 Actual Company Contributions  -     -   

 Actuarial (gains) / losses  -     -   

 Plan Assets at the end of the year  -     -   

 Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 

 Present value of obligation  164.24   126.64 

 Fair value of Plan Assets  -     -   

 Net Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet  164.24   126.64

` in lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

 Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:      

 Current service cost  23.99   17.82 

 Net Interest on Net Defined Benefit Obligations  6.47   6.08 

 Past service cost   -     -   

 Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss  30.46   23.90 

      

 Amount Recognized for the current year in the Statement of 

 Other Comprehensive Income [OCI]      

 Actuarial (gain)/loss on Plan Obligations  15.04   15.35 

 Difference between Actual Return and Interest Income on   -     -

 Plan Assets - (gain)/loss 

 Amount recognized in OCI for the current year 15.04   15.35 

      

 Actual return on Plan Assets  -     - 

` in lakhs

Particulars
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

30.2      Defined benefit plans (Contd..)

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

 Discount Rate  4.79% 5.28% 

 Future Salary Increase 5.00% 5.00% 

 Attrition rate   8% to 46% 8% to 46% 

 Mortality    Indian Assured Lives  Indian Assured Lives

      Mortality (2012-14)  Mortality (2012-14) 

      Ultimate Table Ultimate Table

Particulars

The key assumptions used in the actuarial valuation as provided by independent actuary are as follows:

Notes:   

 1.   The estimate of the future salary increase takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.  

 2.   Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government Bonds as at the Balance Sheet date for the 

estimated term of the obligation.

Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary 

increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective 

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The following table summarizes the impact on defined benefit obligation arising due to increase / decrease in key actuarial 

assumptions by 50 basis points:

Discount rate

 Impact of decrease  3.15   (3.25)

 Impact of increase  (3.03)  3.35

Defined Benefit Obligation

As at March 31, 2021

Salary increase rate

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation 

as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be 

correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been 

calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of-the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in 

calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

Discount rate

 Impact of decrease  2.45   (2.51)

 Impact of increase  (2.36)  2.59

Defined Benefit Obligation

As at March 31, 2020

Salary increase rate

             Additional disclosures required under Ind AS 19

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

 Average Duration of Defined Benefit Obligations (in years) 4.60   4.40 

 Projected undiscounted expected benefit outgo (mid year cash flows) 

 (in ` lakhs)      

  Year 1    41.70   36.62 

  Year 2    23.24   16.20 

  Year 3    24.25   16.37 

  Year 4    21.60   15.73 

  Year 5    16.07   13.67 

  Year 6 to 10 56.86   45.47

 Expected Benefit Payments for the next annual reporting year (` in lakhs) 41.70   36.62 

Particulars
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

30.3      Leave encashment

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

 Discount Rate  4.79% 5.28%

 Future Salary Increase 5.00% 5.00%

Particulars

The key assumptions used in the actuarial valuation as provided by independent actuary are as follows:

  The Code of Social Security, 2020 (the "Code") relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment 

benefits, received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, 

the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has also 

released draft rules thereunder on November 13, 2020 and has invited suggestions from stakeholders, which are under 

consideration by the Ministry. The Company will evaluate the rules, assess the impact, if any, and account for the same once 

the rules are notified and become effective.

30.4     

Note: 31  Segment Reporting

  The Chairman and Managing Director of the Company takes decision in respect of allocation of resources and assesses the 

performance basis the report/ information provided by functional heads and are thus considered to be Chief Operating 

Decision Maker ("CODM").

  The Company operates under the principal business segment viz. "providing long term housing finance, loans against 

property and refinance loans". CODM views and monitors the operating results of its single business segment for the 

purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Accordingly, there are no separate 

reportable segments in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 ‘Operating segment’ and hence, there are no 

additional disclosures to be provided other than those already provided in the consolidated financial statements. The 

Company’s operations are predominantly confined in India.

Note: 32  Earnings and Expenditure in foreign currency - Nil (March 31, 2020: Nil)

Note: 33  Related party transactions

33.1      Details of related parties: 

Names of related parties

 Key Management Personnel (KMP)

 

 Individuals having Significant Influence

 

 Entities having Significant Influence

 Subsidiary

 Mr. M Anandan, Chairman & Managing Director

 Mr. P Balaji, Chief Financial Officer 

 Mr. Sanin Panicker, Company Secretary (from August 11, 2020) 

 Ms. Jyoti Suresh Munot, Company Secretary (up to August 10, 2020)

 Mr. Shailesh J Mehta, Non-executive Director 

 Mr. K M Mohandass, Independent Director 

 Mr. S Krishnamurthy, Independent Director 

 Mr. Krishnamurthy Vijayan, Independent Director 

 Mr. K P Balaraj, Nominee Director 

 Mr. Suman Bollina, Non-executive Director 

 Mr. Sumir Chadha, Nominee Director (from November 05, 2019)

 Ms. Mona Kachhwaha, Non-executive Director (from May 30, 2020)

 Mr. V G Kannan, Independent Director (from March 09, 2021) 

 

 Mr. M Anandan, Chairman & Managing Director 

 

 Westbridge Cross Over Fund LLC 

 

 Aptus Finance India Private Limited

Description of relationship

Note:  Related party relationships are as identified by the Management and relied upon by the Auditors.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

33.2      Details of related party transactions for the year

Transactions during the year

 Remuneration *

 Remuneration *

 Remuneration *

 Rent paid

 Proceeds from Issue of partly paid-up 
 shares

 Mr. P Balaji   

    - Salary  95.79   88.68 

  

 Mr. Sanin Panicker  

    - Salary  9.10   -   

  

 Ms. Jyoti Suresh Munot  

    - Salary  0.59   1.63 

  

 Mr. M Anandan   7.64   7.28 

  

 Mr. M Anandan   -     15.00 

  

Names of related parties
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

` in lakhs

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

             Details of related party transactions for the year

Transactions during the year

 Remuneration *

 Director commission and sitting fee

 Director commission and sitting fee

 Director commission and sitting fee

 Director commission and sitting fee

 Director commission and sitting fee

 Director commission and sitting fee

 Director commission and sitting fee

 Mr. M Anandan   

    - Salary  400.20   350.40 

    - Commission  200.00   150.00 

    - Others  0.92   2.72 

  

 Mr. Shailesh J Mehta  

    - Commission  7.50   4.50 

    - Sitting fee  1.20   1.00 

  

 Mr. K M Mohandass  

    - Commission  7.50   4.50 

    - Sitting fee  2.70   1.90 

  

 Mr. S Krishnamurthy  

    - Commission  7.50   4.50 

    - Sitting fee  2.70   2.20 

  

 Mr. Krishnamurthy Vijayan  

    - Commission  7.50   4.50 

    - Sitting fee  1.00   1.60 

  

 Mr. Suman Bollina  

    - Commission  7.50   4.50 

    - Sitting fee  0.60   0.60 

  

 Ms. Mona Kachhwaha  

    - Commission  7.50   -   

    - Sitting fee  0.50   -   

  

 Mr. V G Kannan  

    - Commission  7.50   -   

    - Sitting fee  -     -

Names of related parties
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

` in lakhs

For the year ended
March 31, 2020



Transactions during the year

 Support cost recovered

 Investment during the year #

 Loans given during the year

 Loans repaid during the year

 Interest Income on Loan to Subsidiary

 Commission on Financial Guarantee

 Aptus Finance India Private Limited  1,025.00   1,008.00 

  

 Aptus Finance India Private Limited  52.55   6,138.29 

  

 Aptus Finance India Private Limited  9,000.00   5,950.00 

  

 Aptus Finance India Private Limited  12,300.00   7,400.00 

  

 Aptus Finance India Private Limited  504.62   752.47 

  

 Aptus Finance India Private Limited  38.25   26.89 

Names of related parties
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

` in lakhs

For the year ended
March 31, 2020
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

33.2      Details of related party transactions for the year (Contd..)

Balances as at year end

 Personal guarantee given for 
 Borrowings taken by the Company

 Investment#

 Loans outstanding

 Corporate guarantee given for 
 Borrowings taken by the Subsidiary and  
 outstanding

 Mr. M Anandan  9,295.50   11,274.82 

  

 

 Aptus Finance India Private Limited  15,190.84   15,138.29 

  

 Aptus Finance India Private Limited  1,800.00   5,100.00 

  

 Aptus Finance India Private Limited  21,675.40   14,730.97 

Names of related parties
As at

March 31, 2021

` in lakhs

As at
March 31, 2020

Notes:   

 * As the future liabilities of gratuity and leave encashment are provided on actuarial basis for the Company, the amounts 

     pertaining to key managerial personnel is not separately ascertainable and therefore not included above.

 # Includes Investment in subsidiary arising out of financial guarantee obligations.

Note: 34  Financial Instruments

34.1  Capital management

   The Company actively manages its capital to meet regulatory norms and current and future business needs, considering 

the risks in its businesses, expectations of rating agencies, shareholders and investors, and the available options of raising 

capital. Its capital management framework is administered by the risk committee of Company. During the current year, 

there has been no change in objectives, policies or processes for managing capital.      

   The Company is subject to the capital adequacy requirements of the National Housing Bank ('NHB') / Reserve Bank of India 

('RBI'). As per the Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) 

Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021, the Company is required to maintain a minimum ratio of total capital to risk 

adjusted assets as determined by a specified formula, at least half of which must be Tier 1 capital, which is generally 

shareholders’ equity.

   The Company has complied with all regulatory requirements related to regulatory capital and capital adequacy ratios as 

prescribed by NHB / RBI.

   'The company sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure, i.e. equity and financial liabilities. 

   'Below is the Capital Risk Adequacy Ratio maintained and calculated as per NHB/RBI guidelines in the respective year by 

the Company and as per regulatory return filed with NHB in the respective years.



34.2      Categories of Financial Instruments

Particulars

 Financial assets      

 Cash and Cash equivalents  -     -     40,757.50   -     -     48,177.90 

 Bank Balance other than cash and 

 cash equivalents  -     -     969.45   -     -     11,660.44 

 Loans  -     -     3,43,135.00   -     -     2,74,067.38 

 Investments  5,275.22   -     15,190.84   -     -     15,138.29 

 Other Financial assets  -     -     990.74   -     -     264.06 

 Total Financial Assets  5,275.22   -     4,01,043.53   -     -     3,49,308.07 

      

 Financial liabilities      

 Debt securities  -     -     38,144.13   -     -     60,451.28 

 Borrowings (other than debt 

 securities)  -     -     1,78,592.76   -     -     1,21,865.32 

 Trade payables  -     -     140.91   -     -     43.75 

 Lease liabilities    709.05     666.36 

 Other financial liabilities  -     -     1,298.89   -     -     587.05 

 Total Financial liabilities  -     -     2,18,885.74   -     -     1,83,613.76

` in lakhs

As at March 31, 2021 Measured at 

FVTPL Amortised 
Cost

FVTOCI

As at March 31, 2020 Measured at 

FVTPL Amortised 
Cost

FVTOCI
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

 Tier I Capital    1,86,138.43   1,61,977.01 

 Tier II Capital   (376.22)  484.20 

 Total Capital    1,85,762.21   1,62,461.21 

 Risk Weighted assets 2,52,280.98   1,96,937.30 

    

 Capital Adequacy Ratio 73.63% 82.49%

 Tier I Capital %  73.78% 82.25%

 Tier II Capital %  -0.15% 0.25%

` in lakhs

Particulars

34.1     Capital management (Contd..)

34.3  Fair Value Measurements

   Fair Value hierarchy

   This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that 

are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair value disclosure are 

required in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair 

value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. 

   (a) Fair Value of financial instruments recognised and measured at fair value

Particulars

 As at March 31, 2021

 Financial assets    

 Investments   5,275.22   -     -     5,275.22  

` in lakhs

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Particulars

 As at March 31, 2020

 Financial assets    

 Investments  -     -     -     -   

` in lakhs

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

  (b)  Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value

  Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value  

  Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are 

not recorded and measured at fair value in the Company’s financial statements. These fair values were calculated for 

disclosure purposes only. The below methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables 

and, as such, may differ from the techniques and assumptions.          

  Short-term financial assets and liabilities 

  For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying 

amounts, which are net of impairment, are a reasonable approximation of their fair value. Such instruments include: cash 

and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, trade payables and other 

financial liabilities without a specific maturity. Such amounts have been classified as Level 3 except for cash and cash 

equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents which have been classified as Level 1.

  Loans          

  The fair values of loans and receivables are estimated by discounted cash flow models that incorporate assumptions for 

credit risks, probability of default and loss given default estimates. Where such information is not available, the Company 

uses historical experience and other information used in its collective impairment models. 

  Fair values of lending portfolios are calculated using a portfolio-based approach. The Company then calculates and 

extrapolates the fair value to the entire portfolio, using discounted cash flow models that incorporate interest rate 

estimates considering all significant characteristics of the loans. The credit risk is applied as a top-side adjustment based 

on the collective impairment model incorporating probability of defaults and loss given defaults. 

  Debt securities & Borrowings other than debt securities          

  The fair values of Debt Securities and Borrowings other than Debt securities are estimated by discounted cash flow models 

that incorporate interest cost estimates considering all significant characteristics of the borrowing. They are classified as 

Level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs.

34.3     Fair Value Measurements (Contd..)
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For the year ended March 31, 2021 

34.5  Interest rate risk management

   Interest rate risk is managed through ALM policy framed by the Company. The ALM policy is administered through the ALCO 

(Asset Liability Management Committee) which monitors the following on a monthly basis:

   - Borrowing cost of the Company as on a particular date

   - Interest rate scenario existing in the market

   - Gap in cash flows at the prevalent interest rates

   - Effect of Interest rate changes on the Gap in the cash flows

   - Fixing appropriate interest rate to be charged to the customer based on the above factors

  Interest rate sensitivity analysis

  The sensitivity analysis has been determined for borrowings where interest rates are variable, assuming the amount 

outstanding at the end of the reporting year was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points increase or decrease in 

interest rates is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents 

management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis as at March 31, 2021

 Loans  3,43,135.00   3,50,607.67   3,44,607.25   3,56,789.33 

 Debt Securities  38,144.13   37,811.63   37,346.44   38,284.12 

 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)  1,78,592.76   1,80,115.74   1,77,771.68   1,82,503.35

` in lakhs

Carrying value Fair value
Sensitivity to fair value

0.50% increase 0.50% decrease

Sensitivity analysis as at March 31, 2020

 Loans  2,74,067.38   2,78,956.95   2,76,965.99   2,81,827.24 

 Debt Securities  60,451.28   59,771.46   58,635.95   60,933.82 

 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)  1,21,865.32   1,22,282.54   1,20,743.70   1,23,852.87

` in lakhs

Carrying value Fair value
Sensitivity to fair value

0.50% increase 0.50% decrease

34.6 Credit risk

  Credit risk in the Company arises due to default by customers on their contractual obligations which results to financial 

losses. Credit Risk is a major risk in the Company and the Company’s asset base comprises loans for affordable housing and 

loans against property. Credit Risk in the Company stems from outright default due to inability or unwillingness of a 

customer to meet commitments in relation to lending, settlement and other financial transactions. The essence of credit 

risk assessment in the Company pivots around the early assessment of stress, either in a portfolio or an account, and taking 

appropriate measures.

34.6.1. Credit risk management

  Credit risk in the Company is managed through a framework that sets out policies and procedures covering the 

measurement and management of credit risk. There is a clear segregation of duties between transaction originators in the 

business function and approvers in the credit risk function. Board approved credit policies and procedures mitigate the 

Company’s prime risk which is the default risk. There is a Credit Risk Management Committee in the Company for the review 

of the policies, process and products on an ongoing basis, with approval secured from the Board as and when required. 

There is a robust Credit Risk Management set-up in the Company at various levels.   

  1.  There are Credit teams to ensure implementation of various policies and processes through random customer visits and 

assessment, training of branch staff on application errors, liaison with other institutions to obtain necessary 

information/loan closure documents, as the case may be, and highlight early warning signals and industry 

developments enabling pro-active field risk management.     

  2.  The credit sanction is done through a delegation matrix where credit sanctioning powers are defined for respective levels.

  3.  Portfolio analysis and reporting is used to identify and manage credit quality and concentration risks. 

  4.  Credit risk monitoring for the Company is broadly done at two levels: account level and portfolio level. Account monitoring 

aims to identify weak accounts at an incipient stage to facilitate corrective action. Portfolio monitoring aims towards 

managing risk concentration in the portfolio as well as identifying stress in certain occupations, markets and states. 



34.6.2. Significant increase in credit risk

  The Company monitors all financial assets that are subject to impairment requirements to assess whether there has been a 

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Company 

measures the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than Stage 1 (12-month) Expected Credit Loss (ECL). Pending the 

adoption of scoring models to assess the change in credit status at an account level and at portfolio level, the Company has 

adopted SICR (Significant Increase in Credit risk) criteria based on Days Past Due (DPD). The following table lists the staging 

criteria used in the Company: Staging Criterion

  Stage-1: 0 up to 30 days past due

  Stage-2: 31 up to 90 days past due

  Stage-3: 90 and above days past due

  Stage 2 follows the rebuttable presumption stated in Ind AS 109, that credit risk has increased significantly since initial 

recognition no later than when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

  The Company also considers other qualitative factors and repayment history and considers guidance issued by the 

Institute of Chartered accountants of India (ICAI) for staging of advances to which moratorium benefit has been extended 

under the COVID regulatory package issued by RBI and as approved by the Board.

34.6.3. Measurement of ECL

  The key inputs used for measuring ECL on term loans issued by the Company are:

  Probability of default (PD): The PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon (12 Month). It is 

estimated as at a point in time. To compute Expected Credit Loss (ECL) the portfolio is segregated into 3 stages viz. Stage 1, 

Stage 2 and Stage 3 on the basis of Days Past Dues. The Group uses 12 month PD for the stage 1 borrowers and lifetime PD for 

stage 2 and 3 to compute the ECL. 

  Loss given default (LGD): LGD is an estimation of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the 

contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from eligible 

collateral.

  Exposure at default (EAD): EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes 

in the exposure after the reporting date including expected drawdowns on committed facilities.

  Probability of Default

  To arrive at Probability of Default, ‘Vintage Analysis’ was done considering monthly defaults of borrower since origination. 

  The analysis considered Monthly Default Rates starting from inception until the end of observation period i.e. March 2021 to 

calculate default rates for each vintage month. Cumulative PD was calculated from the marginal PDs for each vintage 

month. Simple Average and Weighted Average PD was computed for each Month on Book (MOB) period starting from MOB 0 

until MOB “n” (end of observation period). The Company has used Simple average to eliminate the bias that can be possible 

due to weighted average effect.

  Loss Given Default

  LGD was calculated using First time NPA (FTN) date and recovery data for each of these FTN dates. FTN date was taken from 

inception until March 2021. For each pool, recovery data was mapped to the subsequent months until March 2021 from the 

respective default month i.e. recovery data was retrieved and plotted against the flow of month  i.e. Months on Book  MOB 0, 

MOB 1, MOB 2, MOB 3 till MOB (n) against each default month. Considering time value of money, recoveries in each month 

was discounted to arrive at the value as of FTN date. Average Interest Rates charged for each disbursement year was used as 

the Effective Interest Rates (EIR) for the loans.

  Marginal Recovery rates was computed for each month as Discounted Recovery amount for a given month divided by the 

total outstanding amount for the given FTN date. Cumulative recovery rates were computed for each FTN date and LGD for 

corresponding FTN date was computed by using the formula (1- Recovery Rate). Weighted average LGD was computed for 

the entire observation period, weights being the total outstanding amount for each FTN date.
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  Exposure at Default

  EAD is the total outstanding balance at the reporting date including principal and accrued interests at the reporting date. 

EAD calculation for all portfolios is as under:

   Stage 1 Assets:  

§ [(The total outstanding balance drawn) + (Undrawn Portion*CCF undrawn)].

   Stage 2 Assets:

§   [(The total outstanding balance drawn) + (Undrawn Portion*CCF undrawn)].

   Stage 3 Assets:  

§ [(The total outstanding balance drawn) + (Undrawn Portion*CCF undrawn)].

   Credit Conversion Factor (CCF) for undrawn portion has been taken at 100% based on historical experience and other 

 information available with the Company.

  The Company measures ECL as the product of PD , LGD and EAD estimates for its Ind AS 109 specified financial obligations.

  Credit Risk Concentrations

  In order to manage concentration risk, the Company, considering the regulatory limits, focuses on maintaining a diversified 

portfolio across housing loans and loans against property. An analysis of the Company's credit risk concentrations is 

provided in the following tables which represent gross carrying amounts of each class.
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As at
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Loans (at amortised cost) - Gross amount  

 Concentration by products  

 Housing Loans   2,06,848.94   1,63,579.26 

 Loans against property (including Loans subordinated as  1,37,579.21   1,11,283.14 

 Credit Enhancements for assets de-recognised)  

 Total Advances   3,44,428.15   2,74,862.40 

` in lakhs

Particulars

34.6.4 The tables below analyse the movement of the loss allowance during the year per class of assets.

  The table below provides an analysis of the gross carrying amount of Loans by past due status.

Stage 1
 12-month ECL

 Loss allowance as at March 31, 2021  394.96   205.07   693.12   1,293.15 

 Loss allowance as at March 31, 2020  121.56   91.42   582.04   795.02 

 Movement for the year ended March 31, 2021  273.40   113.65   111.08   498.13

` in lakhs

Loss allowance on Loans at amortised cost
Stage 2 

Lifetime ECL
Stage 3 

Lifetime ECL

Particulars

 Loans    

 0 up to 30 days  3,11,893.94   428.14   2,60,461.37   214.65 

 31 up to 90 days  30,086.41   159.66   10,188.55   37.97 

 90 days and above  2,447.80   705.35   4,212.48   542.40 

 Total  3,44,428.15   1,293.15   2,74,862.40   795.02

` in lakhs

As at March 31, 2021

Gross carrying Loss allowance

As at March 31, 2020

Gross carrying Loss allowance

Total

34.6.5 Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

  The Company holds collateral or other credit enhancements to mitigate credit risk associated with financial assets. The 

main types of collateral and the types of assets these are associated with are listed in the table below.

Type of Collateral held

 Housing Loans  Mortgage of the immovable property

 Loan Against Properties Mortgage of the immovable property

Particulars
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  Although collateral can be an important mitigation of credit risk, it is the Company’s practice to lend on the basis of the 

customer’s ability to meet the obligations out of cash flow resources other than placing primary reliance on collateral and 

other credit risk enhancements. 

  The Company obtains first and exclusive charge on all collateral that it obtains for the loans given.  The loans are secured by 

collateral at the time of origination. The value of the property at the time of origination will be arrived by obtaining two 

valuation reports from in-house valuers.

  Immovable Property is the collateral for Housing and non-housing loans. Security Interest in favour of the Company is 

created by Mortgage through deposit of title deed which is registered wherever required by law.

  The Company does not obtain any other form of credit enhancement other than the above. All the Company’s term loans are 

secured by way of tangible Collateral.

  Any surplus remaining after settlement of outstanding debt by way of sale of collateral is returned to the customer / 

borrower.

34.6.6 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

  The Company has not recognised any financial asset or liability on a net basis.

34.6.7 Financial Guarantee

  The Company has issued Corporate Guarantees of ̀ 21,675.40 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - ̀ 14,730.97 lakhs) to Banks and external 

lenders on behalf of the subsidiary - Aptus Finance India Private Limited. Based on the financial performance of the 

subsidiary, the Company does not expect the guarantee liability to devolve on the Company.

34.7 Liquidity risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 

liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as 

far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed 

conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the its reputation.

  Exposure to liquidity risk

  The Company manages and measures liquidity risk as per its ALM policy and the ALCO (Asset Liability Management 

Committee of the Company) is responsible for managing the liquidity risk. The Company not only measures its current 

liquidity position on an ongoing basis but also forecasts how liquidity position may emerge under different assumptions. 

The liquidity position is tracked through maturity or cash flow mismatches across buckets spanning all maturities. 



PERFORMANCE REPORT | STATUTORY REPORTS | FINANCIAL STATEMENTSANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

APTUS VALUE HOUSING FINANCE INDIA LIMITED 113

N
O

T
E

S
 F

O
R

M
IN

G
 P

A
R

T
 O

F 
T

H
E

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

TA
T

E
M

E
N

T
S

 

Fo
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n

d
e
d

 M
a
rc

h
 3

1,
 2

0
20

 

3
4

.7
.1

 
Fo

ll
o

w
in

g
 a

re
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

u
a

l m
a

tu
ri

ti
e

s 
o

f 
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l l

ia
b

il
it

y
/

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l a
ss

e
ts

 a
t 

th
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

a
te

. L
o

a
n

s,
 d

e
b

t 
se

cu
ri

ti
e

s 
a

n
d

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
s 

in
cl

u
d

e
 e

st
im

a
te

d
 in

te
re

st
 r

e
ce

ip
ts

 /
 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
.

` 
in

 l
a

k
h

s

 
F

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

a
ss

e
ts

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
C
a
sh

 a
n

d
 c

a
sh

 e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
ts

 
 3

9,
20

7.
70

  
 1

,5
57

.4
3 

 
 -

  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 4
0
,7

6
5.

13
 

 
B

a
n

k 
B

a
la

n
ce

 o
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 c
a
sh

 a
n

d
  

- 
  
 

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 9
9.

34
  

 2
58

.0
2 

 
 7

73
.4

4
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 1
,13

0
.8

0
 

 
ca

sh
 e

q
u

iv
a
le

n
ts

 
 

 
Lo

a
n

s 
  

6
,2

19
.0

7 
 

 6
,2

6
0
.8

6
  

 6
,3

0
1.

73
  

 1
8
,8

0
5.

0
5 

 
 3

7,
54

0
.17

  
 1

,4
9,

74
2.

6
4
  

 1
,4

0
,7

0
4
.5

2 
 

 1
,2

9,
8
6
7.1

5 
 

 1
,4

0
,7

76
.7

9
  

 6
7,

0
9
4
.0

2 
 

 7
,0

3,
31

2.
0
0
 

 
In

ve
st

m
e
n

ts
 

  
5,

27
5.

22
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 1
5,

19
0
.8

4
  

 2
0
,4

6
6
.0

6
 

 
O

th
e
r 

F
in

a
n

ci
a
l 

a
ss

e
ts

 
 7

26
.6

6
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 2
6
4
.0

8
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 9
9
0
.7

4
 

 
To

ta
l 

(A
) 

  
51

,4
2

8
.6

5
  

 7
,8

18
.2

9
  

 6
,3

0
1.

73
  

 1
8

,8
0

5
.0

5
  

 3
7,

6
3

9
.5

1 
 

 1
,5

0
,2

6
4

.7
4

  
 1

,4
1,

4
77

.9
6

  
 1

,2
9

,8
6

7.1
5

  
 1

,4
0

,7
76

.7
9

  
 8

2
,2

8
4

.8
6

  
 7

,6
6

,6
6

4
.7

3
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
F

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

li
a

b
il

it
ie

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Tr

a
d

e
 p

a
ya

b
le

s 
 1

4
0
.9

1 
 

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 1
4
0
.9

1 

 
D

e
b

t 
se

cu
ri

ti
e
s 

 1
4
3.

8
4
  

 1
,15

0
.5

6
  

 1
4
3.

8
4
  

 4
4
1.1

0
  

 1
,8

8
3.

14
  

 3
3,

35
4
.3

4
  

 1
2,

19
5.

59
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 4
9,

31
2.

4
1 

 
B

o
rr

o
w

in
gs

 (
o
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 d
e
b

t 
se

cu
ri

ti
e
s)

 
 2

,4
6
5.

55
  

 1
,9

0
7.

0
5 

 
 4

,4
34

.9
3 

 
 1

4
,7

0
6
.8

1 
 

 2
6
,6

55
.7

0
  

 8
0
,9

4
4
.6

1 
 

 5
4
,17

5.
0
6
  

 2
3,

13
5.

9
8
  

 1
3,

8
26

.8
9
  

 -
  
  

 2
,2

2,
25

2.
58

 

 
Le

a
se

 l
ia

b
il
it

ie
s 

 3
6
.6

1 
 

 3
6
.6

1 
 

 3
6
.3

5 
 

 1
0
4
.4

2 
 

 1
8
2.

4
6
  

 3
6
4
.0

9
  

 3
3.

28
  

 1
1.

0
9
  

 1
.6

4
  

 -
  
  

 8
0
6
.5

5 

 
O

th
e
r 

fi
n

a
n

ci
a
l 

li
a
b

il
it

ie
s 

 1
,2

9
8
.8

9
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 1
,2

9
8
.8

9
 

 
To

ta
l 

(B
) 

  
4

,0
8

5
.8

0
  

 3
,0

9
4

.2
2

  
 4

,6
15

.1
2

  
 1

5
,2

5
2

.3
3

  
 2

8
,7

2
1.

3
0

  
 1

,1
4

,6
6

3
.0

4
  

 6
6

,4
0

3
.9

3
  

 2
3

,1
4

7.
0

7 
 

 1
3

,8
2

8
.5

3
  

 -
   

 
 2

,7
3

,8
11

.3
4

 

 
N

e
t 

F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
A

ss
e

ts
 (

A
-B

) 
 4

7,
3

4
2

.8
5

  
 4

,7
2

4
.0

7 
 

 1
,6

8
6

.6
1 

 
 3

,5
5

2
.7

2
  

 8
,9

18
.2

1 
 

 3
5

,6
0

1.
70

  
 7

5
,0

74
.0

3
  

 1
,0

6
,7

2
0

.0
8

  
 1

,2
6

,9
4

8
.2

6
  

 8
2

,2
8

4
.8

6
  

 4
,9

2
,8

5
3

.3
9

A
s 

o
n

 M
a

rc
h

 3
1,

 2
0

2
1

1 
d

a
y

 t
o

 
3

0
/3

1 
d

a
y

s 
(O

n
e

 M
o

n
th

)

O
ve

r 
o

n
e

 
m

o
n

th
 t

o
 

2
 m

o
n

th
s

O
ve

r 
 

2
 m

o
n

th
s 

u
p

 t
o

 3
 m

o
n

th
s

O
ve

r 
3

 m
o

n
th

s 
u

p
 t

o
 6

 m
o

n
th

s

O
ve

r 
6

 
m

o
n

th
s 

to
 

1 
ye

a
r

O
ve

r 
1 

ye
a

r 
to

 3
 y

e
a

rs

O
ve

r 
3

 y
e

a
rs

 t
o

 
5

 y
e

a
rs

O
ve

r 
5

 y
e

a
rs

 t
o

 
7 

ye
a

rs

O
ve

r 
7 

ye
a

rs
 t

o
 

10
 y

e
a

rs

O
ve

r 
10

 y
e

a
rs

To
ta

l 

 
F

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

a
ss

e
ts

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
C
a
sh

 a
n

d
 c

a
sh

 e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
ts

 
 4

8
,2

16
.4

6
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 4
8
,2

16
.4

6
 

 
B

a
n

k 
B

a
la

n
ce

 o
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 c
a
sh

 a
n

d
  

10
,6

78
.6

8
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 2
51

.0
1 

 
 1

51
.8

5 
 

 7
52

.3
4
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 1
1,

8
33

.8
8
 

 
ca

sh
 e

q
u

iv
a
le

n
ts

 
 

 
Lo

a
n

s 
  

4
,5

54
.15

  
 3

,8
0
7.

0
6
  

 4
,9

0
6
.4

5 
 

 1
4
,7

28
.4

3 
 

 2
9,

4
29

.11
  

 1
,2

1,
6
22

.4
9
  

 1
,11

,3
47

.11
  

 1
,0

1,
0
0
3.

31
  

 1
,16

,8
39

.18
  

 7
6
,9

35
.9

7 
 

 5
,8

5,
17

3.
26

 

 
In

ve
st

m
e
n

ts
 

  
- 

  
 

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 1
5,

13
8
.2

9
  

 1
5,

13
8
.2

9
 

 
O

th
e
r 

F
in

a
n

ci
a
l 

a
ss

e
ts

 
 2

7.
0
1 

 
 -

  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 2
37

.0
5 

 
 -

  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 2
6
4
.0

6
 

 
To

ta
l 

(A
) 

  
6

3
,4

76
.3

0
  

 3
,8

0
7.

0
6

  
 4

,9
0

6
.4

5
  

 1
4

,7
2

8
.4

3
  

 2
9

,6
8

0
.1

2
  

 1
,2

2
,0

11
.3

9
  

 1
,1

2
,0

9
9

.4
5

  
 1

,0
1,

0
0

3
.3

1 
 

 1
,1

6
,8

3
9

.1
8

  
 9

2
,0

74
.2

6
  

 6
,6

0
,6

2
5

.9
5

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
F

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

li
a

b
il

it
ie

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Tr

a
d

e
 p

a
ya

b
le

s 
 1

0
2.

0
7 

 
 -

  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 1
0
2.

0
7 

 
D

e
b

t 
se

cu
ri

ti
e
s 

 3
27

.9
8
  

 1
,3

4
3.

71
  

 3
27

.9
8
  

 1
,0

0
5.

8
1 

 
 3

,0
10

.3
2 

 
 1

2,
0
27

.5
9
  

 3
0
,3

38
.16

  
 4

2,
11

5.
54

  
 -

  
  

 -
  
  

 9
0
,4

9
7.

0
9
 

 
B

o
rr

o
w

in
gs

 (
o
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 d
e
b

t 
se

cu
ri

ti
e
s)

 
 2

,3
22

.4
4
  

 1
,8

0
1.

6
5 

 
 4

,8
6
7.

75
  

 8
,2

28
.7

1 
 

 1
6
,3

4
0
.7

1 
 

 6
1,

34
9.

50
  

 3
9,

53
0
.9

4
  

 1
7,

71
7.

4
0
  

 6
,18

8
.6

4
  

 1
18

.5
8
  

 1
,5

8
,4

6
6
.3

2 

 
Le

a
se

 l
ia

b
il
it

ie
s 

 3
3.

0
6
  

 3
3.

0
9
  

 3
3.

10
  

 1
0
4
.9

3 
 

 2
0
6
.17

  
 5

8
1.

72
  

 1
0
0
.7

1 
 

 2
0
.0

2 
 

 5
.5

0
  

 -
  
  

 1
,11

8
.3

0
 

 
O

th
e
r 

fi
n

a
n

ci
a
l 

li
a
b

il
it

ie
s 

 5
28

.7
3 

 
 -

  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 -
  
  

 5
28

.7
3 

 
To

ta
l 

(B
) 

  
3

,3
14

.2
8

  
 3

,1
78

.4
5

  
 5

,2
2

8
.8

3
  

 9
,3

3
9

.4
5

  
 1

9
,5

5
7.

2
0

  
 7

3
,9

5
8

.8
1 

 
 6

9
,9

6
9

.8
1 

 
 5

9
,8

5
2

.9
6

  
 6

,1
9

4
.1

4
  

 1
18

.5
8

  
 2

,5
0

,7
12

.5
1 

 
N

e
t 

F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
A

ss
e

ts
 (

A
-B

) 
 6

0
,1

6
2

.0
2

  
 6

2
8

.6
1 

 
 (

3
2

2
.3

8
) 

 5
,3

8
8

.9
8

  
 1

0
,1

2
2

.9
2

  
 4

8
,0

5
2

.5
8

  
 4

2
,1

2
9

.6
4

  
 4

1,
15

0
.3

5
  

 1
,1

0
,6

4
5

.0
4

  
 9

1,
9

5
5

.6
8

  
 4

,0
9

,9
13

.4
4

A
s 

o
n

 M
a

rc
h

 3
1,

 2
0

2
0

1 
d

a
y

 t
o

 
3

0
/3

1 
d

a
y

s 
(O

n
e

 M
o

n
th

)

O
ve

r 
o

n
e

 
m

o
n

th
 t

o
 

2
 m

o
n

th
s

O
ve

r 
 

2
 m

o
n

th
s 

u
p

 t
o

 3
 m

o
n

th
s

O
ve

r 
3

 m
o

n
th

s 
u

p
 t

o
 6

 m
o

n
th

s

O
ve

r 
6

 
m

o
n

th
s 

to
 

1 
ye

a
r

O
ve

r 
1 

ye
a

r 
to

 3
 y

e
a

rs

O
ve

r 
3

 y
e

a
rs

 t
o

 
5

 y
e

a
rs

O
ve

r 
5

 y
e

a
rs

 t
o

 
7 

ye
a

rs

O
ve

r 
7 

ye
a

rs
 t

o
 

10
 y

e
a

rs

O
ve

r 
10

 y
e

a
rs

To
ta

l 



PERFORMANCE REPORT | STATUTORY REPORTS | FINANCIAL STATEMENTSANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

APTUS VALUE HOUSING FINANCE INDIA LIMITED 114

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

34.8 Operational risk

  Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and system or from 

external events. Operational risk is associated with human error, system failures and inadequate procedures and controls. 

It is the risk of loss arising from the potential that inadequate information system; technology failures, breaches in internal 

controls, fraud, unforeseen catastrophes, or other operational problems may result in unexpected losses or reputation 

problems. Operational risk exists in all products and business activities.

  The Company recognizes that operational risk event types that have the potential to result in substantial losses includes 

Internal fraud, External fraud, employment practices and workplace safety, clients, products and business practices, 

business disruption and system failures, damage to physical assets, and finally execution, delivery and process 

management.

  The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavours to manage these risks through a control 

framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access, 

authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, such as the use of internal audit.

Note: 35 Earnings per share

  Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted 

average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year after considering the adjustment mentioned in Note 44(i).

  Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average 

number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be 

issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares after considering the adjustment 

mentioned in Note 44(i).

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 Profit After Tax (A)  21,785.48   18,141.85 

 Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (Face Value `2 Each) - Basic (B)  48,00,06,701   44,22,54,910 

 Add: Effect of dilutive potential equity shares   

   - Employee stock options  9,62,830   26,06,252 

 Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (Face Value `2 Each) - Diluted (C)  48,09,69,531   44,48,61,162 

 Earnings Per Share  - Basic (`) (not annualised) (A / B)  4.54   4.10 

 Earnings Per Share  - Diluted (`) (not annualised) (A / C)  4.53   4.08

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: 36 Disclosure pursuant to Schedule V Of Clause A.2 Regulation 53(f) of the Securities and Exchange Board 

                of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Amount outstanding
Maximum amount 

outstanding during 
the year

 As at March 31, 2021    

 Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans to Subsidiary    

   Aptus Finance India Private Limited    

  - Principal outstanding  1,800.00   7,000.00 

  - Interest accrued but not due -     145.81 

 As at March 31, 2020    

 Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans to Subsidiary    

   Aptus Finance India Private Limited    

  - Principal outstanding  5,100.00   9,450.00 

  - Interest accrued but not due  -     219.63

` in lakhs

Particulars
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

Note: 37 Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 (a) Gross amount required to be spent during the year  302.56   200.93 

 (b) Amount spent during the year

       (i)  Construction / acquisition of any asset  -     -   

       (ii) On purposes other than (i) above  111.64   64.72 

 Excess / (Shortfall) (A-B)*  (190.92)  (136.21)

` in lakhs

Particulars

   * The Company has provided for the shortfall in CSR expenditure as at March 31, 2021.

   (i)   None of the CSR projects undertaken by the Company falls under the definition of "On-going Projects".

   (ii)  There is no amount required to be contributed to specified fund u/s 135 (6) by the Company.

Note: 38 Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety

   The following tables provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that part or all of the 

transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the associated liabilities: 

   The company has Securitised certain loans, however the company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards, 

hence these assets have not been de-recognised.

As at
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at amortised cost  3,843.41   5,435.55 

 Carrying amount of associated liabilities measured at amortised cost  2,676.99   4,584.41 

 Fair value of assets  3,882.23   5,521.00 

 Fair value of associated liabilities  2,676.99   4,584.41 

 Net position at Fair Value  1,205.24   936.59

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: 39  Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

Particulars

 ASSETS

 Financial Assets        

 Cash and cash equivalents 40,757.50   -     40,757.50  48,177.90   -     48,177.90 

 Bank balance other than cash and  93.70   875.75   969.45  10,929.28   731.16   11,660.44 

 cash equivalents   

 Loans 22,125.06   3,21,009.94   3,43,135.00  14,770.96   2,59,296.42   2,74,067.38

 Investments 5,275.22   15,190.84   20,466.06  -     15,138.29   15,138.29

 Other financial assets 726.66   264.08   990.74  27.01   237.05   264.06

 Non-financial Assets        

 Deferred tax assets (net)  -     1,490.01   1,490.01  -     1,089.55   1,089.55

 Property, plant and equipment  -     248.17   248.17  -     326.71   326.71

 Intangible assets -     26.78   26.78  -     35.35   35.35

 Right-of-use assets -     680.69   680.69  -     647.65   647.65

 Other non-financial assets 160.14   -     160.14  128.60   -     128.60 

        

 TOTAL ASSETS 69,138.28   3,39,786.26   4,08,924.54  74,033.75   2,77,502.18   3,51,535.93

` in lakhs

As at March 31, 2021

Within 12
months

Total
After 12
months

As at March 31, 2020

Within 12
months

Total
After 12
months



Note: 39  Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (Contd..)

Particulars

 LIABILITIES        

 Financial Liabilities        

 Trade payables  140.91   -     140.91  43.75   -     43.75 

 Debt securities 784.66   37,359.47   38,144.13  790.76   60,451.28   61,242.04

 Borrowings (other than debt  37,276.80   1,41,315.96   1,78,592.76  22,481.61   99,383.71   1,21,865.32

 securities) 

 Lease liabilities 349.11   359.94   709.05  277.82   388.54   666.36

 Other financial liabilities 1,298.89   -     1,298.89  587.05   -     587.05 

        

 Non-Financial Liabilities        

 Current tax liabilities (Net) 343.30   -     343.30  526.68   -     526.68 

 Provisions -     330.18   330.18  -     252.43   252.43 

 Other non-financial liabilities 255.71   -     255.71  168.55   -     168.55

        

 TOTAL LIABILITIES 40,449.38   1,79,365.55   2,19,814.93  24,876.22   1,60,475.96   1,85,352.18

 NET ASSETS / (LIABILITIES) 28,688.90   1,60,420.71   1,89,109.61  49,157.53   1,17,026.22   1,66,183.75

` in lakhs

As at March 31, 2021

Within 12
months

Total
After 12
months

As at March 31, 2020

Within 12
months

Total
After 12
months
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For the year ended March 31, 2021 

Note: 40 Share-based payments (Refer Note 44(iii))

   Employee share option plan

40.1 Details of the employee share option plan

  (a) In the Annual General Meeting held on August 7, 2015, the shareholders approved the issue of up to 18,00,000 options 

 under the Scheme titled "Aptus Employees Stock Option Scheme 2015" (hereinafter referred to as Aptus ESOS, 2015).

   The Schemes allow the issue of options to employees of the Company. Each option comprises one underlying equity share.

   As per the Scheme, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("The Committee") grants the options to the 

 employees deemed eligible and also governs the operation of the scheme.

   The difference between the fair price of the the options granted on the date of grant of option and the exercise price of 

 the option representing Stock compensation expense is expensed over the vesting period.

  (b) Employee stock options details as on the balance sheet date:

Grant 7 under 
Aptus ESOS 2015

 Date of Grant  August 07, 2015 May 17, 2017

 Date of Board approval August 07, 2015 May 17, 2017

 Date of shareholders approval August 07, 2015 August 07, 2015

 Number of options granted  15,00,000   1,50,000 

 Method of settlement  Equity   Equity 

 Vesting period  31.03.2016 to 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 to 31.03.2021

 Manner of vesting In a graded manner over a 4 year period with 25% of the grants

      vesting in each year 

 Exercise price per option (`)  75.00   130.00 

 Price of Underlying share at the   56.26   111.02 

 time of the Option Grant (`)

Particulars
Grant 8 under 

Aptus ESOS 2015
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  (c) Movement in share options during the year are as follows:

Grant 7 under 
Aptus ESOS 2015 Total

 Options outstanding as at April 1, 2019  9,10,000   1,50,000   10,60,000 

 Add: Options granted during the year  -     -     -   

 Less: Options forfeited/lapsed during the year  -     -     -   

 Less: Options exercised during the year  (3,35,000)  (37,500)  (3,72,500)

 Options outstanding as at March 31, 2020  5,75,000   1,12,500   6,87,500 

 Add: Options granted during the year  -     -     -   

 Less: Options forfeited/lapsed during the year  -     -     -   

 Less: Options exercised during the year  (3,45,000)  (75,000)  (4,20,000)

 Options outstanding as at March 31, 2021  2,30,000   37,500   2,67,500

Particulars
Grant 8 under 

Aptus ESOS 2015

40.2 Fair value of share options granted

  During the year ended March 31, 2018, 1,50,000 shares were granted under the Aptus ESOS 2015 scheme. The fair value of 

options have been estimated on the date of the grant using Black-Scholes model by an external firm of Chartered 

Accountants. The key assumptions used in the model for calculating fair value are as below:

August 07, 2015

 Risk Free Interest Rate 8.04% to 8.26% 7.21% to 7.73%

 Expected Life (in years) 2.65 to 5.65 3 to 6

 Expected Annual Volatility of Shares 43.15% 35.99%

 Expected Dividend Yield 0% 0%

 Price of Underlying share at the time of the Option Grant 56.26 111.02

 Fair Value of the Option (`)  

 1st Stage    13.61 29.67

 2nd Stage   17.21 36.87

 3rd Stage   20.60 43.37

 4th Stage   23.64 49.29

Assumptions
May 17, 2017

Date of Grant

40.3 Expense arising from share based payment transaction recognized in profit or loss statement as employee benefit 

expense are as follows:

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 Employee benefit expense 4.62 19.21

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: 41 Disclosure pursuant to RBI notification no. RBI/2020-21/60 DOR.NBFC (HFC).CC.No.118/03.10.136/2020-21 

 dated October 22, 2020 and RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 

 March 13, 2020 on Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards

  RBI has issued Notification no. RBI/2020-21/60 DOR.NBFC (HFC).CC.No.118/03.10.136/2020-21 dated October 22, 2020 and 

RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 in respect of recognition of impairment 

on financial instruments starting from financial year 2020-21 for Housing Finance Companies. The Company has complied 

with the requirements of Ind AS and the guidelines and policies approved by the Board in this regard.

  Any shortfall in ECL provision compared to the requirements as per IRAC norms are apportioned by the Company to 

Impairment Reserve at reporting periods. Such balance can be utilised / withdrawn by the Company only with prior 

permission of the Reserve Bank of India as per the said Circular. The shortfall in ECL provision compared to IRACP 

requirement as at March 31, 2021 is ̀ 301.53 lakhs. The balance in the impairment reserve as at March 31, 2021 is ̀ 610.36 lakhs 

(Refer Note 19.1 and Note 19.2.4).
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Asset Classification as per 
RBI Norms

  (1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7) =  (4)-(6)

 Performing Assets      

 Standard Stage 1  3,07,871.63   394.96   3,07,476.67   997.84   (602.88) 

  Stage 2  34,088.46   205.07   33,883.39   116.79   88.28 

  Stage 3  -     -     -     -     -   

 Sub-Total  3,41,960.09   600.03   3,41,360.06   1,114.63   (514.60)     

 Non-Performing Assets (NPA)      

 Substandard Stage 3  1,502.21   116.51   1,385.70   207.72   (91.21) 

 Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3  659.05   265.14   393.91   145.60   119.54 

 1 to 3 years Stage 3  293.68   296.32   -2.64   118.50   177.82 

 More than 3 years Stage 3  13.12   15.15   -2.03   15.15   -   

 Sub-Total for doubtful   2,468.06   693.12   1,774.94   486.97   206.15 

      

 Loss Stage 3  -     -     -     -     -   

 Sub-Total for NPA   2,468.06   693.12   1,774.94   486.97   206.15    

  

  Stage 1  10,270.29   5.68   10,264.61   -     5.68

  Stage 2  78.71   0.90   77.81   -     0.90 

  Stage 3  4.00   0.34   3.66   -     0.34 

 Sub-Total   10,353.00   6.92   10,346.08   -     6.92 

      

 Total Stage 1  3,18,141.92   400.64   3,17,741.28   997.84   (597.20) 

  Stage 2  34,167.17   205.97   33,961.20   116.79   89.18 

  Stage 3  2,472.06   693.46   1,778.60   486.97   206.49 

  Total  3,54,781.15   1,300.07   3,53,481.08   1,601.60   (301.53)

` in lakhs

Asset 
Classification 

as per 
Ind AS 109

Note: 41 Disclosure pursuant to RBI notification no. RBI/2020-21/60 DOR.NBFC (HFC).CC.No.118/03.10.136/2020-21 
 dated October 22, 2020 and RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 
 March 13, 2020 on Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards (Contd..)

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount 

as per Ind AS

Loss Allowances 
(Provisions) as 
required under 

Ind AS 109

Net 
Carrying 
Amount

Provisions 
required 

as per 
IRACP norms

Difference 
between 

Ind AS 109 
provisions and 
IRACP norms

Other items such as guarantees, 
loan commitments, etc. which are 
in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not 
covered under current Income 
Recognition, Asset Classification 
and Provisioning (IRACP) norms

Note: 42 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

* Other column includes the effect of interest accrued but not paid on borrowing, amortisation of processing fees, recognition of 
liabilities on account of new lease etc.

` in lakhs

01-Apr-20

 Debt securities   60,451.28   (22,500.00)  192.85   38,144.13 

 Borrowings (other than debt securities)  1,21,865.32   57,145.29   (417.85)  1,78,592.76 

 Lease liabilities   666.36   (414.73)  457.42   709.05

 Total liabilities from financing activities  1,82,982.96   34,230.56   232.42   2,17,445.94 

Particulars Cash flows Other * 31-Mar-21

01-Apr-19

 Debt securities   70,138.48   (10,000.00)  312.80   60,451.28 

 Borrowings (other than debt securities)  85,052.72   36,792.35   20.25   1,21,865.32 

 Lease liabilities   -     (325.23)  991.59   666.36 

 Total liabilities from financing activities  1,55,191.20   26,467.12   1,324.64   1,82,982.96

Particulars Cash flows Other * 31-Mar-20
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Note: 43  Leases

  The Company has lease contracts for buildings used for the branches. Leases of such assets generally have lease terms 

between 3 and 9 years. The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.

  The Company also has certain leases for buildings with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the ‘short-

term lease’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

  Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities included under financial liabilities and the movements during the 

year:

  Movement of Lease Liability

  The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by 

management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company’s business needs. 

Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these extension and termination options are 

reasonably certain to be exercised.

Note: 44  Events after reporting period

(i)  The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on May 05, 2021 and shareholders in the Extraordinary General 

Meeting held on May 06, 2021 approved the sub-division of shares from `10 per share to `2 per share. The number of 

shares used for the calculation of earnings per share, and the earnings per share in Note 35 (including that in the 

comparative year), have been adjusted for pursuant to Paragraph 64 of Ind AS 33 - "Earnings Per Share", prescribed 

under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. No other adjustments are made in the Standalone Financial Statements 

on account of the share split.

(ii)  The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on May 05, 2021 has made the first and final call of 525.03 per `

share on the 15,00,000 equity shares allotted to Mr. M Anandan, Chairman and Managing Director. No adjustments are 

made in the Standalone Financial Statements for these calls made by the Company.

As at
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Opening Balance  666.36   -   

 Add: Additions during the year  385.41   901.45 

 Add / Less: Accretion of Interest  72.03   90.14 

 Less: Payments during the year  (414.73)  (325.23)

 Closing Balance   709.07   666.36 

 Current     349.11   277.82 

 Non Current    359.96   388.54

` in lakhs

Particulars

 The incremental borrowing rate for lease liabilities is 10% p.a.

 The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 34.7.1.

The following are the amounts recognised in the Statement of profit and loss:

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

 Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 352.37   278.77 

 Interest expense on lease liabilities  72.03   90.14 

 Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses)  -     72.77 

 Total      424.40   441.68

` in lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

 Total cash outflow for leases  414.73   325.23

Particulars

` in lakhs
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  (iii) The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on November 12, 2020 approved the Aptus Employee Stock 

Option Scheme, 2021 ("ESOS 2021") with such number of options which shall not exceed 1,00,00,000 options. The 

shareholders in the Extraordinary General Meeting held on May 06, 2021 approved the ESOS 2021 with such number of 

options which shall not exceed 1,00,00,000 options. No adjustments are made in the Standalone Financial Statements 

on account of this proposed new ESOP Scheme.

(iv) Based on the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on May 12, 2021, the Company has 

filed the draft red herring prospectus dated May 14, 2021 with the Securities and Exchange Board of India, pursuant to 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended 

in connection with the initial public offering of equity shares of ̀ 2 each of the Company and offer for sale by the selling 

shareholders of the Company.

Note: 45  Disclosure as required by National Housing Bank

The following disclosures have been given in terms of National Housing Bank’s notification no. NHB.HFC.CG-

DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated February 9, 2017 and in terms of the circular no. NHB/ND/DRS/Pol-No.35/2010-11 dated October 

11, 2010. Further, the disclosures which are for regulatory and supervisory purpose, have been made so as to comply with 

NHB’s Policy Circular No. NHB(ND)/DRS/Policy Circular No. 89/2017-18 dated June 14, 2018 which requires Housing Finance 

Companies to continue to follow the extant provisions of National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and Housing Finance Companies 

(NHB) Directions 2010 including framework on prudential norms and other related circulars issued in this regards by NHB 

from time to time and the same have been compiled by the Management in accordance with Accounting Standards 

prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as 

amended (Indian GAAP) and relied upon by the auditors.

45.1      Schedule to the Balance Sheet

Particulars

 Liabilities side:      

 1.  Loans and advances availed by the HFC inclusive 

  of interest accrued thereon but not paid:      

  (a) Debentures      

   - Secured   38,144.13   -     60,451.28   -

   - Unsecured  -     -     -     -   

     (other than falling within the meaning of 

      public deposits) 

  (b) Deferred credits  -     -     -     -   

  (c) Term loans  1,72,415.77   -     1,16,302.66   -

  (d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowings  -     -     -     -   

  (e) Commercial Paper  -     -     -     -

  (f ) Public Deposits -     -     -     -   

  (g) Other Loans  

     - Securitisation loans 2,676.99   -     4,584.41   - 

    - Working capital loans 3,500.00   -     978.25   -   

      

 2.  Break-up of (1)(f)above (outstanding public 

  deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon 

  but not paid)      

  (a) In the form of Unsecured debentures -     -     -     -   

  (b) In the form of partly secured debentures  -     -     -     -   

   i.e. debentures where there is a shortfall 

   in the value of security 

  (c) Other public deposits  -     -     -     -

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Amount 
Outstanding

Amount 
Outstanding

Amount 
Overdue

Amount 
Overdue

` in lakhs
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As at
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Assets side:      

 3.  Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables 

  [other than those included in (4) below] :      

  (a) Secured  (refer note 6)  3,44,428.15   2,74,862.40 

  (b) Unsecured  -     -   

      

 4.  Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets 

  counting towards asset financing activities      

  (i)  Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:      

    a) Financial lease  -     -   

    b) Operating lease  -     -   

  (ii)  Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:      

   a) Assets on Hire  -     -   

   b) Repossessed Assets  -     -   

  (iii) Other loans counting towards asset financing activities      

   a) Loans where Assets have been repossessed  -     -   

   b) Loans other than (a) above -     -   

 5.  Break-up of Investments:      

  Current Investments:      

  I.  Quoted:      

   i. Shares      

    a) Equity  -     -   

    b) Preference  -     -   

   ii. Debentures and Bonds  -     -   

   iii. Units of Mutual Funds   5,275.22   -   

   iv. Government Securities  -     -   

   v. Others (please specify)  -     -   

  II.  Unquoted:      

   i. Shares  -     -   

    a) Equity  -     -

    b) Preference  -     -   

   ii. Debentures and Bonds  -     -   

   iii. Units of Mutual Funds  -     -   

   iv. Government Securities  -     -   

   v. Others (please specify)       

  Long Term Investments:      

  I.  Quoted:      

   i. Shares   -     -   

    a) Equity  -     -   

    b) Preference  -     -   

   ii. Debentures and Bonds  -     -   

   iii. Units of Mutual Funds  -     -   

   iv. Government Securities  -     -   

   v. Others (please specify)    

  II.  Unquoted:      

   i. Shares  -       -   

    a) Equity  15,190.84   15,138.29 

    b) Preference  -     -   

   ii. Debentures and Bonds  -     -   

   iii. Units of Mutual Funds  -     -   

   iv. Government Securities  -     -   

   v. Others (please specify)

` in lakhs

Particulars
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6.      Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above: 

` in lakhs

Category

 1. Related parties      

  (a) Subsidiaries   1,800.00   -     1,800.00   5,100.00   -     5,100.00 

  (b) Companies in the same group   -     -     -     -     -     -   

  (c) Other related parties   -     -     -     -     -     -   

      

 2. Other than related parties  3,41,335.00   -     3,41,335.00   2,68,967.38   -     2,68,967.38 

  Total 3,43,135.00   -     3,43,135.00   2,74,067.38   -     2,74,067.38

As at March 31, 2021
(Net of Provisions)

Secured TotalUnsecured TotalSecured Unsecured

As at March 30, 2020
(Net of Provisions)

7.       Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long-term) in shares and securities (both quoted and 

         unquoted):

Category

 1. Related parties      

  (a) Subsidiaries  23,948.68   15,190.84   19,001.42   15,138.29 

  (b) Companies in the same group  -     -     -     -   

  (c) Other related parties  -     -     -     -   

      

 2. Other than related parties  -     -     -     -   

         23,948.68   15,190.84   19,001.42   15,138.29

Market Value / 
Break up or 
fair value or 

Net Asset 
Value as on 

March 31, 2021

` in lakhs

Book Value as on 
March 31, 2021

(Net of 
provisions)

Market Value / 
Break up or 
fair value or 

Net Asset 
Value as on 

March 30, 2020

Book Value as on 
March 30, 2020

(Net of 
provisions)

8.      Other Information

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Related Parties
Other than 

Related Parties

` in lakhs

Related Parties
Other than 

Related Parties

 i. Gross Non-Performing Assets (Stage 3 assets)  -     2,468.06   -     5,041.68 

 ii. Net Non-Performing Assets (Stage 3 assets) -     1,774.94   -     4,459.63 

 iii. Assets Acquired in Satisfaction of Debt -     -     -     -

45.2     Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)

As at
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Tier I Capital    1,86,138.43   1,61,977.01 

 Tier II Capital   (376.22)  484.20 

 Total Capital    1,85,762.21   1,62,461.21 

 Total Risk Assets 2,52,280.98   1,96,937.30

 Capital Ratios 

 CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 73.78% 82.25%

 CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) -0.15% 0.25%

 CRAR (%)   73.63% 82.49%

 Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- II Capital -     -   

 Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments -     -

` in lakhs

Particulars
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45.3  Reserve Fund u/s 29C, of NHB Act 1987

The movement in the Reserve Fund created under Section 29C of NHB Act, 1987 is disclosed under Note 19.1 (c) to the 

Financial Statements.

As at
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Value of Investments      

 i)  Gross Value of Investments      

  (a) In India   20,466.06   15,138.29 

  (b) Outside India -     -   

 ii) Provisions for Depreciation      

  (a) In India  -     -   

  (b) Outside India -     -   

 iii) Net Value of Investments      

  (a) In India   20,466.06   15,138.29 

  (b) Outside India  -     -   

      

 Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments      

 i)  Opening Balance -     -   

 ii) Add: Provisions made during the year -     -   

 iii)  Less: Write-off / Written-back of excess provisions during the year -     -   

 iv) Closing balance -     -

` in lakhs

Particulars

45.4     Investments

45.5  Derivatives

The Company has not entered into any Derivative transactions. 

Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS): Nil 

Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivative: Nil 

Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives: Not applicable

45.6     i) Securitised Assets

As at
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Number of Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) sponsored by the HFC for  2   3 

 Securitisation transactions*      

 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored  2,732.53   4,886.93 

 Total amount of exposures retained by the HFC towards the Minimum 

 Retention Ratio (MRR) as on the date of balance sheet      

 a)  Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements      

  -  First Loss  - -  

  -  Others     -     -   

 b) On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements      

  -  First Loss – Cash collateral  298.66   334.13

     -  Others –  Over collateral  1,243.67   1,371.35 

 Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR      

 a) Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements      

  -  Exposure to own securitizations -     -   

  -  Exposure to third party securitisations -     -   

 b) On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements

  -  Exposure to own securitizations -    -   

  -  Exposure to third party securitisations -     -

` in lakhs

Particulars

 * Represents the SPVs relating to outstanding securitisation transactions

ii)  Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction :  Nil   

iii)  Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by HFC      :  Nil   

iv)  Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold      :  Nil
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45.8 A. Exposure to Real Estate Sector 

As at
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 (a)  Direct Exposure  

  (i) Residential Mortgages *  

    Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or  3,42,628.15   2,69,762.40 

    will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented  

  

  (ii) Commercial Real Estate  

    Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates  -     -   

    (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, 

    multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial 

    premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, 

    development and construction, etc.). Exposure would also include 

    non-fund based (NFB) Limits  

  

  (iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other 

    securitised exposures  

        a. Residential  -     -   

        b. Commercial Real Estate  -     -   

  

 (b)  Indirect Exposure  

  Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing  -     -   

  Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)   

 Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector  3,42,628.15   2,69,762.40

` in lakhs

Particulars

 *  Includes exposures to Non-Housing loans secured by residential mortgages amounting to `1,35,779.21 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - 

  `1,02,989.59 lakhs)

  B. Exposure to Capital Market :  Nil   

  C. Details of financing of Parent Company products:   

  These details are not applicable since the Company is not a subsidiary of any company.  

  D. Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL)/ Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the HFC:  

  The Company has not exceeded Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) during the financial year ended 

March 31, 2021.

  E. Unsecured Advances: Nil

  F. Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business: Nil

Registration No.

 1. Ministry of Company Affairs CIN: U65922TN2009PLC073881 

 2. National Housing Bank Certificate Registration No. 05.0084.10 dated May 31, 2010

Regulator

45.9 Other Regulator Registrations

45.10 Disclosure of Penalties imposed by NHB and other regulators

  (i)  An amount of 5,000, including GST (March 31, 2020: Nil) has been levied by National Housing Bank for contravention of `

Section 29C(1) of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987. Also, an amount of 5,000, including GST (March 31, 2020: Nil) has `

been levied by National Housing Bank for non-compliance with respect to the provisions of Para 28 of the Housing 

Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010.   

  (ii) The Company has not received any adverse comments in writing by NHB or other Regulators on regulatory compliances, 

with a specific communication to disclose the same to the public.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 
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45.11 Related party transactions

  Details of the related parties, nature of the relationship with whom Company has entered transactions, remuneration of 

directors and balances in related party account at the year end, are given in Note no. 33. There were no material transaction 

with related parties and all these transactions with related parties were carried out in ordinary course of business at arm’s 

length price.

45.12 Group Structure

  The Company has only one wholly owned subsidiary - Aptus Finance India Private Limited.  There are no other entities in the 

group.

45.13 Ratings assigned by Credit Rating Agencies

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

45.14 Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies

  During the year,

  (a)  no prior period items occurred which has impact on Statement of Profit and loss, 

  (b)  no change in Accounting policy, 

  (c)   there is no withdrawal from reserve fund.

45.15 Revenue Recognition

  There are no circumstances in which revenue recognition has been postponed by the Company pending the resolution of 

significant uncertainties.

45.16 Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS)

  The Company has a wholly owned Subsidiary and the Consolidated financial statements is prepared in accordance with Ind 

AS 110.

As at March 31, 2021

 Non-Convertible Debentures ICRA A+ [Single A plus] ICRA A+ [Single A plus]

    CARE A+ [Single A plus] CARE A+ [Single A plus]

 Bank Term Loans ICRA A+ [Single A plus] ICRA A+ [Single A plus]

    CARE A+ [Single A plus] CARE A+ [Single A plus]

` in lakhs

Deposits Instruments
As at March 31, 2020

Ratings assigned

45.17 Provisions and Contingencies (Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Expenditure in 

Statement of Profit and Loss Account)

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

 1.  Provisions for depreciation on Investment  -     -   

 2.  Provision towards NPA  111.09   335.02 

 3.  Provision made towards current income taxes  6,524.32   4,924.24 

 4.  Provision for standard assets (with details like teaser loan, 

  CRE, CRE-RH etc.)    

  - Housing loans (Non-CRE)  226.59   (55.66)

  - Non-housing loans (Non-CRE)  160.44   (22.80)

 5.  Provision for undrawn commitments  (4.50)  9.75

` in lakhs

Particulars
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

  Break up of Loan & Advances and Provisions thereon

Particulars

 Standard Assets    

 a) Total Outstanding Amount  2,05,620.00   1,61,091.88   1,36,340.09   1,08,728.84 

 b) Provisions made  357.04   130.46   242.99   82.49 

 Sub-Standard Assets    

 a) Total Outstanding Amount  767.46   2,211.47   734.75   2,209.19 

 b) Provisions made  60.28   102.10   56.22   101.68 

 Doubtful Assets – Category-I    

 a) Total Outstanding Amount  295.14   130.67   363.91   232.49 

 b) Provisions made  117.11   53.08   152.71   75.26 

 Doubtful Assets – Category-II    

 a) Total Outstanding Amount  159.81   145.24   133.87   106.03 

 b) Provisions made  159.81   145.24   133.87   98.12 

 Doubtful Assets – Category-III    

 a) Total Outstanding Amount  6.53   -     6.59   6.59 

 b) Provisions made  6.53   -     6.59   6.59 

 Loss Assets    

 a) Total Outstanding Amount  -     -     -     -   

 b) Provisions made  -     -     -     -   

 TOTAL    

 a) Total Outstanding Amount  2,06,848.94   1,63,579.26   1,37,579.21   1,11,283.14 

 b) Provisions made  700.77   430.88   592.38   364.14

` in lakhs

Housing

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

Non-Housing

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

Category

 Up to one year   Category-I 

 One to three years Category-II 

 More than three years Category-III

Period for which the assets has been considered as doubtful

45.17 (Contd..)

Notes:   

 1) The total outstanding amount mean principal + accrued interest + other adjustments to arrive at the amortised cost.

 2) The Category of Doubtful Assets is as under

45.18 Draw Down from Reserves

  During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, there were no draw down from Reserves.

45.19 Concentration of Loans & Advances

As at
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Total Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers  2,481.25   5,829.40 

 Percentage of Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers to  0.72% 2.12%

 Total Advances of the HFC

` in lakhs

Particulars
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

45.20 Concentration of Exposures (including off-balance sheet exposure)

As at
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers  2,481.25   5,829.40 

 Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to  0.72% 2.12%

 Total Exposure of the HFC on borrowers / customers

` in lakhs

Particulars

45.21 Concentration of NPAs

As at
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts  238.46   365.97

` in lakhs

Particulars

45.23 Movement of NPAs

As at
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 (I) Net NPAs to Net Advances(%) 0.52% 1.63%

 (II) Movement of  Gross NPAs  

  a) Opening balance  5,041.68   1,052.15 

  b) Additions during the year  725.87   4,312.41 

  c) Reductions during the year  (3,299.49)  (322.88)

  d) Closing balance  2,468.06   5,041.68 

 (III) Movement of Net NPAs

  a) Opening balance  4,459.63   805.15 

  b) Additions during the year  282.52   3,896.75 

  c) Reductions during the year  (2,967.21)  (242.27)

  d) Closing balance  1,774.94   4,459.63 

 (IV) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on 

  standard assets)    

  a) Opening balance  582.05   247.00 

  b) Provisions made during the year  443.35   415.66 

  c) Write-off  /  write-back  of  excess provisions  (332.28)  (80.61)

  d) Closing balance  693.12   582.05

` in lakhs

Particulars

45.22 Sector-wise NPAs

` in lakhs

 A. Housing Loans:  

  1. Individuals  0.59% 1.52%

  2. Builders/Project Loans 0.00% 0.00%

  3. Corporates  0.00% 0.00%

  4. Others (specify) 0.00% 0.00%

  

 B. Non-Housing Loans:  

  1. Individuals  0.90% 2.19%

  2. Builders/Project Loans 0.00% 0.00%

  3. Corporates  0.00% 0.00%

  4. Others (specify)  0.00% 0.00%

Particulars

Percentage of NPAs to 
Total Advances in that Sector

As at
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

45.24 Overseas Assets - Nil

45.25 Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting Norms) - Nil

45.26 Customer Complaints

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

 a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year -     -   

 b) No. of complaints received during the year 265   138 

 c) No. of complaints redressed during the year 265   138 

 d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year -     -

Particulars

45.27 Disclosure on frauds pursuant to Master Direction - Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

  There were no instances of fraud reported during the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

45.28 Percentage of outstanding loans granted against the collateral of gold jewellery to their outstanding total assets - Nil 

(March 31, 2020: Nil)

45.29 Details on Principal Business Criteria

  Principal Business Criteria for the Company to be classified as "Housing Finance Company" as per the Paragraph 4.1.17 of 

Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, RBI/2020-

21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21, February 17, 2021 is given below:

 Percentage of housing finance assets to total assets (netted off by intangible assets)  50.59%

 (Refer note below) 

 Percentage of individual housing finance assets to total assets (netted off by intangible assets)  50.59%

 (Refer note below)

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2021

 Note: The amortised costs of housing finance assets and individual housing finance assets amounting to `2,06,848.94 lakhs is 

measured using effective interest rate method which required netting off of deferred processing fees and sourcing costs from 

gross housing finance assets and individual housing finance assets amounting to ̀ 3,566.63 lakhs as at March 31, 2021.

45.30 Disclosure on Liquidity Risk Management

  (a)  Funding concentration based on significant counterparty* (both deposits and borrowings):

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

 Number of Significant Counter parties* 19 17

 Balance as at year end  2,14,558.71   1,82,031.91 

 % of Total Deposits 0.00% 0.00%

 % of Total liabilities 97.61% 98.63%

Particulars

` in lakhs

 *Significant counterparty   is   as   defined in   RBI   Circular   RBI/2019-20/88   DOR.NBFC    (PD)    CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20  

dated  November  4,  2019  on  Liquidity  Risk  Management  Framework  for  Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core 

Investment Companies.

  (b)  Top 20 large deposits:

   Not applicable. The Company not accept public deposits.



45.30 Disclosure on Liquidity Risk Management (Contd..)

  (c)  Total of top 10 borrowings 

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

 Total of top 10 borrowings  1,85,254.08   1,59,401.01 

 % of Total Borrowings 85.47% 87.43%

Particulars

` in lakhs
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

  #(d)  Funding concentration based on significant instrument/product :

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

 Term loans  1,72,415.77   1,16,302.66 

 Securitisation loans  2,676.99   4,584.41 

 Working capital loans  3,500.00   978.25 

 Non-Convertible Debentures  38,144.13   60,451.28 

 % of Total liabilities 98.60% 98.78%

Particulars

` in lakhs

 # Significant instrument/productise as defined in RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 

dated November 4, 2019 on Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment 

Companies.

  (e)  Stock Ratios

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

 (i)  Commercial papers as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and  -     -   

  total assets  

 (ii) Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year)  -     -   

  as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets 

 (iii) Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total liabilities 18.48% 9.10%

 (iv) Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total assets 9.93% 4.78%

Particulars

` in lakhs

  (f) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

  The Board of Directors of the Company have adopted a Risk Management Policy. The Board adopted policy contains the 

framework and guidelines for Risk management. The changes brought in the Liquidity Risk Management Framework vide its 

Circular No. RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 November 04, 2019 are also being covered as part 

of the Risk Management Policy which will be reviewed by the Board periodically for compliance and implementation.

  The Board shall have the overall responsibility for management of liquidity risk by reviewing the implementation of the Risk 

Management Policy. The Company has also constituted Risk Management Committee and Asset-Liability Management 

Committee (ALCO) to carry out the functions as listed out in the said circular.

45.31 Moratorium

  Pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India circulars dated March 27, 2020 and May 23, 2020 (“RBI circular”) allowing lending 

institutions to offer moratorium to borrowers on payment of installments, the Company has extended moratorium to its 

borrowers in accordance with its Board approved policy. The disclosures in relation to asset classification and its related 

provisioning as required by RBI Circular DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dated April 17, 2020, is as below:



45.31 Moratorium (Contd..)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

Amount

 Amounts in SMA/overdue categories where the moratorium/deferment was extended  8,636.39 

 Asset classification benefits vide above mentioned RBI circular  581.91 

 Provisions made during the Q4 FY 2020 and Q1 & Q2 FY 2021  64.31 

 Provisions adjusted during the respective accounting periods against slippages and  (64.31)

 the residual provisions

 Residual provisions -

Particulars

45.32 Disclosure on one – time restructuring for the year ended March 31, 2021 pursuant to RBI notification 

RBI/2020- 21/16/DOR.NO.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 6, 2020

   No assets have been restructured during the year ended March 31, 2021.

Note: 46  Comparatives

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year 

classification / presentation.

As per our report of even date

For For and on behalf of of S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP  Board of Directors  
Chartered Accountants   Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited
ICAI Firm Regn No.101049W/E300004  

    
per Aniruddh Sankaran   M Anandan    K M Mohandass
Partner  Chairman & Managing Director Director  
Membership No: 211107   DIN: 00033633   DIN: 00707839
 
    P Balaji   Sanin Panicker 
    Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary
       Membership No: A32834    

Place : Chennai   Place : Chennai  
Date :  June 24, 2021   Date :  June 24, 2021

` in lakhs



Key Audit Matters

To the members of

APTUS VALUE HOUSING FINANCE INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial 

Statements of Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”), and its 

subsidiary, Aptus Finance India Private Limited (the Holding 

Company and its subsidiary, together referred to as “the 

Group”), comprising the Consolidated Balance sheet as at 

March 31 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

including Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and 

notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the 

“Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us, and based on the 

consideration of reports of other auditors on the separate 

financial statements and on the other financial information 

of the subsidiary, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial 

Statements give the information required by the Companies 

Act, 2013, as amended (the “Act”) in the manner so required 

and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 

consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at March 31, 2021, 

their consolidated profit including other comprehensive loss, 

their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated 

statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that 

date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 

(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described 

in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements' section of our report. We 

are independent of the Group, in accordance with the     

‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 

that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and 

we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to note no. 2B to the accompanying 

Consolidated Financial Statements, which describes the 

continuing economic and social disruption the Group is 

facing as a result of COVID-19 pandemic, and its possible 

consequential implications, on the Group's operations and 

financial metrics, including the Group's estimates of 

impairment of loans and that such estimates may be affected 

by the severity and duration of the pandemic.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2021. These matters were addressed in the 

context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter 

below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter 

is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the 

key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have 

fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's 

responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements section of our report, including in relation to 

these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the 

performance of procedures designed to respond to our 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements. The results of audit 

procedures performed by us and by other auditors of 

components not audited by us, as reported by them in their 

audit reports furnished to us by the management, including 

those procedures performed to address the matters below, 

provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying 

Consolidated Financial Statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Financial instruments, which include advances to 

customers, represents a significant portion of the total 

assets of the Group. The Group has advances aggregating 

` 4,00,396.47 lakhs as at March 31, 2021.

As per the expected credit loss model of the Group 

developed in accordance with the principles set out in Ind-

AS 109 on Financial Instruments, the Group is required to 

estimate the probability of loss / expected loss based on 

past experience and future considerations. This involves a 

significant degree of estimation and judgements, including 

determination of staging of financial instruments; 

estimation of probability of defaults, loss given defaults, 

exposure at defaults; and forward looking factors, micro- 

and macro-economic factors, in estimating the expected 

credit losses. Additionally, considering the evolving nature of 

the COVID-19 pandemic, which has continued to impact the 

Group's business operations, resulting in higher loan losses, 

the Group has considered additional provision as 

management overlay as part of its ECL, to reflect among 

other things the increased risk of deterioration in macro-

economic factors. Given the unique nature of the pandemic 

and the extent of its economic impact which depends on 

future developments including governmental  and 

regulatory measures and the Group 's responses thereto, the 

actual credit loss can be different than that being estimated.

Due to the significance of the amounts involved, judgments 

involved in classification of loans, relative complexity of 

various assumptions and estimates used, uncertainties 

related to COVID-19 and determination of related provisions, 

this audit area is considered a key audit matter.

The procedures performed by us in respect of the Holding 

company, and by auditors of the Subsidiary in respect of the 

subsidiary, included the following:

§ We read and assessed the Group's impairment 

provisioning policy with reference to Ind-AS 109 and the 

provisioning framework approved by the Board of 

Directors as well as relevant regulatory guidelines and 

pronouncements.

§ For expected credit loss provision against outstanding 

exposures classified across various stages, we obtained 

an understanding of the Group's provisioning 

methodology (including factors that affect the 

probability of default, loss given defaults and exposure 

at default; various forward looking, micro- and macro-

economic factors), the underlying assumptions and the 

sufficiency of the data used by management, and tested 

the same on sample basis. 

§ We performed tests of controls and details on a sample 

tests basis in respect of the staging of outstanding 

exposures, implementation of Group policy in response 

to COVID-19 and other relevant data used in impairment 

computations prepared by management as compared to 

the Group's policy

§ Assessed the considerations applied by the management 

for staging of loans as Significant Increase in Credit Risk 

or default categories in view of COVID-19 pandemic.

§ We enquired with the management regarding significant 

judgments and estimates involved in the impairment 

computation and additional management overlay 

provision arising from the effects of the COVID-19 

pandemic, and evaluated the reasonableness thereof.

§ We tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of 

ECL provision performed by the Group in spreadsheets

§ Assessed disclosures included in the Consolidated 

Financial Statements in respect of expected credit losses 

including the specific disclosures made with regard to 

the impact of COVID-19 on ECL estimation.

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

a)  Impairment for Financial Instruments based on expected credit loss model (Refer to note 2.1.5 to the Consolidated 

Financial Statements)

b)  IT Systems and controls

During the current year, as the IT systems and processes 

continue to mature in view of the evolving business and 

regulatory landscape, changes in the technology 

environment have been carried out by the Holding Company. 

The Holding Company made changes to its IT systems to give 

effect to the policy approved by its Board of Directors, in 

response to and as required by the COVID-19 Regulatory 

Package provided by RBI, including moratorium on 

instalments due on Loans  Implementation of the 

moratorium involves significant level of judgement, changes 

to IT systems, etc.

Our audit procedures included the following, among others: 

§ We included specialized IT auditors as part of our audit 

team for testing IT general controls, application controls 

and IT dependent manual controls implemented by the 

Holding Company, and testing the information produced 

by the Holding Company's IT systems. 

§ We tested the design and operating effectiveness of the 

Holding Company's IT access controls over the key 

information systems that are related to financial 

reporting. 
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The IT infrastructure is critical for effective and efficient 

functioning of the Holding Company's business operations 

as well as for timely and accurate financial reporting. 

Accordingly, the Holding Company has continued to invest in 

its IT infrastructure in the current year as well. 

Due to the pervasive nature and complexity of the IT 

environment and considering that significant changes in key 

processes have been implemented in recent past, it is 

considered a key audit matter.

§ We tested IT general controls in the nature of controls 

over logical access, changes management, and other 

aspects of IT operational controls. These included testing 

that requests for access to systems were reviewed and 

authorized. 

§ We considered the control environment relating to 

various interfaces, configuration and other application 

controls identified as key to our audit. 

§ In addition, we tested the key application controls with 

respect to financial reporting to evaluate their operating 

effectiveness. 

§ If deficiencies were identified, we tested compensating 

controls or performed alternate procedures

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters 

to communicate in our report.

Other Information

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for 

the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Annual report, but does not 

include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our 

auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does 

not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether such other 

information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated 

Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit 

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on 

the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 

material misstatement of this other information, we are 

required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard.

The Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the 

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for 

the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated 

Financial Statements in terms of the requirements of the Act 

that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 

position, consolidated financial performance including other 

comprehensive loss, consolidated cash flows and 

consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in 

accordance with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting  Standards 

(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, as amended. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included 

in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 

Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance 

of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that 

give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been 

used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated 

Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding 

Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the 

respective Board of Directors of the companies included in 

the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the 

Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has 

no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies 

included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the 

financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 

could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated 

financial Statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also:

§ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 

the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

§ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 

the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) 

of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 

opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate 

internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements in place and the operating effectiveness of 

such controls.

§ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management. 

§ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use 

of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 

may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditor 's report to the related 

disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, 

if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 

future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 

to continue as a going concern. 

§ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 

of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial 

Statements represent the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

§ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding 

the financial information of the entities or business 

activities within the Group of which we are the 

independent auditors, to express an opinion on the 

consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible 

for the direction, supervision and performance of the 

audit of the financial statements of such entities included 

in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are 

the independent auditors. For the other entities included 

in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have 

been audited by other auditors, such other auditors 

remain responsible for the direction, supervision and 

performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain 

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the 

Holding Company and such other entities included in the 

Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the 

independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 

statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 

with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 

governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and 

are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 

matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation 

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because the 

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial 

information, in respect of the Holding Company's subsidiary, 

whose financial statements include total assets of ̀ 60,082.89 

lakhs as at March 31, 2021, and total revenues of `10,699.87 

lakhs and net cash inflows of `1,290.98 lakhs for the year 

ended on that date. Those financial statements and other 

financial information have been audited by other auditors, 

which financial statements, other financial information and 

auditor's reports have been furnished to us by the 

management. Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial 

Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and 

disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary, and our 

report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in 

so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely 

on the report(s) of such other auditors.

Our opinion above on the Consolidated Financial Statements, 

and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

below, are not modified in respect of the above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit 

and on the consideration of report of the other auditor on 
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separate financial statements and the other financial 

information of subsidiary, as noted in the 'other matter' 

paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon 

have sought and obtained all the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of 

the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements;

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 

law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated 

Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books and reports of the 

other auditors;

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 

Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of 

Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash 

Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes 

in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 

the books of account maintained for the purpose of 

preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial 

Statements comply with the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 

amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received 

from the directors of the Holding Company as on  March 

31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the 

Holding Company, and the reports of the statutory 

auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, 

on its subsidiary company, none of the directors of the 

Group's companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified 

as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director 

in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f ) With respect to the adequacy and the operating 

effectiveness of the internal financial controls with 

reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements of 

the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, 

incorporated in India, refer to our separate Report in 

“Annexure 1 to this report;

(g) In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports 

of other statutory auditors of the subsidiary, the 

managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 

2021 has been paid / provided by the Holding Company, 

its subsidiary incorporated in India to their directors in 

accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with 

Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the 

Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 

amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to 

us and based on the consideration of the report of the 

other auditors on separate financial statements as also 

the other financial information of the subsidiary, as 

noted in the 'Other matter' paragraph:

 i. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the 

impact of pending litigations on its consolidated 

financial position of the Group (Refer Note 27 to the 

consolidated financial statements);

ii. Provision has been made in the Consolidated 

Financial Statements, as required under the 

applicable law or accounting standards, for material 

foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts 

including derivative contracts – Refer Note 6 and 16 to 

the consolidated Ind AS financial statements; 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be 

transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Holding Company, or its subsidiary, during 

the year ended March 31, 2021.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Aniruddh Sankaran
Partner 

Membership Number: 211107

UDIN: 21211107AAAACD1555

Place: Chennai                                                                            
Date : June 24, 2021
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF APTUS VALUE HOUSING FINANCE 
INDIA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
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In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements of Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited and 

its subsidiary, as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021, we 

have audited the internal financial controls of Aptus Value 

Housing Finance India Limited (hereinafter referred to as the 

“Holding Company”) and its subsidiary company which are 

companies incorporated in India, as of that date. 

The Board of Directors' Responsibility for Internal 

Financial Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company 

and its subsidiary company, which are companies 

incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and 

maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 

control over financial reporting criteria established by the 

Holding Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the 

respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 

the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and 

the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 

required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's 

internal financial controls with reference to these Consolidated 

Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our 

audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 

Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India, and deemed to be 

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those 

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls with reference to these Consolidated 

Financial Statements was established and maintained and if 

such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls with reference to these Consolidated Financial 

Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 

internal financial controls included obtaining an understanding 

of internal financial controls with reference to these 

consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a 

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the 

audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of 

their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph 

below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the internal financial controls with 

reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference 

to these Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to these 

Consolidated Financial Statements is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 

financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 

internal financial control with reference to these 

Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies 

and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 

records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 

are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 

statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 

the company are being made only in accordance with 

authorisations of management and directors of the company; 

and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 

or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the company's assets that could have a 

material effect on the financial statements.



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 

With Reference to these Consolidated Financial 

Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 

controls with reference to these consolidated financial 

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 

management override of controls, material misstatements 

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 

controls with reference to these Consolidated Financial 

Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 

internal financial control with reference to these 

Consolidated Financial Statements may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary 

company, which are companies incorporated in India, have 

maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal 

financial controls with reference to these Consolidated 

Financial Statements and such internal financial controls 

with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements 

were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the 

internal control criteria established by the Holding Company 

considering the essential components of internal control 

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy 

and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls 

with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements of 

the Holding Company, insofar as it relates to the Holding 

Company's subsidiary, is based on the corresponding reports 

of the auditors of such subsidiary, incorporated in India.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Aniruddh Sankaran
Partner 

Membership No.: 211107

UDIN: 21211107AAAACD1555
Place: Chennai                                                                            
Date : June 24, 2021
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET As at March 31, 2021

Sr. Particulars
Note 
  No.

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

  ASSETS   

  1. Financial Assets   

   (a) Cash and cash equivalents 4  42,273.99   48,403.41 

   (b) Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 5  1,506.07   11,864.24 

   (c) Loans 6  3,98,980.01   3,11,708.86 

   (d) Investments 7  5,275.22   -   

   (e) Other financial assets 8  1,162.15   267.68 

   Total Financial Assets   4,49,197.44   3,72,244.19 

  2. Non-Financial Assets   

   (a) Deferred tax assets (Net) 9  1,699.32   1,272.26 

   (b) Property, plant and equipment 10A  248.17   326.81 

   (c) Intangible assets 10B  26.78   36.57 

   (d)  Right-of-use assets 10C  680.69   647.65 

   (e)  Other non-financial assets 11   164.19   144.90 

   TOTAL NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS                           2,819.15              2,428.19 
  TOTAL ASSETS                      4,52,016.59 3,74,672.38 
  

  LIABILITIES AND EQUITY   

   LIABILITIES   

  1. Financial Liabilities   

   (a)    Payables

         Trade Payables 28  

    (i)   total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and       -     -

     small enterprises 

    (ii)   total outstanding dues of creditors other than                           188.36               68.66 

     micro enterprises and small enterprises   

    (b) Debt Securities 12 43,018.39 64,454.96  

   (c) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 13 2,07,779.05 1,37,043.21  

   (d) Lease Liabilities 41 709.05 666.36   

   (e) Other financial liabilities 14 1,334.76 524.24

    Total Financial Liabilities                      2,53,029.61 2,02,757.43  

  2. Non-Financial Liabilities   

   (a) Current tax liabilities (Net) 15  444.89  583.46 

   (b) Provisions 16 330.18  252.43 

   (c) Other non-financial liabilities 17 266.76  178.02 

   Total Non-Financial Liabilities  1,041.83 1,013.91  

  TOTAL LIABILITIES  2,54,071.44 2,03,771.34    

   3. EQUITY   

   (a) Equity Share capital 18 9,493.33 9,451.33 

   (b) Other Equity 19 188,451.82 161,449.71 

   Total Equity                       1,97,945.15 1,70,901.04 

  TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  4,52,016.59 3,74,672.38 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.   

As per our report of even date
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Sr. Particulars Note 
  No.

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 1 Revenue from operations   

  (a) Interest income 20  62,388.86 48,463.70

  (b) Net gain on fair value changes  20  76.08 313.51 

  (c)  Fees and commission income 20  1,196.46   1,196.23 

  Total Revenue from operations   63,661.40   49,973.44 

    

 2 Other income 21  1,862.75 2,339.38 

    

 3 Total Income (1+2)   65,524.15   52,312.82 

    

 4 Expenses   

  (a) Finance costs 22   20,653.39   18,454.91 

  (b) Employee benefits expense 23  7,138.34   6,480.48 

  (c)  Depreciation and amortisation expense 10D  568.39   580.58 

  (d) Impairment on financial instruments 24  581.81   284.01 

  (e) Other expenses 25  2,073.07   1,783.85 

  Total expenses    31,015.00   27,583.83 

    

 5 Profit before tax (3-4)    34,509.15   24,728.99 

    

 6 Tax expense  26  

  - Current tax     8,266.66   6,015.39 

  - Tax relating to previous years    (28.74)  58.86 

  - Deferred tax charge / (credit)    (423.26)  (2,446.53)

  Income tax expense    7,814.66   3,627.72 

    

 7 Profit for the year (5-6)    26,694.49   21,101.27 

    

 8 Other Comprehensive Income   

  (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss    

  Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan    (15.04)  (15.35)

  (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be 
  reclassified to profit or loss    3.79   3.86 

  Other Comprehensive Income for the year    (11.25)  (11.49)

    

 9 Total Comprehensive Income for the year (7+8)    26,683.24   21,089.78 

    

 10 Earnings per share (Equity shares, par value 
  `2 each - also Refer Note 44.1): 35  

  (a) Basic (in )    5.56   4.77 `

  (b) Diluted (in )    5.55   4.74 `

` in lakhs

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS For the year ended on March 31, 2021
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT For the year ended on March 31, 2021

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.   
As per our report of even date

 Cash flows from operating activities    

 Profit before tax   34,509.15    24,728.99 

 Adjustments for:    

   Finance costs  20,653.39    18,454.91  

   Interest on fixed deposits with banks  (1,457.10)   (1,704.07) 

   Net gain on fair value changes   (76.08)   (313.51) 

   Depreciation and amortisation expense  568.39    580.58  

   Impairment on financial instruments  581.81    284.01  

   Share based payments to employees  4.62    19.21  

    20,275.03    17,321.13 

    

 Operating profit before working capital changes   54,784.18    42,050.12 

 Movements in working capital:    

 (Increase) / Decrease in loans  (87,857.45)   (91,958.51) 

 (Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets  (894.47)   42.42  

 (Increase) / Decrease in other non-financial assets  (6.64)   (50.84) 

 Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables  119.70    (13.34) 

 Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities  810.52    (0.18) 

 Increase / (Decrease) in provisions  67.21    47.02  

 Increase / (Decrease) in other non-financial liabilities  88.74   (87,672.39)  23.36   (91,910.07)

    

 Cash flow from (used in) operations   (32,888.21)   (49,859.95)

    

 Finance cost paid   (20,831.68)   (18,115.20)

 Direct Taxes paid   (8,376.49)   (5,505.05)

 Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)   (62,096.38)   (73,480.20)

    

 Cash flows from investing activities    

 Capital expenditure on PP&E and intangible assets  (140.24)   (249.19) 

 Deposits placed with / (withdrawn from) banks, net  10,296.13    (11,225.33) 

 Interest received on bank deposits  1,519.14    1,472.11  

 Purchases of investments  (22,852.29)   (1,04,797.00) 

 Redemption of investments  17,600.41    1,04,797.00  

 Income received from investments  52.74    313.51  

 Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B)   6,475.89    (9,688.90)

    

 Cash flows from financing activities    

 Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including securities premium)  356.25    80,314.29  

 Share issue expenses  -      (381.50) 

 Proceeds from issue of debt securities  2,500.00    5,000.00  

 Repayment of debt securities  (24,166.67)   (10,937.50) 

 Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securities)  1,15,840.21    85,294.55  

 Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities)  (44,623.99)   (38,077.42) 

 Payment of lease liabilities  (342.72)   (235.09) 

 Interest paid on lease liabilities  (72.01)   (90.14) 

 Net cash flow from financing activities (C)   49,491.07    1,20,887.19 

    

 Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)   (6,129.42)   37,718.09 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   48,403.41    10,685.32 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 4)   42,273.99    48,403.41   
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION:

Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited ('Holding 

Company') was incorporated on December 11, 2009 with 

the primary objective of carrying on the business of 

providing long term housing finance to meet the housing 

needs of the low and middle income segment in the country. 

The Holding Company with CIN:  U65922TN2009PLC073881, 

is a Public Limited Company domiciled in India. The 

Registered Office of the Holding Company is located at No. 
th8B, Doshi Towers, 8  Floor, No: 205, Poonamallee High 

Road, Kilpauk, Chennai 600010, Tamil Nadu.

The Holding Company received the certificate of 

registration from the National Housing Bank (NHB) on 

May 31, 2010 to commence the business of Housing Finance 

without accepting public deposits. The certificate of 

commencement of business was received from the 

Registrar of Companies on June 25, 2010.

Aptus Finance India Private Limited ('the Subsidiary 

Company') was incorporated on September 18, 2015 as a 

subsidiary of Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited 

with the primary objective of carrying on the business of 

providing finance in the form of loan against immovable 

properties. The Subsidiary Company with CIN:  

U74900TN2015PTC102252, is a Private Limited Company 

domiciled in India.

The Subsidiary Company received the certificate of 

registration from the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI') on 

December 16, 2016 to commence the business of Non-

Banking Financial Institution without accepting public 

deposits. It is a non-deposit taking systemically 

important Non-Banking Financial Company ('NBFC-ND- 

SI'). The group is also engaged in providing loans for non-

housing finance activities in the form of Loan Against 

Properties (LAP) through the Company's subsidiary, Aptus 

Finance India Private Limited.  

The above two companies are collectively referred to as 

the "Group".

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 A.   Basis of preparation and presentation

 The consolidated financial statements have been 

prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as per Section 133 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant amendment 

rules issued thereafter (“Ind AS”) on the historical cost 

basis except for certain financial instruments that are 

measured at fair values at the end of each reporting 

period, as explained in the accounting policies below,  

 the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 

“Act”) and the guidelines issued by the NHB to the extent 

applicable. These consolidated financial statements 

have been prepared on a going concern basis.

 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 

and the Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared 

and presented in the format prescribed in the Division 

III of Schedule III to the Act. The Statement of Cash 

Flows has been prepared and presented as per the 

requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”.

 Amounts in the consolidated financial statements are 

presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs rounded off to 

two decimal places as permitted by Schedule III to the 

Act, except when otherwise indicated.

 The consolidated financial statement were approved 

for issue in accordance with a resolution of the 

directors on June 24, 2021.

  Basis of Consolidation

  The consolidated financial statements have been 

prepared in respect of the Group as at March 31, 2021. 

  Control is evidenced when the Group has power over 

the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current 

ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee), 

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its 

involvement with the investee and has the ability to 

affect those returns through its power over the 

investee.

  Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of 

voting rights result in control. To support this 

presumption and when the Group has less than a 

majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, 

the Group considers all relevant facts and 

circumstances in assessing whether it has power over 

an investee, including:

Ÿ The contractual arrangement with the other vote 

holders of the investee

Ÿ Rights arising from other contractual arrangement

Ÿ The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

Ÿ The size of the Group's holding of voting rights 

relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of 

the other voting rights holders

  The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an 

investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there 

are changes to one or more of the three elements of  

PERFORMANCE REPORT | STATUTORY REPORTS | FINANCIAL STATEMENTSANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

APTUS VALUE HOUSING FINANCE INDIA LIMITED 143



  control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the 

Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases 

when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, 

liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary 

acquired or disposed of during the year are included 

from the date the Group gains control until the date 

the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. 

  Consolidation procedure: 

 (a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, 

income, expenses and cash flows of the parent 

with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, 

income and expenses of the subsidiary are based 

on the amounts of the assets and liabilities 

recognised in the Historical Audited Consolidated 

Financial Statements at the acquisition date.

 (b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the 

parent's investment in each subsidiary and the 

parent's portion of equity of each subsidiary. 

Business combinations policy explains how to 

account for any related goodwill.

 (c) Eliminate in full intra-group assets and liabilities, 

equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating 

to transactions between entities of the Holding 

Company and its subsidiary (profits or losses 

resulting from intra-entity transactions that are 

recognised in assets, such as fixed assets, are 

eliminated in full). Intra-entity losses may indicate 

an impairment that requires recognition in the 

Historical Audited Consolidated Financial 

Statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to 

temporary differences that arise from the 

elimination of profits and losses resulting from 

intra-group transactions.

 Profit or loss and each component of Other 

Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) are attributed to the 

equity holders of the Company and to the non-

controlling interests, even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

 When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the 

accounting policies in line with the Company's 

accounting policies. All intra-entity assets, liabilities, 

equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to 

transactions between Group are eliminated in full on 

consolidation.

 If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Ÿ Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and 

liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying 

amounts on the date when control is lost

Ÿ Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-

controlling interests

Ÿ Derecognises the cumulative translat ion 

differences recorded in equity

Ÿ Recognises the fair value of the consideration 

received

Ÿ Recognises the fair value of any investment 

retained

Ÿ Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Ÿ Reclassifies the parent's share of components 

previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or 

retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be 

required if the Group had directly disposed of the 

related assets or liabilities

 A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, 

without loss of control, is accounted for as an equity 

transaction.

Particulars of Consolidation

 The below mentioned subsidiary has been considered 

for consolidation:

Name of the 
Company

Percentage of voting Power as on

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

  Aptus Finance 
  India Private  100% 100%
  Limited  

 B. Impact of COVID-19 pandemic

  The Covid-19 pandemic continues to affect several 

countries across the world, including India. 

Consequent lockdowns and varying restrictions 

imposed by the government across several 

jurisdictions in which the Group operates, has led to 

significant disruptions and dislocations for 

individuals and businesses, impacting group's 

business operations, including lending and collection 

activities during the year ended March 31, 2021. In 

accordance with the Reserve bank of India (RBI) 

guidelines related to “Covid-19 regulatory package” 

dated March 27, 2020 and subsequent guidelines on 

EMI moratorium dated April 17, 2020 and May 23, 2020 

the company had offered moratorium to its customers 

based the eligibility for EMIs falling due between 

March 1, 2020 to August 31, 2020. The impact of COVID-

19 pandemic including the ongoing “second wave”, on 

the Group's operations and financial metrics, 

including the company's estimates of impairment of 

loans will depend on the future developments, which 
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  are highly uncertain. Management continues to 

monitor the evolving situation on an ongoing basis 

and management has considered events up to the 

date of these Consolidated Financial Statements, to 

determine the financial implications including in 

respect of Expected Credit Loss ('ECL') provisioning. 

As at March 31, 2021, the Group carries ECL provision 

on  loans of `1,416.46 lakhs (`830.16 lakhs as at 

March 31, 2020) including provisions towards 

management overlay, in accordance with Ind AS 109 

requirements. Given the dynamic and evolving nature 

of pandemic, these estimates are subject to 

uncertainty caused by the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic 

and related events.

 C. Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements 

 The Group presents its consolidated balance sheet in 

order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or 

settlement within 12 months after the reporting date 

(current) and more than 12 months after the reporting 

date (non–current) is presented in Note 38.

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally 

reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only 

offset and reported net when, in addition to having an 

unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the 

recognised amounts without being contingent on a 

future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net 

basis in the normal course of business, event of 

default or insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group 

and/or its counterparties. 

 D. Principles of consolidation 

  The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to the 

Holding Company and its subsidiary company.

  The Consolidated Financial Statements have been 

prepared on the following basis: 

  (i) The financial statements of the Subsidiary 

Company used in the consolidation are drawn up 

to the same reporting date as that of the Holding 

Company.

   (ii) The financial statements of the Holding Company 

and its Subsidiary Company have been combined 

on a line-by-line basis by adding together like 

items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, 

after eliminating intra-group balances and intra-

group transactions. 

  (iii) The Consolidated Financial Statements have 

been prepared using uniform accounting policies 

for like transactions and other events in similar 

circumstances. 

  (iv) Aptus Finance India Private Limited, a wholly 

owned subsidiary has been considered in the 

preparation of the Restated Consolidated 

Summary Statements.  

2.1  Financial Instruments 

2.1.1  Financial instruments – initial recognition

2.1.1.1 Date of recognition

 Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of 

loans, debt securities, and borrowings are initially 

recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the 

Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions 

of the instrument. Loans are recognised when fund 

transfers are initiated to the customers' account or 

cheques for disbursement have been prepared by the 

Group (as per the terms of the agreement with the 

borrowers). The Group recognises debt securities and 

borrowings when funds reach the Group.

2.1.1.2 Initial measurement of financial instruments

  The classification of financial instruments at initial 

recognition depends on their contractual terms and 

the business model for managing the instruments. 

Financial instruments are initially measured at their 

fair value, except in the case of financial assets and 

financial liabilities recorded at Fair value through 

profit and loss (“FVTPL”), transaction costs are added 

to, or subtracted from, this amount.

2.1.1.3 Measurement categories of financial assets and 

liabilities

  The Group classifies all of its financial assets based on 

the business model for managing the assets and the 

asset's contractual terms, measured at either 

amortised cost or FVTPL or Fair Value through Other 

Comprehensive Income (“FVOCI”).

2.1.2  Financial assets and liabilities

2.1.2.1 Bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables and 

financial investments at amortised cost

  The Group measures Bank balances, Loans, and other 

financial investments at amortised cost if the financial 

asset is held within a business model with the 
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  objective to hold financial assets in order to collect 

contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of 

the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash 

flows that are Solely Payments of Principal and 

Interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The details of these conditions are outlined below.

2.1.2.1.1 Business model assessment

  The Group determines its business model at the level 

that best reflects how it manages groups of financial 

assets to achieve its business objective. 

  The Group's business model is not assessed on an 

instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level 

of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable 

factors such as:

§ How the performance of the business model and 

the financial assets held within that business 

model are evaluated and reported to the entity's 

key management personnel

§ The risks that affect the performance of the 

business model (and the financial assets held 

within that business model) and, in particular, the 

way those risks are managed 

§ How managers of the business are compensated 

(for example, whether the compensation is based 

on the fair value of the assets managed or on the 

contractual cash flows collected)

§ The expected frequency, value and timing of sales 

are also important aspects of the Group's 

assessment

  The business model assessment is based on 

reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst 

case' or 'stress case' scenarios into account. If cash 

flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that 

is different from the Group's original expectations, the 

Group does not change the classification of the 

remaining financial assets held in that business 

model, but incorporates such information when 

assessing newly originated or newly purchased 

financial assets going forward.

2.1.2.1.2 The SPPI test

  As a second step of its classification process the Group 

assesses the contractual terms of financial to identify 

whether they meet the SPPI test.

  Principal' for the purpose of this test is defined as the 

fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition 

  and may change over the life of the financial asset (for 

example, if there are repayments of principal or 

amortisation of the premium/discount). 

  The most significant elements of interest within a 

lending arrangement are typically the consideration 

for the time value of money and credit risk. To make 

the SPPI assessment, the Group applies judgement 

and considers relevant factors such as the currency in 

which the financial asset is denominated, and the 

period for which the interest rate is set. In contrast, 

contractual terms that introduce a more than de 

minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the 

contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic 

lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual 

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the 

financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.

2.1.2.1.3 Financial liabilities at amortised cost

  After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and 

borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 

recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are 

derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation 

process.

  Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 

any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or 

costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 

amortisation is included as finance costs in the 

statement of profit and loss.

2.1.2.2 Financial assets or financial liabilities held for 

trading

  The Group classifies financial assets as held for 

trading when they have been purchased or issued 

primarily for short-term profit making through trading 

activities or form part of a portfolio of financial 

instruments that are managed together, for which 

there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term 

profit making. Held-for-trading assets and liabilities 

are recorded and measured in the balance sheet at 

fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in net 

gain on fair value changes. Interest and dividend 

income or expense is recorded in net gain on fair value 

changes according to the terms of the contract, or 

when the right to payment has been established.

2.1.2.3 Equity instruments at FVOCI

  The Group subsequently measures all equity 

investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless 

the Group's management has elected to classify 
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  have been renegotiated to the extent that, 

substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the 

difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, 

to the extent that an impairment loss has not already 

been recorded. The newly recognised loans are 

classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes 

unless they are deemed to pass through OCI. When 

assessing whether or not to derecognise a loan to a 

customer, amongst others, the Group considers the 

following factors: Change in counterparty. If the 

modification is such that the instrument would no 

longer meet the SPPI criterion. If the modification 

does not result in cash flows that are substantially 

different, the modification does not result in 

derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows 

discounted at the original EIR, the Group records a 

modification gain or loss, to the extent that an 

impairment loss has not already been recorded.

2.1.4.2 Derecognition of financial assets other than due to 

substantial modification 

  A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to 

receive cash flows from the financial asset have 

expired. The Group also derecognises the financial 

asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and 

the transfer qualifies for derecognition. 

  A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either, the 

Group has transferred substantially all the risks and 

rewards of the asset or has neither transferred nor 

retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the 

asset, but has transferred control of the asset. Control 

is considered to be transferred if and only if, the 

transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in 

its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to 

exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing 

additional restrictions on the transfer. 

  When the Group has neither transferred nor retained 

substantially all the risks and rewards and has 

retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be 

recognised only to the extent of the Group's 

continuing involvement, in which case, the Group also 

recognises an associated liability. The transferred 

asset and the associated liability are measured on a 

basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the 

Group has retained. 

  Continuing involvement that takes the form of a 

guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at 

the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset 

and the maximum amount of consideration the Group 

could be required to pay.

  irrevocably some of its equity investments as equity 

instruments at FVOCI, when such instruments meet 

the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32, Financial 

Instruments: Presentation, and are not held for 

trading. Such classification is determined on an 

instrument-by-instrument basis.

  Gains and losses on these equity instruments are 

never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are 

recognised in profit or loss as dividend income when 

the right of the payment has been established, except 

when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a 

recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which 

case, such gains are recorded in Other Comprehensive 

Income (“OCI”). Equity instruments at FVOCI are not 

subject to an impairment assessment.

2.1.2.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss 

  Financial assets and financial liabilities in this 

category are those that are not held for trading and 

have been either designated by management upon 

initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be 

measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Financial 

assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in 

the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value 

are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of 

movements in fair value of liabilities designated at 

FVTPL due to changes in the Group's own credit risk. 

Such changes in fair value are recorded in the Own 

credit reserve through OCI and do not get recycled to 

the profit or loss. Interest earned or incurred on 

instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest 

income or finance cost, respectively, using the EIR, 

taking into account any discount/ premium and 

qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of 

instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily 

required to be measured at FVTPL is recorded using 

contractual interest rate.

2.1.3 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

  The Group does not reclassify its financial assets 

subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the 

exceptional circumstances in which the Group 

acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. 

Financial liabilities are never reclassified. 

2.1.4 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

2.1.4.1 Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial 

modification of terms and conditions 

  The Group derecognises a financial asset, such as a 

loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

PERFORMANCE REPORT | STATUTORY REPORTS | FINANCIAL STATEMENTSANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

APTUS VALUE HOUSING FINANCE INDIA LIMITED 147



PERFORMANCE REPORT | STATUTORY REPORTS | FINANCIAL STATEMENTSANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

APTUS VALUE HOUSING FINANCE INDIA LIMITED 148

  The Group has established a policy to perform an 

assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of 

whether a financial instrument's credit risk has 

increased significantly since initial recognition, by 

considering the change in the risk of default occurring 

over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

  Based on the above process, the Group categorises its 

loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described 

below:

  Stage 1:

  When loans are first recognised, the Group recognises 

an allowance based on 12mECLs. Stage 1 loans also 

include facilities where the credit risk has improved 

and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

  Stage 2:

  When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit 

risk since origination, the Group records an allowance 

for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, 

where the credit risk has improved and the loan has 

been reclassified from Stage 3.

  Stage 3:

  Loans considered credit-impaired. The Group records 

an allowance for the LTECLs.

  Staging rules set have been applied to the product 

categories to bucket them into either Stage 1, Stage 2 

or Stage 3.

  In case when transfer of a part of financial asset 

qualifies for derecognition, any difference between 

the proceeds received on such sale and the carrying 

value of the transferred asset is derecognised as a 

gain or loss on decrease of such financial asset.

2.1.4.3 Financial liabilities

  A financial liability is derecognised when the 

obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled 

or expires. Where an existing financial liability is  

replaced by another from the same lender on 

substantially different terms, or the terms of an 

existing liability are substantially modified, such an 

exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition 

of the original liability and the recognition of a new 

liability. The difference between the carrying value of 

the original financial liability and the consideration 

paid is recognised in profit or loss. 

  Offsetting of financial instruments

  Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and 

the net amount is reported in the consolidated 

balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal 

right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 

intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets 

and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.1.5 Impairment of financial assets

2.1.5.1 Overview of the ECL principles

  The Group records allowance for expected credit 

losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not 

held at FVTPL, together with loan commitments, in this 

section all referred to as 'financial instruments'. Equity 

instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind 

AS 109.

  The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses 

expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime 

expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been 

no significant increase in credit risk since origination, 

in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 

months' expected credit loss (12mECL). 

  The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the 

ECLs that result from default events on a financial 

instrument that are possible within the 12 months 

after the reporting date.

  Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on either an 

individual basis or a collective basis, depending on 

the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial 

instruments.

Stages

 Stage 1 Upto 30 days 12 month ECL

 Stage 2 31 to 90 days Lifetime ECL

 Stage 3 90 days and above Lifetime ECL

Days past dues ECL

2.1.5.2 The calculation of ECLs

  The Group calculates ECLs to measure the expected 

cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the 

EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash 

flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the 

contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to 

receive. 

  The key elements of the ECL are summarised below:

  In addition to days past due, the Group also considers 

other qualitative factors in determining significant 

increase in credit risks since origination. 
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  shortfalls are discounted by an approximation to the 

original EIR.

  Significant increase in credit risk

  The Group monitors all financial assets that are 

subject to the impairment requirements to assess 

whether there has been a significant increase in credit 

risk since initial recognition. If there has been a 

significant increase in credit risk the Group will 

measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather 

than 12mECLs.

  In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial 

instrument has increased significantly since initial 

recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default 

occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting 

date based on the remaining maturity of the 

instrument with the risk of a default occurring that 

was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the 

current reporting date when the financial instrument 

was first recognised. In making this assessment, the 

Group considers both quantitative and qualitative 

information that is reasonable and supportable, 

including historical experience and forward-looking 

information that is available without undue cost or 

effort, based on the Group's historical experience and 

expert credit assessment including forward-looking 

information.

  Stage 3:

  For loans considered credit-impaired, the Group 

recognises the lifetime expected credit losses for 

these loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 

assets, with the PD set at 100%.

  Credit-impaired financial assets

  A financial asset is 'credit-impaired' when one or more 

events that have a detrimental impact on the 

estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have 

occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are 

referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit-

impairment includes observable data about the 

following events:

§ significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

§ a breach of contract such as a default or past due 

event;

§ the lender of the borrower, for economic or 

contractual reasons relating to the borrower's 

financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a 

concession that the lender would not otherwise 

consider;

  PD:

  The Probability of Default is an estimate of the 

likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A 

default may only happen at a certain time over the 

assessed period, if the facility has not been previously 

derecognised and is still in the portfolio. 

  EAD:

  The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure 

at a future default date (in case of Stage 1 and Stage 2), 

taking into account expected changes in the exposure 

after the reporting date, including repayments of 

principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract 

or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed 

facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments. 

In case of Stage 3 loans EAD represents exposure 

when the default occurred.

  LGD:

  The Loss Given Default  is an estimate of the loss 

arising in the case where a default occurs at a given 

time. It is based on the difference between the 

contractual cash flows due and those that the lender 

would expect to receive, including from the realisation 

of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a 

percentage of the EAD.

  Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and 

disclosed separately from modification losses or 

gains that are accounted for as an adjustment of the 

financial asset's gross carrying value

  The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised 

below:

  Stage 1:

  The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that 

represent the ECLs that result from default events on a 

financial instrument that are possible within the 12 

months after the reporting date. The Group calculates 

the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a 

default occurring in the 12 months following the 

reporting date. These expected 12-month default 

probabilities are applied to a forecast EAD and 

multiplied by the expected LGD and discounted by an 

approximation to the original EIR. 

  Stage 2:

  When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit 

risk since origination, the Group records an allowance 

for the LTECLs. PDs and LGDs are estimated over the 

lifetime of the instrument. The expected cash 
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§ the disappearance of an active market for a security 

because of financial difficulties; or

§ the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount 

that reflects the incurred credit losses.

  It may not be possible to identify a single discrete 

event—instead, the combined effect of several events 

may have caused financial assets to become credit-

impaired. The Group assesses whether debt 

instruments that are financial assets measured at 

amortised cost are credit-impaired at each reporting 

date.

  A loan is considered credit-impaired when a 

concession is granted to the borrower due to a 

deterioration in the borrower's financial condition, 

unless there is evidence that as a result of granting the 

concession the risk of not receiving the contractual   

cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no 

other indicators of impairment. For financial assets 

where concessions are contemplated but not granted 

the asset is deemed credit impaired when there is 

observable evidence of credit-impairment including 

meeting the definition of default. The definition of 

default includes unlikeliness to pay indicators and a 

back- stop if amounts are overdue for 90 days or more.

  Loan commitment

  When est imating LTECLs for  undrawn loan 

commitments, the Group estimates the expected 

portion of the loan commitment that will be drawn 

down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on 

the present value of the expected shortfalls in cash 

flows if the loan is drawn down. The expected cash 

shortfalls are discounted at an approximation to the 

expected EIR on the loan. For an undrawn loan 

commitment, ECLs are calculated and presented 

under provisions.

  Forward looking information

  In its ECL models, the Group relies on a broad range of 

forward looking information as economic inputs. The 

inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not 

always capture all characteristics of the market at the 

date of the financial statements. To reflect this, 

qualitative adjustments or overlays are made as 

temporary adjustments.

  Estimates and associated assumptions applied in 

preparing the financial statements, especially for the 

expected credit loss on advances, are based on 

historical experience and other emerging/forward 

  looking factors including those arising on account of 

the COVID-19 pandemic. The Group has used early 

indicators of moratorium and delayed payment 

metrics observed along with an estimation of 

potential stress on probability of defaults and 

exposure at default due to COVID-19 situation in 

developing the estimates and assumptions to assess 

the expected credit loss on loans.

2.1.5.3 Write-off

  Loans and debt securities are written off when the 

Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering 

the financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of 

it).  This  is the case when the Group determines that 

the borrower does not have assets or sources of 

income that could generate sufficient cash flows to 

repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off 

constitutes a derecognition event. The Group may 

apply enforcement activities to financial assets 

written off. Recoveries resulting from the Group's 

enforcement activities will result in impairment gains. 

Any subsequent recoveries are credited to 

impairment on financial instruments in the statement 

of profit and loss.

2.1.6 Financial Guarantee contracts

  A financial guarantee contract is a contract that 

requires the issuer to make specified payments to 

reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a 

specified debtor fails to make payments when due in 

accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

  Financial guarantee contracts issued by an entity are 

initially measured at their fair values and, are 

subsequently measured at the higher of:

§ the amount of loss allowance determined in 

accordance with impairment requirements of Ind 

AS 109;

§ the amount initially recognised less, when 

appropriate, the cumulative amount of income 

recognised.

2.2 Recognition of Interest Income

2.2.1 The effective interest rate method

  Interest income is recorded using the effective 

interest rate (“EIR”) method for all financial 

instruments measured at amortised cost, debt 

instrument measured at FVOCI and debt instruments 

designated at FVTPL. The effective interest rate (EIR) is 

the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 

flows of the financial instrument through the 
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  expected life of the financial instrument or, where 

appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying 

amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

2.2.2 Interest Income

  The Group calculates interest income by applying the 

EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets 

other than credit-impaired assets 

  When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and 

is, therefore, regarded as 'Stage 3', the Group 

calculates interest income by applying the effective 

interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial 

asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer 

credit-impaired, the Group reverts to calculating 

interest income on a gross basis.

2.2.3 Fee and Commission Income

  Fees and commission Income include fees other than 

those that are an integral part of EIR. The fees 

included in this part of the Group's statement of profit 

or loss include among other things fees charged for 

servicing a loan including cheque bounce charges, 

field visit charges, pre-closure charges etc when there 

is no uncertainty on ultimate collection.

2.2.4 Dividend Income 

  Dividend income (including from FVOCI investments) 

is recognised when the Group's right to receive the 

payment is established, it is probable that the 

economic benefits associated with the dividend will 

flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can 

be measured reliably. This is generally when the 

shareholders approve the dividend.

2.3 Leases

  The Group's Right-of-Use (“ROU”) assets consist of 

leases for buildings. The Group assesses whether a 

contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A 

contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys 

the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 

period of time in exchange for consideration. To 

assess whether a contract conveys the right to control 

the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses 

whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an 

identified asset (ii) the Group has substantially all of 

the economic benefits from the use of the asset 

through the period of the lease and (iii) the Group has 

the right to direct the use of the asset. 

  At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group 

recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding 

lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a 

  lessee, except for short-term leases and low value 

leases. The Group applies the short-term lease 

recognition exemption to its short-term leases of 

buildings (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 

months or less from the commencement date and do 

not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on 

short-term leases and leases of low value assets are 

recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over 

the lease term.

  i)  Right-of-use assets

   The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the 

commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 

underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use 

assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated 

depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted 

for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The 

cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of 

lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs 

incurred, and lease payments made at or before 

the commencement date less any lease incentives 

received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a 

straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease 

term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

  ii)   Lease liabilities

    At the commencement date of the lease, the Group 

recognises lease liabilities measured at the 

present value of lease payments to be made over 

the lease term. The lease payments include fixed 

payments (including in substance fixed payments) 

less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease 

payments that depend on an index or a rate, and 

amounts expected to be paid under residual value 

guarantees.

  In calculating the present value of lease payments, the 

Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease 

commencement date because the interest rate 

implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After 

the commencement date, the amount of lease 

liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of 

interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In 

addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is 

remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the 

lease term, a change in the lease payments or a 

change in the assessment of an option to purchase 

the underlying asset.

  Transition to Ind AS 116:

  For the purpose of preparation of Restated 

Consolidated Financial Statements, management has 

evaluated the impact of change in accounting policies 

due to adoption of Ind AS 116 for each of the year 
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  ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 following 

modified retrospective method. Impact of adoption of 

Ind AS 116 has been adjusted in the respective years 

for the purpose of restatement. 

  The following is the summary of practical expedients 

elected on initial application:

1.  Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of 

leases of similar assets in similar economic 

environment with similar characteristics.

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-

use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 

12 months of lease term on the date of initial 

application.

3. Relied on its previous assessment of whether 

leases are onerous under Ind AS 37 Provisions, 

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

immediately before the date of initial application 

as an alternative to performing an impairment 

review. There were no onerous contracts as at April 

1, 2019.

4. Excluded the initial direct costs from the 

measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date 

of initial application.

5. Used hindsight in determining the lease term if the 

contract contains options to extend or terminate 

the lease.

  Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the 

assessment of which transactions are leases. 

Accordingly, for all the contracts as at April 1, 2019, Ind 

AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously 

identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

2.4 Employee benefits

  Post-employment benefits and termination benefits

  Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit 

plans are recognised as an expense when employees 

have rendered service entitling them to the 

contributions.

  For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost 

of providing benefits is determined using the 

projected unit credit method, with actuarial 

valuations being carried out at the end of each annual 

reporting period. Remeasurement of actuarial gains 

and losses is reflected immediately in the balance 

sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other 

comprehensive income in the period in which they 

occur.  Remeasurement recognised in other 

  comprehensive income is reflected immediately in 

retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or 

loss. Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss 

on the earlier of:

(i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, 

and

(ii)  The date that the Group recognises related 

restructuring costs

  Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate 

to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined 

benefit costs are categorised as follows:

§ service cost (including current service cost, past 

service cost, as well as gains and losses on 

curtailments and settlements);

§ interest expense; and

§ remeasurement

  The Group presents the first two components of 

defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 

'Employee benefits expense'. Curtailment gains and 

losses are accounted for as past service costs.  

  Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and 

losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding 

amounts included in net interest on the net defined 

benefit liability and the return on plan assets 

(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 

defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately 

in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or 

credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period 

in which they occur. Remeasurements are not 

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

  A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the 

earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the 

offer of the termination benefit and when the entity 

recognises any related restructuring costs.

  Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

  A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to 

employees in respect of wages and salaries in the 

period the related service is rendered at the 

undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be 

paid in exchange for that service.

  Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term 

employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted 

amount of the benefits expected to be paid in 

exchange for the related service.
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  The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the 

amount are those that are enacted, or substantively 

enacted, by the reporting date in the countries where 

the Group operates and generates taxable income.

  Current income tax relating to items recognised 

outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or 

loss (either in other comprehensive income or in 

equity). Current tax items are recognised in 

correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI 

or directly in equity. Management periodically 

evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with 

respect to situations in which applicable tax 

regulations are subject to interpretation and 

establishes provisions where appropriate.

  Deferred tax

  Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at 

the reporting date between the tax bases of assets 

and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 

reporting purposes. 

  Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable 

temporary differences, except:

§ In respect of taxable temporary differences 

associated with investments in subsidiaries, where 

the timing of the reversal of the temporary 

differences can be controlled and it is probable that 

the temporary differences will not reverse in the 

foreseeable future.

   Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 

temporary differences, the carry forward of unused 

tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax 

assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable 

that taxable profit will be available against which 

the deductible temporary differences, and the 

carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax 

losses can be utilised, except:

§ When the deferred tax asset relating to the 

deductible temporary difference arises from the 

initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 

transaction that is not a business combination and, 

at the time of the transaction, affects neither the 

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

§ In respect of deductible temporary differences 

associated with investments in subsidiaries, 

deferred tax assets are recognised only to the 

extent that it is probable that the temporary 

differences will reverse in the foreseeable future 

and taxable profit will be available against which 

the temporary differences can be utilised.

  Liabilities recognised in respect of leave encashment 

and other long-term employee benefits are measured 

at the present value of the estimated future cash 

outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect 

of services provided by employees up to the reporting 

date. The Group records the leave encashment 

liability based on actuarial valuation computed using 

projected unit credit method.

  Share-based payment 

  Stock options are granted to the employees under the 

stock option scheme. The costs of stock options 

granted to the employees (equity-settled awards) of 

the Group are measured at the fair value of the equity 

instruments granted. For each stock option, the 

measurement of fair value is performed on the grant 

date. The grant date is the date on which the Group 

and the employees agree to the stock option scheme. 

The fair value so determined is revised only if the 

stock option scheme is modified in a manner that is 

beneficial to the employees. 

  This cost is recognised, together with a corresponding 

increase in Employee Stock Options Reserve in equity, 

over the period in which the performance and/or 

service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits 

expense. The cumulative expense recognised for 

equity-settled transactions at each reporting date 

until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the 

vesting period has expired and the Group's best 

estimate of the number of equity instruments that will 

ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss 

expense or credit for a period represents the 

movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the 

beginning and end of that period and is recognised in 

employee benefits expense. 

  The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected 

as additional share dilution in the computation of 

diluted earnings per share. 

  If the options vests in instalments (i.e. the options vest 

pro rata over the service period), then each instalment 

is treated as a separate share option grant because 

each instalment has a different vesting period.

2.5 Taxes

  Income tax expense represents the sum of the current 

tax and deferred tax.

  Current tax

  Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and 

prior years are measured at the amount expected to 

be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities. 
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is 

reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 

taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of 

the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 

deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each 

reporting date and are recognised to the extent that 

it has become probable that future taxable profits 

will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at 

the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year 

when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, 

based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 

date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised 

outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or 

loss (either in other comprehensive income or in 

equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in 

correlation to the underlying transaction either in 

OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are 

offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and 

the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 

and the same taxation authority. When the deferred 

tax liability arises from the initial recognition of 

goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that 

is not a business combination, at the time of the 

transaction, affects neither the accounting profit 

nor taxable profit or loss.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (“PP&E”) and

  intangible assets

  PP&E is stated at cost excluding the costs of 

day–to–day servicing, less accumulated depreciation 

and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the 

expected useful life are accounted for by changing the 

amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, 

and treated as changes in accounting estimates. 

Depreciation on the following categories of PP&E 

(other than Freehold Land) has been provided on the 

straight-line method, the useful lives of which have 

been assessed as under, based on technical 

assessment, taking into account the nature of the 

asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating 

conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, 

anticipated technological changes, manufacturers 

warranties and maintenance support, etc. 

  Freehold Land is not depreciated, but subjected to 

impairment assessment. The residual values, useful 

lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant 

and equipment are reviewed at each financial year 

end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

  An item of PP&E is derecognised upon disposal or 

when no future economic benefits are expected to 

arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or 

loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of 

property, plant and equipment is determined as the 

difference between the sale proceeds and the 

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss.

  Intangible Assets

  The Group's intangible assets represent computer 

software. 

  An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost 

can be measured reliably and it is probable that the 

expected future economic benefits that are 

attributable to it will flow to the Group.

  Intangible assets acquired separately are measured 

on initial recognition at cost. Subsequently, they are 

carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and 

impairment losses if any, and are amortised over their 

estimated useful life on the straight-line basis over a 

3-year period or the license period whichever is lower.

  The carrying amount of the assets is reviewed at each 

Balance sheet date to ascertain impairment based on 

internal or external factors.

  The amortisation period and the amortisation method 

for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are 

reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

  An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal 

(i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when 

no future economic benefits are expected from its use 

or disposal.  Any gain or loss arising upon 

Particulars

 Office Equipment 3 years 5 years

 Servers (under office  3 years 6 years

 equipment)

 Furniture and Fixtures 3 years 10 years

 Vehicles 3 years 8 years

 Leasehold  Primary lease Not
 improvements period or 3 applicable
  years, 
  whichever is 
  lower 

Estimated 
Life

Life as per 
Schedule II
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  derecognition of the asset (calculated as the 

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 

carrying amount of the asset) is included in the 

statement of profit and loss when the asset is 

derecognised.

2.7  Impairment of non-financial assets

  The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether 

there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 

any indication exists, or when annual impairment 

testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates 

the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable 

amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating 

unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its 

value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an 

individual asset, unless the asset does not generate 

cash inflows that are largely independent of those 

from other assets or groups of assets. When the 

carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 

recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired 

and is written down to its recoverable amount.

  In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 

flows are discounted to their present value using a 

pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 

assessments of the time value of money and the risks 

specific to the asset. In determining fair value less 

costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 

taken in to account. If no such transactions can be 

identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. 

These calculations are corroborated by valuation 

multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded 

companies or other available fair value indicators.  

  The Group bases its impairment calculation on 

detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are 

prepared separately for each of the Group's CGUs to 

which the individual assets are allocated. These 

budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a 

period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term 

growth rate is calculated and applied to project future 

cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow 

projections beyond periods covered by the most 

recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates 

cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or 

declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an 

increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this 

growth rate does not exceed the long-term average 

growth rate for the products, industries, or country or 

countries in which the entity operates, or for the 

market in which the asset is used.

  Impairment losses of continuing operations, are 

recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

  For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made 

at each reporting date to determine whether there is 

an indication that previously recognised impairment 

losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such 

indication exists, the Group estimates the asset's or 

CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised 

impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a 

change in the assumptions used to determine the 

asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment 

loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the 

carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its 

recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount 

that  would have been determined,  net  of 

depreciation, had no impairment loss been 

recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is 

recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless 

the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which 

case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

2.8 Provisions

  Provisions are recognised when the Group has a 

present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 

a past event, it is probable that the Group will be 

required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

  The amount recognised as a provision is the best 

estimate of the consideration required to settle the 

present obligation at the end of the reporting period, 

taking into account the risks and uncertainties 

surrounding the obligation. When a provision is 

measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the 

present obligation, its carrying amount is the present 

value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time 

value of money is material, provisions are discounted 

using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 

appropriate, the risks specific to the liability). When 

discounting is used, the increase in the provision due 

to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

  When some or all of the economic benefits required to 

settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a 

third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is 

virtually certain that reimbursement will be received, 

and the amount of the receivable can be measured 

reliably. The expense relating to a provision is 

presented in the statement of profit and loss net of 

any reimbursement.

2.9 Cash flow statement

  Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, 

whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the 

effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any 

deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or 

payments.
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2.9.1 Cash and cash equivalents 

  Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits 

with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances 

(with an original maturity of three months or less from 

the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that 

are readily convertible into known amounts of cash 

and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes 

in value.

2.10 Earnings per share (“EPS”)

  Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the 

profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average 

number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing 

the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, 

interest and other charges to expense or income (net 

of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive 

potential equity shares, by the weighted average 

number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 

earnings per share and the weighted average number 

of equity shares which could have been issued on the 

conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only 

if their conversion to equity shares would decrease 

the net profit per share from continuing ordinary 

operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are 

deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the 

period, unless they have been issued at a later date. 

The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for 

the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually 

issued at fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares 

are determined independently for each period 

presented. The number of equity shares and 

potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for 

share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, 

as appropriate (Refer Note 35). Partly paid equity 

shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to 

the extent that they are entitled to participate in 

dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during 

the reporting period.

2.11 Segment Reporting

  Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that 

public business enterprises report information about 

operating segments and related disclosures about 

products and services, geographic areas, and major 

customers. Based on the 'management approach' as 

defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision 

Maker (“CODM”) evaluates the Group's performance 

based on an analysis of various performance 

indicators by business segments and geographic 

segments.

  As per the requirements of Ind AS 108 'Operating 

Segments', based on evaluation of financial 

information for allocation of resources and assessing 

performance, the Group has identified a single 

segment, viz. "providing long term housing finance, 

loans against property and refinance loans". 

Accordingly, there are no separate reportable 

segments as per Ind AS 108.

2.12 Determination of Fair value

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 

asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the 

measurement date. The fair value measurement is 

based on the presumption that the transaction to sell 

the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

§ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

§ In the absence of a principal market, in the most 

advantageous market for the asset or liability

  The principal or the most advantageous market must 

be accessible by the Group.

  The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured 

using the assumptions that market participants would 

use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 

market participants act in their economic best 

interest.

  A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset 

takes into account a market participant's ability to   

generate economic benefits by using the asset in its 

highest and best use or by selling it to another market 

participant that would use the asset in its highest and 

best use.

  The Group uses valuation techniques that are 

appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 

maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

  In order to show how fair values have been derived, 

financial instruments are classified based on a 

hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised 

below:

§ Level 1 financial instruments − Those where the 

inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted 

prices from active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities that the Group has access to at the 

measurement date. The Group considers markets 

as active only if there are sufficient trading activities 

with regards to the volume and liquidity of the 
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 identical assets or liabilities and when there are 

binding and exercisable price quotes available on 

the balance sheet date.

§ Level 2 financial instruments − Those where the 

inputs that are used for valuation and are 

significant, are derived from directly or indirectly 

observable market data available over the entire 

period of the instrument's life. Such inputs include 

quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in 

active markets, quoted prices for identical 

instruments in inactive markets and observable 

inputs other than quoted prices such as interest 

rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and 

credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may be 

required for the condition or location of the asset or 

the extent to which it relates to items that are 

comparable to the valued instrument. However, if 

such adjustments are based on unobservable 

inputs which are significant to the entire 

measurement, the Group will classify the 

instruments as Level 3.

§ Level 3 financial instruments − Those that include 

one or more unobservable input that is significant 

to the measurement as whole.

  For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the 

financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group 

determines whether transfers have occurred between 

levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 

(based on the lowest level input that is significant to 

the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of 

each reporting period.

  The Group evaluates the levelling at each reporting 

period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and 

reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the 

facts at the end of the reporting period.

3.  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and 

assumptions

  The preparation of the Group's financial statements 

requires management to make judgements, estimates 

and assumptions that affect the reported amount of 

revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the 

accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of 

contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these 

assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes 

that require a material adjustment to the carrying 

amount of assets or liabilities affected in future 

period

  In the process of applying the Group's accounting 

policies, management has made the following 

  judgements/estimates, which have a significant risk of 

causing a material adjustment to the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 

financial year.

3.1  De-recognition of Financial instruments

  The Group enters into securitisation transactions 

where financial assets are transferred to a structured 

entity for a consideration. The financial assets 

transferred qualify for derecognition only when 

substantial risk and rewards are transferred. 

  This assessment includes judgements reflecting all 

relevant evidence including the past performance of 

the assets transferred and credit risk that the Group 

has been exposed to. Based on this assessment, the 

Group believes that the credit enhancement provided 

pursuant to the transfer of financial assets under 

securitisation are higher than the loss incurred on the 

similar portfolios of the Group hence it has been 

concluded that securitisation transactions entered by 

the Group does not qualify for de-recognition since 

substantial risk and rewards of the ownership has not 

been transferred. The transactions are treated as 

financing arrangements and the sale consideration 

received is treated as borrowings.

3.2  Fair value of financial instruments

  The fair value of financial instruments is the price that 

would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 

liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or 

most advantageous) market at the measurement date 

under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) 

regardless of whether that price is directly observable  

for estimated using another valuation technique. 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial 

liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be 

derived from active markets, they are determined 

using a variety of valuation techniques that include 

the use of valuation models. The inputs to these 

models are taken from observable markets where 

possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is 

required in establishing fair values. Judgements and 

estimates include considerations of liquidity and 

model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both 

own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, 

correlation and volatility. For further details about 

determination of fair value please see Fair value note 

in Accounting policy

3.3 Impairment of financial asset

  The measurement of impairment losses across all 

categories of financial assets requires judgement, in 
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  particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of 

future cash flows and collateral values when 

determining impairment losses and the assessment 

of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates 

are driven by a number of factors, changes in which 

can result in different levels of allowances.

  The Group's ECL calculations are outputs of complex 

models with a number of underlying assumptions 

regarding the choice of variable inputs and their 

interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that 

are considered accounting estimates include:

§ The Group's criteria for assessing if there has been a 

significant increase in credit risk and so allowances 

for financial assets should be measured on a LTECL 

basis and the qualitative assessment

§ The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL 

is assessed on a collective basis

§ Development of ECL models, including the various 

formulas and the choice of inputs

§ Determination of temporary adjustments as 

qualitative adjustment or overlays based on broad 

 range of forward looking information as economic 

inputs  

  It has been the Group's policy to regularly review its 

models in the context of actual loss experience and 

adjust when necessary.

3.4  Provisions and other contingent liabilities

  When the Group can reliably measure the outflow of 

economic benefits in relation to a specific case and 

considers such outflows to be probable, the Group 

records a provision against the case. Contingent 

liabilities are disclosed in respect of matters that are 

either possible obligations whose existence will be 

confirmed only by future uncertain events outside the 

control of the Group, or are present obligations where 

the outflow of economic resources may not be 

probable or cannot be measured reliably.

  Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining 

the probability and amount of losses, the Group takes 

in to account a number of factors including legal 

advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence 

from similar incidents. Significant judgement is 

required to conclude on these estimates.
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As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Cash on hand   181.08   107.08 

 Balances with banks - In current accounts  30,990.05   36,293.62 

 Balances with banks - In deposit accounts - Original maturity less than 3 months  11,102.86   12,002.71 

 Total      42,273.99   48,403.41 

Note: 4 Cash & Cash Equivalent

` in lakhs

Particulars

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 In deposit accounts - Original maturity more than 3 months  695.84   11,336.94 

 Balances held as margin money against securitisation  810.23   527.30 

 Total      1,506.07   11,864.24 

Note: 5 Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents

` in lakhs

Particulars

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

Note: 6 Loans

` in lakhs

Particulars

Notes:   

 (i)  All term loans are originated in India.

 (ii)   Term Loans are secured by deposit of original title deeds of immovable properties with the Group and/or registered 

mortgage of title deeds.

 (iii)  The Group has securitised certain term loans and managed servicing of such loan accounts. The balance outstanding in the 

pool, as at the reporting date is ̀ 55.54 lakhs (March 31, 2020: 302.52 lakhs). The carrying value of these assets have been de-

recognised in the books of the Group.

 (iv)  Refer Note 42 for securitised term loans not derecognised in their entirety.

 (v)   There are no outstanding loan to Public Institution.

 (vi)  Term loans do not include any loans given to employees of the Group.

 (vii)  Debt securities and borrowings (other than debt securities) of the Group are secured by hypothecation of specified term 

loans (refer note 12 and 13).

 Secured Term loans carried at amortised cost  4,00,396.47   3,12,539.02 

 Total Term loans (gross)  4,00,396.47   3,12,539.02 

 Less: Impairment loss allowance  (1,416.46)  (830.16)

 Total Term loans (net)  3,98,980.01   3,11,708.86 
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As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 At fair value through profit and loss    

 Quoted: Investment in Mutual Funds  5,275.22   -   

       5,275.22   -   

Note: 7 Investments

` in lakhs

Particulars

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Considered Good, Unsecured - At Amortised Cost 

 Security deposits  265.58   238.55 

 Loans and advances to employees   0.28   2.40 

 Accrued income   125.10   15.62 

 Receivable on securitised assets  5.08   10.62 

 Ex-gratia receivable  766.11   0.49 

 Total      1,162.15   267.68 

Note: 8 Other Financial assets

` in lakhs

Particulars

(Charged) / 
Credited 

to OCI

As at 
March 31, 2021

Note: 9 Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (Net)

` in lakhs

Components of deferred tax asset / (liability)
(Charged) /
 Credited to 

Profit and Loss

As at 
April 01, 2020
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 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax 

 assets:  

 Provision for compensated absences, gratuity  60.66   16.91   3.79   81.36 
 and other employee benefits  

 Impairment Loss Allowance  241.10   182.29   -     423.39 

 Difference between written down value of PPE  114.47   12.94   -     127.41 
 and intangible assets as per books and as per 
 Section 32 of Income-tax Act, 1961  

 Deferred processing fee relating to loans  1,240.81   380.22   -     1,621.03 

 Others     10.98   2.44   -     13.42 

 Tax effect of items constituting deferred 
 tax assets    1,668.02   594.80   3.79   2,266.61 

 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax 
 (liabilities):  

 On Provision for doubtful advances allowed 
 under section 36(1)(viia) of Income-tax Act, 1961  (120.25)  (100.84)  -     (221.09)

 Deferred processing fee relating to debt  (272.98)  (56.63)  -     (329.61)
 securities and borrowings other than debt 
 securities    

 Others     (2.53)  (14.06)  -     (16.59)

 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax  (395.76)  (171.53)  -     (567.29)
 (liabilities)    

    

 Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities)  1,272.26   423.26   3.79   1,699.32 



(Charged) / 
Credited 

to OCI

As at 
March 31, 2020

Components of deferred tax asset / (liability)
(Charged) /
 Credited to 

Profit and Loss

As at 
April 01, 2019

 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax 
 assets:  

 Provision for compensated absences, gratuity  52.02   4.78   3.86   60.66 
 and other employee benefits  

 Impairment Loss Allowance  162.37   78.73   -     241.10 

 Difference between written down value of PPE  98.32   16.15   -     114.47
 and intangible assets as per books and as per 
 Section 32 of Income-tax Act, 1961   

 Deferred processing fee relating to loans  881.54   359.27   -     1,240.81 

 Others     0.78   10.20   -     10.98 

 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax  1,195.03   469.13   3.86   1,668.02
 assets      

    

 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax 
 (liabilities):    

 On Special Reserve created under  (2,078.46)  2,078.46   -     -   
 section 36(1)(viii) of the Income-tax Act, 
 1961 (Refer Note 26.3)  

 On Provision for doubtful advances allowed 
 under section 36(1)(viia) of Income-tax Act, 1961  (51.35)  (68.90)  -     (120.25)

 Deferred processing fee relating to debt securities   (242.82)  (30.16)  -     (272.98)
 and borrowings other than debt securities  

 Others     (0.53)  (2.00)  -     (2.53)

 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax  (2,373.16)  1,977.40   -     (395.76)
 (liabilities)    

 Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities)  (1,178.13)  2,446.53   3.86   1,272.26 

Note: 9 Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (Net) (contd.)

` in lakhs

Note: 10 

10A. Property, plant and equipment

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

        Carrying amounts of:

 a) Freehold Land  64.57   64.57 

 b) Leasehold improvements  49.73   72.29 

 c) Furniture and fixtures  13.40   21.13 

 d) Vehicles    -     0.18 

 e) Office Equipment  120.47   168.64 

 Total      248.17   326.81 

` in lakhs

Particulars
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

10A. Property, plant and equipment (Contd.)

10B. Other Intangibe Assets

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

        Carrying amounts of:

 a) Computer software 26.78   36.57 

 Total      26.78   36.57 

` in lakhs

Particulars

Freehold 
Land

 Cost / Deemed cost       

 Balance at April 1, 2019  64.57   199.33   63.15   60.45   291.71   679.21 

 Additions during the year  -     37.75   33.03   -     149.05   219.83 

 Balance at March 31, 2020  64.57   237.08   96.18   60.45   440.76   899.04 

 Additions during the year  -     21.65   10.32   -     61.05   93.02 

 Balance at March 31, 2021  64.57   258.73   106.50   60.45   501.81   992.06 

       

 Accumulated depreciation       

 Balance at April 1, 2019  -     108.95   44.41   41.24   164.69   359.29 

 Depreciation expense for the year  -     55.84   30.64   19.03   107.43   212.94 

 Balance at March 31, 2020  -     164.79   75.05   60.27   272.12   572.23 

 Depreciation expense for the year  -     44.21   18.05   0.18   109.22   171.66 

 Balance at March 31, 2021  -     209.00   93.10   60.45   381.34   743.89 

       

 Net book value       

 Balance at March 31, 2021  64.57   49.73   13.40   -     120.47   248.17 

 Balance at March 31, 2020  64.57   72.29   21.13   0.18   168.64   326.81 

` in lakhs

Particulars

Notes:  

 (i) Freehold Land with a carrying value of `64.57 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - `64.57 lakhs) has been hypothecated to secure Non-

convertible debentures issued by the group.      

Leasehold 
Improvements

Furniture and
 Fixtures

Vehicles
Office 

Equipments Total

Computer Software Total

 Cost / Deemed cost    

 Balance at April 1, 2019  251.83   251.83 

 Additions during the year  44.12   44.12 

 Balance at March 31, 2020  295.95   295.95 

 Additions during the year  34.57   34.57 

 Balance at March 31, 2021  330.52   330.52 

    

 Accumulated amortisation    

 Balance at April 1, 2019 170.51   170.51 

 Amortisation expense during the year  88.87   88.87 

 Balance at March 31, 2020  259.38   259.38 

 Amortisation expense during the year  44.36   44.36 

 Balance at March 31, 2021  303.74   303.74 

    

 Net book value    

 Balance at March 31, 2021 26.78   26.78 

 Balance at March 31, 2020  36.57   36.57 

` in lakhs

Particulars
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10C. Right-of-use assets

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

        Carrying amounts of:

 a) Leased buildings (Refer Note 41) 680.69   647.65 

 Total     680.69   647.65 

` in lakhs

Particulars

 Leased buildings Total

 Cost / Deemed cost     

 Balance at April 1, 2019  -     -   

 Additions during the year  926.42   926.42 

 Balance at March 31, 2020  926.42   926.42 

 Additions during the year  385.41   385.41 

 Balance at March 31, 2021  1,311.83   1,311.83 

       

 Accumulated depreciation        

 Balance at April 1, 2019  -     -   

 Depreciation expense for the year  278.77   278.77 

 Balance at March 31, 2020  278.77   278.77 

 Depreciation expense for the year  352.37   352.37 

 Balance at March 31, 2021  631.14   631.14 

       

 Net book value   

 Balance at March 31, 2021  680.69   680.69 

 Balance at March 31, 2020  647.65   647.65

Particulars

` in lakhs

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

 Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment  10A   171.66   212.94 

 Amortisation on Intangible assets  10B  44.36   88.87 

 Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 10C  352.37   278.77 

 Total       568.39   580.58

` in lakhs

Particulars Note

10D. Depreciation and Amortisation expense

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Considered Good, Unsecured  

 Capital Advances                                 20.85 8.20 

 Prepaid Expenses                                 49.17 50.42 

 Other Advances [Refer Note (i) given below]                                 94.17  86.28

 Total                                  164.19   144.90 

Note: 11 Other non-financial assets

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: (i)  includes `81.09 lakhs incurred towards various expenses in connection with proposal initial public offer of equity 

 shares of the Company.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures - At Amortised cost                         43,018.39 64,454.96 

 (Within India)     

 Total                              43,018.39 64,454.96 

Note: 12 Debt Securities

` in lakhs

Particulars

(a)  Details of Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures ("NCDs") - Redeemable at par:

Notes:   

 (i) Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures are secured by hypothecation of specified term loans amounting to `51,314.08 

lakhs as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 - ̀ 70,156.75 lakhs) and specified immovable property amounting to ̀ 64.57 lakhs as 

at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 - ̀ 64.57 lakhs).

 (ii) Debentures issued by the subsidiary aggregating to ̀ 4,895.83 lakhs as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 - ̀ 4,062.50) has been 

guaranteed by Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited, the Holding Company.

 (iii) The Group has not defaulted in the repayment of borrowings and interest during any of the years presented.     

 # Repayable on quarterly basis, other NCDs are repayable as bullet payments on the due date of redemption.

 * During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Holding Company has made an early redemption of debentures.

Face ValueNo. of Debentures
Due date of 
redemption

Rate of 
Interest

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

` `  in lakhs ` in lakhs

Balance Outstanding

 5,000 10.75% March 5, 2023# 81,250  2,790.34   4,003.68 

 33,20,000 10.00% May 15, 2023 100  3,424.85   3,418.39 

 33,20,000 9.35% May 15, 2023 100  3,415.34   3,408.03 

 33,30,000 9.80% May 15, 2023 100  3,430.29   3,422.63 

 250 8.90% September 7, 2023# 10,00,000  2,083.92   -   

 5,500 10.00% December 26, 2024* 1,00,000  -     5,463.15 

 2,500 10.00% January 24, 2025* 1,00,000  -     2,474.34 

 2,000 10.00% February 26, 2025* 1,00,000  -     1,983.09 

 5,000 10.00% June 20, 2025 1,00,000  4,981.44   4,977.04 

 12,500 10.00% July 20, 2025* 1,00,000  -     12,440.76 

 12,500 10.00% August 20, 2025 1,00,000  12,451.75   12,441.69 

 1,01,00,000 10.36% November 3, 2025 100  10,440.46   10,422.16 

 Total     43,018.39   64,454.96 

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

      Secured - At Amortised cost (Within India)

 Term loans     

 - Scheduled banks  1,31,391.89   98,746.63 

 - Other Financial Institutions 57,720.37   28,237.19 

 Securitisation Loans                          15,166.79                        9,081.14 

 Working Capital Loans                           3,500.00                        978.25

 Total  2,07,779.05 1,37,043.21                          

Note: 13 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
` in lakhs

Particulars

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

(a) Terms of repayment and tenure of term loans are as follows:
` in lakhs

Rate of Interest

Balance Outstanding
Tenure

1 year

Note: 13 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) (Contd..)

2- 5 years

5- 7 years

7-10 years

> 10 years

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

(b) Terms of repayment and tenure of securitisation loans are as follows:
` in lakhs

Rate of Interest

Balance Outstanding
Tenure

5-7 years

Notes:   

 (i) Term loans from scheduled banks and other financial institutions are secured by hypothecation of specified term loans 

amounting to ̀ 2,25,680.53 lakhs as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 - ̀ 1,58,438.61 lakhs).     

 (ii) The Group has not defaulted in the repayment of borrowings and interest during any of the years presented.     

 (iii) Term Loans from other financial institution (National Housing Bank) aggregating to `9,295.50 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - 

` 11,274.82 lakhs) has been guaranteed by the promoter Mr. M Anandan.     

 (iii) Loans aggregating to `16,779.57 lakhs as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 - `10,721.11 lakhs) has been guaranteed by Aptus 

Value Housing Finance India Limited, the Holding Company.     

 (iv)  Working Capital loans have been availed at Interest rate of 8.00-8.15% p.a and are secured by hypothecation of specified 

term loans amounting to ̀ 4,029.25 lakhs as at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 - ̀ 1,170.22 lakhs).

 (v) The secured term loans are availed from various scheduled banks and other financial institutions. These loans are 

repayable as per the individual contracted terms in one or more instalments.

 5.05%       3,209.80   -   

     

 8.00%-9.00%     6,905.85   -   

 9.00%-10.00%    7,307.97   3,447.21 

 10.00%-11.00%    2,482.67  7,233.95 

     

 7.00%-8.00%     1,778.87   -   

 8.00%-9.00%     44,850.02   4,959.42 

 9.00%-10.00%    16,461.65   22,802.77 

 10.00%-11.05%    207.89   20,684.64 

     

 5.85%-6.00%     41,980.43   -   

 6.00%-7.00%     2,826.00   -   

 7.00%-8.00%     330.63   13,543.30 

 8.00%-9.00%     41,685.93   3,626.69 

 9.00%-10.00%    11,782.72   36,678.82 

 10.00%-11.00%    -     3,913.84 

     

 6.90%-7.00%     7,152.24   -   

 8.00%-9.00%     149.60   8,076.87 

  9.00%-10.00%    -     183.52 

 11.00%-11.15%    -     1,832.79 

 Total       1,89,112.26   1,26,983.82 

 7.50%-8.00%                               9,110.56                                 -   

 10.00%-11.00%                            6,056.23 9,081.14

 Total                           15,166.79 9,081.14

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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Note: 14 Other financial liabilities

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: 15 Current tax liabilities (Net)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 444.89 583.46Provision for Income Tax (net) (Refer note (i) below)  

 Total       444.89   583.46

 (i) Net of Advance Tax  21,596.44   13,746.40

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: 16 Provisions

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 30)   

   Provision for gratuity  164.24   126.64  

   Provision for leave encashment 159.02   114.37 

 Provisions for Undrawn commitments  6.92   11.42

 Total      330.18   252.43

` in lakhs

Particulars

 At Amortised Cost  

 Advances from customers  43.62   25.01 

 Remittances Payable - Securitised Assets  22.31   41.68 

 Accrued employee benefits  568.25   399.23 

 Other payables   700.58   58.32 

 Total                             1,334.76                             524.24  

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 
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Note: 17 Other non-financial liabilities

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: 18 Equity Share capital (Refer Note 44(i))

   (a) Reconciliation of number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars

 Equity shares     

       Year ended March 31, 2021

 - Number of shares               9,58,63,258 - 4,20,000 9,62,83,258 

 - Amount (  in lakhs)                   9,451.33 - 42.00 9,493.33`

       Year ended March 31, 2020

 - Number of shares 7,87,82,637 1,67,08,121 3,72,500 9,58,63,258 

 - Amount (  in lakhs) 7,878.26 1,535.82 37.25 9,451.33`

Opening Balance Fresh issue ESOP Closing Balance

Notes:

 (b) During the year ended March 31, 2021, pursuant to Aptus Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) 2015, the Board of Directors 

allotted 3,45,000 fully paid up equity shares of `10 each at a premium of `65 each and 75,000 fully paid up equity shares of 

` 10 each at a premium of ̀ 120 each to the employees of the Company vide circular resolution dated December 02, 2020.     

 (c) During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has allotted 1,52,08,121 fully paid-up equity shares of `10 each at a 

premium of ̀ 516.03 per share and 15,00,000 partly paid-up equity shares of ̀ 10 each (Paid-up to the extent of ̀ 1 per share) 

on preferential basis. The said allotment has been approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on August 8, 2019 

and by the shareholders in the Extraordinary General Meeting held on August 19, 2019 respectively (Refer Note 44(ii)).     

 (d) During the year ended March 31, 2020, pursuant to Aptus Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) 2015, the Board of Directors 

allotted 3,35,000 fully paid up equity shares of ̀ 10 each at a premium of ̀ 65 each and 37,500 fully paid up equity shares of ̀ 10 

each at a premium of ̀ 120 each to the employees of the Company vide circular resolution dated October 14, 2019.     

 (e)  Terms/right attached to Equity Shares:  

  The Holding company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ̀ 10 each. Each holder is entitled to one vote 

per equity share. Dividends proposed by the Board of Directors, if any is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the 

Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. 

  In the event of liquidation of the Holding company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets 

of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity 

shares held by the shareholders.

Particulars

 (i)  Authorised share capital     

  Equity shares of 10 each    10,60,00,000   10,600.00   10,60,00,000   10,600.00  `

 (ii) Issued, Subscribed      

  Equity shares of `10 each - Fully paid-up  9,47,83,258   9,478.33   9,43,63,258   9,436.33 

  Equity shares of `10 each - Partly paid-up (`1 each) 15,00,000   15.00   15,00,000   15.00 

      Total               9,62,83,258 9,493.33 9,58,63,258 9,451.33

As at March 31, 2021

Number of Shares Amount

As at March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

Number of Shares Amount

 Statutory dues   229.12   178.02 

 Deferred Income   37.64   -   

 Total                           266.76 178.02

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company in its meeting held on May 05, 2021 and shareholders in the Extraordinary General 

Meeting held on May 06, 2021 approved the sub-division of shares from 10 per share to 2 per share (Also refer Note 44(i)).` `

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 
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   (f ) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Notes: (Contd..)

Class of shares / Name of shareholder 

 M Anandan    1,92,32,833  19.98%  1,92,32,833  20.06%

 Padma Anandan   50,00,000  5.19%  50,00,000  5.22%

 Westbridge Cross Over Fund LLC  3,43,45,951  35.67%  3,43,45,951  35.83%

 JIH II LLC     83,70,924  8.69%  82,72,010  8.63%

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Number of 
Shares held

Number of 
Shares held

% holding in that 
class of shares 

% holding in that 
class of shares 

` in lakhs

 (g)  Shares reserved for issue under options:  

  Refer Note 40 for details of shares reserved for issue under options.

Note: 19 Other Equity

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

Particulars

19.1      Movement in Other Equity

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 (a)  Securities premium reserve (Refer Note 19.2.1)   

  Balance at the beginning of the year  1,15,856.61   37,449.71 

  Add : Premium on shares issued during the year  314.25   78,741.22 

  Add : Transfer from Employee Stock Options Reserve on ESOP exercised  105.57   47.18 
  during the year  

  Less : Share Issue Expenses -     (381.50)

  Balance at the end of the year 1,16,276.43   1,15,856.61 

 (b) Employee Stock Options Reserve (Refer Note 19.2.2 & Note 40)  

  Balance at the beginning of the year  173.81   201.78 

  Add: Share based payments to employees during the year 4.62   19.21 

  Less: Transfer to Securities Premium on options exercised during the year (105.57)  (47.18)

  Balance at the end of the year 72.86   173.81 

 

 (c)  Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of National Housing Bank (NHB) Act, 
  1987 (Refer Note 19.2.3) 

  Balance at the beginning of the year 

   a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987  1,058.38   72.35 

   b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961  9,705.26   7,065.22 
    taken into account for the purpose of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C 
    of the NHB Act, 1987  

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: There are no shares held by Holding / Ultimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries / associates.

 Securities premium reserve  1,16,276.43   1,15,856.61 

 Employee Stock Options Reserve 72.86   173.81 

 Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of National Housing Bank (NHB) Act, 1987  1,885.20   1,058.38 
 (Statutory Reserve - I)  

 Special Reserve under 36(1)(viii) of Income-tax Act, 1961  13,233.29   9,705.26 

 Statutory Reserve under Section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934  1,785.39   795.94 
 (Statutory Reserve - II) 

 Impairment Reserve 761.93   90.26 

 Retained Earnings 54,467.19   33,788.67 

 Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan (30.47)  (19.22)

 Total      1,88,451.82   1,61,449.71 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

PERFORMANCE REPORT | STATUTORY REPORTS | FINANCIAL STATEMENTSANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

APTUS VALUE HOUSING FINANCE INDIA LIMITED 170



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

19.1      Movement in Other Equity (Contd..)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

     Addition/Appropriation/withdrawal during the year

  Add: a)  Amount transferred u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987                         826.82                            986.03       

   b)  Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961                       3,528.03                          2,640.04 

        taken into account for the purposes of Statutory reserve 

       u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987   

  Less:  a)  Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C 

         of the NHB Act, 1987 -     -   

    b)  Amount withdrawn from special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of  - -     

    Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of 

    provision u/s 29 C of NHB Act 1987

     Balance at the end of the year

          a)  Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987                      1,885.20  1,058.38  

   b)  Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961                     13,233.29  9,705.26   

    taken into account for the purpose of Statutory reserve 

    u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987   

                          15,118.49  10,763.64  

 (d)  Statutory Reserve under Section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

  (Refer Note 19.2.4)   

  Balance at the beginning of the year                         795.94  198.68   

  Add: Transfer from retained earnings during the year                         989.45  597.26 

  Balance at the end of the year                       1,785.39  795.94 

 (e)  Impairment Reserve (Refer Note 19.2.5 & Note 43)   

  Balance at the beginning of the year                           90.26   -   

  Add: Transfer from retained earnings during the year                         671.67                              90.26   

  Balance at the end of the year                                                761.93                                90.26   

   

 (f )  Retained Earnings (Refer Note 19.2.6)   

  Balance at the beginning of the year 33,788.67   17,000.99 

  Add: Profit for the year                    26,694.49                        21,101.27 

  Less: Transfer to Special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961                      (3,528.03) (2,640.04)

  (Refer Note 19.2.3)  

  Less: Transfer to Special reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987                         (826.82) (986.03) 

  (Refer Note 19.2.3) 

  Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve u/s 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934                         (989.45) (597.26)

  (Refer Note 19.2.4) 

  Less: Transfer to Impairment reserve  (Refer Note: 19.2.5)                        (671.67) (90.26)     

  Balance at the end of the year                    54,467.19  33,788.67 

   

 (g)  Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan   

  Balance at the beginning of the year                          (19.22) (7.73)

  Other Comprehensive Income for the year (11.25) (11.49)

  Balance at the end of the year                          (30.47) (19.22)

  Total                     1,88,451.82                       1,61,449.71 

` in lakhs

Particulars
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

19.2   Nature and purpose of reserves:

19.2.1  Securities premium reserve   

   Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited 

purposes in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Securities premium reserve is utilised to the extent 

of ̀ 381.50 lakhs on account of expenses incurred for the issue of Equity shares during the year ended March 31, 2020, in line 

with Section 52 of the Companies Act 2013.   

19.2.2 Employee Stock Options Reserve   

   The amount represents reserve created to the extent of granted options based on the Employees Stock Option Schemes. 

Under Ind AS 102, fair value of the options granted is to be expensed out over the life of the vesting period as employee 

compensation costs reflecting period of receipt of service. Also refer note 40.   

19.2.3 Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of National Housing Bank (NHB) Act, 1987 (Statutory Reserve - I)   

   As per Section 29C(1) of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Holding Company is required to transfer at least 20% of its 

net profit after tax every year to a reserve before any dividend is declared. For this purpose, any Special Reserve created by 

the Holding Company under Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, is considered to be an eligible transfer. During the 

year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has transferred ̀ 3,528.03 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - ̀ 2,640.04 lakhs) in terms of section 

36(1)(viii) to the Special Reserve.   

   The Holding Company has transferred an amount of `826.82 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 - 

` 986.03 lakhs) to Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987. Total amount clearly earmarked for the 

purposes of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C is `12,906.87 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - `8,551.97 lakhs) out of which `1,885.20 lakhs 

(March 31, 2020 - `1,058.38 lakhs) is distinctly identifiable above and the balance of `9,984.86 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - 

` 7,493.59 lakhs) is included in the Special Reserve created u/s 36(1)(viii) of the Income-tax Act, 1961.   

   The Holding Company has resolved not to make withdrawals from the Special reserve created under Section 36(1)(viii) of the 

Income-tax Act, 1961.   

19.2.4 Statutory Reserve under Section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (Statutory Reserve - II)   

   Statutory reserve represents the reserve created as per Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, pursuant to 

which a Non-Banking Financial Company shall create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty per 

cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss account, before any dividend is declared.   

19.2.5 Impairment Reserve   

   In terms of the requirement as per RBI notification no. RBI/2020-21/100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated 17 

February 2021, Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) are required to create an impairment reserve for any shortfall in 

impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 and Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms 

(including provision on standard assets). Accordingly the Parent Company has transferred such shortfall amount to 

Impairment Reserve. No withdrawal from the reserve is permitted without prior permission from the Department of 

Supervision, RBI.   

   In terms of the requirement as per RBI notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 

March 13, 2020 on Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards, Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) are required 

to create an impairment reserve for any shortfall in impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 and Income Recognition, Asset 

Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms (including provision on standard assets). Accordingly the Subsidiary 

Company has transferred the shortfall amount to Impairment Reserve. No withdrawal from the reserve is permitted without 

prior permission from the Department of Supervision, RBI.   

19.2.6 Retained earnings   

   Retained earnings are the profits/(loss) that the Group has earned/incurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve, 

dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Group and 

eligible for distribution to shareholders, in case where it is having positive balance representing net earnings till date. The 

amount that can be distributed by the Group as dividends to its Equity Shareholders is determined based on the financial 

statements of the Group and also considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts reported are 

not distributable in entirety and includes non-distributable items including unrealised gains, notional gains and any 

change in carrying amount of an asset or of a liability on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value, etc.   
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 (a) Interest Income  

      On financials assets measured at amortised cost  

  - Interest on term loans  60,931.76   46,759.63 

  - Interest on fixed deposits with banks  1,457.10   1,704.07 

  Total     62,388.86   48,463.70 

  

 (b) Net gain on fair value changes   

      Investment in mutual funds measured at FVTPL - trading portfolio  

  - Realised  52.74   313.51 

  - Unrealised  23.34   -   

 Total      76.08   313.51 

 

(c) Fees and commission Income (Refer Note 21A)  1,196.46   1,196.23 

  

 Total      63,661.40   49,973.44 

Note: 21 Other income

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 Charges for Marketing / Display  1,862.10   2,321.35 

 Other Non Operating Income  0.65   18.03 

 Total      1,862.75   2,339.38

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: 20 Revenue from operations

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

Particulars

` in lakhs

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

21.1      Revenue from contracts with customers

 Fees and commission Income *  1,196.46   1,196.23 

 Charges for Marketing / Display  1,862.10   2,321.35 

 Total Revenue from contracts with customers  3,058.56   3,517.58 

 * comprises of charges collected from the customers in the nature of 

 Preclosure charges, Cheque dishonour charges and other charges as applicable.

   Timing of Revenue recognition

 Over a period of time                         1,862.10 2,321.35

 At a point in Time                         1,196.46                           1,196.23 

   Geographical markets

 In India                             3,058.56                          3,517.58  

 Outside India   -     -   

   Contract Balances

 Opening balance of contract liabilities  -     -   

 Closing balance of contract liabilities  -     -   

  

 Opening balance of contract assets  17.74   64.79 

 Closing balance of Contract assets  125.10   17.74 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 
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Note: 22 Finance costs

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 Interest expense on Financial liabilities (measured at Amorised cost)  

 -  Debt Securities                         6,266.27   7,612.89

 -  Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)                       14,315.11   10,732.90

 -  Others                                  72.01  109.12

  Total                           20,653.39  18,454.91

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: 23 Employee benefits expense

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 Salaries, Bonus and Commission                         6,439.42   5,705.82 

 Employee Stock options expense (Refer Note 40)                                4.62   19.21

 Contributions to provident and other funds (Refer Note 30.1)                            493.55    435.83

 Gratuity expense (Refer Note 30.2)                              30.46   23.90

 Staff welfare expenses                            170.29    295.72

       Total                         7,138.34   6,480.48

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: 24 Impairment of Financial Instruments

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

Particulars

 Expected Credit Loss Expense  

  - On terms loans measured at amortised cost                            586.31 274.26   

 - On undrawn commitment at amortised cost  (4.50)  9.75 
Total     581.81 284.01

Note: 25 Other expenses

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 Rent expense -     72.77 

 Repairs and maintenance   

 -  Computers  28.54   22.60 

  -  Others  5.22   3.68 

 Insurance  8.88   7.22 

 Information Technology expenses  61.70   53.10 

 Rates and taxes  324.67   324.41 

 Communication Costs  140.56   119.53 

 Travelling and conveyance   267.19   305.05 

 Office expenses  368.99   327.92 

 Printing and stationery  64.21   71.93 

 Commission to Directors  58.83   28.50 

 Sitting fees to non-whole time directors  11.55   9.65 

 Charges paid to rating agencies  80.67   91.89 

 Electricity Charges  33.51   33.93 

 Bank charges  34.38   23.07 

 Advertisement and publicity  9.78   15.13 

 Legal and professional   162.74   143.01 

 Auditor's fees and expenses (Refer Note 25.1)  45.85   36.58 

 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure (Refer Note 36)  338.49   69.72 

 Miscellaneous expenses  27.31   24.16 

 Total   2,073.07   1,783.85 

` in lakhs

Particulars

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 
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 (i) As Auditors:  

  Statutory Audit fee  22.00   22.00 

  Tax Audit    1.00   1.00 

  Limited Review fee  6.00   6.00 

  Others    12.60   3.50 

  Reimbursement of expenses  0.25   0.22 

  Sub-Total   41.85   32.72 

25.1 Details of Holding Company Auditor's fees and expenses

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: Excludes remuneration to auditors for services in connection with proposed initial public offer of equity shares of the 

Company, which is included in other advances (Refer Note 11).

 As auditors:  

 Statutory Audit fee (including regulatory certificates)  3.00   3.00 

 Tax Audit     0.75   0.75 

 Reimbursement of expenses  0.25   0.11 

 Sub-Total    4.00   3.86 

25.2 Details of Subsidiary Auditor's fees and expenses

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

Particulars

 Current tax expense  8,266.66   6,015.39 

 Tax relating to previous years  (28.74)  58.86 

 Deferred tax charge / (credit)  (423.26)  (2,446.53)

 Total     7,814.66   3,627.72

Note: 26 Income tax expense

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

Particulars

26.1 Reconciliation of Effective tax rate 

        The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit/ (loss) as follows:

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

Particulars

 (A) Profit before tax   34,509.15   24,728.99 

 (B) Enacted tax rates in India (including surcharge and cess) 25.17% 25.17%

 (C) Income tax on profit before tax based on the enacted rate  8,685.26   6,223.79 

 (D) Other than temporary differences 

   - Effect of change in tax rate  -     (159.89)

   - Effect of income that is exempt from taxation  -     (40.92)

   - Effect of inadmissible expenses  154.84   45.25 

   - Effect of admissible deductions  (996.70)  (702.99)

   - Effect of reversal of opening balance of deferred tax liability on  -     (1,796.38)
     Special Reserve created u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax, Act  

 (E) Income tax expense recognised in Profit and Loss  7,843.40   3,568.86 

 The income tax rate used for the above reconciliations are the corporate tax rate payable by the Group in India on 

taxable profits under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 
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Note: 27     

27.1 "i) Matters wherein management has concluded the Group’s liability to be probable have accordingly been provided for in 

the books. Also refer note 16.

  ii) Matters wherein management has concluded the Group’s liability to be possible have accordingly been disclosed 

under Note 27.2 Contingent liabilities below.

  iii) Matters wherein management is confident of succeeding in these litigations and have concluded the Group’s liability 

to be remote. This is based on the relevant facts of judicial precedents and as advised by legal counsel which involves 

various legal proceedings and claims, in different stages of process."

27.2  Contingent Liabilities  

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

                                       55.54 302.52  

` in lakhs

Particulars

Corporate undertakings for securitisation of receivables for which the outflow would 

arise in the event of a shortfall, if any, in the cashflows of the pool of the securitised 

receivables. (Refer note (i) below)

Note:   

 (i) In respect of these undertakings, management does not believe, based on currently available information, that the maximum 

outflow that could arise, will have a material adverse effect on the Group's financial condition.

 (ii) The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

26.2 The Group has elected to exercise the option of a lower tax rate provided under Section 115BAA of the Income tax Act, 1961, 

as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 dated September 20, 2019. Accordingly, the Group has 

recognised provision for income tax for the year ended March 31, 2020 basis the rate provided in the said section and re-

measured its opening balance of deferred tax liabilities ("DTL") (net) as at April 1, 2019 and has reversed DTL of ̀ 159.89 lakhs 

to the statement of profit and loss.    

26.3 During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Holding Company has reversed deferred tax liabilities of ̀ 1,796.38 lakhs created in 

earlier years, on Special Reserve created under section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, on the basis of a resolution of the 

Board of Directors of the Holding Company that there is no intention to make withdrawals from such Special Reserve.

Note: 28  Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

 Based on the extent of information available with the Management, there are no transactions with Micro and Small 

Enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) during the year ended 

March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020. This has been relied upon by the Auditors.

Note: 29  Commitments 

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Loans sanctioned to Borrowers pending disbursement                                                           15,987.63                      16,111.29 

 Total                              15,987.63  16,111.29

` in lakhs

Particulars
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Disclosures under Accounting Standards

Note: 30  Employee benefit plans

30.1      Defined contribution plans

  The Group makes Provident Fund contributions for qualifying employees to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. 

Under the Scheme, the Group is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The 

Group recognized 370.49 lakhs (March 31, 2020 - 306.24 lakhs) for provident fund contributions in the Statement of Profit ` `

and Loss. The contributions payable to the scheme by the Group are at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.     

30.2     Defined benefit plans

  The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the "gratuity plan") covering eligible employees in accordance with 

the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The gratuity plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or 

termination of employment based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and years of employment with the 

Holding Company. The Holding Company does not have a funded gratuity scheme for its employees.

  The Group is exposed to various risks in providing the above gratuity benefit such as: interest rate risk, longetivity risk and 

salary risk.

  Interest risk: A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.

  Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the 

mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan 

participants will increase the plan's liability.

  Salary escalation risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future 

salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

  Gratuity provision has been made based on the actuarial valuation done as at the year end using the Projected Unit Credit 

method. The details of actuarial valuation as provided by the Independent Actuary is as follows:

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

 Change in defined benefit obligations during the year 

 Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year  126.64   94.96 

 Current service cost  23.99   17.82 

 Interest cost    6.47   6.08 

 Benefits paid   (7.90)  (7.57)

 Actuarial (gains) / losses  15.04   15.35 

 Present value of obligation at end of the year  164.24   126.64 

     

 Change in fair value of assets during the year    

 Plan Assets at the beginning of the year  -     -   

 Expected Return on Plan Assets  -     -   

 Actual Company Contributions  -     -   

 Actuarial (gains) / losses  -     -   

 Plan Assets at the end of the year  -     -   

 Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet

 Present value of obligation  164.24   126.64 

 Fair value of Plan Assets  -     -   

 Net Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet  164.24   126.64 

Particulars

` in lakhs
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 For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

 Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:     

 Current service cost 23.99   14.10 

 Past service cost  - -   

 Net Interest on Net Defined Benefit Obligations 6.47   5.05 

 Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss  30.46   19.15 

     

 Amount Recognized for the current year in the Statement of Other
 Comprehensive Income [OCI]     

 Actuarial (gain)/loss on Plan Obligations  15.04   15.35 

 Difference between Actual Return and Interest Income on Plan  -     -   
 Assets- (gain)/loss  

 Amount recognized in OCI for the current year  15.04   15.35

 Actual return on Plan Assets - -

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: 30.2 (Cond..)

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Discount Rate  4.79% 5.28% 

 Future Salary Increase 5.00% 5.00% 

 Attrition rate   8% to 46% 8% to 46% 

 Mortality    Indian Assured Lives  Indian Assured Lives

      Mortality (2012-14)  Mortality (2012-14) 

      Ultimate Table Ultimate Table

Particulars

The key assumptions used in the actuarial valuation as provided by independent actuary are as follows:

Notes:   

 1. The estimate of the future salary increase takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

 2. Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government Bonds as at the Balance Sheet date for the 

estimated term of the obligation.

Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary 

increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective 

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The following table summarizes the impact on defined benefit obligation arising due to increase / decrease in key actuarial 

assumptions by 50 basis points:

Discount rate

 Impact of decrease 3.15 (3.25)

 Impact of increase                           (3.03) 3.35 

Defined Benefit Obligation

As at March 31, 2021

Salary increase rate

Discount rate

 Impact of decrease 2.45 (2.51)

 Impact of increase (2.36)  2.59 

Defined Benefit Obligation

As at March 31, 2020

Salary increase rate

` in lakhs
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The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation 

as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be 

correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been 

calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of-the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in 

calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

Additional disclosures required under Ind AS 19

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

Particulars

Note: 30.2 (Cond..)

 Average Duration of Defined Benefit Obligations (in years) 4.60 4.40

 Projected undiscounted expected benefit outgo (mid year cash flows) (` in lakhs)

  Year 1                            41.70 36.62 

  Year 2                            23.24 16.20 

  Year 3                           24.25 16.37 

  Year 4   21.60 15.73 

  Year 5   16.07 13.67 

  Year 6 to 10 56.86 45.47 

 Expected Benefit Payments for the next annual reporting period (` in lakhs) 41.70 36.62 

30.3     Compensated absences

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Discount Rate  4.79% 5.28%

 Future Salary Increase 5.00% 5.00%

Particulars

The key assumptions used in the actuarial valuation as provided by independent actuary are as follows:

30.4 The Code of Social Security, 2020 (the "Code") relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment 

benefits, received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, 

the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has also 

released draft rules thereunder on November 13, 2020 and has invited suggestions from stakeholders, which are under 

consideration by the Ministry. The Group will evaluate the rules, assess the impact, if any, and account for the same once 

the rules are notified and become effective.

Note: 31 Earnings and Expenditure in foreign currency - Nil (March 31, 2020: Nil)

Note: 32 Segment Reporting:

  The Chairman and Managing Director of the Group takes decision in respect of allocation of resources and assesses the 

performance basis the report/ information provided by functional heads and are thus considered to be CODM.

  The Group operates under the principal business segment viz. "providing long term housing finance, loans against property 

and refinance loans". CODM views and monitors the operating results of its single business segment for the purpose of making 

decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments in 

accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 ‘Operating segment’ and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be 

provided other than those already provided in the consolidated financial statements. The Group’s operations are 

predominantly confined in India.
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Note: 33 Related party transactions

33.1      Details of related parties: 

Names of related partiesDescription of relationship

Note: Related party relationships are as identified by the Management and relied upon by the Auditors.

33.2       Details of related party transactions for the year

Transactions during the year Names of related parties
Year ended 

March 31, 2021

` in lakhs

Year ended 
March 31, 2020

 Remuneration * Mr. M Anandan   

    - Salary                              400.20 350.40 

      - Commission  200.00  150.00 

       - Others                                  0.92  2.72  

  

 Director commission and sitting fee Mr. Shailesh J Mehta  

   - Commission  7.50   4.50 

   - Sitting fee  1.20   1.00 

  

 Director commission and sitting fee Mr. K M Mohandass  

   - Commission  11.50   6.50 

   - Sitting fee  3.80   2.80 

  

 Director commission and sitting fee Mr. S Krishnamurthy  

   - Commission  11.50   6.50 

   - Sitting fee  3.80   3.25 

  

 Director commission and sitting fee Mr. Krishnamurthy Vijayan  

   - Commission  7.50   4.50 

   - Sitting fee  1.00   1.60 

  

 Director commission and sitting fee Mr. Suman Bollina  

   - Commission  11.50   6.50 

   - Sitting fee  1.05   1.00 
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 Key Management Personnel (KMP) Mr. M Anandan, Chairman & Managing Director

      Mr. P Balaji, Chief Financial Officer

      Mr. Sanin Panicker, Company Secretary (from August 11, 2020)

      Ms. Jyoti Suresh Munot, Company Secretary (up to August 10, 2020)

       
      Mr. Shailesh J Mehta, Non-executive Director

      Mr. K M Mohandass, Independent Director

      Mr. S Krishnamurthy, Independent Director

      Mr. Krishnamurthy Vijayan, Independent Director

      Mr. K P Balaraj, Nominee Director

      Mr. Suman Bollina, Non-executive Director

      Mr. Sumir Chadha, Nominee Director (from November 05, 2019)

      Ms. Mona Kachhwaha, Non-executive Director (from May 30, 2020)

       Mr. V G Kannan, Independent Director (from March 09, 2021)

      

 Individuals having Significant Influence Mr. M Anandan, Chairman & Managing Director

 Entities having Significant Influence Westbridge Cross Over Fund LLC

 Wholly owned Subsidiary Aptus Finance India Private Limited



Remuneration * Mr. P Balaji   

   - Salary  95.79   88.68 

   

Remuneration * Mr. Sanin Panicker  

   - Salary  9.10   -   

   

Remuneration * Ms. Jyoti Suresh Munot  

   - Salary  0.59   1.63 

   

Rent paid Mr. M Anandan   7.64   7.28 

   

Proceeds from Issue of partly  Mr. M Anandan   -     15.00 
paid-up shares 

33.2       Details of related party transactions for the year (contd.)

Transactions during the year Names of related parties
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

 Director commission and sitting fee Ms. Mona Kachhwaha

   - Commission                                  7.50  -

  - Sitting fee                                  0.50 -   

 Director commission and sitting fee Mr. V G Kannan  

   - Commission                                  7.50    - 

   - Sitting fee  - -

Transactions during the year Names of related parties
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
For the year ended 

March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

Balances as at year end

 Personal guarantee given for Borrowings
 taken by the Holding Company as at year end

 Mr. M Anandan                            9,295.50                           11,274.82 

Names of related parties
As at

March 31, 2021
As at

March 31, 2020

Notes:   

 *   As the future liabilities of gratuity and leave encashment are determined on actuarial basis for the entities of the Group, the 

amounts pertaining to key managerial personnel is not separately ascertainable and therefore not included above.

` in lakhs

Note: 34  Financial Instruments

34.1     Capital management

  The Group actively manages its capital to meet regulatory norms and current and future business needs, considering the 

risks in its businesses, expectations of rating agencies, shareholders and investors, and the available options of raising 

capital. Its capital management framework is administered by the risk committee of the Group. There has been no change 

in objectives, policies or processes for managing capital.

  The Holding Company is subject to the capital adequacy requirements of the National Housing Bank ('NHB') / Reserve Bank 

of India ('RBI'). As per the Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) 

Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021, the Holding Company is required to maintain a minimum ratio of total capital to 

risk adjusted assets as determined by a specified formula, at least half of which must be Tier 1 capital, which is generally 

shareholders’ equity.      

  The Holding Company has complied with all regulatory requirements related to regulatory capital and capital adequacy 

ratios as prescribed by NHB/RBI.         

  The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure, i.e. equity and financial liabilities.         
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  Below is the Capital Risk Adequacy Ratio maintained and calculated as per NHB / RBI guidelines in the respective year by the 

Holding Company and as per regulatory return filed with NHB in the respective years.

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

 Tier I Capital              1,86,138.43 1,61,977.01

 Tier II Capital  (376.22) 484.20 

 Total Capital   1,85,762.21 1,62,461.21 

 Risk Weighted assets 2,52,280.98 1,96,937.30 

 Capital Adequacy Ratio 73.63% 82.49%

 Tier I Capital   73.78% 82.25%

 Tier II Capital   -0.15% 0.25%

34.2      Categories of Financial Instruments

Particulars

` in lakhs

As at March 31, 2021 Measured at 

FVTPL Amortised 
Cost

FVTOCI

As at March 31, 2020 Measured at 

FVTPL Amortised 
Cost

FVTOCI

 Financial assets      

 Cash and Cash equivalents  -     -     42,273.99   -     -     48,403.41 

 Bank Balance other than cash  -     -     1,506.07   -     -     11,864.24
 and cash equivalents   

 Loans  -     -     3,98,980.01   -     -     3,11,708.86 

 Investments  5,275.22   -     -     -     -     -   

 Other Financial assets  -     -     1,162.15   -     -     267.68 

 Total Financial Assets  5,275.22   -     4,43,922.22   -     -     3,72,244.19 

      

 Financial liabilities      

 Trade Payables  -     -     188.36   -     -     68.66 

 Debt Securities  -     -     43,018.39   -     -     64,454.96 

 Borrowings (Other than  -     -     2,07,779.05   -     -     1,37,043.21
 Debt Securities)   

 Lease Liabilities  -     -     709.05   -     -     666.36 

 Other Financial Liabilities  -     -     1,334.76   -     -     524.24 

 Total Financial liabilities  -     -     2,53,029.61   -     -     2,02,757.43 

34.3     Fair Value Measurements

   Fair Value hierarchy

   This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that 

are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair value disclosure are 

required in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair 

value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

` in lakhs

   (a)  Fair Value of financial instruments recognised and measured at fair value

 Financial assets

 Investments 5,275.22  - - 5,275.22 - - - -   

Particulars
As at March 31, 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at March 31, 2020
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  (b)  Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value

  Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value

  Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are 

not recorded and measured at fair value in the Group’s financial statements. These fair values were calculated for 

disclosure purposes only. The below methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables 

and, as such, may differ from the techniques and assumptions.

  Short-term financial assets and liabilities

  For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying 

amounts, which are net of impairment, are a reasonable approximation of their fair value. Such instruments include: cash 

and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, trade payables and other 

financial liabilities without a specific maturity. Such amounts have been classified as Level 3 except for cash and cash 

equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents which have been classified as Level 1.

  Loans

  The fair values of loans and receivables are estimated by discounted cash flow models that incorporate assumptions for 

credit risks, probability of default and loss given default estimates. Where such information is not available, the Group uses 

historical experience and other information used in its collective impairment models. 

  Fair values of lending portfolios are calculated using a portfolio-based approach. The Group then calculates and 

extrapolates the fair value to the entire portfolio, using discounted cash flow models that incorporate interest rate 

estimates considering all significant characteristics of the loans. The credit risk is applied as a top-side adjustment based 

on the collective impairment model incorporating probability of defaults and loss given defaults.

  Debt securities & Borrowings other than debt securities

  The fair values of Debt Securities and Borrowings other than Debt securities are estimated by discounted cash flow models 

that incorporate interest cost estimates considering all significant characteristics of the borrowing. They are classified as 

Level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs.

  Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments that are 

not carried at fair value in the financial statements. This table does not include the fair values of non–financial assets and 

non–financial liabilities.
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Particulars

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at March 31, 2020

Carrying 
ValueLevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at March 31, 2021

Carrying 
Value

 Financial assets          

 Cash and cash equivalents  42,273.99   42,273.99   -     -     42,273.99   48,403.41   48,403.41   -     -     48,403.41 

 Bank Balance other than   1,506.07   1,506.07   -     -     1,506.07   11,864.24   11,864.24   -     -     11,864.24
 cash and cash equivalents  

 Loans  3,98,980.01   -     -     4,07,295.87   4,07,295.87   3,11,708.86   -     -     3,17,669.36   3,17,669.36 

 Investments  5,275.22   5,275.22   -     -     5,275.22   -     -     -     -     -   

 Other Financial assets  1,162.15   -     -     1,162.15   1,162.15   267.68   -     -     267.68   267.68 

 Total Financial Assets  4,49,197.44   49,055.28   -     4,08,458.02   4,57,513.30   3,72,244.19   60,267.65   -     3,17,937.04   3,78,204.69

 Financial liabilities          

 Trade Payables  188.36   -     -     188.36   188.36   68.66   -     -     68.66   68.66 

 Debt Securities  43,018.39   -     -     42,735.53   42,735.53   64,454.96   -     -     63,849.58   63,849.58 

 Borrowings (Other than   2,07,779.05   -     -     2,14,711.43   2,14,711.43   1,37,043.21   -     -     1,39,561.94   1,39,561.94 
 Debt Securities)  

 Lease Liabilities  709.05   -     -     709.05   709.05   666.36   -     -     666.36   666.36 

 Other financial liabilities  1,334.76   -     -     1,334.76   1,334.76   524.24   -     -     524.24   524.24 

 Total Financial Liabilities  2,53,029.61   -     -     2,59,679.13   2,59,679.13   2,02,757.43   -     -     2,04,670.79   2,04,670.79

` in lakhs

Fair Value hierarchy Fair Value hierarchy



34.4 Market risk management

  Market Risk is the risk of loss in on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions arising from movements in market place, 

in particular, changes in interest rates, exchange rates and equity. In line with the regulatory requirements, the Group has in 

place a Board approved Market Risk Management and ALM policy in place. The Policy provides the framework for assessing 

market risk, in particular, tracking of events happening in market place, changes in policies / guidelines of government and 

regulators, exchange rate movement, equity market movements, money market movements etc.

34.5 Interest rate risk management

  Interest rate risk is managed through ALM policy framed by the Group. The ALM policy is administered through the ALCO 

(Asset Liability Management Committee) which monitors the following on a monthly basis:

  - Borrowing cost of the Group as on a particular date

  - Interest rate scenario existing in the market

  - Gap in cash flows at the prevalent interest rates

  - Effect of Interest rate changes on the Gap in the cash flows 

  - Fixing appropriate interest rate to be charged to the customer based on the above factors

  Interest rate sensitivity analysis

  The sensitivity analysis below has been determined for borrowings where interest rates are variable, assuming the amount 

outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points increase or decrease in 

interest rates is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents 

management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Carrying value Fair valueParticulars 0.50% increase

Sensitivity to fair value

0.50% decrease

 Sensitivity analysis as at March 31, 2021          

 Loans    3,98,980.01   4,07,295.87   4,00,590.19   4,14,237.12 

 Debt Securities  43,018.39   42,735.53   42,240.76   43,237.86 

 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 2,07,779.05   2,14,711.43   2,12,793.80   2,18,287.85 

 Sensitivity analysis as at March 31, 2020          

 Loans    3,11,708.86   3,17,669.36   3,15,105.62   3,21,126.34 

 Debt Securities  64,454.96   63,849.58   62,684.00   65,042.33 

 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)  1,37,043.21   1,39,561.94   1,37,842.23   1,40,828.19 

34.6 Credit risk

  Credit risk in the Group arises due to default by customers on their contractual obligations which results to financial losses. 

Credit Risk is a major risk in the Group and the Group’s asset base comprises loans for affordable housing and loans against 

property. Credit Risk in the Group stems from outright default due to inability or unwillingness of a customer to meet 

commitments in relation to lending, settlement and other financial transactions. The essence of credit risk assessment in 

the Group pivots around the early assessment of stress, either in a portfolio or an account, and taking appropriate 

measures.

34.6.1 Credit risk management

  Credit risk in the Group is managed through a framework that sets out policies and procedures covering the measurement 

and management of credit risk. There is a clear segregation of duties between transaction originators in the business 

function and approvers in the credit risk function. Board approved credit policies and procedures mitigate the Group’s 

prime risk which is the default risk. There is a Credit Risk Management Committee in the Group for the review of the policies, 

process and products on an ongoing basis, with approval secured from the Board as and when required. There is a robust 

Credit Risk Management set-up in the Group at various levels.

` in lakhs
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  1. There are Credit teams to ensure implementation of various policies and processes through random customer visits and 

assessment, training of branch staff on application errors, liaison with other institutions to obtain necessary 

information/loan closure documents, as the case may be, and highlight early warning signals and industry 

developments enabling pro-active field risk management. 

  2. The credit sanction is done through a delegation matrix where credit sanctioning powers are defined for respective 

levels.

  3. Portfolio analysis and reporting is used to identify and manage credit quality and concentration risks.

  4. Credit risk monitoring for the Group is broadly done at two levels: account level and portfolio level. Account monitoring 

aims to identify weak accounts at an incipient stage to facilitate corrective action. Portfolio monitoring aims towards 

managing risk concentration in the portfolio as well as identifying stress in certain occupations, markets and states. 

34.6.2 Significant increase in credit risk

  The Group monitors all financial assets that are subject to impairment requirements to assess whether there has been a 

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Group 

measures the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than Stage 1 (12-month) Expected Credit Loss (ECL). Pending the 

adoption of scoring models to assess the change in credit status at an account level and at portfolio level, the Group has 

adopted SICR (Significant Increase in Credit risk) criteria based on Days Past Due (DPD).The following table lists the staging 

criteria used in the Group: Staging Criterion

  Stage-1: 0 up to 30 days past due

  Stage-2: 31 up to 90 days past due

  Stage-3: 90 and above days past due

  Stage 2 follows the rebuttable presumption stated in Ind AS 109, that credit risk has increased significantly since initial 

recognition no later than when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

  The Group also considers other qualitative factors and repayment history and considers guidance issued by the Institute of 

Chartered accountants of India (ICAI) for staging of advances to which moratorium benefit has been extended under the 

COVID regulatory package issued by RBI and as approved by the Board.

34.6.3 Measurement of ECL

  The key inputs used for measuring ECL on term loans issued by the Group are:

  Probability of default (PD): The PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon (12 Month). It is 

estimated as at a point in time. To compute Expected Credit Loss (ECL) the portfolio is segregated into 3 stages viz. Stage 1, 

Stage 2 and Stage 3 on the basis of Days Past Dues. The Group uses 12 month PD for the stage 1 borrowers and lifetime PD for 

stage 2 and 3 to compute the ECL. 

  Loss given default (LGD): LGD is an estimation of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the 

contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from eligible 

collateral.    

  Exposure at default (EAD): EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes 

in the exposure after the reporting date including expected drawdowns on committed facilities.   

  Probability of Default    

  To arrive at Probability of Default, ‘Vintage Analysis’ was done considering monthly defaults of borrower since origination. 

The analysis considered Monthly Default Rates starting from inception until the end of observation period i.e. March 2021 to 

calculate default rates for each vintage month. Cumulative PD was calculated from the marginal PDs for each vintage 

month. Simple Average and Weighted Average PD was computed for each Month on Book (MOB) period starting from MOB 0 

until MOB “n” (end of observation period). The Group has used Simple average to eliminate the bias that can be possible 

due to weighted average effect. 
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  Loss Given Default    

  LGD was calculated using First time NPA (FTN) date and recovery data for each of these FTN dates. FTN date was taken from 

inception until March 2021. For each pool, recovery data was mapped to the subsequent months until March 2021 from the 

respective default month i.e. recovery data was retrieved and plotted against the flow of month  i.e. Months on Book  MOB 0, 

MOB 1, MOB 2, MOB 3 till MOB (n) against each default month. Considering time value of money, recoveries in each month 

was discounted to arrive at the value as of FTN date. Average Interest Rates charged for each disbursement year was used as 

the Effective Interest Rates (EIR) for the loans.

  Marginal Recovery rates was computed for each month as Discounted Recovery amount for a given month divided by the 

total outstanding amount for the given FTN date. Cumulative recovery rates were computed for each FTN date and LGD for 

corresponding FTN date was computed by using the formula (1- Recovery Rate). Weighted average LGD was computed for 

the entire observation period, weights being the total outstanding amount for each FTN date.

  Exposure at Default :

  EAD is the total outstanding balance at the reporting date including principal and accrued interests at the reporting date. 

EAD calculation for all portfolios is as under:

   Stage 1 Assets: 

   §  [(The total outstanding balance drawn) + (Undrawn Portion*CCF undrawn)].

   Stage 2 Assets:

  §  [(The total outstanding balance drawn) + (Undrawn Portion*CCF undrawn)].

   Stage 3 Assets: 

  §  [(The total outstanding balance drawn) + (Undrawn Portion*CCF undrawn)].

  Credit Conversion Factor (CCF) for undrawn portion has been taken at 100% based on historical experience and other 

information available with the Group.

  The Group measures ECL as the product of PD , LGD and EAD estimates for its Ind AS 109 specified financial obligations.

  Credit Risk Concentration

  In order to manage concentration risk, the Group, considering the regulatory limits, focuses on maintaining a diversified 

portfolio across housing loans and loans against property. An analysis of the Group's credit risk concentrations is provided 

in the following tables which represent gross carrying amounts of each class.

As at 
March 31, 2021

As at 
March 31, 2020

 Loans (at amortised cost) - Gross amount  

 Concentration by products  

 Housing Loans                           2,06,848.94                  1,63,579.26 

 Loans against property (including Loans subordinated as                          1,93,547.53                   1,48,959.76  

 Credit Enhancements for assets de-recognised)  

 Total Advances                           4,00,396.47                  3,12,539.02 

` in lakhs

Particulars

34.6.4 The tables below analyse the movement of the loss allowance during the year per class of assets.

Stage 1
 12-month ECL

 Loss allowance as at March 31, 2021 433.05 224.38 759.03 1,416.46 

 Loss allowance as at March 31, 2020 144.90 93.14 592.12 830.16 

 Movement for the year ended March 31, 2021 288.15 131.24 166.91 586.30 

` in lakhs

Loss allowance on Loans at amortised cost
Stage 2 

Lifetime ECL
Stage 3 

Lifetime ECL
Total
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  The table below provides an analysis of the gross carrying amount of Loans by past due status.

Particulars

 Receivables under Financing Activities - 

 Gross amount    

 0 up to 30 days  3,61,644.08   466.33   2,97,913.02   237.97 

 31 up to 90 days  36,017.27   179.20   10,341.24   39.70 

 90 days and above  2,735.13   770.93   4,284.76   552.49 

 Total  4,00,396.48   1,416.46   3,12,539.02   830.16

` in lakhs

As at March 31, 2021

Gross carrying Loss allowance

As at March 31, 2020

Gross carrying Loss allowance

34.6.5 Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

  The Group holds collateral or other credit enhancements to mitigate credit risk associated with financial assets. The main 

types of collateral and the types of assets these are associated with are listed in the table below.

Type of Collateral held

 Housing Loans  Mortgage of the immovable property

 Loan Against Properties Mortgage of the immovable property

Particulars

  Although collateral can be an important mitigation of credit risk, it is the Group’s practice to lend on the basis of the 

customer’s ability to meet the obligations out of cash flow resources other than placing primary reliance on collateral and 

other credit risk enhancements. 

  The Group obtains first and exclusive charge on all collateral that it obtains for the loans given.  The loans are secured by 

collateral at the time of origination. The value of the property at the time of origination will be arrived by obtaining two 

valuation reports from in-house valuers.

  Immovable Property is the collateral for Housing and non-housing loans. Security Interest in favour of the Group is created 

by Mortgage through deposit of title deed which is registered wherever required by law.

  The Group does not obtain any other form of credit enhancement other than the above. All the Group’s term loans are 

secured by way of tangible Collateral.

  Any surplus remaining after settlement of outstanding debt by way of sale of collateral is returned to the customer / 

borrower.

34.6.6 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

  The Group has not recognised any financial asset or liability on a net basis.

34.7 Liquidity risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 

liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as 

far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed 

conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the its reputation.

  Exposure to liquidity risk

  The Group manages and measures liquidity risk as per its ALM policy and the ALCO (Asset Liability Management Committee) 

is responsible for managing the liquidity risk. The Group not only measures its current liquidity position on an ongoing basis 

but also forecasts how liquidity position may emerge under different assumptions. The liquidity position is tracked through 

maturity or cash flow mismatches across buckets spanning all maturities.
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34.8 Operational risk

  Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and system or from 

external events. Operational risk is associated with human error, system failures and inadequate procedures and controls. 

It is the risk of loss arising from the potential that inadequate information system; technology failures, breaches in internal 

controls, fraud, unforeseen catastrophes, or other operational problems may result in unexpected losses or reputation 

problems. Operational risk exists in all products and business activities.

  The Group recognizes that operational risk event types that have the potential to result in substantial losses includes 

Internal fraud, External fraud, employment practices and workplace safety, clients, products and business practices, 

business disruption and system failures, damage to physical assets, and finally execution, delivery and process 

management.

  The Group cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavours to manage these risks through a control 

framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access, 

authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, such as the use of internal audit.           

Note: 35 Earnings per share

  Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted 

average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year after considering the adjustment mentioned in Note 44(i).

  Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (after adjusting for interest on 

the convertible preference shares, if any) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year 

plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity 

shares into Equity shares after considering the adjustment mentioned in Note 44(i).

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

` in lakhs

Particulars

Particulars

 Profit After Tax (A)  26,694.49   21,101.27 

 Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (Face Value `2 Each) - Basic (B)  48,00,06,701   44,22,54,910 

 Add: Effect of dilutive potential equity shares 

  - Employee stock options 9,62,830   26,06,252 

 Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (Face Value `2 Each) - Diluted (C) 48,09,69,531   44,48,61,162 

 Earnings Per Share  - Basic (`)  (A / B) 5.56   4.77 

 Earnings Per Share  - Diluted (`) (A / C) 5.55   4.74 

 (a) Gross amount required to be spent during the year  338.49   210.36 

 (b) Amount spent during the year    

  (i) Construction / acquisition of any asset  -     -   

  (ii) On purposes other than (i) above 116.64   69.72 

 Excess / (Shortfall) (A-B)* (221.85)  (140.64)

Note: 36 Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure:

  * The Group has provided for the shortfall in CSR expenditure as at March 31, 2021.

  (i) None of the CSR projects undertaken by the Group falls under the definition of "On-going Projects".

  (ii) There is no amount required to be contributed to specified fund u/s 135 (6) by the Group.
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Note: 38  Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

Particulars

 ASSETS

 Financial Assets

 Cash and cash equivalents 42,273.99   -     42,273.99  48,403.41   -     48,403.41 

 Bank Balance other than cash and  93.70   1,412.37   1,506.07  10,929.28   934.96   11,864.24

 cash equivalents  

 Loans 27,838.82   3,71,141.19   3,98,980.01  17,968.93   2,93,739.93   3,11,708.86 

 Investments 5,275.22   -     5,275.22  -     -     -   

 Other Financial assets 896.57   265.58   1,162.15  29.13   238.55   267.68 

        

 Non-financial Assets

 Deferred tax assets (Net) -  1,699.32 1,699.32 - 1,272.26 1,272.26

 Property, plant and equipment - 248.17 248.17 - 326.81 326.81 

 Intangible assets - 26.78 26.78 - 36.57 36.57 

 Right-of-use assets - 680.69 680.69 - 647.65 647.65

 Other non-financial assets 164.19 - 164.19 144.90 - 144.90 

 TOTAL ASSETS 76,542.49 3,75,474.10 4,52,016.59 77,475.65 2,97,196.73 3,74,672.38 

        

 LIABILITIES

 Financial Liabilities

 Trade Payables 188.36 - 188.36 68.66 - 68.66

 Debt Securities 2,899.33 40,119.06 43,018.39 1,250.00 63,204.96 64,454.96 

 Borrowings  44,104.56 1,63,674.49 2,07,779.05 25,263.67 1,11,779.54 1,37,043.21 

 (Other than Debt Securities) 

 Lease Liabilities 330.27 378.78 709.05 288.59 377.77 666.36 

 Other financial liabilities 1,334.76 - 1,334.76 524.24 - 524.24 

        

 Non-Financial Liabilities        

 Current tax liabilities (Net)  444.89   -     444.89  583.46   -     583.46 

 Provisions -    330.18 330.18 - 252.43   252.43 

 Other non-financial liabilities 266.76   -     266.76  178.02   -     178.02 

 

 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 49,568.93 2,04,502.51 2,54,071.44 28,156.64 1,75,614.70 2,03,771.34 

 

 NET ASSETS / (LIABILITIES) 26,973.56 1,70,971.59 1,97,945.15 49,319.01 1,21,582.03 1,70,901.04 

` in lakhs

As at March 31, 2021

Within 12
months

Total
After 12
months

As at March 31, 2020

Within 12
months

Total
After 12
months

 Debt securities  64,454.96 (21,666.67) 230.10 43,018.39 

 Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,37,043.21 71,216.22 (480.38) 2,07,779.05 

 Lease liabilities  666.36 (414.73)  457.42   709.05 

 Total liabilities from financing activities 2,02,164.53 49,134.82 207.14 2,51,506.49 

01-Apr-20 Other *Cash flows 31-Mar-21

` in lakhs
Note: 39  Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

 Debt securities   70,138.48  (5,937.50)  253.98   64,454.96 

 Borrowings (other than debt securities) 89,830.49  47,217.13   (4.41)  1,37,043.21 

 Lease liabilities  -    (325.23)  991.59   666.36 

 Total liabilities from financing activities  1,59,968.97  40,954.40   1,241.16   2,02,164.53

01-Apr-19 Other *Cash flows 31-Mar-20

* Other column includes the effect of interest accrued but not paid on borrowing, amortisation of processing fees, recognition of 

liabilities on account of new lease etc.
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Note: 40 Share-based payments (Refer Note 44(iii))

   Employee share option plan

40.1 Details of the employee share option plan

  a)  In the Annual General Meeting held on August 7, 2015, the shareholders approved the issue of up to 18,00,000 options 

under the Scheme titled "Aptus Employees Stock Option Scheme 2015" (hereinafter referred to as Aptus ESOS, 2015).

   The scheme allow the issue of options to employees of the Holding Company. Each option comprises one underlying 

equity share.

   As per the Scheme, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("The Committee") grants the options to the 

employees deemed eligible and also governs the operation of the scheme.

   The difference between the fair price of the the options granted on the date of grant of option and the exercise price of 

the option representing Stock compensation expense is expensed over the vesting period.   

  b)  Employee stock options details as on the balance sheet date:

Grant 7 under 
Aptus ESOS 2015

 Date of Grant  07-Aug-15 17-May-17

 Date of Board approval August 07, 2015 May 17, 2017

 Date of shareholders approval August 07, 2015 August 07, 2015

 Number of options granted  15,00,000   1,50,000 

 Method of settlement  Equity   Equity 

 Vesting period  31.03.2016 to 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 to 31.03.2021

 Manner of vesting  

 Exercise price per option (in `)  75.00 130.00

 Price of Underlying share at the time of the Option Grant (in `)                               56.26 111.02

Particulars
Grant 8 under 

Aptus ESOS 2015

 In a graded manner over a 4 year period with 25% of the 
grants vesting in each year 

Grant 7 under 
Aptus ESOS 2015 Total

 Options outstanding as at April 1, 2019  9,10,000   1,50,000   10,60,000 

 Add: Options granted during the year  -     -     -   

 Less: Options forfeited/lapsed during the year  -     -     -   

 Less: Options exercised during the year  (3,35,000)  (37,500)  (3,72,500)

 Options outstanding as at March 31, 2020  5,75,000   1,12,500   6,87,500 

 Add: Options granted during the year  -     -     -   

 Less: Options forfeited/lapsed during the year  -     -     -   

 Less: Options exercised during the year  (3,45,000)  (75,000)  (4,20,000)

 Options outstanding as at March 31, 2021  2,30,000   37,500   2,67,500 

Particulars
Grant 8 under 

Aptus ESOS 2015

  c)  Movement in share options during the year are as follows:
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40.2 Fair value of share options granted

  During the year ended March 31, 2018, 1,50,000 shares were granted under the Aptus ESOS 2015 scheme. The fair value of 

options have been estimated on the date of the grant using Black-Scholes model by an external firm of Chartered 

Accountants. The key assumptions used in the model for calculating fair value are as below:

August 07, 2015

 Risk Free Interest Rate 8.04% to 8.26% 7.21% to 7.73%

 Expected Life (in years) 2.65 to 5.65 3 to 6

 Expected Annual Volatility of Shares 43.15% 35.99%

 Expected Dividend Yield 0% 0%

 Price of Underlying share at the time of the Option Grant 56.26 111.02

 Fair Value of the Option (`)  

 1st Stage    13.61 29.67

 2nd Stage   17.21 36.87

 3rd Stage   20.60 43.37

 4th Stage   23.64 49.29

Assumptions
May 17, 2017

Date of Grant

40.3 Expense arising from share based payment transaction recognized in profit or loss statement as employee benefit 

expense are as follows:

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

 Employee benefit expense 4.62 19.21

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: 41 Leases

  The Group has lease contracts for buildings used for the branches. Leases of such assets generally have lease terms 

between 3 and 9 years. The Group’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.    

  The Group also has certain leases for buildings with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Group applies the ‘short-term 

lease’ recognition exemptions for these leases. 

  Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities included under financial liabilities and the movements during the 

year:

Movement of Lease Liability

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

Particulars

 Opening Balance  666.36   -   

 Add: Additions during the year  385.41   901.45 

 Add / Less: Accretion of Interest  72.03   90.14 

 Less: Payments during the year  (414.73)  (325.23)

 Closing Balance  709.07   666.36

 Current    349.11   277.82

 Non Current   359.96   388.54

   The incremental borrowing rate for lease liabilities is 10% p.a.

   The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 34.7.1.
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The following are the amounts recognised in the Statement of profit and loss:

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

Particulars

 Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 352.37   278.77 

 Interest expense on lease liabilities 72.03   90.14 

 Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) - 72.77 

 Total      424.40   441.68 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

` in lakhs

Particulars

 Total cash outflow for leases 414.73   325.23 

   The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by 

management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Group’s business needs. 

Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these extension and termination options are 

reasonably certain to be exercised.

Note: 42 Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised

  The following tables provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that part or all of the 

transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the associated liabilities:    

  The Group has Securitised certain loans, however the Group has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards, hence 

these assets have not been de-recognised.

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

 Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at amortised cost 18,759.40   10,878.97 

 Carrying amount of associated liabilities measured at amortised cost 15,166.79   9,081.14 

 Fair value of assets 18,798.22   10,964.42 

 Fair value of associated liabilities 15,166.79   9,081.14 

 Net position at Fair Value  3,631.43   1,883.28

` in lakhs

Particulars

Note: 43  Disclosure pursuant to RBI notification no. RBI/2020-21/60 DOR.NBFC (HFC).CC.No.118/03.10.136/2020-21 

dated October 22, 2020 and RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 

2020 on Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards

   RBI has issued Notification no. RBI/2020-21/60 DOR.NBFC (HFC).CC.No.118/03.10.136/2020-21 dated October 22, 2020 and 

RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 in respect of recognition of impairment on 

financial instruments starting from financial year 2020-21 for Housing Finance Companies and from financial year 2019-20 

for Non-Banking Finance Companies. The Group has complied with the requirements of Ind AS and the guidelines and 

policies approved by the Board in this regard.

   Any shortfall in ECL provision compared to the requirements as per IRAC norms are apportioned by the Group to Impairment 

Reserve at reporting periods. Such balance can be utilised / withdrawn by the Group only with prior permission of the 

Reserve Bank of India as per the said Circular. The shortfall in ECL provision compared to IRACP requirement as at March 31, 

2021 is 453.11 lakhs. The balance in the impairment reserve as at March 31, 2021 is 761.93 lakhs (Refer Note 19.1 and Note ` `

19.2.5).      
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As at March 31, 2021

Asset Classification 
as per RBI Norms

 Performing Assets      

 Standard Stage 1  3,57,619.75   433.05   3,57,186.70   1,207.02   (773.97)

  Stage 2  40,014.76   224.38   39,790.38   139.95   84.43 

  Stage 3  -     -     -     -     -   

 Subtotal   3,97,634.51   657.43   3,96,977.08   1,346.97   (689.54)

      

 Non-Performing Assets (NPA)      

 Substandard Stage 3  1,753.35   141.68   1,611.67   241.89   (100.21)

 Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3  701.81   305.88   395.93   153.98   151.90 

 1 to 3 years Stage 3  293.68   296.32   (2.64)  118.50   177.82 

 More than 3 years Stage 3  13.12   15.15   (2.03)  15.15   -   

 Subtotal for doubtful   2,761.96   759.03   2,002.93   529.52   229.51 

      

 Loss Stage 3  -     -     -     -     -   

 Subtotal for NPA   2,761.96   759.03   2,002.93   529.52   229.51 

      

  Stage 1  10,270.29   5.68   10,264.61   -     5.68 

  Stage 2  78.71   0.90   77.81   -     0.90 

  Stage 3  4.00   0.34   3.66   -     0.34 

 Subtotal   10,353.00   6.92   10,346.08   -     6.92 

      

 Total Stage 1  3,67,890.04   438.73   3,67,451.31   1,207.02   (768.29)

  Stage 2  40,093.47   225.28   39,868.19   139.95   85.33 

  Stage 3  2,765.96   759.37   3.66   529.52   229.85 

  Total  4,10,749.47   1,423.38   4,07,323.16   1,876.49   (453.11)

` in lakhs

Asset 
classification 

as per 
Ind AS 109

Loss 
Allowances 
(Provisions) 
as required 

under 
Ind AS 109

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount 
as per 
Ind AS

Net 
Carrying 
Amount

Difference 
between 

Ind AS 109 
provisions 
and IRACP 

norms

Provisions 
required 

as per 
IRACP norms

 (1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7) = (4)-(6)

Other items such as guarantees, 

loan commitments, etc. which are 

in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not 

covered under current Income 

Recognition, Asset Classification 

and Provisioning (IRACP) norms

Note: 44  Events after reporting period

   (i) The Board of Directors of the Holding Company in its meeting held on May 05, 2021 and shareholders in the Extraordinary 

General Meeting held on May 06, 2021 approved the sub-division of shares from `10 per share to `2 per share. The 

number of shares used for the calculation of earnings per share, and the earnings per share in Note 35 (including that in 

the comparative periods), have been adjusted for pursuant to Paragraph 64 of Ind AS 33 - "Earnings Per Share", 

prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. No other adjustments are made in the Consolidated Financial 

Statements on account of the share split.      

   (ii) The Board of Directors of the Holding Company in its meeting held on May 05, 2021 has made the first and final call of 

`525.03 per share on the 15,00,000 equity shares allotted to Mr. M Anandan, Chairman and Managing Director. No 

adjustments are made in the Consolidated Financial Statements for these calls made by the Company.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

Note: 43 (Contd..)



   (iii) The Board of Directors of the Holding Company in its meeting held on November 12, 2020 approved the Aptus Employee 

Stock Option Scheme, 2021 ("ESOS 2021") with such number of options which shall not exceed 1,00,00,000 options. The 

shareholders in the Extraordinary General Meeting held on May 06, 2021 approved the ESOS 2021 with such number of 

options which shall not exceed 1,00,00,000 options. No adjustments are made in the Consolidated Financial Statements 

on account of this proposed new ESOP Scheme.

   (iv) Based on the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on May 12, 2021, the Company has 

filed the draft red herring prospectus dated May 14, 2021 with the Securities and Exchange Board of India, pursuant to 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended 

in connection with the initial public offering of equity shares of 2 each of the Company and offer for sale by the selling `

shareholders of the Company.

Note: 45  Comparatives

   Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year 

 classification / presentation.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 
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As per our report of even date

For For and on behalf of of S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP  Board of Directors  
Chartered Accountants   Aptus Value Housing Finance India Limited
ICAI Firm Regn No.101049W/E300004  

    
per Aniruddh Sankaran   M Anandan    K M Mohandass
Partner  Chairman & Managing Director Director  
Membership No: 211107   DIN: 00033633   DIN: 00707839
 
    P Balaji   Sanin Panicker 
    Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary
       Membership No: A32834    

Place : Chennai   Place : Chennai  
Date :  June 24, 2021   Date :  June 24, 2021



APTUS VALUE HOUSING FINANCE INDIA LIMITED
8B, Doshi Towers, 205, Poonamallee High Road,

Kilpauk, Chennai 600 010. Tamilnadu, INDIA.

P: +91-44-4565 0000|E: customercare@aptusindia.com

W: www.aptusindia.com

Disclaimer: Some information in this report may contain forward-looking statements which include statements regarding Company’s expected financial position 
and results of operations, business plans and prospects etc. and are generally identified by forward-looking words such as “believe,” “plan,” “anticipate,” 
“continue,” “estimate,” “expect,” “may,” “will” or other similar words. Forward-looking statements are dependent on assumptions or basis underlying such 
statements. We have chosen these assumptions or basis in good faith, and we believe that they are reasonable in all material respects. However, we caution that 
actual results, performances or achievements could differ materially from those expressed or implied in such forward-looking statements. We undertake no 
obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise. D
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